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ORDERS OF REFERENCE ORDRES DE RENVOI

Extracts from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate, Extraits des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 9 février
Thursday, February 9, 1984: 1984:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-3, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Louis Philippe Nadeau
and Marie Thérése Rita Brulé”.

After debate, and—

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-2, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Gerald Harvey Fudge
and Audrey Marie Saunders”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-4, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Ernest Hodel and
Norma Dora Laurie”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I'honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant a la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-3, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Louis Phillippe Nadeau et Marie Thérése Rita
Brulé».

Aprés débat,

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, a la
majorité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par I’ho-
norable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I’Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant 4 la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-2, intitulé «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Gerald Harvey Fudge et Audrey Marie
Saunders».

Aprés débat,

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la
majorité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par I’ho-
norable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant 4 la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-4, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas d’Ernest Hodel et Norma Dora Laurie».

Apreés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la
majorité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par I’ho-
norable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.
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The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-5, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Benjamin Josheph
Andrade and Heather Winnifred Andrade”.

After debate, and—

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant a la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-5, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Benjamin Josheph Andrade et Heather Winni-
fred Andrade».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la
majorité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par I’ho-
norable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Sénat
Charles A. Lussier
Clerk of the Senate
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS PROCES-VERBAUX

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 18, 1984 LE MERCREDI 18 JANVIER 1984

(D (1)

[Text] [Traduction]

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitution-
al Affairs held an organization meeting this day at 2.40 p.m.

Present: The Honourable Senators Asselin, Donahoe, Frith,
Lewis, Neiman, Nurgitz, Rizzuto, Robichaud and Tremblay.
9

Present but not of the Committee: The Honourable Senator
Grafstein.

The Clerk of the Committee presided over the election of
the Chairman.

The Honourable Senator Frith moved,—That the Honour-

able Senator Neiman take the Chair of this Committee as
Chairman.

The question being put on the said motion, it was agreed to,

and the Honourable Senator Neiman was invited to take the
Chair.

The Chairman called for a motion to elect a Deputy
Chairman.

The Honourable Senator Lewis moved,—That the Honour-
able Senator Nurgitz be elected Deputy Chairman of the
Committee. The motion carried.

On motion by the Honourable Senator Nurgitz, it was
agreed,—That the Chairman, the Deputy Chairman and the
Honourable Senator Lewis do compose the Subcommittee on
Agenda and Procedure (Steering Committee).

On motion by the Honourable Senator Asselin, it was
agreed,—That 1,000 copies of the Minutes of Proceedings and
Evidence of each of the Committee’s meetings be printed.

On motion by the Honourable Senator Donahoe, it was
agreed,—That, subject to the provisions of Rule 70 of the
Rules of the Senate, the Chairman be authorized to hold
meetings to receive and authorize the printing of ev1dence
when a quorum is not present.

The Committee agreed that a proposed Budget be prepared
for examination by the Committee at the next meeting.

The Committee discussed the various orders of reference it
may be called upon to examine in this session and agreed that
the expected workload will require that the Committee meet
twice per week in the foreseeable future.

At 4.00 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the
Chair.

ATTEST:

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles tient une séance d’organisation aujourd’hui a
14 h 40.

Présents: Les honorables sénateurs Asselin, Donahoe, Frith,
Lewis, Neiman, Nurgitz, Rizzuto, Robichaud et Tremblay.
)

Présent mais ne faisant pas partie du Comité: L’honorable
sénateur Grafstein.

Le greffier du Comité préside a I’élection du président.

L’honorable sénateur Frith propose,—Que I’honorable séna-
teur Neiman soit nommé 2 la présidence du Comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, et le sénateur
Neiman est invité a occuper le fauteuil.

La présidence demande une motion pour I’élection d’un
vice-président.

L’honorable sénateur Lewis propose,—que 1’honorable séna-
teur Nurgitz soit élu a4 la vice-présidence du Comité. La
motion est adoptée.

Sur motion de I’honorable sénateur Nurgitz, il est con-
venu,—Que le président, le vice-président et ’honorable séna-
teur Lewis composent le Sous-comité du programme et de la
procédure (Comité directeur).

Sur motion de I’honorable sénateur Asselin, il est con-
venu,—que soient imprimés 1 000 exemplaires des procés-ver-
baux et témoignages de chaque séance du Comité.

Sur motion de I’honorable sénateur Donahoe, il est con-
venu,—Que, conformément a l'article 70 du Réglement du
Sénat, le président soit autorisé a organiser des réunions pour
entendre des témoignages et en faire publier en ’absence de
quorum.

Le Comité est d’accord pour que des propositions budgétai-
res soient préparées afin qu’il puisse les examiner a la pro-
chaine réunion.

Le Comité discute des divers ordres de renvoi qu’il peut étre
appelé a étudier au cours de la session et convient, d’aprés le
volume de travail prévu, qu’il devra se réunir deux fois par
semaine 4 ’avenir.

A 16 heures, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Denis Bouffard
Clerk of the Committee
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WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 22, 1984
(2)

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitution-
al Affairs met this day at 2:05 p.m., the Deputy Chairman,
Senator Nurgitz, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Asselin, Deschatelets, Flynn, Frith, Lewis, Nurgitz, Stan-
bury and Tremblay. (8)

Other Senators present: The Honourable Senators Cools,
Grafstein and Leblanc.

In attendance: Mr. R. L. du Plessis, Law Clerk and Parlia-
mentary Counsel. Mr. Donald Macdonald, Research Officer
of the Library of Parliament.

Witnesses:

Mr. Henry S. Brown, Barrister and Solicitor;

Ms. Lisa Christian.

The Committee considered Bill S-4, intituled: “An Act to
provide an exception from the public general law relating to
marriage in the case of Ernest Hodel and Norma Dora
Laurie”.

Senators made statements.

Mr. Brown made a statement and answered questions.

On motion of Senator Asselin, it was agreed,—That the
Committee postpone its deliberations on Bills S-2, S-3, S-4
and S-5 pending the presentation of the Minister of Justice at
the earliest possible time.

At 3:32 p.m. the Committee adjourned to the call of the
Chair.

ATTEST:

LE MERCREDI 22 FEVRIER 1984
2)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles se réunit aujourd’hui a 14 h 05 sous la prési-
dence du sénateur Nurgitz (vice-président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Asselin, Deschatelets, Flynn, Frith, Lewis, Nurgitz, Stanbury
et Tremblay. (8)

Autres sénateurs présents: Les honorables sénateurs Cools,
Grafstein et Leblanc.

Aussi présents: M. R. L. du Plessis, secrétaire légiste et
conseiller parlementaire. M. Donald Macdonald, attaché de
recherche 4 la Bibliothéque du Parlement.

Témoins:
M. Henry S. Brown, avocat.
M Lisa Christian.

Le Comité étudie le projet de loi S-4, intitulé «Loi faisant
exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage
dans le cas de Ernest Hodel et Norma Dora Laurie».

Les sénateurs font des déclarations.

M. Brown fait une déclaration et répond aux questions.

Sur motion du sénateur Asselin, il est convenu,—que le
comité suspende son étude des projets de loi S-2, S-3, S-4 et
S-5 jusqu’a la comparution du ministre de la Justice, dans les
plus brefs délais.

A 15h 32, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Paul Belisle
Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE

OTTAWA, WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 18, 1984
[Text)
The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitution-

al Affairs met this day at 3 p.m. to organize the activities of
the committee.

The Clerk of the Committee: Honourable senators, accord-
ing to rule 69, the committee is required at this meeting to
elect a chairman. Will an honourable senator present a motion
to that effect?

Senator Frith: Honourable senators, I nominate for chair-
man of the committee Senator Neiman.

The Clerk of the Committee: It has been moved by Senator
Frith that the Honourable Senator Neiman be elected chair-
man of the committee. Are there any further nominations?

Senator Asselin: I move that the nominations be closed.

The Clerk of the Committee: It is moved by Senator Asselin
that nominations be now closed. That being so, is Senator
Frith’s motion to elect Senator Neiman as chairman of the
committee agreed to?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Clerk of the Committee: I hereby declare Senator
Neiman to be chairman of this committee.

Senator Neiman:Thank you, Honourable Senator Frith and
all honourable senators for your support. The next order of
business is the election of the deputy chairman.

Senator Lewis: Honourable senators, I should like to nomi-
nate Senator Nurgitz as deputy chairman.

The Chairman: Are there any further nominations?

Senator Asselin: I move that the nominations for deputy
chairman be closed.

The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Senator Nurgitz is then our new deputy
chairman.

The next order of business is the appointment of the steering
committee. Normally, the steering committee would consist of
the chairman, the deputy chairman and one or more members
of the committee. Before I ask for nominations, I should call to
your attention that this committee, consisting of 12 members,
has, according to the new rules just adopted in the Senate, a
quorum of four. That being so, the steering committee in my
opinion should consist of no more than three or four members.

Senator Nurgitz: What has it been in the past?
The Chairman: Normally it is three.

Senator Asselin: Who were the members of the steering
committee last session?

The Chairman: I believe it changed from time to time last
session, but it consisted of myself, the deputy chairman and, at

TEMOIGNAGES

OTTAWA, LE MERCREDI 18 JANVIER 1984
[Traduction]
Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affairs juridiques et

constitutionelles tient aujourd’hui, a 15 heures, sa séance
d’organisation.

Le greffier du comité: Honorables sénateurs, conformément
a larticle 69 du Reéglement, les membres du Comité sont
tenus, dans le cadre de cette séance, de se choisir un président.
Un honorable sénateur aurait-il 'obligeance de présenter une
motion 4 cet effet?

Le sénateur Frith: Honorables sénateurs, je propose que I'on
nomme le sénateur Neiman a la présidence du Comité.

Le greffier du comité: Le sénateur Frith propose que I’hono-
rable sénateur Nieman assume la présidence du Comité. Y a
t-il d’autres mises en candidature?

Le sénateur Asselin: Je propose que I’on mette fin aux mises
en candidature.

Le greffier du comité: Le sénateur Asselin propose que I’on
mette fin aux mises en candidature. Puisqu’il en est ainsi, les
sénateurs sont-ils d’accord avec la moiton du sénateur Frith
d’élire le sénateur Neiman a la présidence du Comité?

Des voix: D’accord.

Le greffier du comité: Je déclare donc le sénateur Neiman
président de ce Comité.

Le sénateur Neiman: Je remercie de leur appui I’honorable
sénateur Frith et les autres membres du Comité. Le point
suivant a I'ordre du jour prévoit I’élection d’un vice-président.

Le sénateur Lewis: Honorables sénateurs, j’aimerais propo-
ser pour ce poste le sénateur Nurgitz.

Le président: Y a t-il d’autres mises en candidature?

Le sénateur Asselin: Je propose que 'on mette fin aux mises
en candidature pour le poste de vice-président.

Le président: Les sénateurs sont-ils d’accord?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Le sénateur Nurgitz est donc notre nouveau
vice-président.

Le prochain article a 'ordre du jour a trait 4 la nomination
des memrbes du comité directeur. D’habitude, celui-ci est
constitué du président, du vice-président, et d’un ou de plu-
sieurs autres membres du COmité. Avant d’accepter des mises
en candidature, j’aimerais vous rappeler que, conformément
aux régles qui viennent tout juste d’étre adoptées au Sénat, le
quorum de notre Comité, qui compte douze membres, est de
quatre participants. Par conséquent, le comité directeur ne
devrait pas 4 mon avis compter plus de trois ou quatre
membres.

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Combien en comptait-il auparavent?
Le président: Habituellement trois.

Le sénateur Asselin: Au cours de la derniére session, qui
étaient les membres du comité directeur?

Le président: Je crois que sa composition a changé quelques
fois, mais il était constitué de moi-méme, du vice-président et,
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[Text]

one point, Senator Lewis, I believe, then Senator Hastings and
then Senator Asselin.

Actually, in the earlier part of the session, before I became
chairman, I don’t recall that we had a steering committee.

Senator Donahoe: During Joe Clark’s régime, I was chair-
man of the committee. Certainly at that time there was no
sterring committee for the simple reason that we had not gone
far enough into motions to require a steering committee.
Moreover, I do not recall having this type of organization
meeting. I certainly thought I was on the steering committee,
however, although you did not mention my name.

The Chairman: Yes, you certainly were, Senator Donahoe,
as deputy chairman.

Senator Robichaud: The question remains whether we want
three or four members on the steering committee now.

Senator Frith: In my opinion, Madam Chairman, the steer-
ing committee should be comprised of either three of five
members in order to give the government of the day a majority
of government supporters on the steering committee.

Senator Nurgitz: Yes, I agree with that point.

Senator Frith: In which case, if you want three, the commit-
tee should be comprised of the chairman, the deputy chairman,
and a government supporter; if you want five, it should be the
chairman, the deputy chairman and two government support-
ers and an opposition supporter.

Senator Asselin: Five is too many.

Senator Frith: In any event, the steering committee itself
can always add to itself, if it wishes.

Senator Robichaud: Madam Chairman, because with the
chairman and deputy chairman we have a Liberal and a
Conservative, perhaps we could agree that the third member of
the steering committee should be a Liberal.

Senator Nurgitz: Madam Chairman, I move that the steer-
ing committee be comprised of the chairman, the deputy
chairman and Senator Lewis.

Senator Frith: Before you put that to a vote, and without
being in disagreement at all, may I suggest that it could be the
chairman, the deputy chairman and a government supporter,
without naming the government supporter. That would mean
that a government supporter was available at all times.

Senator Donahoe: 1 think you should name the person,
frankly.

The Chairman: Senator Nurgitz, do you feel that it is better
to name someone?

Senator Nurgitz: Yes, I do.

The Chairman: It has been moved that Senator Lewis be the
third member of the steering committee. Are there any other
nominations?

[Traduction)

s

4 un certain moment, je crois, du sénateur Lewis, puis du
sénateur Hastings et enfin, du sénateur Asselin.

En réalité, au tout début de la session, avant que j’assume la
présidence du Comité, je ne me rappelle pas que nous ayons eu
un comité directeur.

Le sénateur Donahoe: Sous le gouvernement Clark, c’est
moi qui étais président du Comité. S’il n’y avait pas de comité
directeur 4 ce moment-la, c’est pour la simple raison que nous
n’étions pas parvenus assez avant dans les motions pour en
avoir besoin. Qui plus est, je ne me rappelle pas que nous ayons
tenu ce genre de séance d’organisation: Cependant, je crois
bien avoir fait partie du comité directeur, bien que vous n’ayez
pas cité mon nom.

Le président: Vous y siégiez certainement, sénateur Dona-
hoe, en tant que vice-président.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Il nous reste encore a déterminer si
trois ou quatre membres siégeront a ce comité directeur.

Le sénateur Frith: A mon avis, madame la présidente, le
comité directeur devrait comporter trois ou cing membres de
maniére que le parti gouvernemental y ait une majorité.

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Oui, je suis d’accord sur ce point.

Le sénateur Frith: Si vous optez pour trois membres, le
comité devrait &tre constitué du président, du vice-président et
d’un député de la majorité gouvernementale. Par contre, si
vous optez pour cing membres, le comité devrait étre constitué
du président, du vice-président, de deux députés de la majorité
gouvernementale et d’un député de I’Opposition,

Le sénateur Asselin: Cing, c’est trop.

Le sénateur Frith: De toute fagon, le comité directeur peut
toujours recruter d’autres membres s'il le désire.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Madame la présidente, étant donné
que la présidence et la vice-présidence ont été confiées respec-
tivement 4 un sénateur libéral et 4 un sénateur conservateur,
nous pourrions peut-étre nous entendre pour que le troisiéme
membre du comité directeur soit un sénateur libéral.

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Madame la présidente, je propose que
le comité directeur soit constitué du président, du vice-prési-
dent et du sénateur Lewis.

Le sénateur Frith: Avant que nous votions sur cette ques-
tion—et sachez que je ne m’y oppose pas—, permettez-moi de
proposer que le comité soit constitué du président, du vice-pré-
sident et d’un député de la majorité gouvernementale, sans que
soit précisé le nom de ce dernier. Cela voudrait dire qu’il y
aurait toujours un député de la majorité gouvernementale en
mesure de siéger A ce comité.

Le sénateur Donahoe: En toute franchise, je crois qu’il
faudrait préciser le nom de cette personne.

Le président: Sénateur Nurgitz, croyez-vous que ce soit
préférable?

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Oui.

Le président: Il a été proposé que le sénateur Lewis soit le

troisitme membre du comité directeur. Y-a-t-il d’autres mises
en candidature?
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Senator Donahoe: I move that nominations be closed.

The Chairman: Thank you, Senator Donahoe. Senator
Lewis will be the third member of the steering committee.

The fourth matter of business this afternoon concerns the
printing of our proceedings. Last year we printed 1,000 copies,
and I gather from the clerk that that number was sufficient.
May I have a motion for printing, please.

Senator Asselin: Honourable senators, I move that we have
printed 1,000 copies of our proceedings.

The Chairman: Is it agreed, honourable senators?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, our fifth item of busi-
ness again concerns the matter of quorum. As I mentioned a
moment as I mentioned a moment ago our quorum on this
committee under the new rules is four, since our membership
is 12. However, rule 70 provides as follows:

70A. A quorum is required whenever a vote, resolution
or other decision is taken by a select committee, but any
such committee, by resolution thereof, may authorize the
chairman to hold meetings to receive and authorize the
printing of evidence when a quorum is not present.

I think it would be useful for us to adopt that as a resolution.

Senator Donahoe: The rule is one thing, Madam Chairman,
but I don’t see how you can pass a general resolution of that
nature, without some limitation, because, otherwise, you would
have the authority to hold a meeting in camera without
anybody, but simply off in a corner somewhere.

The Chairman: The point of the rule is to enable the
committee to take evidence and print it even though a quorum
is not present.

Senator Nurgitz: But without being able to reach a decision.

The Chairman: That is correct.

Senator Donahoe: Then the resolution should conform to the
rule.

Senator Nurgitz: Madam Chairman, if you just added the
words “only subject to rule 70”, perhaps that would meet the
objection.

Senator Donahoe: I could support that.

The Chairman: Yes, I concur. Why not start it off, then, by
saying: “It is moved by Senator so and so that, subject to rule
70 of the Rules of the Senate, the Chairman be authorized—?
Would that be satisfactory?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.
Senator Donahoe: Madam Chairman, I so move.
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Donahoe: Je propose qu’'on mette fin aux mises
en candidature.

Le président: Merci, sénateur Donahoe. Le sénateur Lewis
sera ainsi le troisiéme membre du comité directeur.

Le quatriéme article a I'ordre du jour de la séance de cet
aprés-midi concerne I'impression de nos procés-verbaux et
témoignages. L’an dernier, nous en faisions imprimer 1,000
exemplaires et, d’aprés ce que m’a dit le greffier, ce nombre
suffisait. Quelqu’un peut-il proposer une motion concernant
I'impression?

Le sénateur Asselin: Honorables sénateurs, je propose que
nous fassions imprimer 1,000 exemplaires des procés-verbaux
et témoignages de notre comité.

Le président: Les honorables sénateurs sont-ils d’accord?
Des voix: D’accord.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, le cinquiéme article a
I’ordre du jour concerne le quorum. Comme je I'ai dit plus tét,
puisque notre comité compte douze membres, le quorum a été
fixé 4 quatre personnes aux termes des nouveaux articles du
Réglement. L’article 70A prévoit toutefois ce qui suit:

70A. Un quorum est nécessaire lorsqu’un comité parti-
culier est appelé 4 se prononcer sur une question, sur une
résolution ou a rendre quelque autre décision, mais un tel
comité peut, par voie de résolution, autoriser le président
du comité a tenir des réunions pour entendre les témoi-
gnages et 4 en autoriser la publication en I'absence d’un
quorum.
Je crois qu'il serait utile que nous fassions de ce passage I'objet
d’une résolution.

Le sénateur Donahoe: C’est bien beau, madame la prési-
dente, mais je ne vois pas comment vous pouvez adopter une
résolution générale de cette nature, sans imposer quelque
limite, étant donné que vous pourriez alors tenir une séance a
huis clos, au pied levé, sans qu'aucun autre membre n’y siége.

Le président: Cet article a pour but de permettre au comité
d’entendre des témoignages et d’en autoriser la publication en
I’absence de quorum.

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Sans toutefois étre en mesure de
rendre de décision.

Le président: C’est exact.

Le sénateur Donahoe: La résolution devrait alors étre con-
forme a I’article.

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Madame la présidente, si vous ajoutiez
les mots «conformément seulement a I’article 70w, cela réfute-
rait peut-étre cette objection.

Le sénateur Donahoe: Je pourrais approuver cela.

Le président: Oui, je suis d’accord. Pourquoi alors ne pas
formuler la résolution ainsi: «Le sénateur propose que, confor-
mément & l'article 70 du Reéglement du Sénat du Canada, le
président soit autorisé . . . »? Cela serait-il satisfaisant?

Des voix: D’accord.
Le sénateur Donahoe: Madame la présidente, je le propose.
Des voix: D’accord.
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The Chairman: Thank you, Senator Donahoe:

Ottawa, Wednesday, February 22, 1984

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitution-
al Affairs to which was referred Bill S-4, to provide an
exception from the public general law relating to marriage in
the case of Ernest Hodel and Norma Dora Laurie, Bill S-2, to
provide an exception from the public general law relating to
marriage in the case of Gerald Harvey Fudge and Audrey
Marie Saunders, Bill S-3, to provide an exception from the
public general law relating to marriage in the case of Louis
Philippe Nadeau and Marie Thérése Rita Brulé, and Bill S-5,
to provide an exception from the public general law relating to
marriage in the case of Benjamin .Josheph Andrade and
Heather Winnifred Andrade, met this day at 2 p.m. to give
consideration to the bills.

Senator Nathan Nurgitz (Deputy Chairman) in the Chair.

The Deputy Chairman: Honourable senators, the chairman
is unavoidably absent and will not be with us today.

The first item of business I should like to raise is the
question of the next meeting. Referred to this committee are
the four bills which we will discuss today and the question of
the reference on February 9 from the Senate asking this
committee to consider the subject matter of the public general
law throughout Canada with respect to prohibitions against
marriage between related persons.

We have taken the liberty of inquiring as to the availability
of a possible witness who is probably one of the few legal
scholars on the question—there may be others—but we would
have witnesses available for Tuesday, March 6 at 11 o’clock in
the morning, assuming the Senate is sitting that week, and, I
understand, there is some question about that, and Wednes-
day, March 7 et 4.15 in the afternoon. I do not know if the
committee has any views on that matter.

Senator Asselin: Mr. Chairman, you will recall that when
these bills came before us for discussion on second reading,
they were referred to the committee on division.

The Deputy Chairman: Yes.

Le sénateur Asselin: C’est pourquoi, avant de commencer a
faire I’étude des projets de loi en question, avant d’entrer dans
la discussion de substance des projets de loi devant nous, je
voudrais établir un grand principe qui a été discuté en
deuxiéme lecture.

Nous avons affaire, comme vous le savez, 4 des lois d’excep-
tion, qui dérogent 4 la loi générale et il semblerait, d’apreés ce
que I'on peut entrevoir, qu’il y aura une accumulation de ces
projets de loi privés qui seront présentés au Sénat d’ici quelque
temps. Déja, nous avons quatre projets de loi qui sont devant
ce comité et je comprends que notre collégue, le sénateur
Leblanc, en a présenté deux autres hier, en premiére lecture; je
comprends que la deuxiéme lecture aura lieu demain.

M. du Plessis, notre légiste et conseiller parlementaire nous
a laissé entendre—non pas publiquement, mais en discutant
avec lui,—que nous aurions peut-étre six autres bills de ce

[Traduction)
Le président: Merci, sénateur Donahoe.

Ottawa, le mercredi 22 février 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles, auquel ont été renvoyés les projets de loi
S-4, Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en
matiére de mariage dans le cas de Ernest Hodel et Norma
Dora Laurie, S-2, Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de
droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de Gerald Harvey
Fudge et Audrey Marie Saunders, S-3, Loi faisant exception
aux régles de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de Louis
Philippe Nadeau et Marie Thérése Rita Brulé, et S-5, Loi
faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére de
mariage dans le cas de Benjamin Josheph Andrade et Heather
Winnifred Andrade, se réunit aujourd’hui 4 14 heures pour
étudier ces projets de loi.

Le sénateur Nathan Nurgitz (vice-président) occupe le
fauteuil.

Le vice-président: Honorables sénateurs, je déclare la
séance ouverte, puisque le président ne peut malheureusement
pas étre des nétres aujourd’hui.

J’aimerais que nous discutions tout d’abord de la date de la
prochaine séance. Le Comité s’est vu confier ’étude des quatre
projets de loi I'ordre du jour aujourd’hui et, en vertu d'un
ordre de renvoi du Sénat du 9 février, il doit aussi examiner la
questio du droit public général au Canada qui interdit le
mariage entre parents.

Nous avons pris la liberté de nous informer de la possibilité
d’entendre un témoin qui est probablement un des rares juris-
tes spécialistes de la question, bien qu’il y en ait peut-étre
d’autres. Des témoins seraient toutefois préts a comparaitre le
mardi 6 mars 4 11 heures, 4 supposer que le Sénat siége cette
semaine-la, ce qui n’est pas certain si je comprends bien, et le
mercredi 7 mars 4 16 h 15. J’aimerais savoir ce qu’en pensent
les membres du Comité.

Le sénateur Asselin: Monsieur le président, vous vous rap-
pellerez que ces projets de loi, lorsqu’ils ont franchi I’étape de
la deuxiéme lecture, ont été renvoyés au Comité sur division.

Le vice-président: Oui.
Senator Asselin: Therefore, before we undertake to consider
and to discuss the subject matter of the bills now before us, I

would like to establish one broad principle which was discussed
on second reading.

As you know, we are dealing here with exceptions to the
general law and from what we can see, it would appear that a
number of bills of this nature will be tabled in the Senate
shortly. Already, the committee has before it for consideration
four such bills and I understand that our colleague, the
Honourable Senator Leblanc, tabled two more yesterday for
first reading. I understand that they will be given second
reading tomorrow.

Mr. du Plessis, our law clerk and parliamentary counsel,
informed us during the course of a conversation that we could
expect maybe six more bills of this nature to be referred to the
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genre, qui pourraient étre présentés devant ce comité. Or, ceci
comporte des difficultés en ce qui concerne 'application de la
loi générale et c’est pour cela, monsieur le président, qu’en
deuxiéme lecture j’ai refusé, au nom de mon parti, de donner
mon consentement 4 ce que la deuxiéme lecture soit faite au
Sénat sans qu’une motion soit présentée, qui permettrait a ce
comité d’étudier la substance de la loi générale qui est appli-
quée en pareilles circonstances, et de savoir s’il n’y aurait pas
des possibilités pour le gouvernement d’amender la loi générale
pour que les exceptions que nous avons devant nous puissent
faire partie de la loi générale.

Javais dit également, monsieur le président, que je ne
voulais pas que ces lois d’exception qu’on nous présente devien-
nent une accumulation tellement forte que le Sénat soit connu
encore, comme il I’était autrefois, comme le club ol on pouvait
obtenir des divorces a volonté; la méme chose s’appliquait aux
incorporations, également, mais nous avons réglé ce probléme
des incorporations.

Vu qu’il semblait y avoir des problémes d’interprétation, je
pourrais répéter que je disais qu'on a eu dans le passé une
accumulation devant le Sénat des bills sur le divorce. Le Sénat
était réputé étre le club qui réglait tous les divorces parce que
la loi ne permettait pas de divorces autrement qu’en passant
par le Sénat, et ensuite par la Chambre des communes.

Cependant, si nous acceptons les exceptions a la loi générale,
en présentant des projets de loi privés comme ceux que nous
avons aujourd’hui, nous allons nous trouver, d’ici quelque
temps, dans la méme situation.

Je rappelais, monsieur le président, vous vous en souvien-
drez, lors de mon discours en deuxieéme lecture, qu’en 1978 le
gouvernement, par ’entremise du sénateur Perrault, nous avait
promis que ces lois d’exception seraient revues par un amende-
ment possible 4 la loi générale,—ce qui n’a pas été fait parce
que, depuis 1978, je crois que nous n’avons pas eu d’autres
projets de loi privés de cette nature présentés devant le Sénat.

Aujourd’hui, je réaffirme ce principe et je vous dis, monsieur
le président, qu’il faudra m’assurer que si on discute ces
projets de loi en détail dans ce comité, il faudra que j’aie une
date, une échéance pour savoir quand nous allons mettre a
I’étude devant ce comité la motion que mon honorable ami, le
sénateur Leblanc, a présenté en deuxiéme lecture a I'effet que
ce comité va étudier les principes de la loi générale concernant
ces lois d’exception. C’est seulement avec cette assurance,
comme représentant de mon parti, et parlant également pour
moi-méme, que je vais consentir 4 écouter ceux qui représen-
tent les pétitionnaires, ou les pétitionnaires eux-mémes, en ce
qui concerne les projets de loi que nous avons devant nous.
C’est le premier point.

Le deuxiéme point, comme nous sommes en matiére civile et
que ce sont des lois d’exception que ’on nous demande d’adop-
ter, je me demande si je vais me limiter, en parlant, quant a
moi personnellement, & entendre la déposition des avocats des
parties ou si je ne préférerai pas avoir également devant moi,
pour les interroger, les parties elles-mémes,—les pétitionnaire
eux-mémes. J'ai des doutes a savoir que je pourrais obtenir
tous les renseignements, et que je pourrais étre satisfait, sur le

[Traduction]

committee. This creates some problems with regard to the
application of the general law and that is the reason why, Mr.
Chairman, on second reading, I refused on behalf of my party,
to have the bills be given second reading in the Senate without
a motion being introduced first to allow this committee to
consider the subject matter of the general law which applies in
such cases and to see whether the government could possibly
amend the general law to provide for these exceptional cases
before us.

I also indicated, Mr. Chairman, that I did not want the
Senate to be flooded with requests for exemptions to the
general law and to become known, as it was in the past, as a
club where divorces could be obtained at will. The same was
true for incorporations, but we managed to resolve that
problem.

Since there appears to have been some problems with the
interpretation, I could repeat what I said, namely that in the
past, divorce petitions were presented in growing numbers in
the Senate. The Senate was reputed to be the club that settled
all divorce cases because divorces could not legally be obtained
unless they went through the Senate and then the House of
Commons.

However, if we grant exemptions to the general law, as in
the case of private bills like the ones before us today, we will
find ourselves shortly in the same situation.

As you may recall, Mr. Chairman, I remarked during my
speech on second reading that in 1978, Senator Ray Perrault,
speaking on behalf of the government, promised us that a
possible amendment to the general law would be considered to
provide for such exceptional cases. Nothing has been done so
far in this regard because, since 1978, no further petitions of
this nature have been introduced in the Senate.

Today, I am reaffirming this principle and, if we are to
discuss these petitions in detail in committee, I must have a
timetable of some sort. I have to know when this committee is
going to consider the motion on second reading introduced by
my honourable friend and colleague, Senator Leblanc, refer-
ring the subject matter of the general law with respect to
exceptional cases to the committee for study. Once I have this
assurance, as a representative of my party, I will consent to
listen to what the petitioners’ representatives, or the petitioners
themselves, have to say about the bills before us. That’s the
first point I wanted to make.

Now the second point. Since we are dealing with a civil
matter and since we are being asked to adopt bills which
provide an exception to the general law, I personally wonder
whether I will be limiting myself if I hear only the depositions
of the lawyers representing the petitioners. I think I would
prefer to be able to question the parties involved, the petition-
ers themselves. I rather doubt that I could obtain all the
information or that I could be satisfied, from an evidence
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plan de la preuve, avec seulement le témoignage d’un conseiller
juridique qui viendrait dire: Mes clients ont fait cette pétition,
et voici la situation, voici ce qu’ils veulent.

Justement, monsieur le président, c’est pour démontrer aux
pétitionnaires que tant et aussi longtemps que la loi générale
ne sera pas amendée, ce n’est pas facile de se présenter devant
le Parlement pour faire adopter ces lois d’exception,—et je
vous dis d’avance que possiblement je ferai une objection en
général.

Si, aujourd’hui, les pétitionnaires ne sont pas ici, il faudra
peut-étre revenir, ajourner le comité pour leur demander de se
présenter devant le comité, afin de pouvoir témoigner en leur
nom personnel, et ne pas laisser a leur avocat seul le soin de
nous exposer les faits et les questions juridiques qui se posent.

C’étaient les commentaires que j’avais a faire au tout début
des audiences de ce comité, monsieur le président.

The Deputy Chairman: I do not want to preclude discussion,
but there are two things I should point out. The steering
committee is planning to become seized of and to proceed with
the reference and to deal with the general law as soon as
possible. It is the intention to hear from, if not the leading
expert, certainly the only legal mind who has written on the
matter.

I should also like to raise the question of the petitioners’ not
being present. If there are unanswered questions raised by any
senator on any matter that requires the presence of petitioners,
and if counsel or the representative of the parties cannot
ultimately satisfy us on any matter, then I see no other course
open to us but to adjourn and call the petitioner. That is in the
hands of the committee.

Le sénateur Leblanc: Merci, monsieur le vice-président. Je
comprends les objections soulevées par le sénateur Asselin, et
je suis assez d’accord avec certains propos qu’il a exprimés.
Cependant, il faut considérer que de pétitionnaires se sont
basés sur des précédents que nous avons créés en 1975 et 1978.
Je pense que nous pourrions étudier les pétitions, les projets de
loi qui sont devant nous, et informer notre conseiller juridique,
M. duPlessis, qu'a I'avenir, lorsqu’il recevra des demandes,
d’informer les pétitionnaires qu’il n’y a rien a faire tant et
aussi longtemps que sera 4 I’étude la motion que j’ai déposée,
qui se lit comme suit:

Que le sujet du droit public général au Canada qui
interdit le mariage entre parents soit renvoyé au comité
permanent des affaires juridiques et constitutionnelles et
que l'on ordonne au comité de faire rapport au Sénat de
ses recommandations en vue de modifier le droit public
général pertinent si le comité juge que c’est nécessaire.

Je pense qu’'a I'avenir, si nous informions notre conseiller
juridique de dire aux demandeurs que leurs pétitions ne sont
pas acceptables parce qu’il y a une motion discutant du
probléme en général et des amendements possibles a la loi.
Mais, 4 partir du moment que nous avons créé des précédents
en 1975 et 1978, je pense qu’il est important pour les pétition-

[Traduction]

standpoint, with only the testimony of the legal counsel who
would say to me, “my clients have filed this petition. Here is
the situation. Here is what they want”.

My point is, Mr. Chairman, that we have to show the
petitioners that until the general law is amended, it is not easy
to get Parliament to agree to grant exceptions to the general
law. T will tell yu right now that I might possibly voice a
general objection.

If the petitioners are not present here today, the committee
should perhaps adjourn until they can .testify on their own
behalf. We should not rely solely on their lawyer to explain the
facts and the attendant legal problems.

These are the comments I wanted to make, Mr. Chairman,
before the committee got down to business.

Le vice-président: Je ne veux pas empécher la discussion,
mais il y a deux choses que je dois signaler. Le comité
directeur prévoit que nous étudierons la loi générale le plus tot
possible. Il a lintention d’inviter 4 comparaitre, sinon le
principal expert, du moins le seul juriste qui ait écrit sur la
question.

Je dois également signaler que les pétitionnaires ne sont pas
ici. Si 'un ou l'autre d’entre vous souléve, sur n’importe quel
sujet, des questions qui exigent la présence des pétitionnaires
et qui restent par conséquent sans réponse, et si le conseiller ou
le représentant de ces derniers ne peut nous donner de réponse
satisfaisante, je ne vois pas d’autre solution que d’ajourner la
séance et d’exiger la comparution du pétionnaire concerné.
C’est au Comité de décider.

Senator Leblanc: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I understand
the objections raised by Sentor Asselin and I rather agree with
some of the things he said. However, we must consider the fact
that the petitioners based their actions on precedents which we
set in 1975 and 1978. I think that we can study the petitions or
the bills now before us and inform our law clerk, Mr. du Ples-
sis, that in the future, when he receives requests, he should
advise the petitioners that nothing can be done as long as the
motion which I tabled is still under consideration. The motion
reads as follows:

That the subject matter of the public general law
throughout Canada with respect to prohibitions against
marriage between related persons be referred to the
Standing Committee on Legal and Constitutional Affairs
with instructions to the committee to report to this house
its recommendations for amendment to the public general
law in question if, in the opinion of the committee, that
law should be amended.

I think that in future, we should instruct our legal counsel to
advise applicants that their petitions cannot be accepted
because a motion is being considered to discuss the problem in
general and possible amendments to the law. However, given
the fact that we established precedents in 1975 and 1978, I
think it is important, for the petitioners’ sake, that we proceed
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naires que nous puissions procéder dans I'ordre des pétitions
regues, mais qu’a ’avenir M. duPlessis informe les pétitionnai-
res qu’on ne peut recevoir de pétitions tant et aussi longtemps
que le comité n’aura pas établi son jugement sur la résolution
générale.

The Deputy Chairman: I have Senator Deschatelets as the
first questioner.

Le sénateur Deschatelets: Merci, monsieur le vice-président;
j’ai une question assez courte a adresser & mon collégue, le
sénateur Asselin. Vous avez dit, sénateur Asselin, que vous
prévoyez soulever a un moment donné des objections de fond.

Avez-vous I'intention de les faire ici également?

Le sénateur Asselin: Bien, je vais les faire au fur et 4 mesure
que la preuve sera devant nous.

Le sénateur Deschatelets: Je ne comprends pas, quand vous
dites que vous auriez besoin de la présence des témoins pour
exprimer ces objections de fond.

Le sénateur Asselin: Non; j’ai dit, d’abord, que les objec-
tions de fond, je les avais soulevées en deuxiéme lecture; on
pourrait lire le discours que j’ai fait; j’ai méme référé a une
étude juridique extrémement compléte et intéressante de la
part du professeur Hubband dans la Revue droit de I'université
McGill, qui traitait justement de cette question, et il se
surprenait que le gouvernement canadien puisse aussi facile-
ment accepter des lois d’exception a la loi générale. J’ai lu des
passages de cet article de I’étude de M. Hubband et c’est 4 la
suite de ses remarques que j'ai soulevées, tant sur le plan
moral, que sur le plan de la société que mon ami, le sénateur
Leblanc—nous nous étions vus auparavant—Ile sénateur
Leblanc avait cette motion a I’effet que le comité devrait se
pencher sur une étude des principes qui sont a la base de la loi
générale, sur laquelle ces lois d’exception nous sont présentées.
J'aurais préféré que nous étudiions d’abord la substance de la
motion que mon confrée le sénateur Leblanc a présentée en
deuxieme lecture, et qui a été déférée a ce comité, avant que
nous entendions I'un ou I'autre des cas qui sont soumis devant
nous,—a moins qu’on nous démontre qu’il y a urgence, dans
certains cas.

Ce n’est pas parce que nous avons, en 1975 et 1978, accepté
de ces projets de loi d’exception que cela crée une exception a
la loi générale.

Vous vous souviendrez qu’en 1975 et 1978, moi-méme, le
sénateur Perrault et le sénateur Flynn avions soulevé cette
question de fond et le sénateur Perrault nous avait promis,
dans le temps, je me souviens, que ce serait soumis au Parle-
ment et qu’il étudierait ce principe et apporterait peut-étre des
amendements a la loi générale. C’est parce qu’on n’a pas
répondu a la demande du leader de Iopposition dans le temps,
que j’ai soulevé les objections que vous pouvez lire dans le
hansard.

Le sénateur Deschatelets: Tres simplement, j’aimerais vous
demander ceci: Si on procéde aujourd’hui, est-ce que vous
mettez en doute la crédibilité de la procédure?

Le sénateur Asselin: Bien, non, je ne peux pas mettre en
doute la régle de procédure, mais nous nous sommes adonnés a
des pétitionnaires, a des parties privées, des droits qui n’appar-

[Traduction]

in the order in which the petitions were filed. However, as I
said, Mr. du Plessis should advise the petitioners in future that
their petitions will not be accepted until the committee has
ruled on the general motion.

Le vice-président: Le sénateur Deschatelets posera la pre-
miére question.

Senator Deschatelets: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I have
one brief question for my colleague, Senator Asselin. You
indicated, Senator Asselin, that you intended to raise some
fundamental objections to these petitions at some point. Do
you intend to tell us what these objections are at this time?

Senator Asselin: I will raise them as the evidence is pre-
sented to us.

Senator Deschatelets: I fail to understand why you say you
need to have the witnesses present to voice these fundamental
objections.

Senator Asselin: The fact is that I raised these objections
when the bills were given second reading. You can read my
speech to the Senate. I even referred to a comprehensive,
interesting legal article on this very subject written by Profes-
sor Hubbard of McGill University for the Law Review. Profes-
sor Hubbard expressed some surprise that the Canadian gov-
ernment so readily granted exemptions from the general law. I
read some excerpts from Mr. Hubbard’s article and asked that
we consider the moral and social implications of the issue. It
was then that my friend and colleague, Senator Leblanc—we
had spoken together earlier—moved that the committee con-
sider the subject matter or basic principles of the general law
from which we are being asked to grant exemptions. I would
prefer to have the committee study first the subject matter of
the motion that my colleague, Senator Leblanc, introduced on
second reading and which was referred to this committee
before hearing any of the cases before us—unless there is some
urgency involved in certain cases.

The fact that we granted exemptions in 1975 and 1978 does
not establish a general exemption from the general law.

You will remember that in 1975 and 1978, Senator Perrault,
Senator Flynn and myself raised the fundamental question of
principle. I recall that Senator Perrault gave us his assurances
at that time that the government would examine this principle
and perhaps provide for amendments to the general law. It is
because the government has not yet responded to the request
of the Leader of the Opposition that I raised these concerns
and objections. You can read about them in the hansard.

Senator Deschatelets: I simply want to ask you this: if we

proceed today to hear these petitions, would you question the
credibility of these proceedings?

Senator Asselin: Well, no, I cannot question the rules of
procedure, but what we are doing here is granting petitioners,
private individuals, rights which the majority of citizens do not
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tiennent pas a la majorité, qui s’est conformé a la loi générale.
Ce sont des lois d’exception. Dans une démocratie, les lois
d’exception doivent étre étudiées de prés, avant d’étre accor-
dées, parce que la loi est faite pour la majorité des citoyens de
la population.

I will repeat, Mr. Chairman. I would prefer that we start by
looking into the motion presented by my colleague, Senator
Leblanc. We should study the general law regarding the
exceptions that are before this committee and before Parlia-
ment. If this committee has decided that it should first study
the private bills, I am ready to do so. I want it to be made
clear, however, that in my view the committee should study as
soon as possible the reference of the motion which has been
put forward by Senator Leblanc. I understood that it could be
dealt with March 6.

The Deputy Chairman: Yes.

Senator Asselin: Are the cases before this committee so
urgent that they cannot wait until after March 6?

The Deputy Chairman: In my judgment, and I do not want
to go into the reasons at the moment, two of the cases are of an
urgent nature. That being the case, then in my view we might
just as well consider all four cases.

Senator Asselin: Are you aware, yourself, of the reasons for
the urgency?

The Deputy Chairman: Yes, I am.

Senator Asselin: Can you make those reasons known to the
committee?

The Deputy Chairman: I believe they will come out in the
evidence. I give to Senator Asselin and all other honourable
senators present the assurance that the general reference of
Senator Leblanc will be considered at the next opportunity.
The date of March 6 arises because the Senate is not sitting
next week, but we will proceed with that reference immediate-
ly thereafter.

Are there any other questions?

Le sénateur Flynn: J’aimerais souligner la position contra-
dictoire du sénateur Leblanc. Il nous dit d’une part que nous
devons considérer les projets de loi devant nous, étant donné
les précédents de 1975 et 1978. D’autre part, il nous dit que
lorsque nous aurons disposé des projets de loi qu’il parraine
maintenant, nous avertirons les futurs requérants que nous
n’adopterons plus ce genre de projet de loi privé, jusqu’a ce que
le comité ait fait rapport sur cette proposition d’examiner tout
le probléme. Sa position ne me parait pas trés logique soit:
Régler le probléme que nous avons devant nous maintenant et
mentionner aux requérants ultérieurs de se débattre avec leurs
problémes. La raison en est justement que les précédents de
1975-et 1978 sont mauvais. Il faudrait mettre un terme a ce
genre de bill privé afin de régler le probléme de fagon générale.
Je ne vois pas comment on peut différencier un cas d’un autre,
un oncle et une niéce, une tante et un neveu. Est-ce qu’il peut
exister des circonstances différentes? Je ne vois pas comment
on peut faire des exceptions particuliéres, sans accepter

[Traduction]

enjoy. The majority complies with the provisions of the general
law. In a democracy, any requests for exemptions under the
law must be studied closely before they can be granted. Laws
are made for the majority of citizens.

Je le répéte, monsieur le président, je préférerais que nous
commencions par étudier la motion présentée par mon collégue
le sénateur Leblanc. Nous devrions étudier la loi générale sans
tenir compte des exceptions qui ont été demandées au Comité,
ainsi qu'au Parlement. Monsieur le président, si le Comité
décide qu’il doit tout d’abord étudier les projets de loi privés, je
suis prét a le faire. Je voudrais toutefois qu’on sache que, selon
moi, le Comité devrait étudier le plus tdt possible la motion qui
a été présentée par le sénateur Leblanc et qui lui a été
renvoyée. Si j’ai bien compris, nous pourrions 1’étudier le 6
mars.

Le vice-président: Oui.
Le sénateur Asselin: Les affaires dont le Comité a été saisi

\

sont-elles 4 ce point urgentes que nous ne pouvons attendre
aprés le 6 mars?

Le vice-président: A mon avis—et je ne veux pas en donner
les raisons pour l'instant—deux de ces affaires sont urgentes.
Cela dit, nous ferions peut-étre bien d’étudier les quatre
affaires.

Le sénateur Asselin: Connaissez-vous les raisons de cette
urgence?

Le vice-président: Oui.
Le sénateur Asselin: Pouvez-vous en faire part au Comité?

Le vice-président: Je crois qu’elles seront révélées dans le
cadre des témoignages. Je donne cependant au sénateur Asse-
lin et 4 tous les honorables sénateurs présents I’assurance que
nous étudierons le plut tdt possible la motion présentée par le
sénateur Leblanc. La date du 6 mars a été avancée parce que
le Sénat ne siége pas la semaine prochaine, mais nous étudie-
rons cette motion tout de suite apres.

Y a-t-il d’autres questions?

Senator Flynn: I would like to mention that Senator
Leblanc’s position appears contradictory. On the one hand, he
tells us that we should consider the petitions before us, in view
of the precedents established in 1975 and 1978. On the other
hand, he tells us that when we have finished with these bills
that he has sponsored, we will advise future petitioners that the
Senate will no longer adopt this kind of private bill until the
committee has reported on the motion to examine the entire
issue. His position, namely that we should rule on the petitions
now before us and let future petitioners handle their own
problems, does not seem very logical to me. The fact is that the
precedents set in 1975 and 1978 are poor ones. We should put
an end to this type of private bill in order to resolve this
problem in a general manner. I do not see how we can
differentiate between the different cases, whether it be an
uncle and a niece or an aunt and a nephew. Can there be
different circumstances? I do not very well see how we can
make special exceptions, without agreeing in advance to adopt
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d’avance que nous adopterons tous les bills similaires qui nous
seront présentés. L’arguement du sénateur Leblanc est a I’effet
que, ayant adopté de tels bills en 1975 et 1978, aujourd’hui, on
est obligé de le faire pour ceux-la. Il nous dit maintenant qu’a
I’avenir, nous déciderons du principe. Ce n’est pas trés logique,
a mon point de vue.

Le sénateur Asselin: Le sénateur Leblanc a présenté deux
nouveaux bills.

Le sénateur Flynn: Oui, de plus, de président dit qu’il y a
urgence; ordinairement dans ces cas, il y a urgence.

Le sénateur Tremblay: C’est de 'impatience!

Le sénateur Flynn: Le sens de ce cas constitue I'urgence. Je
ne vois pas pourquoi nous n’obtiendrions pas un principe
général de la part du gouvernement ou, en fait, du Parlement
sur la possibilit¢ d’amender ou de modifier les régles concer-
nant le mariage, pour permettre ce genre d’union entre un
neveu et une niéce, ou enfin, 4 ces degrés de parenté. La
situation dans laquelle nous sommes plongés aujourd’hui me
parait absolument illogique.

Le sénateur Leblanc: Monsieur le président, je ne crois pas
avoir dit que nous devrions adopter les bills devant nous. J'ai
dit que 'on devrait les étudier; ces requérants ont fait des
dépenses basées sur les précédents de 1975 et 1978. Déja, ils
ont engagé certains montants pour se faire représenter et pour
présenter leur pétition. Je n’ai pas dit qu’il fallait adopter ces
projets de loi. J'ai dit qu’il fallait les étudier avant d’examiner
la motion principale qui consiste en la révision de la loi. A
'avenir, notre conseiller juridique, qui regoit les pétitions,
devra aviser les gens que malheureusement, on ne peut pas
recevoir leur pétition, car a I’heure actuelle, le comité étudie
les possibilités d’amendement ou de statu quo de la loi exis-
tante. C’est ce que j’ai tenté d’exprimer.

Le sénateur Flynn: Vous croyez qu’on peut seulement les
étudier et voter contre.

Le sénateur Leblanc: C’est le comité qui décidera.

Le sénateur Flynn: Je ne vois pas ce que les requérants y
gagneraient.

The Deputy Chairman: Honourable senators, I do not want
to pre-empt the evidence that will be given, but a party to one
of the cases has a terminal illness. Although that illness is
presently in remission, there is a degree of urgency to it such
that a delay of any kind might cause those people who wish to
be married to feel as though time could be running out. In
another case, one of the petitioners will shortly celebrate his
86th birthday. In my judgment, perhaps time is an important
factor to him as well.

At lunchtime today Senator Flynn told me of a senator who
had been appointed at the age of 78 because the then Prime
Minister assured all the other people who wanted the appoint-
ment that he would only be around for a short time. He sat in
the Senate until he was 103.

I think that that will probably be cold comfort to this
86-year-old gentleman, however, and that he is looking for
some other kind of comfort.

[Traduction]

all similar bills tabled. Senator Leblanc argues that since bills
of this nature were passed in 1975 adn 1978, we must adopt
those before us today. However, he says that we will rule later
on the principle of the matter. I fail to see any logic in his
position.

Senator Asselin: Senator Leblanc has gone ahead and tabled
two new bills.

Senator Flynn: Furthermore, the Chairman says it is urgent
that we deal with these cases. I would say that ordinarily,
these cases are always urgent.

Senator Tremblay: I would say it’s being impatient.

Senator Flynn: It’s the aspect of the case that is considered
urgent. I don’t see why we cannot get a general principle from
the government or Parliament on the idea of amending or
changing the rules governing marriage to allow this kind of
union between a nephew and niece or between related persons.
The situation in which we find ourselves today is, in my
opinion, completely illogical.

Senator Leblanc: Mr. Chairman, I don’t believe I ever said
that we had to adopt the bills now before us. I said that we
should consider them, since the petitioners incurred expenses
based on the precedents of 1975 and 1978. They have already
spent a substantial amount to obtain the services of counsel
and to prepare their petitions. I didn’t say that we had to adopt
these bills. I said that we had to study them before we consider
the principal motion to review the legislation. In future, our
legal counsel who receives the petitions will have to advise
people that unfortunately, we cannot accept their petitions at
the present time because the committee is considering possibly
amending the legislation or maintaining the status quo. That’s
what I was trying to say.

Senator Flynn: Therefore, you believe that all we can do is
study the bills and vote against them.

Senator Leblanc: It is up to the committee to decide that.

Senator Flynn: I don’t see what the petitioners stand to gain
by all of this.

Le vice-président: Honorables sénateurs, je ne veux pas
anticiper sur les témoignages, mais dans I'une des affaires, une
des parties souffre d’'une maladie incurable. Bien que la mala-
die n’évolue pas pour I'instant, il y a une certaine urgence car
tout retard pourrait laisser croire a ces personnes qui désirent
se marier que le temps pourrait leur faire défaut. Dans un
autre cas, I'un des pétitionnaires célébrera bientdt son 86¢
anniversaire de naissance. Selon moi, le temps revét peut-étre
une grande importance pour lui également.

Au déjeuner, le sénateur Flynn me parlait d’un sénateur qui
avait été nommé a 78 ans parce que le Premier ministre du
moment avait assuré tous ceux qui auraient souhaité étre
nommés a sa place qu’il ne ferait pas long feu. Or, il a siégé au
Sénat jusqu’a 103 ans.

Je crois toutefois que ce sera une bien maigre consolation

pour cet homme de 86 ans et qu’il attend une autre forme de
réconfort.
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Senator Asselin: Mr. Chairman, would you indicate which
are the urgent cases?

The Deputy Chairman: The first one, which is Bill S-4,
involves an illness and the second involves age.

Senator Leblanc: Mr. Chairman, perhaps you will excuse
me. I have to attend another meeting at 2.15.

The Deputy Chairman: Yes, Senator Leblanc.

Honourable senators, the first bill before you for consider-
ation is Bill S-4. Appearing before us today is Mr. Henry S.
Brown, who is a barrister and solicitor in this city with the law
firm of Gowling and Henderson. Mr. Brown, do you wish to
make an opening statement?

Mr. Henry S. Brown, Barrister and Solicitor, (Gowling and
Henderson): Thank you, Mr. Chairman. With the permission
of honourable senators, I shall make what I hope will be a
brief statement. I wanted to cover the general jurisdiction
briefly and then to go into the specifics of the case.

I am pleased and privileged to be here on behalf of my
clients, Ernest Hodel and Norma Dora Laurie. I am also
grateful for the sponsorship of this legislation by Senator
Leblanc and for the tremendous assistance which we have
received from Mr. du Plessis.

The general jurisdiction of Parliament to act in this fashion
has been asserted in three prior cases. They are the Waddell
and Benoit case in 1975, the Borden and Borden case in 1978,
and the Fritz and Strass case in 1975. I believe it is important
to note that the Borden and Borden case was a case from
Saskatchewan, as is mine. Without commenting further on
what could be a complex area of law, I would submit that it is
within the jurisdiction of this Parliament to pass this bill.

The law in Saskatchewan governing degrees of marriage is
essentially that of the law of England in 1870; that is, by virtue
of section 16 of the Saskatchewan act of 1905. Briefly put, it
prohibits a marriage between an uncle and his niece, and
between an aunt and her nephew. The case before us today is
the first to come before Parliament involving an aunt desiring
to marry her nephew. The other cases all involved an uncle and
niece relationship.

I have filed with the clerk of the committee a legal opinion
from Ms. Diana K. Lee, a barrister and solicitor in the
province of Saskatchewan, to the effect that this couple cannot
marry without parliamentary approval.

I have also filed with the clerk of the committee a letter
from Pastor David Schultz, who is the Pastor of the North
Southey Zion Lutheran Church. In his letter he says:

They have inquired as to whether I would be willing to
marry them should Parliament pass a statute in their
favour. I confirm that I am willing to perform their
marriage ceremony and to perform it in our church if they
so desire. I also wish to confirm that I have consulted with

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Asselin: Monsieur le président, pourriez-vous
nous dire quelles sont les affaires urgentes?

Le vice-président: Dans le premier cas, celui du projet de loi
S-4, c’est la maladie qui est en cause. Quant au deuxiéme, c’est
une question d’dge.

Le sénateur Leblanc: Monsieur le président, je vous prierais
de m’excuser, mais je doit assiter 4 une autre séance de comité
414h15.

Le vice-président: Je vous en prie, sénateur Leblanc.

Honorables sénateurs, nous étudierons tout d’abord le projet
de loi S-4. Notre premier témoin est M. Henry S. Brown, un
avocat du cabinet Gowling et Henderson, d’Ottawa. Monsieur
Brown, désirez-vous faire une déclaration préliminaire?

M. Henry S. Brown, avocat, Gowling and Anderson: Merci,
monsieur le président. Avec la permission des honorables
sénateurs, je voudrais faire une courte déclaration. Je parlerai
d’abord briévement de la loi générale, pour passer ensuite au
cas qui nous intéresse.

Je suis heureux d’avoir le privilége de représenter mes
clients, Ernest Hodel et Norma Dora Laurie. Je remercie
également le sénateur Leblanc d’avoir parrainé le projet de loi
et M. du Plessis de s’étre donné tant de peine pour nous aider.

La compétence du Parlement a cet égard a été confirmée a
trois reprises déja. Il y a eu en effet en 1975 les affaires
Waddell et Benoit, ainsi que Fritz et Strass puis, en 1978,
I’affaire Borden et Borden. Je crois qu’il est important de noter
que dans I’affaire Borden et Borden, les pétitionnaires venaient
également de la Saskatchewan, comme dans ’affaire qu’on
m’a confiée. Sans ajouter autre chose sur ce qui pourrait étre
une question complexe de droit, je soutiens qu’il reléve de la
compétence du Parlement d’adopter ce projet de loi.

La loi de la Saskatchewan qui définit quels sont les degrés
de consanguinité faisant obstacle au mariage est, pour I’essen-
tiel, la méme que celle qui a été votée en Angleterre en 1870,
et qui est maintenue en vigueur par I'article 16 de la Loi sur la
Saskatchewan de 1905. Pour résumer, cette loi interdit le
mariage entre un oncle et sa niéce, ainsi qu’entre une tante et
son neveu. C’est la premiére fois que le Parlement doit juger
une affaire ol c’est la tante qui désire épouser son neveu. Dans
tous les autres cas, il s’agissait d’'une union entre l'oncle et la
niéce.

Jai remis au greffier du Comité un avis juridique d’une
avocate de la Saskatchewan, M™ Diana K. Lee, selon laquelle
ce couple ne peut se marier sans I’approbation du Parlement.

Jai également remis au greffier du Comité une lettre du
pasteur David Schulz, de I’Eglise luthérienne de North Sou-
they Zion. On peut y lire ce qui suit:

Ils m’ont demandé si j'accepterais de les marier adve-
nant que le Parlement vote une loi approuvant leur déci-
sion. Je leur ai dit que oui, et que je célébrerais leur
mariage dans notre église s’ils le voulaient. Permettez-moi
également de confirmer que j’ai consulté d’autres mem-
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various members of my congregation and that they also
are aware of Ernest and Norma’s desire to marry and
fully support them in their wishes.

So they can be married in the Lutheran Church in Southey,
Saskatchewan if this bill is passed.

Finally I have filed with the clerk a letter dated February
15, 1984, from Dr. J. S. McMillan, M.B. Without putting the
complete letter in the record, I should say that all it contains is
the doctor’s opinion. He indicates that she has had a hysterec-
tomy. The letter says:

This was performed to revive a source of hormonal stimu-
lation to a previously treated breast cancer. As a conse-
quence of this surgery, she will be unable to conceive.

The original copies have been filed with the clerk. Briefly the
situation is that Mrs. Laurie is the sister of Mr. Hodel’s
mother. In other words, it is the aunt desiring to marry her
nephew. Mrs. Laurie is 48 years old and Mr. Hodel is 46.
They live on a farm in rural Saskatchewan. Mr. Hodel is a
bachelor. Mrs. Laurie was previously married in 1954. She
separated from her husband in approximately 1975 and
obtained a decree absolute of divorce in 1983. Of that previous
marriage she has a son aged 29, a son aged 25 and a daughter
aged 25.

Both Mrs. Laurie and Mr. Hodel are lifelong membes of the
Lutheran Church. Mr. Hodel is an elder of the Lutheran
Church in North Southey, which is 50 miles north of Regina.
The parish has approximately 150 members and, as a result of
the petition, the intention of the petitioners has been published
in the local newspapers and in the Saskatchewan Gazette and
the Canada Gazette. Also, virtually everyone in the commu-
nity is aware of this legislation pending before Parliament.

I am told that Mrs. Laurie’s family, including her ex-hus-
band and her three children, are supportive of her proposed
marriage to Mr. Hodel. They have cared deeply for one
another all of their lives. They are in love and they wish to
regularize their relationship according to law. It is our sincere
hope that this matter can be dealt with as expeditiously as
possible. y

Senator Asselin: Why?

Mr. Brown: As I understand it, the parties are in love. they
wish to regularize their relationship.

Senator Asselin: Is that the sole reason: that the parties are
in love, and it is urgent that they get married as soon as
possible?

Mr. Brown: Mr. Chairman, Mrs. Laurie has had cancer for
approximately eight years. It has resulted in a mastectomy and
subsequently a hysterectomy. It is now in remission. I under-
stand that it is lodged in her liver and kidneys. Her doctor has
told her that she should not worry. 1 have spoken to her and
she seems very cheerful, and life does not pose a fear for her;
but I think the circumstances are such that there is that doubt,
and therefore the Senate’s consideration of this matter in a
timely fashion would be most appreciated.

[Traduction]

bres de ma congrégation et qu’ils sont eux aussi au
courant des projets de mariage d’Ernest et de Norma. Ils
sont tout a fait d’accord avec eux.

Si ce projet de loi est adopté, ils pourront donc se marier a
I’église luthérienne de Southey, en Saskatchewan.

Enfin, j’ai remis au greffier une lettre du docteur J. S.
McMillan, M.B. datée du 15 février 1984. Il n’est pas néces-
saire que cette lettre soit annexée en entier aux délibérations,
mais permettez-moi de dire qu’elle ne contient que I'opinion du
médecin. Celui-ci indique que la pétitionnaire a subi une
hystérectomie:

Cette intervention a été exécutée pour rétablir 1'équilibre
hormonal 4 la suite du traitement d’un cancer du sein.
Elle ne pourra plus avoir d’enfants.

J’ai remis les originaux au greffier. Les faits sont les suivants:
pour étre bref, M™ Laurie est la sceur de la mére de M. Hodel.
Autrement dit, elle est la tante de I'homme qu’elle veut
épouser. M™ Laurie a 48 ans, et M. Hodel, 46. Ils habitent
une ferme en Saskatchewan. M. Hodel est célibataire, et M™
Laurie s’est mariée une premiére fois en 1954. Elle s’est
séparée de son mari vers 1975 et a obtenu un jugement en
divorce en 1983. Sont nés de ce mariage un fils maintenant 4gé
de 29 ans, un autre fils 4gé de 25 ans etune fille 4gée de 25
ans.

Mm Laurie et M. Hodel font partie depuis toujours de
I'Eglise luthérienne. M. Hodel est un doyen de I'Eglise luthé-
rienne de North Southey, qui se trouve a 50 milles au nord de
Regina. La paroisse compte environ 150 dmes, et, comme suite
a la pétition, l'intention des pétitionnaires a été publiée dans
les journaux locaux, ainsi que dans la Gazette de la Saskatche-
wan et la Gazette du Canada. En outre, toute la communauté
sait que ce projet de loi a été présenté au Parlement.

Jai appris que la famille de M™ Laurie, notamment son
ex-époux et ses trois enfants, acceptent qu’elle épouse M.
Hodel. Ils se sont toujours soutenus mutuellement pendant
toute leur vie. Les futurs conjoints s’aiment, et veulent 1égali-
ser leur situation. Nous souhaitons sincérement que cette
question puisse étre réglée avec toute la diligence possible.

Le sénateur Asselin: Pourquoi?

M. Brown: D’aprés ce que je sais, les parties s’aiment. Elles
souhaitent régulariser leur situation. En plus de cela . . .

Le sénateur Asselin: Est-ce la seule raison, 4 savoir que les
parties s’aiment et qu'il est urgent qu’elles se marient le plus
tot possible?

M. Brown: Monsieur le président, M™ Laurie est atteinte
d’un cancer depuis environ huit ans. Elle a, pour cette raison,
subi une mammectomie, puis une hystérectomie. Il y a pour le
moment rémission de la maladie. Le mal semble maintenant se
situer au niveau du foie et des reins. Le médecin a dit 4 M™
Laurie de ne pas s’inquiéter. Je lui ai parlé; elle semble trés
optimiste, I’avenir ne I'effraie pas. Toutefois, je pense que les
circonstances sont telles que le risque subsiste et que, par
conséquent, on apprécierait fort que le Sénat étudie cette
question dans les meilleurs délais.
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~ Mr. Chairman, those are my submissions. I am quite willing
to entertain any questions from honourable senators.

Senator Flynn: The question of urgency has nothing to do
with the principle, although I can understand the urgency
associated with her sickness. Can you imagine a similar case
where we would have to say “No”?

Mr. Brown: My instructions are to advance—

Senator Flynn: I am not asking you about your instructions.
Since you are a witness here and pleading the case, you may
have an argument in which you would say that in some cases
the committee should say “No”. What would be such a case?

Mr. Brown: I am not familiar with all of the facts in the
other cases—

Senator Flynn: But can you imagine some facts?

Mr. Brown: I would think that if the cases come within the
degrees of relationship for which Parliament has already
enacted special legislation, then, as a matter of principle, the
same should be done for other Canadian citizens in a similar
relationship.

Senator Flynn: Outside of the fact that we have done it on
two previous occasions, can you imagine a specific case where
you would say “No”? We could say “Yes”, because we have
done it before; but in what circumstances would we say “No”?
I am speaking of a case involving the same relationship.
Possibly you cannot answer the question. You do not have to
reply. I have my own answer to the question which I believe is
a pretty good one.

Mr. Brown: I do not want to prejudice the submissions that
might be made on behalf of the parties to the other cases. I am
limiting my submissions to the case that I have been retained
to present.

Senator Flynn: They are all the same.

Senator Tremblay: In answer to the question raised by
Senator Flynn, if I understood you correctly, in your presenta-
tion you said that three children were born as a result of Mrs.
Laurie’s previous marriage. Norma Laurie agreed to marriage
with Mr. Hodel. If this is a positive act, it could become a
negative act if the three children did not agree.

Mr. Brown: That, again, is a hypothetical question. The
point I want to make is that not only does the community
support them but her children have no objection to the mar-
riage and, as I understand it, nor does her husband.

Senator Asselin: What is the urgency of the case before us?
Is it because Mrs. Laurie is sick or because they are in love?
The main reason is always the same—the people are in love
and ‘you cannot prevent couples who are in love from getting
married. At least, that has been the main reason in the few
cases we have had before us. Is this the only basis of your
argument, that we should agree to the legislation because they
are in love?

[Traduction)

Monsieur le président, voild I’essentiel de mon message. Je
suis maintenant disposé 4 répondre aux questions des honora-
bles sénateurs.

Le sénateur Flynn: La question de I'urgence n’a rien 4 voir
avec celle du principe, bien que je comprenne I'urgence que
dicte cette maladie. Pouvez-vous imaginer un cas semblable ol
il nous faudrait dire non?

M. Brown: On m’a demandé de proposer . . .

Le sénateur Flynn: Ce quon vous a demandé de faire ne
m’intéresse pas. Puisque vous avez été invité 4 comparaitre
pour défendre cette cause, vous devez bien avoir sous la main
un argument a faire valoir pour affirmer que dans certains cas,
le Comité devrait dire «non»? De quels cas pourrait-il s’agir?

M. Brown: Je ne connais pas bien toutes les données des
autres affaires.

Le sénateur Flynn: Mais pouvez-vous en imaginer?

M. Brown: Je pense que si I'on constate I’existence de liens
de parenté au sujet desquels le Parlement a déja adopté un
texte législatif spécial, en principe, il faut agir de méme pour
tous les autres citoyens canadiens qui se trouvent dans des cas
semblables.

Le sénateur Flynn: Outre que nous I’avons fait déja 4 deux
occasions, pouvez-vous imaginer un cas précis ou vous diriez
non? Nous pourrions dire oui, parce que nous I'avons fait
avant; mais dans quelles circonstances diriez-vous non? Je
parle d’un cas ol on retrouverait les mémes liens de parenté.
Peut-étre ne pouvez-vous pas répondre & cette question; vous
n’avez d’ailleurs pas a le faire. J’ai déja ma propre réponse a
cette question, et je pense qu’elle est assez bonne.

M. Brown: Je ne veux pas porter préjudice aux exposés qui
pourraient étre faits dans d’autres affaires. Je m’en tiens au
cas auquel je me suis intéressé jusqu’d maintenant.

Le sénateur Flynn: Les circonstances sont toutes les mémes.

Le sénateur Tremblay: En réponse a la question du sénateur
Flynn, si je vous comprends bien, vous dites dans votre exposé
que trois enfants sont nés du précédent mariage de M™
Laurie. Or, Norma Laurie a accepté d’épouser M. Hodel. En
supposant que ce soit une bonne chose en soi, cela pourrait ne
pas I’étre si les trois enfants n’étaient pas d’accord.

M. Brown: C’est encore ld une question hypothétique. Je
veux dire non seulement que la communauté appuie les péti-
tionnaires, mais aussi que les enfants ne s’opposent aucune-
ment & ce mariage, ni I’ex-mari non plus, semble-t-il.

Le sénateur Asselin: Dans le cas qui nous intéresse, quelle
est I'urgence? Est-ce parce que M™ Laurie est malade, ou
parce que le couple est amoureux? La grande raison est
toujours la méme; les gens s’aiment, et on ne peut empécher
des couples d’amoureux de se marier. C’est du moins le
principal argument invoqué dans les quelques cas qui nous ont
été soumis. Est-ce 1d la seule base de votre argumentation, a
savoir que nous devrions adopter le projet de loi parce que ces
gens s’aiment?
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Mr. Brown: Mr. Chairman, in speaking of the urgency, I
guess I was saying that it arises from the grave nature of
Norma Laurie’s physical condition. She would like to regula-
rize the relationship in any event and I think that it is a
sufficiently grave medical situation that the matter ought not
to be postponed unduly. If you are asking whether it matters if
the marriage takes place this week or next week, I have no
information to that effect but I think time is a factor in such a
medical situation.

Senator Asselin: Mr. Chairman, in the future I think we
should consider asking the petitioners to appear before the
committee to determine the real reason why they are asking
for the passage of the law. I am not blaming the lawyer. He is
doing his best and has done very well up to now. However, he
cannot testify for his clients because he does not know what
kind of affection exists between them.

Senator Deschatelets: Perhaps I can help the witness. We
have referred to the word “love.” In my view it does not apply
in this case because the parties are over 50 or 55. I would say
that both parties are asking us to pass legislation to permit
them to get married for personal reasons which would accom-
modate them. I don’t think we can make a case here of there
being a love affair. I think these people are mature enough to
realize that they have many reasons to live together and I am
satisfied with that, without going into their emotions any
deeper.

Senator Lewis: Mr. Brown, are you familiar with the terms
of the divorce between Mr. and Mrs. Laurie and whether or
not there were any provisions for support or maintenance in
the divorce decree?

Mr. Brown: I only have the decree absolute which simply
declares the marriage dissolved. I can undertake to provide
that information and to provide a copy of the decree nisi.

Senator Lewis: It really has no direct bearing on the case at
hand but I am wondering why Mr. Laurie is, perhaps, so
anxious that his former wife be married again.

Mr. Brown: It is my recollection that there is only a decree
nisi and then a decree absolute. The children are not entitled
to support for they are aged 21, 22 and 23. Mrs. Lauris is now
living with the other petitioner, Mr. Hodel, and normally in
such circumstances support would not be ordered or, at least,
not for very long.

Senator Lewis: So they are co-habiting together?

Mr. Brown: Yes. As I understand it they have been together
for approximately two years.

Senator Grafstein: My general understanding of the respon-
sibilities of the Senate with respect to divorce is related to the
granting of the jurisdiction in the first instance by the Fathers
of Confederation who felt that this body would be in the best
position to deal with changing social values related to this very
important fundamental law. Do I take it from your evidence

[Traduction]

M. Brown: Monsieur le président, & propos de I'urgence de
’affaire, je pense avoir dit qu’elle découle de I’extréme gravité
de la maladie de Norma Laurie. Cette femme aimerait 1égali-
ser sa situation de toute fagon, et je pense qu’il existe une
raison médicale assez grave pour que nous ne retardions pas
indiment le réglement de cette affaire. Si vous ne demandez
s’il importe que le mariage ait lieu cette semaine ou la semaine
prochaine, je ne saurais répondre, mais je pense que, vu I’état
de santé de la pétitionnaire, le temps est un facteur
déterminant.

Le sénateur Asselin: Monsieur le président, je pense qu’a
I’avenir nous devrions demander aux pétitionnaires de compa-
raitre devant le Comité pour qu’il puisse cerner la véritable
raison pour laquelle ils demandent I’adoption d’une loi d’ex-
ception. Je ne blame pas I'avocat; il fait de son mieux, et s’en
est trés bien tiré jusqu’a maintenant. Toutefois, il ne peut pas
vraiment témoigner au nom de ses clients parce qu’il ne sait
pas quels liens affectifs les unissent.

Le sénateur Deschatelets: Peut-étre puis-je venir en aide au
témoin. Il a été question d’camour». Or, 4 mon avis, ’amour
n’a rien a voir dans cette affaire, les parties ayant plus de
cinquante ou cinquante-cing ans. Je pense que les deux parties
nous demandent d’adopter le projet de loi afin de leur permet-
tre de se marier pour des raisons personnelles, parce que cette
solution les arrangerait. Je ne pense pas qu’on puisse, dans le
cas présent, invoquer le motif de 'amour. Jestime que ces gens
sont assez réfléchis pour se rendre compte qu’ils ont de nom-
breuses raisons de vivre ensemble, et cela me suffit; je n’ai pas
besoins d’en savoir davantage sur leurs sentiments.

Le sénateur Lewis: Monsieur Brown, connaissez-vous les
conditions du divorce de M. et de M™ Laurie; savez-vous s’il
existe des dispositions prévoyant le soutien, ou le versement
d’une pension alimentaire?

M. Brown: Je n’ai que le jugement en divorce, qui déclare
simplement le mariage dissous. Je peux cependant vous fournir
ces renseignements, et vous remettre aussi une copie du juge-
ment interlocutoire en divorce.

Le sénateur Lewis: C’est vraiment sans incidence directe sur
cette affaire, mais je me demande pourquoi M. Laurie semble
si désireux de voir son ex-femme se remarier.

M. Brown: Si je me rappelle bien, il n’y a eu qu’un jugement
interlocutoire, suivi du jugement définitif. Les enfants ne sont
pas admissibles au soutien puisqu’ils sont dgés de 21, 22 et 23
ans. M™ Laurie vit maintenant avec 'autre pétitionnaire, M.
Hodel; normalement, en pareil cas, le soutien ne serait pas
exigé, ou pas pour trés longtemps.

Le sénateur Lewis: Ils cohabitent donc?
M. Brown: Oui. Depuis environ deux ans.

Le sénateur Grafstein: Il me semble que si les Péres de la
Confédération ont confié certaines responsabilités au Sénat en
matiére de divorce, c’est parce qu’ils estimaient que cette
entité serait la mieux placée pour tenir compte de I’évolution
des valeurs sociales touchant cette loi fondamentale. Dois-je
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that in the local community where these people live there is
acceptance of what they intend to do?

Mr. Brown: Absolutely, Mr. Chairman.
Senator Asselin: How can you say that?

Mr. Brown: I say that on the basis of the letter by Pastor
Schulz of the Lutheran Church, who says that the congrega-
tion is “fully supportive.”

Senator Grafstein: I found that letter very curious coming
from a man of the cloth because there was no substance in it
dealing with his theological responsibilities. While I believe
there is a separation between the state and the cloth, it is
curious to me that there was nothing in that letter to deal with
the theological significance of what he was doing. What he
said could have been said by any other witness, as opposed to a
theological witness. 1 found the letter interesting but not
necessarily compelling.

Let met ask you another question. If we in this body are
trying to maintain the fundamental law, would there not be a
more important lesson in dealing with the public interest of
that community in refusing this petition than in granting it?

Mr. Brown: There is an old saying that hard cases make
good law. However, it is our submission that this is not a
situation in which to make a hard case. The people have gone
to a great deal of expense and have presented themselves to
this body in good faith on the basis of what Parliament has
done in the past.

Senator Grafstein: So the argument there is that there has
been an exception to the rule and they are trying to fit
themselves into that exception.

Mr. Brown: That’s right. There have been three exceptions
to the rule and this would be the fourth. If I could go back to
the question of the letter from the pastor, the reason why it
was filed is because in two of the earlier cases there had been
granted a papal dispensation. So in analysing what triggers the
jurisdiction or what triggers the relief, we formed the view that
their particular religious community was relevant because for
a Catholic a papal dispensation had been filed, and for a
Lutheran a—

Senator Grafstein: I am familiar with the papal dispensation
in one of the previous cases. However, what I found curious is
that if one examines the records of that papal dispensation,
which I have only received second or third hand, there was a
very strong theological basis for the decision. There does not
appear to be any theological basis for the decision here. I find
that curious.

I have a couple of other questions and then I will pass it on.
I am concerned about this as being a lesson to the community.
We are here trying to protect the general law. What would the
consequences of non-marriage be to this particular couple? It
strikes me that the consequences would be pretty moderate. I
say that in this way: I think there is a duty placed upon us to
satisfy ourselves, wherever there is an exception to the public

[Traduction]

déduire de votre témoignage que la communauté ou vivent ces
gens accepte leur projet?

M. Brown: Tout 4 fait, monsieur le président.
Le sénateur Asselin: Comment pouvez-vous I'affirmer?

M. Brown: En m’appuyant sur la lettre du pasteur Schulz,
de I'Eglise luthérienne, qui dit que la communauté est entiére-
ment d’accord.

Le sénateur Grafstein: Cette lettre m’étonne grandement de
la part d’'un membre du clergé, d’autant plus qu’elle ne
contient aucune allusion a sa charge théologique. Bien que je
croie 4 la séparation de I'Eglise et de I'Etat, il me semble
quand méme étonnant que cette lettre ne contienne pas la
moindre allusion 4 la portée théologique de I’encouragement
que donne le pasteur. Ce qu’il écirt, tout autre témoin aurait
pu I’écrire aussi, et pas seulement un membre du clergé. Je
trouve cette lettre intéressante, mais pas nécessairement
probante.

Laissez-moi poser une autre question. Si nous, au Sénat,
voulons protéger nos lois fondamentales, ne donnerions-nous
pas une legon plus valable, en ce qui concerne I'intérét public
de cette communauté, en rejetant cette pétition plutdt qu'en y
faisant droit?

M. Brown: Selon un vieil adage, les cas difficiles donnent
des lois solides. Toutefois, il nous semble que, dans ce cas, il
n’y a pas lieu de se montrer trop stricts. Ces gens ont engagé
des dépenses importantes et se sont présentés volontairement
devant nous, en toute bonne foi, en s’appuyant sur les précé-
dents établis par le Parlement.

Le sénateur Grafstein: Donc, le raisonnement sur lequel on
s’appuie ici, c’est qu'on a déja fait exception a la régle, et ces
gens essaient de se prévaloir de cette exception.

M. Brown: C’est juste. Il y a déja eu trois exceptions a la
régle, et ce serait la quatriéme. Mais, revenons a la question de
la lettre du pasteur. Si elle a été présentée, c’est que dans les
deux cas précédents, le pape avait accordé une dispense. Ainsi,
en étudiant ce qui confére la compétence ou qui fournit la
solution au probléme, nous en sommes arrivés a la conclusion
que la communauté religieuse intéressée avait une certaine
importance parce que, pour un catholique, une dispense du
pape a été accordée et que pour un luthérien, une. . .

Le sénateur Grafstein: J'étais au fait de la dispense papale
accordée dans I'un des cas précédents. Toutefois, ce qui
m’étonne, c’est que si I'on étudie les dossiers touchant cette
dispense, dossiers que je n’ai eus que de deuxiéme ou de
troisiéme main, on constate que la décision repose sur un solide
raisonnement théologique. Or, il semble n’exister aucune assise
théologique sur laquelle s’appuierait la décision du pasteur
dans le cas qui nous intéresse. C’est bien curieux.

Jai encore quelques questions a poser avant de céder la
parole. Je pense qu’en loccurrence, I'issue de cette affaire
pourrait servir de lecon a la collectivité. Nous essayons ici de
protéger la loi générale. Quelles seraient, pour ce couple précis,
les conséquences du non-mariage? Il m’apparait évident qu’el-
les seraient bien modestes. Je pense que nous devons bien nous
rendre compte que, dans tous les cas ou il y a une exception a
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interest, that it is not a question of private convenience but,
rather, extraordinary circumstances which would compel us to
make an exception from the public interest. I ask that question
here in light of that: What would be the consequences to this
couple of non-marriage? It strikes me that they would not be
of a major nature, but, rather of a minor nature. This is not to
deal with the important questions of love and death; but they
do not seem to me to be as compelling, perhaps, as other
circumstances which I could imagine based on what the hon-
ourable senator said a little earlier. Could you give an example
where there would be a certain set of circumstances which
would be so compelling and so persuasive in their private
interests which would outweigh the public interest? Again, I
see just the reverse of that.

Senator Deschatelets: If the honourable senator would
permit me to make a remark. When we talk about the
community and the result of the marriage at this time in the
community, I do not believe there would be any backlash
whatsoever, not in this day and age. Suppose they lived
together without being married; that is acceptable today and
there would be no problem. No one would even notice that
today. That is my impression of the situation.

Senator Grafstein: We do not have any evidence of that. I
think for me Senator Asselin makes a very compelling point,
which is that the factual basis is very slender upon which to
make an exception to a very fundamental law; if the situation
were different then perhaps the individuals, the doctor or the
Lutheran minister might be able to give us facts which would
be so compelling and extraordinary in the private interests that
they would outweigh the fundamental public interests. I am
having difficulty with respect to the weight of the evidence
here, not with respect to the question itself.

Senator Deschatelets: Senator, you are raising a fundamen-
tal issue here, with respect to which the law is very clear, “You
have no right to do this.” Some people will then come forward
and say, “I would like to be an exception to the rule.” Once we
enter into this there will be no end. We will have some more
cases as exceptions to the general rule.

I missed the beginning of this debate; however, my impres-
sion is that we should have the Minister of Justice here. We
should have his reaction to this situation. He should know that
there are some four or five cases at present and that there will
be some more coming forward. I think the correct stance to
take is to amend the law.

The Deputy Chairman: We cannot give you the Minister of
Justice, senator, but how would you like a former Minister of
Justice?

Senator Flynn: I will not speak in that capacity. However, I
wish to inform honourable senators that I have just spoken to
Senator Frith. He has written to the present Minister of
Justice underlining the debate which took place in 1975 or
1978 in the Senate. In that letter he has asked the minister to
let us know what the position of his department is with respect
to this situation. There is no doubt that if we dispense with this

[Traduction]

la régle de la primauté de I'intérét public, ce n’est pas pour une
raison de commodité privée, mais plutdt a cause de circons-
tances extraordinaires qui nous obligent 4 autoriser cette
exception. Je pose ici la question dans cette perspective: quelles
seraient pour ce couple les conséquences d’un non-mariage? Il
m’apparait bien clairement qu’elles ne seraient pas bien
graves. Il ne s’agit pas de traiter des grandes questions de
I’amour et de la mort; mais ces éléments ne me semblent pas
aussi inopposables, peut-étre, que d’autres circonstances que je
peux imaginer a partir de ce que I’honorable sénateur vient de
dire. Pouvez-vous donner I’exemple d’un cas ou I’enseble des
circonstances seraient si convaincantes et ou les intéréts privés
seraient 4 ce point importants qu’ils primeraient l'intérét
public? Encore une fois, c’est tout le contraire que je vois ici.

Le sénateur Deschatelets: Si I’honorable sénateur me le
permet, j’aimerais faire une observation. Quand nous parlons
de la communauté et de I'effet que le mariage aurait sur elle
en ce moment, je ne peux prévoir le moindre remous, pas de
nos jours. Supposons que ces gens aient vécu ensemble sans
étre mariés, on l'accepte de nos jours et il n’y aurait aucun
probléme. Personne ne le remarquerait aujourd’hui. C’est ainsi
que je vois les choses.

Le sénateur Grafstein: Nous n’en avons pas la moindre
preuve. Je pense que le sénageur Asselin a fait valoir un
élément de poids, & savoir que nous n’avons qu’une assise trés
ténue sur laquelle fonder une exception a une loi absolument
fondamentale. Si la situation était différente, alors peut-étre
que le médecin ou le ministre luthérien pourraient nous fournir
des données que nous jugerions assez probantes et assez
extraordinaires pour décider que les intéréts privés doivent
primer I'intérét public fondamental. Cependant, j’ai du mal a
reconnaitre la valeur des arguments présentés, sans pour
autant nier I'importance de la question elle-méme.

Le sénateur Deschatelets: Vous soulevez 1a une question
essentielle, au sujet de laquelle la loi est trés claire: «On n’a pas
le droit de faire cela.» Certaines gens viendront vous dire:
«J’aimerais qu’on fasse exception a la régle.» Quand on entre
dans ce type de raisonnement, on n’en voit plus la fin. D’autres
cas nous seront présentés pour que nous fassions exception 4 la
régle générale.

J’ai manqué le début du présent débat, mais j’ai I'impression
que le ministre de la Justice devrait étre présent, pour nous
donner son avis sur cette question. Il doit savoir qu’il existe en
ce moment quatre ou cinq cas a I’étude et qu’il en viendra

d’autres. Je pense que la bonne mesure 4 prendre est de
modifier la loi.

Le vice-président: Nous ne pouvons avoir le ministre de la
Justice, sénateur, mais que diriez-vous d’un ancien ministre de
la Justice?

Le sénateur Flynn: Je ne parlerai évidemment pas a ce titre.
Pourtant, je souhaite informer les honorables sénateurs que je
viens tout juste de parler au sénateur Frith. Il a écrit a I’actuel
ministre de la Justice au sujet du débat qui a eu lieu au Sénat
en 1975 ou 1978. Dans cette lettre, il demandait au Ministre
de nous faire connaitre la position de son ministére face a la
situation actuelle. Il ne fait aucun doute que si nous faisons
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prohibition of marriage between uncle and niece, nephew and
aunt, then the general law should be amended. Before we do
that, however, my suggestion is that we should try to obtain
the view of the minister either with respect to this specific bill
or in virtue of the reference which was made to this committee
by the Senate. I mean if we receive views that this general law
should be amended then why not go ahead and amend it? Or,
perhaps, if there is a special urgency at this time, knowing that
the law will be amended eventually, we could possibly pass
these private bills. However, until we have that kind of evi-
dence I do not think we have any compelling reason to accept
these bills.

The Deputy Chairman: The witness will respond to Senator
Grafstein. I, too, wish to raise one question before the witness
does respond. My question is not with respect to private
convenience to individuals but, rather, with respect to the
benefit to the community at large. That is the exception. Does
one not take into account that in a small rural community it is
in the interests of the community, of the children being raised
in the community and the older peopie who are offended by
common law unions, that a formal marriage take place?

Senator Flynn: Then you must move from a larger commu-
nity to a smaller one in order to qualify.

The Deputy Chairman: The smart people stay in the larger
communities.

Senator Lewis: Before Mr. Brown answers the question, I
would like to make a comment along the same lines. I under-
stand that this is a small community, is that right?

The Deputy Chairman: Yes, a community of some 150
people, is my recollection.

Senator Lewis: It sounds to me as if they are all of one
religion?

The Deputy Chairman: I am sorry, Senator Lewis, when I
saw the figure 150 I thought it was the community. It is the
parish which has 150 members.

Senator Lewis: My question is along the lines of the ques-
tion asked by Senator Grafstein, that is, with respect to the
community social values. It is all very well to have a letter
from the parish but I am still wondering how big the commu-
nity itself is. Of course, this could get to the stage where we
must ask, “Do we include districts or is it the whole province
we are dealing with as far as social values are concerned?”

Senator Grafstein: [ have one other-question on fact for Mr.
Brown when he does give his answer. How long has this couple
been living together?

The Deputy Chairman: Two years.

Senator Grafstein: They have been in the same residence for
two years?

[Traduction)

une exception aux régles qui interdisent le mariage entre
'oncle et la niéce, ou le neveu et la tante, nous devons
également modifier la loi générale. Avant de le faire, toutefois,
je crois que nous devrions essayer d’obtenir le point de vue du
Ministre sur ce projet de loi précis ou sur la question que le
Sénat a renvoyée au Comité. Si on nous dit que la loi générale
devrait étre modifiée, pourquoi ne pas le faire? Ou encore, si
cette affaire est urgente, nous pourrions adopter ces projets de
loi privés en sachant que la loi sera modifiée un jour. Toute-
fois, nous n’avons aucune raison de les approuver avant d’avoir
regu ce genre d’appui. :

Le vice-président: Le témoin répondra a la question du
sénateur Grafstein. Je veux toutefois soulever un point avant
qu’il ne le fasse. Ma question porte non pas sur les intéréts
personnels des particuliers en cause, mais plutét sur les intéréts
de I’ensemble de la collectivité. Ces cas sont en effet des
exceptions. Est-ce qu'on tient compte du fait que dans une
petite communauté rurale, il est dans I'intérét de la collectivité,
des enfants qui y sont élevés et des personnes dgées qui sont
choquées par les unions libres qu’un mariage soit célébré en
bonne et diie forme.

Le sénateur Flynn: Vous devez donc vous installer dans une
collectivité plus petite pour faire approuver un mariage
d’exception.

Le vice-président: Les gens intelligents habitent dans les
grands centres.

Le sénateur Lewis: Avant que M. Brown ne réponde i la
question, je voudrais faire un commentaire du méme ordre. Je
crois comprendre qu’il s’agit dans ce cas-ci d’une petite collec-
tivité, n’est-ce pas?

Le vice-président: Oui, un village d’environ 150 habitants, si
je ne m’abuse.

Le sénateur Lewis: Et il me semble qu’ils pratiquent tous la
méme religion?

Le vice-président: Je m’excuse, sénateur Lewis, lorsque j’ai
dit 150 personnes je croyais qu'il s’agissait de I’ensemble de la
collectivité. C'est la paroisse qui compte 150 fidéles.

Le sénateur Lewis: Ma question rejoint celle du sénateur
Grafstein; elle porte sur les valeurs sociales de la collectivité.
C’est bien beau d’avoir une lettre du pasteur de la paroisse,
mais je me demande combien d’habitants il y a dans cette
collectivité. Evidemment, cela pourrait nous amener a nous
poser la question suivante: «Devons-nous aller jusqu’a tenir
compte des valeurs sociales du district ou de I’ensemble de la
province?»

Le sénateur Grafstein: J'ai une autre question & poser & M.
Brown. Depuis combien de temps ces deux personnes vivent-
elles ensemble?

Le vice-président: Deux ans.

Le sénateur Grafstein: Elles habitent la méme maison
depuis deux ans?
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Mr. Brown: My information is that it has been about two
years, two and a half years. She was separated in about 1975
and started to live with Mr. Hodel in about 1981 or 1982.

Senator Grafstein: What will the economic consequences of
this union be?

Mr. Brown: Perhaps we can take the last question first.
What do you mean by “economic consequences”?

Senator Grafstein: What are the financial considerations, if
any, related to this proposed union?

Mr. Brown: That I do not know. You are talking about?
Senator Grafstein: Money, property rights.

Mr. Brown: Mr. Chairman, I am not aware of any pre-nup-
tial contract having been made and, in the absence of that, the
property rights, one against the other, would fall to be gov-
erned by the general law of Saskatchewan, which I think is
fairly progressive in terms of division of assets and that sort of
thing, upon dissolution.

Senator Grafstein: Is that one of the considerations that go
into the union? Are the financial considerations about living
together and solidifying that union one of the considerations of
their urgency?

Mr. Brown: No, Mr. Chairman. If I could just take it back
to the general question, Mr. Chairman, which is: is this
important to the individual or is it important to the commu-
nity? These people are living together and they want to get
married. I think that should be commended. Secondly, the
decree absolute of divorce was issued on February 23, 1983
and the first notice of this petition was given in the local paper
on February 25 so they have moved with all reasonable
diligence to come before Parliament, seeking to place them-
selves within the parameters of the previous acceptance. I
think that evidences a very serious intention to get married.

It is very easy for people to move in one with the other, but
these people want to become married. Obviously, they believe
in marriage or I would not be here and they would not be here
with their petition. I think that distinguishes them and that
they should be commended. It is with the hope to regularize
that relationship that this petition is presented. It is a pro-mar-
riage petition in an age when marriage is not universally
supported as an institution.

Senator Cools: I read here that Mr. Hodel is an elder in the
church. What is an elder in the church?

The Deputy Chairman: It depends on what church it is.
Senator Cools: What is their particular church?

Mr. Brown: Mr. Chairman, he is an elder in the particular
congregation in which the marriage will be taking place. I am
not an expert on the Lutheran religion and I cannot answer
specifically, but I know, for example, that elders in other
churches form a sort of governing board of the church.

[Traduction]

M. Brown: D’aprés mes renseignements, elles habitent
ensemble depuis environ deux ans, deux ans et demi. La
femme s’est séparée vers 1975 et a emménagé avec M. Hodel
en 1981 ou 1982.

Le sénateur Grafstein: Quelles seront les conséquences éco-
nomiques de cette union?

M. Brown: Nous pourrions peut-étre commencer par la
derniére question. Que voulez-vous dire par «conséquences
économiques»?

Le sénateur Grafstein: Quelles sont les considérations finan-
ciéres, s’il y en a, qui sont reliées a cette union?

M. Brown: Je ne sais pas. A quoi faites-vous allusion?
Le sénateur Grafstein: A ’argent, aux droits de propriété.

M. Brown: Monsieur le président, je ne sais pas si un contrat
prénuptial a été conclu, mais dans la négative, les droits de
propriété des deux personnes en cause seraient régis par la loi
générale de la Saskatchewan qui, je crois, est suffisamment
progressiste au sujet de la division des biens et des autres
questions du genre en cas de dissolution du mariage.

Le sénateur Grafstein: Est-ce un des facteurs qui entrent en
ligne de compte dans cette union? Est-ce que les considérations
financiéres découlant du fait que les pétitionnaires vivent
ensemble et qu’ils désirent renforcer leur union constituent un
des secteurs qui expliquent leur hate de se marier?

M. Brown: Non, monsieur le président. Je voudrais revenir a
la question générale, monsieur le président, a savoir si cela
revét de I'importance pour les particuliers en cause ou pour la
collectivité. Ces gens vivent ensemble et veulent se marier. Je
trouve cela fort louable. Deuxiémement, le jugement définitif
en divorce a été prononcé le 23 février 1983, et le premier avis
relatif 4 cette pétition a été publié dans le journal local le 25
février; on voit donc que les pétitionnaires se sont empressés de
soumettre leur requéte au Parlement pour qu’elle soit approu-
vée 4 partir des précédents déja établis. Je crois que cela
démontre clairement qu’ils veulent vraiment se marier.

Il est trés facile de vivre ensemble, mais ces personnes
veulent se marier. Il est évident qu’ils croient au mariage,
sinon je ne serais pas ici, et ils n’y seraient pas non plus avec
leur pétition. Je crois que cela les distingue des autres, et ils
devraient en étre félicités. Ils espérent, par cette pétition,
régulariser leur union. Il s’agit en fait d’un plaidoyer en faveur
du mariage 4 une époque ou cette institution ne jouit pas d’un
appui universel.

Le sénateur Cools: On dit ici que M. Hodel est un des
doyens de I’Eglise. Que voulez-vous dire par 13?

Le vice-président: Cela dépend de I'Eglise.
Le sénateur Cools: A quelle Eglise appartient-il?

M. Brown: Monsieur le président, M. Hodel est un doyen de
la congrégation méme ou le mariage doit avoir lieu. Je ne suis
pas un spécialiste de la religion luthérienne et je ne peux vous
donner de réponse précise 4 ce sujet, mais je sais, par exemple,
que les doyens dans d’autres Eglises agissent a titre de mem-
bres du conseil de ’Eglise.
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Senator Cools: Am I to understand, then, that this particu-
lar couple has some community support; the family support it?
There is no possibility of procreation and, in point of fact,
what I think I am hearing is that basically this is a couple who
have a relationship and want this relationship legitimized
within law. In other words, they are saying, “We are members
of a church; we are respectable people and we do not want to
exist outside law and order.” Am I hearing you correctly?

Mr. Brown: That is the essence of my submission, Mr.
Chairman.

Senator Cools: So basically, they are making a request to
Parliament to render their relationship moral.

Mr. Brown: To legalize their relationship.

Senator Cools: To legalize their relationship and render it
moral. Thank you.

Senator Deschatelets: 1 agree completely with what my
colleague has said and I would personally be in favour of their
legalizing their situation. There is no doubt about that.

The problem is that, in asking to legalize their situation, you
are asking us to make an exception to a general law and that is
where we get into trouble, because we do not like this. We
would like the Minister of Justice to come and say, “I agree
that there should be an amendment to this general law and I
intend to correct the situation in a few months from now.” In
that way, we would be in a position to agree. We would not
like to open the door to precedent, because we are awaiting
other things.

I hope you understand our situation and our point of view.

Senator Asselin: Mr. Chairman, I want to agree with what
has just been said by Senator Deschatelets. We have at least
ten more cases to study before the committee and we would
want to be fair with all of the cases. We would not want to
adopt or pass an exception for one or two cases this afternoon
and leave aside the others.

I think we should do what Senator Flynn and Senator
Deschatelets have recommended this afternoon; we should try
to get the Minister of Justice to appear before us on March 6
and ask him to deal with the motion of reference which is
before the committee. After that, if we have a good under-
standing with the minister to the effect that the general law
will be modified, we can then very easily pass all of the cases
together.

However, since we do not have this commitment at the
moment from the Minister of Justice, I think it would be
unfair for us, either today or even at some other time, to
accept one or two cases and leave the other cases aside.

In that event, Mr. Chairman, I would like to make a formal
motion that we leave aside all the cases which are before the
committee until the Minister of Justice comes before the
committee on March 6 when, at that time, we shall have an
opportunity to study the motion of reference which is already
before the committee.

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Cools: Dois-je donc comprendre que ce couple
jouit d’un certain appui au sein de la collectivité, et notam-
ment, de I'appui de la famille? La procréation est impossible,
et je crois qu’il s’agit au fond d’un couple qui vent que leur
union soit sanctionnée par la loi. En d’autres termes, ce sont
des gens qui sont membres d’une Eglise, des gens respectables
qui veulent vivre dans les limites de la légalité. C’est bien cela?

M. Brown: C’est I'essentiel de mon exposé, monsieur le
président.

Le sénateur Cools: Ainsi, ils demandent au Parlement de
donner un caractére plus moral a leur union.

M. Brown: De la légaliser, oui.

Le sénateur Cools: De la légaliser et de la rendre plus
conforme 2 la morale. Merci.

Le sénateur Deschatelets: Je suis tout a fait d’accord avec
mon collégue et, personnellement, j’approuverais la légalisa-
tion de cette union. Il n’y a pas de doute la-dessus.

Le probléme est le suivant: en nous demandant de légaliser
cette union, vous nous demandez de faire une exception 4 la loi
générale; c’est cela qui nous crée des problémes parce que nous
n’aimons pas faire ce genre de choses. Nous voudrions que le
ministre de la Justice nous dise que cette loi générale devrait
étre modifiée et qu'il a I'intention de corriger la situation d’ici
quelques mois. Nous serions ainsi en mesure de donner notre
accord. Nous ne voulons pas créer un précédent, parce que
nous attendons que d’autres choses surviennent.

Jespére que vous comprenez notre situation et notre point
de vue.

Le sénateur Asselin: Monsieur le président, je suis d’accord
avec ce que vient de dire le sénateur Deschatelets. Nous avons
encore au moins dix dossiers a étudier et nous voulons faire
preuve d’impartialité dans tous les cas. Nous ne voulons pas
adopter une loi d’exception pour un ou deux cas cet aprés-midi
et laisser les autres de coté.

Je crois que nous devrions faire ce que les sénateurs Flynn et
Deschatelets ont proposé cet aprés-midi: nous devrions deman-
der au ministre de la Justice de comparaitre devant nous le 6
mars pour discuter de la motion de renvoi dont est saisi le
Comité. Aprés cela, si nous convenons avec le ministre qu’il
faut modifier la loi générale, nous pourrons facilement consi-
dérer tous les cas en méme temps.

Toutefois, puisque nous ne savons pas encore si le ministre
de la Justice en décidera ainsi, je crois qu’il serait injuste
d’étudier une ou deux requétes aujourd’hui, ou méme plus
tard, et de laisser les autres de coté.

Par conséquent, monsieur le président, je propose que nous
mettions de coté tous les cas soumis au Comité jusqu’a ce que
le ministre de la Justice vienne témoigner le 6 mars. A ce
moment-14, nous aurons l’occasion d’étudier la motion de
renvoi dont est déja saisi le Comité.
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Senator Grafstein: Just with reference to that, then, Mr.
Brown, after having read the transcript of these proceedings
might want to improve or provide additional evidence to this
body.

Senator Flynn: Or perhaps he might want also to submit a
written statement.

Senator Grafstein: Yes, and this might give him some ideas
on how to enhance his submission, or put his best foot forward.

Senator Asselin: I do not think anyone in this committee
today is dissatisfied with the evidence which has been given.

The Deputy Chairman: I take it that this also applies to the
minister, that if we do not have some clarification of the law,
people who come forward to apply for an amendment or an
exception will receive that answer, that the government is not
prepared to amend the law. That is implied in the answer.

Senator Flynn: It would be a good argument against passage

of the bill. He must have some reasons for not making
exceptions.

Senator Grafstein: However, that does not remove the re-
sponsibility from this body to make that decision. That is
precisely the responsibility of this committee.

Senator Flynn: The responsibility here is in particular cases.
That is the difference. I mean, when should we make excep-
tions and when should we not make exceptions? We have not
been able to resolve that question.

The Deputy Chairman: Before I proceed with your motion,
Senator Asselin, can I understand this: You are speaking of
the four bills, and not just the one Mr. Brown is speaking of?

Senator Asselin: Yes, the four bills.

The Deputy Chairman: In that event, is there any further
discussion on Senator Asselin’s motion to postpone delibera-
tion by this committee on Bills S-2, S-3, S-4 and S-5, pending
the appearance of the Minister of Justice before this commit-
tee at the first opportunity?

Senator Asselin: That appearance will be on March 6 when
we start to study the motion.

Senator Lewis: I have just one observation. Would that
mean that the committee would not proceed to consider any of
the other applications here? I was wondering if there might be
some facts that the committee might like to hear on the other
applications at this time.

Senator Flynn: Yes, but if we come to the conclusion that
the principle is acceptable, you will have no problem other
than ensuring it is only a nephew and a niece, or vice versa.

Senator Asselin: [ will accept that principle.

The Deputy Chairman: Is there any further discussion on
Senator Asselin’s motion?

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Grafstein: A ce propos, M. Brown voudra
peut-étre changer son exposé ou fournir d’autres renseigne-
ments au Comité apres avoir lu le procés-verbal.

Le sénateur Flynm: Ou il voudra peut-étre présenter un
mémoire écrit.

Le sénateur Grafstein: Oui, et cela l'aidera peut-étre a
apporter des améliorations a son témoignage.

Le sénateur Asselin: Je ne crois pas qu’il y ait un seul
membre du Comité qui soit insatisfait du témoignage que M.
Brown a donné aujourd’hui.

Le vice-président: Je crois que cela s’applique également au
Ministre, 4 savoir que si aucun éclaircissement n’est apporté a
la loi, il faudra dire aux gens qui nous demandent de modifier
la loi générale ou d’adopter une loi d’exception que le gouver-
nement n’est pas prét a modifier la loi. C’est ce que laisse
entendre la réponse.

Le sénateur Flynn: On pourrait trés bien se servir de cet
argument pour empécher I’adoption du projet de loi. Il doit y
avoir des raisons de ne pas permettre les lois d’exception.

Le sénateur Grafstein: Il n’en reste pas moins que le Comité
est tenu de rendre cette décision. C’est précisément sa
responsabilité.

Le sénateur Flynn: Notre responsabilité ici porte sur des cas
particuliers. Voila la différence. Dans quels cas devons-nous ou
non faire exception 4 la loi? Nous n’avons pas encore réglé
cette question.

N

Le vice-président: Avant de donner suite & votre motion,
sénateur Asselin, je voudrais vous demander ceci: vous faites
allusion aux quatre projets de loi ou seulement au cas soulevé
par M. Brown?

Le sénateur Asselin: Oui, aux quatre projets de loi.

Le vice-président: Dans ce cas, avez-vous autre chose a
ajouter au sujet de la motion du sénateur Asselin, qui propose
de suspendre les délibérations du Comité sur les projets de loi
S-2, S-3, S-4 et S-5 jusqu’a ce que le ministre de la Justice ait
témoigné devant le Comité?

Le sénateur Asselin: Il témoignera le 6 mars; c’est 4 cette
date que nous commencerons 4 étudier la motion

Le sénateur Lewis: J'ai une seule remarque a faire. Est-ce
que cela veut dire que le Comité n’étudiera pas les autres
requétes qui lui ont été soumises? Je me demandais si le
Comité ne voulait pas dés maintenant de plus amples rensei-
gnements sur les autres requétes.

Le sénateur Flynn: Oui, mais si nous en arrivons a la
conclusion que le principe est acceptable, vous n’aurez aucun
probléme, sauf celui de vous assurer qu’il s’agit seulement d’un
neveu et d’une ni€ce ou vice-versa.

Le sénateur Asselin: Je suis prét 4 accepter le principe, si tel
est le cas.

Le vice-président: Avez-vous d’autres observations i faire
sur la motion du sénateur Asselin?
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If we accept the motion, I take it that would preclude us Si la motion est adoptée, cela veut dire que nous n’enten-
from hearing the agent on behalf of the petitioners on the drons pas le témoignage des représentants des pétitionnaires
other three bills? visés par les trois autres projets de loi?

Senator Lewis: Yes, that is what I meant. Le sénateur Lewis: C’est bien ce que je voulais dire.

The Deputy Chairman: So it is clear, I will read the motion Le vice-président: Je lirai donc la motion 4 nouveau. Le
again. It is moved by Senator Asselin that: sénateur Asselin propose:

The committee postpone its deliberations on Bills S-2, Que le Comité suspende son étude des projets de loi S-2,
S-3, S-4 and S-5 pending the presentation of the Minister S-3, S-4 et S-5 jusqu’a la comparution du ministre de la
of Justice at the earliest possible time. Justice, dans les plus brefs délais.

All those in favour? Ceux qui sont pour?

All those opposed? Ceux qui sont contre?

I declare the motion carried. Je déclare la motion adoptée.

Senator Lewis, in the absence of the chairman, I ask you to Sénateur Lewis, en I'absence du président, je vous prierais
make yourself available so that we can convene a meeting of de vous tenir & notre disposition pour que nous puissions
the steering committee. organiser une réunion du comité directeur.

I declare the meeting adjourned to the call of the Chair. Je léve la séance jusqu’a nouvelle convocation du Président.

The committee adjourned. La séance est levée.
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE ORDRES DE RENVOI

Extracts from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate, Extraits des Proces-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 9 février
Thursday, February 9, 1984: 1984:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-3, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Louis Philippe Nadeau and
Marie Thérése Rita Brulé”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-2, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Gerald Harvey Fudge and
Audrey Marie Saunders”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C. that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair, for
the second reading of the Bill S-4, intituled: “An Act to
provide an exception from the public general law relating
to marriage in the case of Ernest Hodel and Norma Dora
Laurie”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be

«Suivant I’Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I'honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant 4 la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-3, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Louis Phillipe Nadeau et Marie Thérése Rita
Brulé».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projete de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et consitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I’Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant 4 la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-2, intitulé «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Gerald Harvey Fudge et Audrey Marie Saun-
ders».

Apres débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois & la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I'honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant 4 la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-4, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas d’Ernest Hodel et Norma Dora Laurie».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, 4 la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé pr
I’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit



Legal and Constitutional Affairs

14-3-1984

referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-5, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Benjamin Josheph Andrade
and Heather Winnifred Andrade”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionneles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant 4 la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-5, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Benjamin Josheph Andrade et Heather Winni-
fred Andrade».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Extract from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate, Extraits des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 23 février
Thursday, February 23, 1984: 1984:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Guay, P.C., that the Bill S-6, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Juan Andrade and Emilia
Rodriguez”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator van Roggen, that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator van Roggen, that the Bill S-7, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Henri Patry and Aldéa Béa
Pitt”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

«Suivant 1'Ordre du jour, 'honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par ’honorable sénateur Guay, C.P., que
le Projet de loi S-6, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le
cas de Juan Andrade et Emilia Rodriguez», soit lu la
deuxiéme fois.

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, a la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur van Roggen, que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, ’honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur van Roggen, que
le Projet de loi S-7, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le
cas de Henri Patry et Aldéa Béa Pitt», soit lu la deuxiéme
fois.

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a4 la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.
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The Honourable Senator Leblanc, moved, seconded by L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
the Honourable Senator van Roggen, that the Bill be I’honorable sénateur van Roggen, que le projet de loi soit
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
Constitutional Affairs. ques et constitutionnelles.

The question being put on the motion, it was— La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Resolved in the affirmative.”

Le greffier du Sénat
Charles A. Lussier
Clerk of the Senate
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[Text] [Traduction]

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs met this day at 4:34 p.m., the Chairman, Sena-
tor Neiman, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Asselin, Flynn, Lewis, Neiman and Robichaud (5).

Other Senators present: The Honourable Senators Cools et
Leblanc.

In attendance: Mr. R. L. du Plessis, Q.C., Law Clerk and
Parliamentary Counsel. Mr. Donald Macdonald, Research
Officer of the Library of Parliament.

Appearing: The Honourable Mark MacGuigan, Minister of
Justice and Attorney General of Canada.

The Committee considered Bills S-2, S-3, S-4, S-5, S-6 and
S-7, “Acts to provide exceptions from the public general law
relating to marriage”.

The Minister made a statement and answered questions.

At 5:16 p.m., the Committee proceeded in camera.

At 5:34 p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the
chair.

ATTEST:

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles se réunit aujourd’hui 4 14 h 34, sous la prési-
dence du sénateur Neiman (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Asselin, Flynn, Lewis, Neiman et Robichaud (5).

Autres sénateurs présents: Les honorables sénateurs Colls et
Leblanc. )

Aussi présents: M. R. L. du Plessis, c.r., 1égiste et conseiller
parlementaire; M. Donald Macdonald, attaché de recherche de
la Bibliothéque du Parlement.

Comparait: L’honorable Mark MacGuigan, ministre de la
Justice et procureur général du Canada.

Le Comité étudie les projets de loi S-2, S-3, S-4, S-5, S-6 et
S-7 «Lois faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en
matiére de mariage».

Le ministre fait une déclaration et répond aux questions.

A 17 h 16, le Comité poursuit sa séance a huis clos.

A 17 h 34, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu'd nouvelle
convocation du Président.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Paul Bélisle

Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, March 14, 1984

[Texte]

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs to which was referred Bill S-2, to provide an
exception from the public general law relating to marriage in
the case of Gerald Harvey Fudge and Audrey Marie Saunders,
Bill S-3, to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Louis Philippe Nadeau and
Marie Thérése Rita Brulé, Bill S-4, to provide an exception
from the public general law relating to marriage in the case of
Ernest Hodel and Norma Dora Laurie, Bill S-5, to provide an
exception from the public general law relating to marriage in
the case of Benjamin Josheph Andrade and Heather Winni-
fred Andrade, Bill S-6, to provide an exception from the public
general law relating to marriage in the case of Juan Andrade
and Emilia Rodriguez and Bill S-7, to provide an exception
from the public general law relating to marriage in the case of
Henri Patry and Aldéa Béa Pitt, met this day at 4.30 p.m. to
give consideration to the bills.

Senator Joan Neiman (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, the minister is unusu-
ally busy these days, as you may have gathered, but he has
agreed to appear before us to answer questions that members
of the committee are anxious to put to him with respect to a
number of private bills concerning the waiving of certain mar-
riage prohibitions. These bills have been before us for some
time, so naturally we are anxious to deal with them, but we
also were anxious to get some comment from the department
as to the progress made in considering an amendment to the
general law so that this type of bill will no longer be necessary.

Mr. Minister, as you know, we had the first of these private
bills in 1975, and I think the records show that at that time
Senator Flynn, Senator Asselin and I wondered when the law
was to be changed so that this type of application to Parlia-
ment for private bills to allow exceptions would not be neces-
sary. The question came up again, I believe, in 1978, and at
that time we were given to understand that the department
was considering appropriate amendments that would make this
type of application unnecessary.

When these bills were brought before us—and it was
indicated at that time that we had approximately eight bills,
and there are a couple of other applications that have not been
processed to the point of being introduced—the question was
raised during debate in the Senate. At that time a motion was
made that this committee study not only these bills, but also
that a general reference of the subject matter be made to this
committee. I should like to read the terms of that reference so
that you will know what this committee has been charged to
examine. The motion was:

That the subject-matter of the public general law
throughout Canada with respect to prohibitions against

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le mercredi 14 mars 1984

[Traduction]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles auquel a été renvoyé le projet de loi S-2, Loi
faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére de
mariage dans le cas de Gerald Harvey Fudge et Audrey Marie
Saunders, le projet de loi S-3, Loi faisant exception aux régles
générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de Louis
Philippe Nadeau et Marie Thérése Rita Brulé, le projet de loi
S-4, Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en
matiére de mariage dans le cas de Ernest Hodel et Norma
Dora Laurie, le projet de loi S-5, Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de
Benjamin Josheph Andrade et Heather Winnifred Andrade, le
projet de loi S-6, Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de
droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de Juan Andrade et
Emilia Rodriguez et le projet de loi S-7, Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas
de Henri Patry et Aldéa Béa Pitt, se réunit aujourd’hui a
16 h 30 pour étudier ces projets de loi.

Le sénateur Joan Neiman (président) occupe le fauteuil.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, le ministre est trés
occupé ces jours-ci, comme vous pouvez vous en douter, mais il
a accepté de comparaitre devant nous pour répondre aux ques-
tions que les membres du comité ont bien héte de lui poser en
ce qui concerne un certain nombre de projets de loi d’intérét
privé visant 4 déroger a certaines interdictions de mariage.
Nous avons été saisis de ces projets de loi il y a assez long-
temps et nous sommes donc naturellement désireux de les étu-
dier le plus vite possible, mais nous voulons aussi obtenir cer-
tains précisions du ministére sur la situation concernant la
modification du droit général pertinent afin que ces projets de
loi ne soient plus nécessaires.

Monsieur le Ministre, comme vous le savez, nous avons été
saisie du premier de ces projets de loi en 1975, et je crois que le
compte rendu des délibérations indique qu'a ce moment-la le
sénateur Flynn, le sénateur Asselin et moi-méme avions sou-
levé la question de la modification du droit général pertinent
afin qu’il ne soit plus nécessaire de présenter au Parlement des
projets de loi d’intérét privé a cet égard. La question a de nou-
veau été soulevée, je crois, en 1978, et 4 cette époque on nous a
laissé entendre que le ministére envisageait d’apporter les
modifications utiles afin que ces projets de loi ne soient plus
nécessaires.

Lorsque ces projets de loi nous ont été renvoyés, a ce
moment-1a, il y en avait huit, et méme quelques autres qui
n’avaient pas été déposés, la question a été soulevée au Sénat.
A ce moment-la, on a proposé que le présent comité étudie non
seulement les projets de loi, mais toute la question du droit
public général en la matiére. J’aimerais vous lire le texte de
’ordre de renvoi afin que vous sachiez ce que le comité est
chargé d’étudier. La motion est la suivante:

. Que' le sujet_ du droit public général au Canada qui
interdit le mariage entre parents soit renvoyé au comité
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marriage between related persons be referred to the
Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitutional
Affairs with instructions to the committee to report to this
House its recommendations for amendment to the public
general law in question if, in the opinion of the committee,
that law should be amended.
This reference is now before us as well as the particular bills
that I have mentioned. The committee has not yet decided
whether we should deal with the reference first and become a
little more familiar with and apprised of the complexities of
the law as it is, or proceed with these particular bills. For that
reason members of the committee were very anxious to have
you come today to make a statement, and we are grateful that
you were able to do so.

Hon. Mark MacGuigan, P.C., Q.C., M.P., Minister of Jus-
tice and Attorney General of Canada: Thank you, Madam
Chairman. The general law regarding capacity to marry has
not been amended since Confederation except to permit mar-
riage with a sibling of a deceased spouse. The Senate, as is well
known, processes private bills from time to time in order to
create an exception to the general law regarding capacity to
marry. The exception which attaches only to the people
included in the bill permits a couple who are related by blood
or marriage within the prohibited degrees of relationship to
marry despite the general prohibition against their marriage.

I understand that the number of requests for exceptions has
almost tripled this year. As a result there is increasing concern
in the Senate for some action that would perhaps clarify or
amend the law relating to capacity to marry. I would suggest,
Madam Chairman, that the Senate is probably in the best
position to make a complete review of all the issues relating to
the subject matter. There are fairly profound, and certainly
deep-rooted and historical aspects of this problem. There are
moral questions, legal questions and there may well be ques-
tions involving genetics. From those points of view, as well as
others, I think this question should be looked at rather fully
with expert testimony from those who might be involved.

I suggest that the reference that the Senate has apparently
already given this committee would provide you with an excel-
lent basis for delving further into the problem and advising
Parliament as to what steps we should take. I might mention
that there is an added complication as well when the prohibi-
tion on intermarriage arises after the relationship is created by
adoption pursuant to provincial laws. In addition, the Civil
Code of the Province of Quebec would be directly affected by
any amendment. The current prohibited degrees appear to be
extremely broad and many kinds of rationales would be con-
tinued to be advanced, including religious and moral ones. I
would suggest that you might want to consult expert witnesses
and give the rest of us the benefit of your considered opinion as
to what we should do. The very fact that this law has been
changed only once since Confederation indicates it should be
re-examined. The fact that it is so deeply embedded in our
general social prohibitions indicates that we have to be rather
careful in considering the proposals for changes that would
actually be made. I think the Senate is in an excellent position

[Traduction)

permanent des affaires juridiques et constitutionelles et
que I'on ordonne au comité de faire rapport au Sénat de
ses recommandations en vue de modifier le droit public
général pertinent si le comité juge que c’est nécessaire.

Nous sommes donc saisis de ce sujet général et des projets de
loi que j’ai mentionnés. Le comité n’a toujours pas décidé s’il
doit d’abord traiter du sujet d’ordre général afin de se familia-
riser un peu avec les droit public général a cet égard ou procé-
der 4 I'étude des projets de loi. C’est pour cette raison que les
membres du comité étaient trés désireux de vous rencontrer
aujourd’hui et d’entendre votre déclaration, et nous vous
savons gré d’avoir bien voulu comparaitre.

L’honorable Mark MacGuigan, C.P., C.R. député, ministre
de la Justice et procureur général du Canada: Merci, madame
la présidente. Les régles générales de droit en matiére de
mariage n'ont pas été modifiées depuis la Confédération, sauf
en vue d’autoriser le mariage avec le frére ou la sceur d’un con-
joint décédé. Le Sénat, comme nous le savons tous, étudie de
temps 4 autre des projets de loi d’intérét privé visant & faire
exception aux régles générales de droit en mati¢re de mariage.
L’exception vise uniquement les personnes nommées dans le
projet de loi qui quoique unies par les liens du sang ou par
alliance, peuvent étre autorisées a se marier malgré les régles
générales de droit interdisant leur mariage.

Je crois que le nombre de projets de loi, de cette nature a
presque triplé cette année. Face a cette situation, le Sénat
estime de plus en plus qu’il faudrait clarifier ou modifier le
droit public général en la matiére. Je suis d’avis, madame la
présidente, que le Sénat est probablement le mieux placé pour
procéder a4 une étude exhaustive de tous les aspects de cette
question. Ce probléme présente certes des éléments historiques
profondément enracinés, notamment les aspects moral et juri-
dique et méme des questions génétiques. Etant donné
I'ampleur du probléme, je suis d’avis qu’il faudrait étudier la
question en profondeur et entendre les témoignages de spécia-
listes en la matiére.

J’estime que 'ordre de renvoi du comité vous fournira une
excellente occasion d’étudier 4 fond le probléme et de conseil-
ler le Parlement sur les mesures a prendre. Je dois mentionner
qu’il y a aussi une autre complication en ce qui concerne
I'interdiction de mariage entre des personnes ayant des liens de
parenté par adoption, conformément aux lois provinciales. En
outre, le code civil de la province de Québec serait directement
touché par toute modification apportée. L’interdiction actuelle
semble extrémement vaste, et I'on pourrait invoquer un grand
nombre de raisons, notamment d’ordre religieux et moral. Je
présume que vous voudriez consulter des spécialistes en la
matiére et par la suite nous faire part de votre opinion sur les
mesures a prendre. Le fait méme que cette loi n’a été modifiée
qu’a une seule reprise depuis le début de la Confédération con-
firme la nécessité de la réexaminer. Etant donné également
que cette question est si profondément enracinée dans des
interdictions générales d’ordre social, il faut faire preuve de
prudence a I’égard des changements proposés. Je crois que le
Sénat est bien placé pour étudier cette question délicate sur les
plans social, religieux, moral et juridique.
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to handle this issue having regard to social, religious, moral
and legal sensitivities involved.

The Chairman: Thank you. Senator Asselin?

Senator Asselin: First of all, Madam Chairman, I want to
congratulate the minister on the decision he took to run for the
leadership of his party. I have known the minister for many
years. When we were students we spent two and a half months
together in Pontigny, France. It was there that he learned to
speak French so well. Unfortunately, Mr. Minister I will not
be able to vote for you because I shall not be invited to your
convention.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: That is not the reason for my being
busy today but rather a cabinet meeting which is going on at
the same time as this meeting.

Le sénateur Asselin: En d’autres mots, monsieur le ministre,
la présidente de notre comité, M™ Neiman vous a expliqué le
probléme de ce comité. Elle vous a énoncé dans quelle situation
nous sommes. Elle vous a référé 4 la motion adoptée par le
Sénat, 4 savoir que ce comité devrait faire une étude substan-
tielle de ces mesures d’exception. Celles-ci ont débuté en 1975.
Ces pétitions s’accumulent devant le Sénat. Le conseiller juri-
dique du Sénat nous a laissé entendre que nous aurions peut-
étre une dizaine de cas supplémentaires.

M. R. L. du Plessis (Légiste et conseiller parlementaire):
Environ six de plus.

Le sénateur Asselin: De plus que ceux que nous étudions
présentement?

Le sénateur Leblanc: En plus des huit que nous étudions
présentement.

Le sénateur Asselin: Cela veut dire que pour cette année,
nous aurons étudié 14 requétes concernant les exceptions 4 la
loi générale. Cette question avait déja été soulevée, monsieur le
ministre. On a di y faire référence depuis 1975. Cette question
a été soulevée par le sénateur Flynn, le sénateur Neiman et par
moi-méme. Nous avions consenti a I’époque a adopter ces lois
d’exception, 4 la condition que le ministre ou le ministére de la
Justice puisse nous faire des suggestions ou nous proposer des
modifications 4 la loi générale, afin d’y inclure ces cas d’excep-
tion. Malheureusement, malgré I’engagement du ministre, qui
était en 1975 I’honorable Ron Basford, ce dernier avait a
I’époque écrit une lettre en réponse a une demande faite par le
leader du gouvernement au Sénat, le sénateur Perrault, nous
disant que d’ici quelque temps, le ministére de la Justice
s’apprétait a informer le Parlement des changements qui dev-
raient étre apportés a la loi générale. Cela n’a pas été fait. Jai
pas décidé cette année de ne pas voter aveuglément pour
I’adoption de ces lois d’exception. La raison en est que le minis-
tére de la Justice n’a pas daigné depuis 1975 nous donner une
directive, soit de soumettre des modifications ou des amende-
ments 4 la loi générale afin de donner la possibilité aux gens
qui veulent se prévaloir de ces exceptions d’étre inclus dans la
loi générale. Il faut considérer que ces requérants font des
dépenses considérables pour présenter des projets de loi privés

[Traduction]

Le président: Merci. Sénateur Asselin?

Le sénateur Asselin: Permettez-moi d’abord, madame la
présidente, de féliciter le ministre de sa décision de poser sa
candidature 4 la direction de son parti. Je connais le ministre
depuis de nombreuses années. Lorsque nous étions étudiants
nous avons passé deux mois et demi ensemble 4 Pontigny, en
France. C'est 1a ou il a appris 4 si bien parler le francais. Mal-
heureusement, monsieur le Ministre, je ne pourrai pas voter
pour vous parce que je ne serai pas invité 4 participer au con-
gres.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Ce n’est pas la raison pour
laquelle je suis occupé aujourd’hui; c’est plutét en raison d’une
réunion du cabinet qui a lieu en méme temps que la séance du
comité.

Senator Asselin: In other words, Mr. Minister, the Chair-
man of our Committee, Mrs Neiman, has given you a brief
explanation of the problem faced by the Committee. She has
described our situation to you. She has referred you to the
motion passed by the Senate as a whole, that is, that the Com-
mittee should carry out a comprehensive inquiry into these
exceptions. These began being presented in 1975 and the peti-
tions continue to pile up before the Senate. The Senate’s legal
counsel has informed us we might have perhaps a dozen addi-
tional cases.

Mr. R. L. du Plessis (Law clerk and parliamentary
counsel): Around six more.

Senator Asselin: In addition to the ones we’re considering at
the moment?

Senator Leblanc: In addition to the eight that we’re conside-
ring at the moment.

Senator Asselin: Which means that this year we will be con-
sidering 14 petitions for exceptions to the general law. This
issue was raised before, Mr. Minister. It must have been refer-
red to since 1975. The question was raised by Senator Flynn,
Senator Neiman and myself. We agreed at the time to pass
these exceptions, on condition that the Minister or the Depart-
ment of Justice could make us suggestions or propose to us
amendments in the general law so that it could be made to
include these exceptions. Unfortunately, despite a commitment
by the Minister of the day, it was the Honourable Ron Basford
in 1975—at the request of the Government Leader in the
Senate, Senator Perrault, Mr. Basford wrote a letter telling us
that the Department of Justice would shortly be getting ready
to inform Parliament what changes should be made in the
general law. This was never done. I have decided this year not
to agree to vote automatically for passage of these exceptions.
The reason is that since 1975 the Department of Justice has
not got around to providing us with a directive on submitting
changes or amendments to the general law that would give the
people who want to take advantage of these exceptions the
chance to come under the general law. It must be borne in
mind that these petitioners are spending a considerable
amount of money to present their private bills to Parliament.
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devant le Parlement. On aurait di avant aujourd’hui s’occuper
d’étudier la question en profondeur, pour que nous ayions une
directive précise.

Le ministre nous dit aujourd’hui que le Sénat est bien placé
pour étudier en profondeur, sur le plan juridique, social ou
médical les amendements qui devraient étre apporté 4 la loi
générale. Ce qui urge actuellement, c’est que nous sommes pla-
cés dans la situation ol nous allons étre obligés, avant que le
ministére de la Justice ait pris une décision, d’adopter ces
requétes, alors que nous ne sommes pas satisfaits du travail
accompli par le ministére de la Justice. Je ne vous blame pas,
monsieur le ministre, vous n’étiez pas la a cette époque. Par
contre, les hauts fonctionnaires du ministére de la Justice
auraient di prendre en considération la demande faite par le
ministre du temps pour étudier en profondeur cette question et
nous faire rapport. Cela n’a pas été fait.

Je suis prét a étudier la substance de ces amendements et
vous faire des recommandations. Pendant ce temps, les
requétes devant nous demeureront 4. Cela pourra prendre des
semaines et des semaines avant que nous nous penchions sur
chacun de ces cas en particulier et que nous adoptions ces pro-
jets de loi.

Vous voyez dans quelle situation nous sommes placés. Si une
recommandation était faite par le Sénat, 4 la suite d’'une étude,
aprés avoir entendu des experts en la matiére, est-ce que le
ministre sera prét 4 déposer une loi modificatrice, et si oui,
dans quels délais?

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Madame la présidente, 2 mon
avis, c’est un probléme non seulement technique mais il faut
aussi évaluer le degré d’acceptation d’un tel projet de loi par
I'ensemble de la société. Il serait trés important d’avoir non
seulement des experts comme témoins, mais aussi une audience
générale pour obtenir la réaction des Eglises, par exemple, des
leaders moraux de notre société, etc. C’est trés compliqué. Je
ne peux pas dire que je suivrais absolument les recommanda-
tions. Je suis disposé & étudier votre rapport s’il prend en con-
sidération toutes les positions de notre société.

Une chose m’intéresse vraiment, ce sont les critéres que le
Sénat a suivis au cours des années concernant ces situations.
Est-ce que ces projets de loi ont été considérés a la Chambre
des communes? Est-ce qu'ils ont été étudiés seulement au
Sénat? Est-ce votre habitude de toujours accepter ces
requétes? Est-ce que, de temps en temps, vous rejetez ces
requétes pour diverses raisons? Dans ces cas, nous devons
savoir quels sont les motifs que vous avez acceptés.

Senator Asselin: These petitioners have placed their petition
before the Senate of Canada and are relying on two precedents
which were set in 1975 and in 1978. It was on the basis of
those precedents that they decided to submit their cases before
Parliament, so they are in a difficult position.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: | appreciate the concerns that ani-
mate the petitioners, but you here are engaged in what is, in
part at least, a humanitarian task, but you are also the guard-
ians of social morality and it is in that sense that this has to be
looked at from a fairly broad point of view. We badly need not
just a technical study, which we can do ourselves in the
Department of Justice, but I think we need a public hearing

[Traduction)

The question should have been investigated thoroughly before
now, so that we would have a precise directive.

Today the Minister tells us that the Senate is in a good posi-
tion to consider in some depth the legal, social and medical
implications of amendments of this kind to the general law.
The urgency at the moment is that we are in a situation where
we are going to be obliged to pass these petitions before the
Department of Justice has reached a decision, when we are not
satisfied with the work done by the Department. I'm not blam-
ing you, Mr. Minister, you weren’t there at the time. On the
other hand, the senior officials at the Department of Justice
should have taken into consideration the request made by the
Minister of the day to investigate this matter thoroughly and
report to us. This was not done.

I am ready to consider the substance of these amendments
and to make recommendations to you. While this is being
done, the petitions before us will just be sitting there. It may
take weeks and weeks before we get to each case in particular
and pass these bills.

You see the situation we are in. If a recommendation were
made by the Senate after consideration, after hearing experts
in the field, would the Minister be ready to table an amending
bill and if so when?

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: Madam Chairman, in my view this
isn’t only a technical problem: we also have to assess the extent
to which society as a whole would accept such a bill. It would
be very important not only to have the views of expert witnes-
ses but also to hold public hearings to obtain the reaction of
the churches for example, of our society’s moral leaders, and
so on. It’s very complex. I can’t say that I would follow your
recommendations absolutely. I am prepared to study your
report if it looks into all the positions taken in our society.

One thing interest me particularly and that is the criteria
that the Senate has used through the years with respect to
these situations. Have these bills been considered in the House
of Commons? Have they only been considered in the Senate?
Do you make a practice of always accepting these petitions?
Do you reject them from time to time for various reasons? In
these cases we have to know what grounds you accepted.

Le sénateur Asselin: Ces requétes ont été présentées au
Sénat et reposent sur deux précédents qui remontent & 1975 et
a 1978. Les requérants se sont appuyés sur ces deux précédents
pour présenter leur cas au Parlement; ils sont donc dans une
situation difficile.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Je comprends les préoccupa-
tions des requérants, mais vous étes engagés ici, dans une cer-
taine mesure du moins, dans une tdche humanitaire, et vous
étes aussi les gardiens de la moralité sociale et c’est dans cette
optique qu’il faut entreprendre I'étude, soit d’un point de vue
assez vaste. Il n’importe pas seulement d’examiner les ques-
tions de procédure en la matiére, étude que nous pourrions



14-3-1984

Affaires juridiques et constitutionnelles 211

[Text]

which will engage the feelings of the Canadian people. We
need that more than we need technical studies. You can hold
hearings in various parts of the country, not just here, to get
the views of various people.

Senator Flynn: I would draw the attention of the minister to
the fact that they are relying on only two cases, one in 1975
and one in 1978.

The Chairman: There were two cases each time.

Senator Flynn: There may have been a third one which did
not require a bill.

The Chairman: That was in 1978, Senator Flynn. I believe
there were two cases in 1975. We have actually approved four.

Senator Asselin: The officials say that there were three.

Senator Flynn: Three of four, it does not amount to much
over a period of nine years. I am really surprised to hear the
minister tell us that his department has not gathered any data
on the reasons for continuing, for instance, the prohibition
period.

There are two classes of appeals here: An exception is
requested because there is consanguinity; and the other
regards cases of affinity.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: Yes.

In the case of affinity, it seems to me that the principle of
not imposing a prohibition has been accepted by Parliament
with the amendment to which you referred, which enabled a
man to marry his wife’s sister after the death of his wife, or
vice versa in the case of the male. In cases like that, only
affinity would be the problem.

In the cases we have before us where they are seeking
exemptions, it is not because of death; it is because of divorce.
In these instances, it seems to me that there is really no prob-
lem and that the department should be able to tell us, since we
adopted the laws of divorce that we now have, that there is no
problem in amending the general law to remove that prohibi-
tion in these affinity cases. First of all, it seems to me that the
minister should be able to tell us that.

With regard to consanguinity, of course it is a matter of reli-
gion but the prohibition was also based on the fact that it was
perhaps dangerous for the health of children born to these
marriages.

Senator Robichaud: Dangerous for the progeny.

Senator Flynn: Yes, and I understand that that may not now
be so and I am surprised that the department has no data on
that.

However, in coming to a conclusion, I would like to know, if
we were to pass a bill, moved by anyone in the Senate, to
remove the prohibitions in affinity cases—which would be logi-
cal, when you consider the amendment which has already been
passed—whether the government would see any problem there.

[Traduction]

faire nous-mémes au ministére de la Justice, mais plutdt de
connaitre I'opinion de la population canadienne par le biais
d’audiences publiques. Il serait bon de tenir des audiences dans
les diverses régions du pays pour recueillir les vues de divers
spécialistes.

Le sénateur Flynn: J’aimerais attirer I’attention du ministre
sur le fait que I'on s’appuie seulement sur deux cas, le premier
en 1975 et le deuxiéme en 1978.

Le président: Il s’agissait chaque fois de deux cas.

Le sénateur Flynn: Il y en a peut-étre eu un troisiéme qui
n’a pas nécessité la présentation d’un projet de loi.

Le président: C’était en 1978, Sénateur Flynn. Je crois qu'il
s’agissait de deux cas en 1975. En réalité, nous en avons
approuvé quatre.

Le sénateur Asselin: Selon les responsables il y en avait
trois.

Le sénateur Flynn: Trois ou quatre, il s’agit de trés peu de
cas au cours d’une période de neuf ans. Je suis trés étonné
d’entendre le ministre nous dire que son ministére n’a pas
recueilli de renseignements sur les raisons pour lesquelles, par
exemple, I'interdiction s’applique toujours.

11 s’agit de deux genres d’appels différents: dans le premier
cas, il y a requéte d’exception en raison du degré de consangui-
nité; et dans le deuxiéme, pour des motifs d’affinité.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Oui.

Dans les cas d’affinité, il me semble que le principe visant a
faire exception 4 I'interdiction a été accepté par le Parlement
par la modification a laquelle vous avez fait allusion, qui per-
met 4 un homme d’épouser la sceur de sa femme apreés le décés
de celle-ci, ou vice-versa. Dans les cas de ce genre, le seul pro-
bléme est I'affinité.

Dans les cas que nous avons devant nous, il y a requéte
d’exception, et il ne s’agit pas du décés, mais de divorce. Dans
ces circonstances, il me semble qu’il n’y a en réalité aucun pro-
bleme, et que le ministére devrait étre en mesure de nous dire,
étant donné que nous avons adopté la loi sur le divorce, qu’il
n'y a aucun probléme 4 modifier les régles générales de droit
visant 4 supprimer cette interdiction dans les cas d’affinité.
Donc, en premier lieu, il me semble que le ministre devrait étre
en mesure de nous le confirmer.

En ce qui concerne la consanguinité, il s’agit évidemment
d’une question de religion, mais I'interdiction s’appuyait aussi
sur le fait qu’il pouvait y avoir danger pour la santé des enfants
nés de ces mariages.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Danger pour les descendants.

Le sénateur Flynn: Oui, et je puis comprendre que ce n’est
peut-étre pas le cas maintenant, mais je suis surpris que le
ministére n’ait aucun renseignement 4 ce sujet.

Toutefois, en conclusion, j’aimerais savoir, si nous adoptions
un projet de loi, proposé par un sénateur, visant a supprimer
les interdictions dans les cas d’affinité—ce qui serait logique,
étant donné la modification qui a déja été adoptée—si le gou-
vernement y verrait des objections.
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Secondly, I would be surprised if the minister were to tell
me that he does not have information in his department con-
cerning the problem, or the origin of the evolution of prohibi-
tion based on consanguinity.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: Madame Chairman, | did not say
that we do not have information—in fact we have lots of it—in
the Department of Justice, but while we will certainly be pre-
pared to work with you if you undertake this step, what I am
really saying is that this is not primarily a technical problem
but a social problem. You are quite right in saying that affinity
does not raise the same genetic questions that consanguinity
does. However, according to experts, | understand that among
the original reasons for such bans were not just reasons of gen-
etics—about which not very much was known in those days—
but the consideration of family accord. It was thought that if it
were an open possibility that an individual could marry some-
one else in the family circle, that could give rise to even more
kinds of family problems than we presently have and that,
therefore, the rules against affinity are based on that concern,
and that is a social fear for which there may still be justifica-
tion. I want you to understand that I am not answering these
questions; I am merely airing them and I think it would be
important to have a great many views from more leaders in
society as to the status of these rules now.

Senator Flynn: But if we accept one case of affinity, say in
the case of Bill S-6, how can we, in all honesty, refuse Bill S-7,
S-8 or S-9? I do not see any difference in principle or in fact
between any one of these affinity cases—or indeed between the
consanguinity cases, and I am sure that the sponsor of the bill
would agree with me. I recognize that there are two groups
and there is a difference as between those groups, but if we
accept one case of affinity, we have to accept all of the others.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: Senator, that is a decision that you
as lawmakers must make and, inasmuch as the House of Com-
mons has accepted, up till now, your conclusions in the cases in
which you have acted, we in the House of Commons are pre-
pared in a general way to agree to it. Now I say that without
really examining the matter, but I was in fact asking myself
what criteria you used. Do you automatically accept all of the
cases which are presented to you? If you habitually grant all
petitions that you receive, then I think that that is a factor that
has to be taken into account, although there may be some peo-
ple who will argue that it is better to have a general rule
against it and to allow it by way of exception, than to give
more currency to it by taking it out of the law. Now I am
being very conservative in this respect.

Senator Flynn: Well I am not that conservative.
Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: We will reverse roles, for a change.

Senator Flynn: I think it is totally unfair because then peo-
ple are forced to have a private bill. You will remember that
that was the argument for changing the divorce law in order
that anyone who wanted a divorce would be able to get it in
other ways than having to come to Parliament and spend
$3,000, $4,000 or $5,000 in each case.

[Traduction)

En deuxiéme lieu, je serais étonné si le ministre me disait
que son ministére n’a pas de renseignements a cet égard,
notamment concernant les antécédents des interdictions dans
les cas de consanguinité.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Madame la présidente, je n’ai
pas dit que nous n’avions pas de renseignements, en fait, nous
en avons beaucoup au ministére de la Justice, mais méme si
nous sommes préts a travailler avec vous, si vous entreprenez
cette étude, il ne s’agit pas principalement d’une question de
procédure mais plutdt d’'un probléme social. Vous avez tout a
fait raison de dire que I’affinité ne souléve pas, comme la con-
sanguinité, de problémes génétiques. Toutefois, selon les spé-
cialistes, il semble que les raisons 4 I'origine de ces interdic-
tions n’avaient pas trait seulement a la génétique science qui
n’était pas trés développée a I’époque, mais a des considéra-
tions d’ordre familial. On était d’avis que s’il y avait remariage
avec un autre membre de la méme famille, cela pourrait don-
ner lieu a encore plus de problémes familiaux qu’il en existe
actuellement et par conséquent les régles contre I'affinité
s’appuyent sur cet aspect social qui pourrait peut-étre toujours
se justifier. Je voudrais que vous compreniez que je n’essaie
pas de trouver réponse a toutes ces questions, je ne fais que les
soulever et je suis d’avis qu’il importe d’obtenir 'opinion de
divers spécialistes en ce qui concerne le bien-fondé de ces
régles.

Le sénateur Flynn: Mais si nous acceptons un cas d’affinité,
disons comme dans le cas du projet de loi S-6, comment pou-
vons-nous, en toute honnéteté, rejeter les projets de loi S-7, S-8
ou S-9? Je ne vois pas de différence en principe ou, en fait,
entre tous ces cas d’affinité, ou entre ceux de consanguinité, et
je suis siir que le parrain du bill serait d’accord avec moi.
Jadmets qu’il y a deux catégories et qu’il existe une différence,
mais si nous approuvons un cas d’affinité, nous devons accepter
tous les autres.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Sénateur, c’est une décision
que vous devez prendre en tant que législateur et étant donné
que la Chambre des communes a accepté, jusqu’a maintenant,
vos conclusions dans les cas que vous avez étudiés, nous som-
mes toujours préts d’une fagon générale, a les accepter. Je dis
cela sans avoir réellement étudié la question, mais je me
demande sur quels critéres vous vous fondez. Acceptez-vous
automatiquement tous les cas qui vous sont soumis? Si vous
acceptez toutes les requétes que vous recevez, alors je suis
d’avis qu'’il faut tenir compte de ce fait, méme si certains peu-
vent prétendre qu’il vaut mieux avoir une régle générale et d’y
faire exception, que de faciliter les choses en adoptant une loi.
Je suis trés conservateur 4 cet égard.

Le sénateur Flynn: Je ne suis pas aussi conservateur.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Nous allons renverser les roles,
pour faire changement.

Le sénateur Flynn: Je suis d’avis que c’est tout a fait injuste
parce qu’alors les intéressés sont obligés de recourir a un projet
de loi d’intérét privé. Vous vous souvenez que c’est 'argument
qui a été invoqué pour modifier la loi du divorce afin que qui-
conque demande un divorce puisse I’obtenir d’une autre fagon
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Senator Robichaud: That was only from Quebec.

Senator Flynn: All right, but that was the case. Now it is the
same thing here. People would have to spend that kind of
money in each case, and the committee of the Senate is in no
position to differentiate between one affinity case and another.
I agree with you that it can differentiate between affinity and
consanguinity, but it seems to me, as I said before, the amend-
ment which we passed some years ago established the principle
on which we can give a general exemption to these affinity
cases.

With regard to consanguinity, I am not aware of what
science says today about the danger of marriage in that case.
Some people say that when you go outside the first degree, lat-
erally or otherwise, that the danger that was in the mind of the
original legislators no longer exists.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: Senator Flynn, if your view is the
general view in our society, certainly I am sure the government
will have no problem with it, but I think that is something we
should find out.

Senator Flynn: Yes, but | am really surprised that you can-
not help us more than you are doing at the moment.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: I want you to help me.

Senator Flynn: Mr. Minister, with over 500 lawyers in your
department, you must have gathered a great deal ‘of informa-
tion on this subject through the Law Reform Commission, et
cetera.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: What we want from you is primarily
a political jugdment as to—

Senator Flynn: Oh no, in the Senate we are removed from
political judgments.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: This is political with a very small
p”, senator.

““

The Chairman: Senator Flynn, if we proceed with this refer-
ence, and I hope that we do, I am sure that the department will
be able to furnish us with a great deal of data.

Senator Flynn: On the basis of what I know, Madame
Chairman, I think the minister could tell us almost immedi-
ately that, if we bring in an amendment—and I am sure that
his officials can prepare the bill to dispense with the prohibi-
tion in these affinity cases—it would meet with no objection
from the government and no objection in the Senate or in the
House of Commons. However, the other group, the consan-
guinity group is another matter.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: Well, Senator Flynn, I think this
depends on the kinds of response you receive from various
groups in society. You may well be speaking with the view that
most people would have today with respect to affinity cases.

[Traduction)

que d’avoir & se présenter devant le Parlement et 4 dépenser
quelques milliers de dollars a cet égard?

Le sénateur Robichaud: C’était seulement au Québec.

Le sénateur Flynn: Oui, mais c’était le cas. C’est le méme
probléme dans le cas qui nous occupe. 11 faut débourser de tel-
les sommes dans chaque cas, et le comité du Sénat n’est pas en
mesure de distinguer un cas d’affinité d’un autre. Je conviens
avec vous qu’il peut différencier I'affinité de la consanguinité
mais, comme je I'ai déja dit, il me semble que 'amendement
que nous avons adopté il y a quelques années établit le principe
selon lequel nous pouvons accorder une dispense générale pour
ces cas d’affinité.

Pour ce qui est de la consanguinité, jignore quelle est
aujourd’hui I’opinon du monde scientifique en ce qui concerne
le danger des mariages dans ce cas. Certains prétendent qu’au
dela du premier degré, latéralement ou autrement, les dangers
auxquels songeaient a Iorigine le législateur n’existent plus.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Sénateur Flynn, si votre fagon
de voir est celle de la société en général, je suis certain que le
gouvernement n'éprouvera pas de difficultés a ce sujet mais
nous devons & mon avis, nous renseigner a ce sujet.

Le sénateur Flynn: Oui, mais je suis surpris que vous ne
soyez pas en mesure de nous aider davantage que vous nous le
faites en ce moment.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Je désire que ce soit vous qui
m’aidiez.

Le sénateur Flynn: Monsieur le ministre, avec plus de 500
avocats dans votre ministére, vous devez avoir rassemblé beau-
coup de renseignements a ce sujet, par l'intermédiaire de la
Commission de réforme du droit, etc.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Nous attendons principale-
ment de vous que portiez un jugement politique sur . . .

Le sénateur Flynn: Oh non, au Sénat, nous sommes tenus a
I’écart des jugements politiques.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Sénateur, il s’agit de politique
avec un petit «p».

Le président: Sénateur Flynn, si nous poursuivons I'étude de
cette question, et j'espere que nous allons le faire, je suis cer-
tain que le ministére sera en mesure de nous fournir un grand
nombre de renseignements.

Le sénateur Flynn: Madame le président, d’aprés ce que je
sais, le ministre pourrait nous dire presque immédiatement que
si nous proposons un amendement—et je suis certain que ses
fonctionnaires peuvent préparer le projet de loi visant 4 dispen-
ser de linterdiction dans ces cas d’affinité cet amendement
soulévera aucune opposition de la part du gouvernement, du
Sénat ou de la Chambre des communes. Toutefois, en ce qui
concerne l'autre groupe, celui de la consanguinité, c’est une
autre affaire.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Sénateur Flynn, je pense que
cela dépend du genre de réaction des divers groupes de la
société. Votre opinion peut correspondre & celle de la plupart
des gens en ce qui concerne les cas d’affinité.
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Senator Flynn: If we pass these fourteen bills without any
reaction, then I don’t see why we would have a reaction to the
passage of a general law.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: Well, it is a good question as to what
number of instances will make a general rule.

Senator Flynn: You can imagine that it will multiply. There
is no doubt about that. Just ask Senator Leblanc. I am quite
sure that he knows.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: He is the expert on this, is he?

Senator Robichaud: Madame Chairman, it has been most
interesting to listen to what I might term a dialogue, although
I think it was a monologue for the most part.

Senator Flynn: You will have your turn.

Senator Robichaud: It was interesting, however, because we
have been discussing points of view which are of deep social
interest.

I might say, Mr. Minister, that your predecessor did not
have those answers when he was Minister of Justice.

Senator Flynn: He didn’t have time.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: We will give you lots of time,
Jacques.

Senator Robichaud: I am not playing politics in saying that.

Senator Flynn: If the previous minister had been there as
long as the present one, you would have had an answer.

Senator Robichaud: I did not interrupt you, when you were
speaking.

Senator Flynn: But I did not provoke you.

Senator Robichaud: This was not meant to be political. I
could say the same thing with respect to Mr. Chrétien or Mr.
Lalonde, also former Ministers of Justice. They were never
asked to provide these answers.

Senator Asselin: The questions were asked in 1975 and
1978.

Senator Robichaud: Yes, but the need was not seen as it is
today.

At the moment the Minister is being asked to provide a cer-
tain number of answers. He has told us that he has 500 law-
yers in his department who could provide some answers,
including medical answers and social answers. It seems to me
that at the moment the Senate could be of enormous service to
our society, if it were to make a study as the Minister has sug-
gested. We could find out what are the social ramifications,
the racial ramifications, the medical ramifications and whether
there are any financial ramifications.

I suggest that we could make a thorough study of that. We
have the instrument within the Senate to do so. We could cre-
ate an internal committee to study the matter, and I, for one,
would be willing to serve on such a committee, because I think

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Flynn: Si nous adoptons ces quatorze projets de
loi sans aucune réactions, je ne vois pas pourquoi il y en aurait
pour I'adoption d’une loi générale.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Il serait intéressant de savoir
combien il faut de cas pour établir une régle générale.

Le sénateur Flynn: Vous pouvez imaginer qu’ils se multiplie-
ront. Il n’y a aucun doute a ce sujet. Demandez au sénateur
Leblanc, je suis certain qu’il est au courant.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Est-il un expert dans ce
domaine? ’

Le sénateur Robichaud: Madame le Président, il a été trés
intéressant d’écouter ce que je pourrais appeler un dialogue,
bien qu’a mon avis il s’agisse surtout d’'un monologue.

Le sénateur Flynn: Vous pourrez vous exprimer a votre tour.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Cela a été néanmoins intéressant
parce que nous avons discuté d’opinions qui présentent beau-
coup d’intérét du point de vue social.

Monsieur le Ministre, je peux préciser que votre prédéces-
seur n’avait pas ces réponses lorsqu’il était ministre de la Jus-
tice.

Le sénateur Flynn: Il n’avait pas le temps.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Nous vous donnerons tout le
temps, Jacques.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Je ne fais pas de politicaillerie en
déclarant cela.

Le sénateur Flynn: Si I'ancien ministre avait passé autant de
temps ici que le ministre actuel, vous auriez eu une réponse.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Je ne vous ai pas interrompu lors-
que vous parliez.

Le sénateur Flynn: Mais je ne vous ai pas provoqué.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Cela n’était pas destiné a avoir un
caractére politique. Je pourrais dire la méme chose en ce qui
concerne M. Chrétien ou M. Lalonde ou les anciens ministres
de la Justice. On ne leur a jamais demandé de fournir ces
réponses.

Le sénateur Asselin: Les questions ont été posées en 1975 et
en 1978.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Oui, mais on n’en voyait pas la
nécessité comme aujourd’hui.

En ce moment, nous demandons au ministre de fournir un
certain nombre de réponses. Il nous a répondu que les 500 avo-
cats de son ministére seraient en mesure de fournir certaines
réponses, tant dans le domaine médical que social. Il me sem-
ble qu’en ce moment, le Sénat pourrait rendre un trés grand
service 4 la société en procédant a une étude, comme I'a pro-
posé le ministre. Nous pourrions établir quelles sont les ramifi-
cations sociales, raciales, médicales et, éventuellement, finan-
ciéres.

Je pense que nous pourrions procéder 4 une étude approfon-
die de cette question. Nous avons au Sénat le moyen de faire.
Nous pourrions créer un comité interne pour étudier la ques-
tion et je consentirai moi-méme a participer 4 un tel comité
parce que je pense que la question présente un intérét pour
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the matter is of interest to our society. In the meantime, how-
ever, we have the problem of a certain number of bills that
have been introduced.

What I am about to say is not a suggestion but only an idea
that might give rise to discussion. Is it necessarily unwise to
have legislation that would force people under these extreme
circumstances to have to come before Parliament for an
exemption? Is it necessarily bad legislation to have it in such a
way that it is difficult for them to obtain their exemptions?

Senator Flynn: It is very expensive.

Senator Robichaud: Yes, it is expensive, but it avoids an
abuse that might come in if we open the door too wide,
because, as Senator Flynn suggested a while ago, there would
be an influx of demands for these exemptions.

I think we should consider that aspect as well. However, in
the meantime, those people who have petitioned Parliament
should not be penalized, if they conform with the exceptions
that have been given tacit approval, if I may put it that way.

Senator Asselin: Are you suggesting that we should have a
subcommittee or an entirely new committee?

Senator Robichaud: A committee to study this matter, this
legislation, yes.

The Chairman: Senator Robichaud, the reference has
already been made to this committee so that it is before us
now.

Senator Robichaud: But only in this form.

Senator Leblanc: Senator, I moved the general resolution to
study the entire matter.

Voici le sujet de la motion:

Que le sujet du droit public général au Canada qui
interdit le mariage entre parents soit renvoyé au comité
permanent des affaires juridiques et constitutionnelles et
que I'on ordonne au comité de faire rapport au Sénat de
ses recommandations en vue de modifier le droit public
général pertinent si le comité juge que c’est nécessaire.

On a déja la référence adoptée par le Sénat; on peut donc
procéder sur ce sujet.

Senator Flynn: Madame Chairman, I have just one question.
Has the Minister found any difference between my monologue
and Senator Robichaud’s?

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: May I say just one thing in conclu-
sion, honourable senators. It is obviously for you to decide how
you will handle this question, but we would welcome any light
you can throw on it, particularly in consideration of what we
would find socially acceptable.

One of the principal internal problems we find in families is
incest, especially parents—usually fathers—taking advantage
of their children. I realize that that has not been put at issue
here, but I just want to make the point that there may be some
aspects that are close to that. There is no genetic aspect, but, if

[Traduction]

notre société. Pour I'instant, le probléme réside dans un certain
nombre de projets de loi qui ont été présentés.

Je ne vais pas faire une proposition, mais simplement expri-
mer une idée qui pourrait étre discutée. Est-il nécessairement
mal avisé d’avoir une loi qui forcerait les gens qui sont dans ces
situations extrémes 4 comparaitre devant le Parlement pour
obtenir une dispense? Une loi qui rendrait ’obtention de ces
dispenses difficile serait-elle nécessairement mauvaise?

Le sénateur Flynn: C’est extrémement onéreux.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Oui, c’est onéreux mais ¢a évite les
abus qui pourraient se produire si nous ouvrons trop grand la
porte car, comme I'a fait remarquer le sénateur Flynn il y a un
instant, il y aurait un afflux de demandes de dispense.

Je pense que nous devons également considérer cet aspect de
la question. Toutefois, dans lintervalle, les gens qui ont
adressé des requétes au Parlement ne devraient pas étre pénali-
sés si leur demande vise des exceptions qui ont regu une appro-
bation tacite, si je peux m’exprimer ainsi.

Le sénateur Asselin: Proposez-vous que nous formions un
sous-comité ou un comité entiérement nouveau?

Le sénateur Robichaud: Oui, un comité pour étudier cette
question, cette législation.

Le président: Sénateur Robichaud, cette question a déja
renvoyée au présent comité, de sorte que nous en sommes sai-
sis.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Mais uniquement sous cette forme.

Le sénateur Leblanc: Sénateur, j’ai proposé une résolution
générale en vue d’étudier I’ensemble de la question.

Here is the motion:

That the subject-matter of the public general law
throughout Canada with respect to prohibitions against
marriage between related persons be referred to the Stan-
ding Senate Committee on Legal and Constitutional
Affairs with instructions to the committee to report to this
House its recommendations for amendment to the public
general law in question if, in the opinion of the committee,
that law should be amended.

We already have this referral passed by the Senate, so we
can proceed with the matter.

Le sénateur Flynn: Madame le président, je voudrais poser
une seule question. Le ministre a-t-il trouvé une différence
entre mon monologue et celui du sénateur Robichaud?

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Honorables sénateurs, puis-je
formuler une remarque pour terminer. Clest 4 vous qu’il
incombe manifestement de décider de la fagon dont vous trai-
terez de cette question, mais toute contribution de votre part
qui apporterait des éclaircissements, notamment sur ce que
nous jugeons socialement acceptable, serait apprécié.

Un des principaux problémes internes que nous trouvons
dans les familles est I'inceste, en particuliers les cas ou les
parents—d’ordinaire le pére—abusent de leurs enfants. Je sais
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it is creating an analogous situation, that is another matter.
For instance, one of the classes is the wife’s grandaughter. |
suppose that is not an example of consanguinity, but is affinity.
That is the kind of situation where, obviously, if you remove
that prohibition you could create family situations in which
this could become more of a problem than before.

I can only say that I do not think the rules of affinity have
necessarily come to an end and that we should rest only with
consanguinity. I think you should look at the various affinity
situations, too, because you have to see this in the light of the
overall social problems that can arise.

Senator Asselin: Even if we do not study the motion but go
ahead and adopt bills which will be before the Senate, are you
ready to recommend the adoption of these bills in the House of
Commons?

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: I don’t know what the degrees of
affinity are that are involved. Assuming that I am the minister
responsible and assuming that the persons involved are adults
in the true sense, I don’t think I would raise any objection.
However, 1 don’t really know what kinds of categories you
have before you.

The Chairman: I think we have first to assume that we pass
them all here and that the minister has the benefit of our con-
sideration of these things.

Senator Leblanc: The sponsor in the House of Commons
will not be you.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: I appreciate that I could hold it up.

Senator Asselin: Yes, you could at the time.

The Chairman: If there are no further questions of the min-
ister I should like to thank him very warmly on your behalf for
taking the time to appear here today. We will certainly pro-
ceed with our study of the references that have been given to
us and I hope we will be in a position in a few months’ time to
make some recommendations to the government.

Hon. Mr. MacGuigan: Thank you. That would be very help-
ful.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, I would like to sug-
gest, if I can have a motion to this effect, that we continue this
meeting in camera in order to discuss our conversation with
the minister and decide the way we would like to proceed.

Senator Asselin: I so move.
The meeting continued in camera.

[Traduction)]

que cette question n’a pas été soulevée ici mais je désire sim-
plement faire remarquer qu’il peut y avoir certains rapproche-
ments. Il n’y a pas d’aspect génétique mais s’il s’ensuit une
situation analogue, c’est une autre affaire. Il y a par exemple le
cas de la petite-fille de I’épouse. Je suppose qu’il ne s’agit pas
d’un exemple de consanguinité mais d’affinité. C’est le genre
de situation o il est évident que si on supprime I'interdiction,
il pourrait en résulter des situations familiales ou le probléme
se trouverait aggraveé.

Je précise que je ne crois pas que nous en ayons nécessaire-
ment terminé avec les régles d’affinité et que nous devons uni-
quement nous occuper de la consanguinité. Je pense qu’il con-
vient d’examiner les diverses situations d’affinité parce qu’il est
nécessaire de les envisager dans le contexte des problémes
sociaux globaux qui peuvent surgir.

Le sénateur Asselin: Méme si nous n’étudions pas la motion
mais que nous allions de I’avant et adoptions les projets de loi
dont le Sénat sera saisi, étes-vous prét 4 recommander que ces
projets de loi soient adoptés 4 la Chambre des communes?

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: J'ignore quels sont les degrés
d’affinité en cause. En supposant que je sois le ministre respon-
sable et que les personnes concernées soient des adultes dans le
vrai sens du terme, je ne pense pas que je souléverais des objec-
tions. Toutefois, j'ignore quels sont les cas a I’étude.

Le président: Je crois qu’il faut d’abord supposer que tous
les projets seront adoptés au Sénat et que le ministre bénéfi-
ciera de notre étude de la question.

Le sénateur Leblanc: Vous ne serez pas le parrain des pro-
jets de loi 4 la Chambre des communes.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Non mais je crois que je pour-
rais intervenir.

Le sénateur Asselin: Oui, 4 ce moment-la.

Le président: Si personne n’a d’autres questions d poser au
ministre, je voudrais le remercier chaleureusement en votre
nom d’avoir pris le temps de comparaitre ici aujourd’hui. Nous
allons poursuivre notre étude des questions qui nous ont été
renvoyées et j’ai bon espoir que nous serons en mesure de faire
quelques recommandations au gouvernement dans quelques
mois.

L’honorable M. MacGuigan: Je vous remercie. Cela serait
trés utile.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, s’il m’est possible
d’obtenir une motion 4 cet effet, je propose que nous poursui-
vions cette réunion a huis clos afin de discuter de notre conver-
sation avec le ministre et de décider de la fagon dont nous sou-
haitons procéder.

Le sénateur Asselin: J’en fais la proposition.

La séance se poursuit 4 huis clos.
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE ORDRES DE RENVOI

Extracts from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate, Extraits des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 9 février
Thursday, February 9, 1984: 1984:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-2, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Gerald Harvey Fudge and
Audrey Marie Saunders”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-3, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Louis Philippe Nadeau and
Marie Thérése Rita Brulé”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Consititutional Affairs. '

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.”

“pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-4, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Ernest Hodel and Norma
Dora Laurie”.

After debate, and— b 1
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant a la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-2, intitulé «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en maticre de mariage dans
le cas de Gerald Harvey Fudge et Audrey Marie Saun-
ders».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, & la majo-
rité.

L ’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant 1'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant a la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-3, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Louis Philippe Nadeau et Marie Thérése Rita
Brulé».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant 4 la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-4, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en mati¢re de mariage dans
le cas d’Ernest Hodel et Norma Dora Laurie».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, a la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit



14 Legal and Constitutional Affairs

20-3-1984

referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-5, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Benjamin Josheph Andrade
and Heather Winnifred Andrade”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Extracts from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate,

Thursday, February 23, 1984:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Guay, P.C., that the Bill S-6, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Juan Andrade and Emilia
Rodriguez”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator van Roggen, that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Hnourable
Senator van Roggen, that the Bill S-7, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Henri Patry and Aldéa Béa
Pitt”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant d la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-5, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Benjamin Josheph Andrade et Heather Winni-
fred Andrade».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Extraits des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 23 février

1984:

«Suivant I’Ordre du jour, ’honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur Guay, C.P., que
le Projet de loi S-6, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le
cas de Juan Andrade et Emilia Rodriguez», soit lu la
deuxiéme fois.

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur van Roggen, que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant ’Ordre du jour, I'honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur van Roggen, que
le Projet de loi S-7, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le
cas de Henri Patry et Aldéa Béa Pitt», soit lu la deuxiéme
fois.

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxi¢me fois, & la majo-
rité.
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The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator van Roggen, that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.”

Extracts from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate,
Thursday, March 8, 1984:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Buckwold, that the Bill S-8, intituled: “An Act to
provide an exception from the public general law relating
to marriage in the case of Joseph Roland Réjean Daoust
and Marie Lise Sylvie Girard”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Robichaud, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Robichaud, P.C., that the Bill S-9, intituled: “An
Act to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Pearl Kim Lee and
Thomas Siegfried Wieland”, be read the second time.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Robichaud, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur van Roggen, que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»
Extraits des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 8 mars 1984:

«Suivant I’Ordre du jour, I’honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuy€ par I’honorable sénateur Buckwold, que
le Projet de loi S-8, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le
cas de Joseph Roland Réjean Daoust et Marie Lise Sylvie
Girardy, soit lu la deuxiéme fois.

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix est adoptée, 4 la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Robichaud, C.P., que le projet de loi
soit déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires
juridiques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I’'Ordre du jour, I’honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur Robichaud,
C.P., que le Projet de loi S-9, intitulé: «Loi faisant excep-
tion aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage
dans le cas de Pearl Kim Lee et Thomas Siegfried Wie-
landb», soit lu la deuxiéme fois.

La motion, mise aux voix est adoptée, 4 la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Robichaud, C.P., que le projet de loi
soit déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires
juridiques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Le greffier du Sénat
Charles A. Lussier
Clerk of the Senate
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[Text] [ Traduction)]

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs met this day at 5:10 p.m., the Chairman, Sena-
tor Neiman, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Asselin, Flynn, Neiman, Nurgitz and Stanbury. (5)

Other Senator present: The Honourable Senator Cools.

In attendance: Mr. R. L. du Plessis, Q.C., Law Clerk and
Parliamentary Counsel. Mr. Donald Macdonald, Research
Officer of the Library of Parliament.

Witness:
Mr. H. Albert Hubbard, Q.C., Acting Dean, Common Law
Section, University of Ottawa.
The Committee considered Bills S-2 to S-9, Acts to provide
exceptions from the public general law relating to marriage.
The witness made a statement and answered questions.
Ordered,—That a copy of this day’s Proceedings be for-
warded to the Department of Justice.

At 6:06 p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the
Chair.

ATTEST:

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des Affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles se réunit aujourd’hui 4 17 h 10 sous la prési-
dence de I’honorable sénateur Neiman (président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Asselin, Flynn, Neiman, Nurgitz et Stanbury. (5)

Autre sénateur présent: L’honorable sénateur Cools.

FEgalement présents: M. R. L. du Plessis, c.r., légiste et
conseiller parlementaire. M. Donald Macdonald, chargé de
recherches 4 la bibliothéque du Parlement.

Témoin:

M. H. Albert Hubbard, c.r., doyen intérimaire, section de

Common Law, Université d’Ottawa.

Le Comité examine les projets de loi S-2 a4 S-9, Lois faisant
exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage.

Le témoin fait une déclaration et répond aux questions.

11 est décidé—qu’un exemplaire des délibérations de ce jour
sera transmis au ministére de la Justice.

A 18 h 06, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’d nouvelle
convocation du président.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Paul Bélisle

Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Tuesday, March 20, 1984

[ Texte]

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitution-
al Affairs to which was referred Bill S-2, to provide an
exception from the public general law relating to marriage in
the case of Gerald Harvey Fudge and Audrey Marie Saunders,
Bill S-3, to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Louis Philippe Nadeau and
Marie Thérése Rita Brulé, Bill S-4, to provide an exception
from the public general law relating to marriage in the case of
Ernest Hodel and Norma Dora Laurie, Bill S-5, to provide an
exception from the public general law relating to marriage in
the case of Benjamin Josheph Andrade and Heather Winni-
fred Andrade, Bill S-6, to provide an exception from the public
general law relating to marriage in the case of Juan Andrade
and Emilia Rodriguez, Bill S-7, to provide an exception from
the public general law relating to marriage in the case of
Henry Patry and Aldéa Béa Pitt, Bill S-8, to provide an
exception from the public general law relating to marriage in
the case of Joseph Roland Réjean Daoust and Marie Lise
Sylvie Girard, and Bill S-9, to provide an exception from the
public general law relating to marriage in the case of Pearl
Kim Lee and Thomas Siegfried Wieland, met this day at 5
p.m. to give consideration to the bills.

Senator Joan Neiman (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, we are here to con-
sider certain bills, namely, Bills S-2 to S-9 which have been
referred to this committee from the Senate. As you are aware,
these marriage bills deal with private applications to Parlia-
ment to provide exceptions to the present law regarding pro-
hibited degrees of either consanguinity or affinity with respect
to marriage.

As you know, also referred to this committee is this whole
general topic. However, it as decided at the previous meeting
that we would deal with these specific bills.

Honourable senators have had an opportunity to look at an
article prepared by our witness today, Professor Albert Hub-
bard. This very long article has been circulated to all members
of the committee, but, regrettably, because of its length, it
could not be translated into French. However, one of our legal
counsel, Mr. Donald Macdonald, has prepared an excellent
précis of the article, which has been translated.

We are honoured to have with us today Professor Hubbard.
I have already indicated to him that once we have dealt with
these specific bills we will impose on his goodwill and invite
him back to deal with this general subject which has several
cloudy areas. At that time, we will be glad to have a more
detailed presentation from Professor Hubbard. However, I
know he wishes to make a few opening comments in respect of
our consideration of these bills. I will then ask for questions
from the floor.

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le mardi 20 mars 1984
[Traduction)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles, auquel ont été renvoyés le projet de loi S-2,
Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en matiere
de mariage dans le cas de Gerald Harvey Fudge et Audrey
Marie Saunders; le projet de loi S-3, Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de
Louis Philippe Nadeau et Marie Thérése Rita Brulé; le projet
de loi S-4, Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit
en matiére de mariage dans le cas d’Ernest Hodel et Norma
Dora Laurie; le projet de loi S-5, Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de
Benjamin Josheph Andrade et Heather Winnifred Andrade; le
projet de loi S-6, Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de
droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de Juan Andrade et
Emilia Rodriguez; le projet de loi S-7, Loi faisant exception
aux régles de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de Henri
Patry et Aldéa Béa Pitt; le projet de loi S-8, Loi faisant
exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage
dans le cas de Joseph Roland Réjean Daoust et Marie Lise
Sylvie Girard; et le projet de loi S-9, Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiere de mariage dans le cas de
Pearl Kim Lee et Thomas Siegfried Wieland, se réunit aujour-
d’hui 4 17 heures pour étudier lesdits projets de loi.

Le sénateur Joan Neiman (président) occupe le fauteuil.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, nous sommes ici pour
étudier certains projets de loi, soit les projets de loi S-2 4 S-9,
que le Sénat a déférés a notre comité. Comme vous le savez,
ces projets de loi sur le mariage concernent des demandes pré-
sentées au Parlement par des personnes qui veulent étre
exemptées de la loi actuelle concernant les degrés de consan-
guinité ou de parenté qui font obstacle au mariage.

Comme vous le savez, se trouve également déférée a notre
Comité la question générale de ces mariages. Cependant, nous
avons décidé lors de la derniére réunion que nous traiterions
pour I'instant de ces projets de loi.

Les honorables sénateurs ont eu I'occasion de lire un article
rédigé par notre témoin d’aujourd’hui, M. Albert Hubbard. Ce
trés long article a été distribué a tous les membres du Comité,
mais malheureusement, & cause de sa longueur, on n’a pu le
faire traduire en frangais. Toutefois, I'un de nos conseillers
juridiques, M. Donald Macdonald, en a fait un excellent
résumé, qui a été traduit.

Nous sommes honorés d’avoir avec nous aujourd’hui M.
Hubbard. Je lui ai déja signalé qu’une fois que nous aurions
traité de ces projets de loi dont nous sommes saisis, nous ferons
appel 4 sa bonne volonté et lui demanderons de revenir devant
nous pour que nous abordions la question générale de ces
mariages, dont plusieurs aspects ne sont pas trés clairs. A ce
moment-la, nous serons heureux d’entendre un exposé plus
détaillé de la part de M. Hubbard. Mais je sais qu'il tient a
faire quelques observations préliminaires concernant I’étude de
ces projets de loi. Nous passerons ensuite aux questions des
sénateurs.
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Professor Hubbard, we are glad to have you with us here
today and to hear what you have to say on this matter.

Mr. H. Albert Hubbard, Q.C., Acting Dean, Common Law
Section, University of Ottawa: Madam Chairman, it is an
honour for me to appear before this committee. | thought it
might be of some assistance to honourable senators if I were to
begin with some sort of general comment concerning these spe-
cific questions that I know are before the Senate.

I may begin by pointing out that the current crop of bills
that has generated renewed concern about the general law
with respect to the prohibited degrees of relationship as they
relate to marriage are obviously divided into two main catego-
ries: those that relate to affinity; and those that relate to
consanguinity.

As many honourable senators will have surmised, there
really do not appear to be any real problems involved with
respect to those relationships that arise out of affinity. How-
ever, | thought I might say a few words about that area so I
could then set it aside.

When | came here today, I did not anticipate that I might
be invited back at a later stage so that, if it seems to you,
Madam Chairman, that I am becoming a little too specific and
too detailed, please do not hesitate to interrupt me. I will be
most pleased to answer questions rather than to go on with
comments.

With respect to affinity, the present law is the common law
as modified by the federal statute, the Marriage Act of
Canada. What that law amounts to, simply, is that marriages
are prohibited between persons related within three degrees,
whether by affinity or by consanguinity. It means that persons
who are first cousins or more remotely related than that may
marry; others may not.

The Marriage Act abolished the prohibitions with respect to
affinity where the marriage that brought about the relation-
ship of affinity had been dissolved by the death of one of the
parties. Now a marriage is not invalid merely because the
woman is the sister of the deceased wife of the man or the
daughter of a sister or brother of the deceased wife of the man.
Similarly, it is not invalid if the man is a brother of the
deceased husband of the woman or a son of a brother or sister
of the deceased husband. These marriages are now permitted
following death. The question is whether they are permitted
following divorce. The statute does not expressly permit mar-
riages between persons related through affinity following
divorce. There is case law in Ontario, Alberta and British
Columbia that indicates that, by necessary implication, such
marriages are now permitted following divorce just as they are
following death.

We do not have judicial interpretations in all of the prov-
inces of Canada, nor do we have a decision of the Supreme
Court of Canada in this area, so that it is not absolutely cer-
tain whether all of the provinces would follow that jurispru-
dence as it exists in the three provinces I have named.

[Traduction)

M. Hubbard, nous sommes heureux que vous soyez parmi
nous aujourd’hui et cela nous fera plaisir de vous entendre a ce
sujet.

M. H. Albert Hubbard, c.r., doyen intérimaire, section de
Common Law, Université d’Ottawa: Madame le président,
c’est un honneur pour moi de comparaitre devant ce comité.
J’ai pensé qu’en commencgant par des observations générales
sur des questions dont le Sénat est saisi en ce moment, je pour-
rais étre utile aux honorables sénateurs.

Je pourrais peut-étre faire tout d’abord remarquer que la
série actuelle de ces projets de loi, qui ont ravivé les préoccupa-
tions quant au droit en la matiére, se divisent en deux principa-
les catégories: ceux qui concernent le degré de parenté par
alliance et ceux qui traitent du degré de parenté par consan-
guinité.

Comme de nombreux honorables sénateurs ’auront deviné,
le degré de parenté par alliance ne présente pas beaucoup de
difficultés. Toutefois, j’ai pensé dire quelques mots a ce sujet
pour en finir une fois pour toutes.

En venant ici aujourd’hui, je ne prévoyais pas qu'on m’invi-
terait 4 revenir plus tard, de sorte que s’il vous semble,
madame le président, que j'entre trop dans les détails, n’hésitez
pas 4 m’interrompre. Je serais trés heureux de répondre a des

questions plutdt que de m’éterniser en observations.

En ce qui concerne le degré de parenté par alliance, la loi
actuelle est celle de la common law telle qu’elle a été modifiée
par la Loi canadienne sur le mariage, qui interdit les unions
parents jusqu’au troisiéme degré, que ce soit par alliance ou
pas consanguinité. Des cousins germains ou parents encore
plus éloignés peuvent donc se marier; les autres, non.

La Loi sur le mariage a supprimé les interdictions concer-
nant le degré de parenté par alliance dans les cas ol le mariage
qui a créé le lien de parenté a été dissous suite au décés de 1'un
des conjoints. Aujourd’hui, un mariage n’est pas invalide du
seul fait que la femme est la sceur de la défunte épouse du
mari, ou la fille d’'une sceur ou d'un frére de la défunte. De
méme, il n’est pas invalide si le mari est le frére du défunt de
la femme ou un fils d’un frére ou d’une sceur du défunt. Ces
mariages sont maintenant permis aprés le décés de 'un des
conjoints. La question est de savoir §’ils sont autorisés aprés un
divorce. La loi ne permet pas expressément les mariages entre
les personnes ayant des liens d’affinité aprés le divorce.
D’aprés le droit jurisprudentiel de I'Ontario, de I’Alberta et de
la Colombie-Britannique, si les mariages sont permis aprés le
décés de 'un des conjoints, il s’ensuit nécessairement qu’ils le
sont aprés le divorce. A ce sujet, il n’y a pas d’interprétation
juridique dans toutes les provinces canadiennes ni de décision
de la Cour supréme du Canada, de sorte qu’il n’est pas
absolument certain que toutes les provinces suivraient la juris-
prudence qui existe dans les trois provinces que j'ai nommées.
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The result is that in three provinces, and probably in all of
the common law provinces, marriage licences are being issued
to persons following a dissolution of the marriage of one of
them even though they were related within these degrees which
used to be prohibited. Now such marriages are a common
occurrence. Consequently, it may not even be necessary to pass
the private bills in relation to these affinity cases because the
law appears already, as it has been judicially interpreted, to
permit these marriages. In other words, the present law does
not appear to have any prohibition that one would have to be
granted an exemption from.

Because there is some doubt about it, it would be in the best
interests of the whole community to clarify the matter through
general legislation by making it perfectly clear that such mar-
riages are not prohibited; otherwise, there is the risk that in
some other jurisdiction, for instance, Quebec where all four of
these bills come from, the courts might take a different view
from that of the courts in British Columbia. The law ought not
to be different in a federal matter in the different provinces.
Therefore, if for no other reason, the general law with respect
to the prohibitions arising out of affinity ought to be amended
so as to make it perfectly clear that these marriages are no
longer prohibited.

It is with respect to consanguinity that the real problem
arises. | think, perhaps, it is helpful to pause and to think for a
moment as to what were the purposes that led to the coming
into existence of these prohibitions, and to dwell for a moment
upon the efficiency of the present law in the attainment of
those particular purposes.

As best I can make out, having gone through a great deal of
literature in the area, the three principal reasons why these
prohibitions came into existence were the following: first of all,
at one time the families that existed were largely families
involving three and four generations—the grandparents, the
parents, the grandchildren, uncles, nieces, cousins. These
people lived in close proximity, if not, indeed, within the same
dwellings. There was a fear that there would be considerable
family disharmony, social strife, feuding and so on if there
were to be any illicit sexual relations between unmarried
persons in these family units, and, in order to discourage this
sort of thing, that they might marry at some future time was
something that it was decided to prohibit.

What made the prohibition particularly efficient was the
social opprobrivm that existed at the time. People would be
social outcasts if they lived together outside the bonds of
matrimony. The vast majority of people did not want to live
together in an unmarried state and the law prohibited them
from marrying. Therefore, they did not anticipate the possibil-
ity of living together by indulging in illicit sexual relations. So
the prohibition was efficient not because of the law itself but
because of the social mores of the times.

Another purpose that these prohibitions were meant to serve
was that of disseminating religion. It was felt by the early
Christian community that, if people were required to marry

[Traduction]

Ainsi, dans ces trois provinces, et probablement dans toutes
les provinces ou s’appliquent la common law, méme des per-
sonnes liées au troisiéme degré ou moins peuvent maintenant
se marier suite a la dissolution du mariage de I'une d’elles.
C’est maintenant monnaie courante dans ces provinces. Par
conséquent, il se peut qu’il ne soit méme pas nécessaire d’adop-
ter un projet loi privé concernant ces cas d’affinité, car la loi
telle qu’elle a toujours été interprétée semble déja permettre le
mariage. Autrement dit, la loi actuelle ne semble pas prévoir
d’interdiction pour lesquelles il faudrait une exemption.

Mais comme il existe des doutes a ce sujet, il serait dans
Pintérét de I’ensemble de la collectivité d’adopter des régles
générales de droit qui établissent clairement que de tels maria-
ges ne sont pas interdits. Autrement, il y a le risque que dans
d’autres provinces, par exemple au Québec, d’ol proviennent
quatre de ces projets de loi, les tribunaux statuent autrement
que ceux de la Colombie-Britannique. La loi relative 2 une
question fédérale ne doit pas différer dans les diverses provin-
ces. Si ce n'est pour d’autres raisons, les régles générales de
droit concernant les interdictions devraient donc étre modifices
de maniére 4 établir clairement que ces mariages ne sont plus
interdits.

C’est dans la consanguinité que semble résider le vrai pro-
bléme. 1l serait peut-étre utile de s’arréter un moment pour
réfléchir 4 ce qu'étaient les objectifs qui ont conduit a ces
interdictions et pour traiter de I'efficacité des lois actuelles par
rapport & ces objectifs.

Ayant lu de nombreux documents a ce sujet, je dirais que les
trois principales raisons pour lesquelles ces interdictions ont été
prévues sont les suivantes: premiérement, les familles d’alors
g’étendaient sur trois ou quatre générations. Il s’agissait des
grands-parents, des parents, des petits-enfants et des oncles,
des niéces et des cousins. Ces personnes vivaient trés rappro-
chées, sinon dans la méme maison. On s’inquiétait des dissen-
sions familiales et sociales qui pourraient résulter de relations
sexuelles illicites entre personnes non mariées; pour décourager
ce genre de choses, on a donc décidé d’empécher de tels maria-
ges.

Ce fut particulirement efficace, car de telles relations
étaient une honte sociale a cette époque. Ceux qui vivaient
ensemble, sans étre unis par les liens du mariage, étaient ban-
nis de la société, de sorte que la plupart d’entre eux refusaient
de vivre ensemble sans étre mariés. D’autre part, la loi leur
défendant de se marier, ils n’entrevoyaient donc pas la possibi-
lité de vivre ensemble et d’avoir des relations sexuelles illicites.
De sorte que lefficacité de la mesure ne provenait pas de la loi
elle-méme mais des us et coutumes du temps.

Ces interdictions visaient en outre d répandre la religion.
Lorsque la chrétienté a ses débuts imposa ces interdictions qui
obligeait les gens a se marier en dehors de ce cercle étroit, elle



3450

Legal and Constitutional Affairs

20-3-1984

[Text]

outside these close relationships, it would cause them to go out
further into the community, meet people who were not Chris-
tians, and spread the faith. Now, in a secular society, that is no
longer a valid purpose.

Just to underscore that that was really an important pur-
pose, it might be worth indicating to honourable senators that,
at one time, the Christian church prohibited marriages within
seven degrees. The extent of this can be appreciated by the fact
that first cousins are related in the fourth degree. Then, for a
period of time, the Christian church counted the degrees
according to the method of the German law, under which
seven degrees was the equivalent of what we would now call 14
degrees. All of this had, as one of its primary objectives, to
spread religion. As I say, this is simply not a purpose that the
modern, secular society can seek to promote.

The third purpose is that there was a fear of eugenic
problems—that children might be born defective. Again, the
law at that time was effective, to a great extent, because
persons who could not marry would not generally live together
outside the bonds of matrimony. Today, the biggest danger that
we face in family law is that marriage itself might become some-
thing that most people in society consider to be irrelevant. Many
people today choose to live outside the bonds of matrimony,
and the law, as it presently exists, does not do anything to
prevent the birth of defective children. All it does is prevent
children born of persons who marriages are prohibited from
being legitimate. If we truly wanted a legal system that would
prevent eugenic problems, then what we would have to do, I
would suggest to you, is to make it a crime for these people to
have sexual relations.

The Criminal Code makes it a crime—the crime of incest—
for a brother and sister or for persons in the direct lineal line in
consanguinity, such as father-daughter, mother-son to have
sexual relations. The Criminal Code does not make it a crime
for an uncle and niece or for an aunt and nephew to have sex-
ual relations. When you look at all of that and when you con-
sider what exists in other societies, it would seem to me that
our law is quite archaic and really ought to be amended.

The Jewish people, for instance, have never prohibited,
under their law, an uncle from marrying his niece. They have
prohibited an aunt from marrying her nephew, not because of
any of the matters that we have discussed, but because of a
separate matter altogether. Under the Jewish system, a hus-
band had authority over his wife and older generations had
authority over younger generations. Therefore, an aunt had
authority over her niece. If an uncle married his niece, it would
not be in any way jeopardizing this system of authority. He
would be reinforcing the authority, as husband, that he already
had as uncle. But if an aunt married her nephew, there would
be a conflict of the two lines of authority. That is the only rea-
son why, in Jewish law, there is a prohibition against an aunt
marrying a nephew.

In the law of the Catholic Church, although the general rule
was and is that an uncle cannot marry a niece nor an aunt
marry a nephew, that chuch provides for dispensations. The

[Traduction]

croyait vraiment les contraindre a s’insérer dans d’autres
milieux ou ils rencontraient des non chrétiens qu'ils converti-
raient a leur foi. Il va sans dire que cette intention n’avait
aucune raison d’étre dans notre société laicisée.

A seule fin de souligner que cet objectif était effectivement
important, il convient de signaler aux honorables sénateurs
qu’il fut un temps ou I'Eglise chrétienne défendait les mariages
entre parents au septiéme degré. Les cousins germains sont
parents au 4¢ degré. Puis pendant un certain temps on a calculé
les degrés de parenté suivant la méthode preserite dans le droit
allemand, ou les 7 degrés étaient pour nous I’équivalent de 14
degrés. Tout cela avait pour but premier de propager la foi.
Mais comme je I’ai dit tantdt, ce n’est pas la un objectif que
chercherait 4 atteindre notre société laicisée aujourd’hui.

Le troisiéme objectif avait pour origine la crainte des consé-
quences eugéniques—c’est-a-dire la naissance d’enfants congé-
nitalement malformés. La encore, la loi était efficace parce
que, en général, ceux qui ne pouvaient pas se marier ne pou-
vaient pas, non plus, vivre ensemble hors du mariage. Le plus
grand danger que court aujourd’hui le droit familial c’est que
le mariage a lui-méme perdu toute importance. Les couples,
aujourd’hui, décident de vivre ensemble sans se marier et la loi,
dans la forme actuelle, ne fait rien pour prévenir la naissance
d’enfants atteints de malformation congénitales. Elle décréte
tout simplement illégitimes les enfants nés hors du mariage. Si
nous voulons des lois qui régleraient ces questions d’eugénisme,
nous n’avons qu’a rendre délictueuses les relations sexuelles de
ces personnes.

Le Code criminel qualifie d’incestueuses les relations sexuel-
les entre le frére et la sceur ou entre personnes de consangui-
nité directe, comme le pére et la fille, la mére et le fils. Le
Code ne dit pas que c’est un crime pour I'oncle et la niéce, pour
la tante et le neveu, d’avoir des relations sexuelles. Tout bien
considéré et voyant ce qui se passe dans d’autres sociétés, nos
lois me semblent archaiques et je trouve que leur refonte
s’impose réellement.

La loi judaique, par exemple, n’a jamais défendu, a I'oncle
d’épouser sa niéce. Mais elle défend 4 la tante d’épouser son
neveu, non pas a cause des raisons que nous avons exposées
jusqu’ici, mais pour un tout autre motif. Dans le systéme juif,
la loi conférait 4 ’époux I'autorité sur son épouse et aux géné-
rations plus anciennes, 'autorité sur les plus jeunes. La tante
avait donc autorité sur sa niéce. Si 'oncle épousait sa niéce, il
n’allait pas a I’encontre du principe d’autorité. Il le renforgait
au contraire par 'autorité qu’il posséde déja comme oncle et
maintenant comme époux. Mais la tante qui épousait son
neveu, entrait en conflit avec deux sources d’autorité. C’est
uniquement pour cela que la loi juive interdit a la tante d’épou-
ser son neveu.

Dans le droit canon de I’Eglise catholique, bien que la régle
générale ait été et demeure que I'oncle ne saurait épouser sa
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present law of Canada is a law that actually restricts the reli-
gious freedom of Jewish people and of Catholic people who get
dispensations.

There are, therefore, many reasons why the general law
ought to be amended. It may be that I could save a further dis-
cussion of those for a later date. I would sincerely hope that
this committee would eventually be reporting back to the Sen-
ate to the effect that the general law ought to be amended.
Honourable senators would no doubt want to examine other
witnesses and prepare some sort of a report detailing the
amendments, but the difficulty that I think you face—at least,
it seems to me that this is your dilemma—is that all of this has
originated because of eight private bills that have come before
the Senate, and some of these bills are impressed with a great
sense of urgency. It would seem to be that, if it were the view
of this committee that the general law ought to be amended in
some way, you could proceed, without any real qualms of con-
science, to pass the eight private bills knowing that the general
law is going to be amended or is likely to be amended. At least
the two things would be consonant one with the other.

What I would find to be an untenable position would be if,
on the one hand, it were felt that the general law ought not to
be amended so as to permit an uncle to marry a niece and an
aunt to marry a nephew, yet, on the other hand, you would
nevertheless pass the four bills that deal with consanguinity
that have come before you. It seems to me that the only way
that you can pass those bills is to form an intention—a general
sort of intention—to amend the general law. In exactly what
way would remain to be seen. .

I do not know whether I can usefully say anything further of
a general nature at this time, Madam Chairman, but I would
be delighted to answer such questions as the members would
like to put to me.

Senator Nurgitz: The third reason that the witness has cited
for these antiquated rules was that of fear of eugenic problems.
I am sure that many of us have been walking around—at least
I certainly have—with some notion, whether it be accurate or
not, that these unions do have some eugenic problems attached
to them. Is there any sort of scientific basis for that fear?

Professor Hubbard: Well, I have talked to biologists about
this general matter, and I would expect that this committee
would want to do the same. From them I ascertained that the
closer persons are related by consanguinity, the greater the
chances of their having eugenic problems. There is no doubt
about that. However, the risk factor in the uncle-niece, aunt-
nephew relationships is so slight statistically that it ought not to
be an impediment. In fact, there are many people who are not
related whose medical problems would result in greater dif-
ficulties than those who are related. We have not adopted a
system of eugenic law that would say to people who are not
related “You cannot get married until you go to see a doctor
and he testifies that you would not have any defective
children”.

Le sénateur Asselin: Madame la présidente, je tiens tout
d’abord a remercier le professeur d’étre venu nous rencontrer.

[Traduction)]

niéce pas plus que la tante, son neveu, 1'église prévoit des dis-
penses. La Loi actuelle du Canada impose, de fait, des restric-
tions 4 la liberté religieuse des Juifs et des Catholiques qui
obtiennent des dispenses.

1l 'y a donc beaucoup de raisons, dont je parlerai plus tard,
qui justifient de modifier les régles générales de droit en
matiére de mariage, dont j'espére sincérement, que le Comité
recommandera la refonte au Sénat. Les honorables sénateurs
interrogeront d’autres témoins, puis rédigeront un document
recommandant les modifications qui s’imposent, mais je crois
que la difficulté qu’ils ont & surmonter—c’est du moins ainsi
que je le vois—c'est que la situation actuelle résulte de huit
projets de loi privés qui ont été déposés au Sénat et dont cer-
tains présentent un caractére d’urgence. Si le Comité estime
que les régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage doivent
étre quelque peu modifiées, il peut, sans aucune hésitation,
adopter ces huit projets de loi privés, sachant que la loi géné-
rale sera trés probablement refondue. Ce geste serait parfaite-
ment justifiable.

Mais je trouverais la situation intenable si, d’une part on
jugeait inopportun de modifier les dispositions interdisant a
I'oncle d’épouser sa niéce et a la tante, son neveu, et que,
d’autre part, on adoptait les quatre projets de loi relatifs a la
consanguinité. La seule maniére d’adopter ces projets de loi
est, selon moi, de susciter la volonté de modifier les régles
générales de droit en matiére de mariage. La facon de procéder
resterait, bien sir, a déterminer.

Je n’ai pas, pour I'instant, d’autres remarques utiles 4 for-
muler, madame le président, mais je répondrai volontiers aux
questions des membres du Comité.

Le sénateur Nurgitz: La troisitme raison que le témoin a
donnée pour justifier ces régles archaiques est la crainte des
complications eugéniques. Je suis certain que nous nourissons
tous—du moins il en est ainsi pour moi—une certaine crainte,
juste ou erronnée, que ces unions n’entrafnent des complica-
tions eugéniques. Cette crainte est-elle scientifiquement fon-
dée?

M. Hubbard: J'ai causé a ce sujet avec des biologistes et je
suppose que les membres du Comité voudront faire de méme.
Ils m’ont appris que la probabilité des complications eugéni-
ques augmente avec le degré de consanguinité. C'est un fait
établi. Toutefois, le risque au niveau de 'oncle, de la niéce, de
la tante et du neveu est statistiquement si minime qu’il ne
devrait pas constituer un empéchement. De fait, il y a des gens,
liés beaucoup moins étroitement, qui éprouvent bien plus de
difficultés qu’eux et qu’un médecin aurait pu prévenir par un
examen attentif et une prise de sang. Nous n’avons pas encore
adopté un systéme de loi qui, indépendamment de toute con-
sanguinité, interdirait aux gens, d’attendre pour se marier que
le médecin leur assure que leurs enfants ne seront pas atteints
de malformations.

Senator Asselin: Madam Chairman, first of all, I would like
to thank Professor Hubbard for agreeing to appear before this
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En fin de semaine, je me suis permis d’avoir quelques moments
de loisir. J’ai lu la revue de droit de I'université McGill sur les
exemptions au mariage. C’est un travail qui m’a beaucoup plu,
méme s’il est d’approche difficile. Je dois vous féliciter d’avoir
eu le courage de plonger dans un ouvrage comportant des diffi-
cultés juridiques aussi importantes. Ces difficultés juridiques
nous ont amenés, en 1975 et 1978, 4 adopter des projets de loi
privés. En raison du common law, cela a peut-étre créé un pré-
cédent.

Aujourd’hui, nous faisons face 4 des requérants qui nous
présentent des projets de loi privés et qui désirent obtenir le
méme traitement. Nous ne voulons pas jouer les durs et leur
dire qu’ils n’ont pas le droit de profiter des mémes exemptions
déja accordées en 1975 et 1978. Si nous avons insisté et que
nous sommes devant ce comité avec ces projets de loi,—vous
étes ici pour nous éclairer,—c’est justement parce qu’en 1975
et 1978, le ministére de la Justice nous avait dit qu’il étudierait
les possibilités d’amender la loi générale.

Depuis ce temps, le ministre de la Justice, M. MacGuigan,
est venu nous rencontrer. Nous n’avons pu obtenir du ministre
I'assurance que son ministére était prét a déposer une loi qui
résolverait les difficultés des requérants. Les hauts fonction-
naires du ministére de la Justice nous ont offert d’étudier la
question. Possiblement, ils feront des recommandations au
ministére de la Justice. En fait, on nous dit: Vous étudierez le
probléme et vous soumettrez vos recommandations au minis-
tére; nous regarderons si vos recommandations ont du bons
sens et nous agirons en conséquence, a savoir si nous conser-
vons la loi actuelle ou que nous I'amendons. Je dois ajouter que
non seulement dans I’esprit du ministre, mais aussi dans
’esprit de certains secteurs de la population, il existe des hési-
tations 4 modifier la loi générale, pour des raisons sociales,
religieuses, etc.

Lorsque nous parcourons votre travail sur le sujet, vous
semblez dire que 'on devrait amender facilement la loi géné-
rale, car il est anachronique de se butter a étudier ces exemp-
tions qu’on nous demande d’approuver par une législation.

Il me semble que cela n’a pas été aussi facile en Australie
lorsqu’ils ont amendé la loi générale. Pourriez-vous nous en
parler?

M. Hubbard: De la situation en Australie?

Le sénateur Asselin: Oui, et quelle est la comparaison avec
la loi canadienne? Quelles sont les étapes qui ont été suvies
pour amender la loi générale concernant ces exemptions?

M. Hubbard: Vous voulez que je réponde a cette question
spécifiquement?

Le sénateur Asselin: Oui.
M. Hubbard: Je vais répondre en anglais.
Le sénateur Asselin: Ne vous génez pas.

M. Hubbard: Comme vous pouvez le constater maintenant,
mon frangais n’est pas assez précis.

[Traduction)

Committee. During one of my spare moments last weekend, |
read the McGill University article on exemptions to the mar-
riage law. | found it very interesting, even though the subject
matter is quite complex. I must congratulate you for having
the courage to tackle a subject with such considerable legal
implications. These legal problems led us to pass these private
bills in 1975 and 1978. Because of the Common Law, perhaps
this created a precedent.

Today, we have before us for consideration private bills sub-
mitted by petitioners who want the same treatment. We do not
want to play the tough guys here and tell these people that
they are not entitled to the same exemptions granted in 1975
and 1978. If we are still grappling with this issue and if we
have asked you here to shed some light on the situation, it is
because the Minister of Justice told us in 1975 and in 1978
that he would consider the possibility of amending the general
law.

Since then, the Committee has met with the Minister of Jus-
tice, Mr. MacGuigan. We were unable to obtain the Minister’s
assurances that his department was prepared to table a bill
that would resolve the problems of the petitioners. Senior Jus-
tice Department officials offered to study the question. Quite
possibly, they will make recommendations to the Justice
Department. In fact, what they want is for the Committee to
study the problem and submit its recommendations to the
department, which will then decide whether or not the recom-
mendations are practical and act accordingly. They will either
decide to maintain the status quo or to amend the legislation. |
must say that both the Minsiter and many others have some
reservations about amending the general law, whether it be for
social, religious or other reasons.

In your article, you appear to say that it should be relatively
easy to amend the general law, since it is anachronistic to con-
sider these exemptions before amending the legislation.

It was my understanding that it was not so easy to amend
the general law in Australia. Could you tell us what happened
there?

Mr. Hubbard: In Australia?

Senator Asselin: Yes, and tell us how the situation there
compares to the Canadian legislation? What procedure was
followed to amend the general law to provide for these exemp-
tions?

Mr. Hubbard: You want me to answer this question specifi-
cally?

Senator Asselin: Yes, if you could.
Mr. Hubbard: Then, | will answer in English.
Senator Asselin: By all means, please do.

Mr. Hubbard: As you can see, my French is not all that
good.
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Le sénateur Asselin: 11 y a des mots qui sont aussi difficiles
pour moi de prononcer en anglais, en particulier ce qui con-
cerne le «eugenic» ainsi que d’autres mots. Vous pouvez tres
bien répondre en anglais.

Professor Hubbard: The law in Australia, prior to recent
amendments, was essentially the same as that in Canada. They
inherited the same common law. At one point in their his-
tory—not that long ago—they had a separate little develop-
ment, because for a time they got around the problem now fac-
ing the Canadian Parliament, by enacting a system of
dispensation not unlike the system actually found in the canon
law of the Roman Catholic Church. They retained the general
law, which was the same as we have now, but they would allow
persons to apply to the court for a dispensation from the
application of the general law.

Senator-Asselin: Application to the court?

Professor Hubbard: Yes, to the court. The courts, having
been seized with the same sort of problem that the Canadian
Senate is faced with today, began to realize that there was no
basis for drawing any distinction between any of the cases that
came before them and the general situation of everyone else in
society. The result was that it was decided that they really
ought to amend the general law itself. The matter then went to
Parliament. It was felt that there might possibly be some
difficulties there, but it is my understanding of the situation
that it went through the Parliament of Australia very rapidly.
There was little comment and it had very little impact on
society. They did not have groups of people rushing up and
protesting. It went through with very little public notice and
with no great fanfare. What was done was exactly what I am
now suggesting, namely, to make it clear that there are no
prohibitions arising out of affinity and that the prohibitions
that arise out of consanguinity do not extend to the third
degree collateral, which is uncle-niece and aunt-nephew.

Le sénateur Asselin: La loi générale ne défend pas a un cou-
ple, que ce soient un oncle et une niéce, de demeurer ensemble
et d’avoir des enfants. Ce que la loi défend c’est la légitimation
de ses enfants.

M. Hubbard: C’est ¢a.

Le sénateur Asselin: Le point est 1a. Pour un comité comme
le notre, ol certains membres sont avocats et d’autres repré-
sentent d’autres professions, pensez-vous qu’il est un peu diffic-
ile pour nous, lorsque nous sommes en face de cas d’eugénie,
des cas médicaux ou de consanguinité, de prendre la respon-
sabilité de dire oui quand méme et donner une approbation a
ce mariage sans avoir une expertise? Pensez-vous qu’il serait
sage de notre part de ne pas exiger d’expertise?

M. Hubbard: Dans un cas spécifique?

Le sénateur Asselin: Oui.

Professor Hubbard: No, I do not really see that as being an
impediment to amending the general law. If you are trying to
find specific differences between actual cases so that you can

treat them differently, you could, of course, say “Let us find
out which cases, in fact, are such that there is a chance of

[Traduction]

Senator Asselin: 1 too have some problems pronouncing cer-
tain words in English, especially where “eugenics” are concer-
ned. By all means, you may answer the question in English.

M. Hubbard: La loi australienne, avant les modifications
qu’on lui a apporté récemment, était essentiellement la méme
qu’au Canada. Ce pays avait hérité du méme droit commun.
Mais 4 un point de leur histoire—il n’y a pas tellement long-
temps de cela—ils ont apporté a leur loi une légére modifica-
tion. Car il leur a fallu pendant un bon moment contourner les
difficultes avec lesquelles le Parlement canadien est présente-
ment aux prises, en instaurant un systéme de dispenses appa-
renté 4 celui du droit Canon de I’Eglise catholique romaine. Ils
ont conservé les régles générales de droit en matieré de
mariage, qui sont celles-1a méme que nous avons présentement,
mais ils ont autorisé les gens a s’adresser au tribunal pour €tre
dispensé de I’application de ces régles générales.

Le sénateur Asselin: Une demande au tribunal?

M. Hubbard: Oui, au tribunal. Le tribunal ayant eu & régler
le méme probléme que celui auquel fait face actuellement le
Sénat canadien, il a commencé a se rendre compte qu'’il n’exis-
tait aucune raison suffisante pour faire une distinction entre
les divers cas qui lui étaient soumis et la situation général de la
société. En conséquence, il a donc décidé de modifier les régles
générales elles-mémes. La question a été référée au Parlement.
On a prévu quelques difficultés, mais je crois que le Parlement
d’Australie a adopté rapidement les modifications. Le débat a
été d’autant plus limité qu'on redoutait peu de répercussions
sociales. Les gens ne sont pas acourus pour protester. Les
modifications ont été adoptées avec peu d’avis au public et
encore moins de bruit. Bref, ’Australie a fait exactement ce
que je suggére, en établissant clairement qu’il n’existe aucune
interdiction découlant de I'affinité et que les interdictions qui
proviennent de la consanguinité ne s’étendent pas au troisiéme
degré de parenté collatérale, qui est celui de I'oncle et de la
niéce, de la tante et du neveu.

Senator Asselin: The general law does not prohibit a couple,
even an uncle and a niece, from living together and having
children. What it does prohibit is the legitimation of their chil-
dren.

Mr. Hubbard: That’s right.

Senator Asselin: The point is this. Do you think that a Com-
mittee like this one, where some members are lawyers and
others represent other professions—do you think it may be
somewhat difficult for us, when we're faced with eugenic or
medical issues or cases of consanguinity, to take on the respon-
sibility of saying Yes nonetheless and giving our approval to a
marriage without having an expert opinion? Do you think it
would be wise on our part not to require an expert opinion?

Mr. Hubbard: In a specific case?

Senator Asselin: Yes.

M. Hubbard: N_on, je ne crois vraiment pas que cela puisse
empécher de rpodnﬁer les régles générales de droit en matiére
de mariage. Si vous essayez de découvrir des différences préci-

ses entre des cas véritables afin de pouvoir les traiter tous de
facon différente, vous pouvez toujours chercher les cas de
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defective children being born and which cases are such that
there is no such chance”. You could then say “Well, we will
grant permission to those couples to marry where there is no
chance of children being defective”, such as in Bill S-3, which
concerns a very old couple in their eighties—and there is
another bill where one of the parties to the application has
undergone a hysterectomy, or something of that sort. You
could say “Well, we will grant it there but not in the other
cases”. What is the result of all of that? What you are saying
to these people is, ““You cannot get married.” You are not say-
ing, “You cannot produce defective children.” In the case of
the individuals involved in Bill S-4, they already have a nine
year old child. Are you going to say to them, “We will allow
you to get married and grant you the exemption because you
have a baby.” Are you then inviting other persons to have
babies before they come to Parliament? Are you saying that a
precedent for such a private bill is to get pregnant? Or are you
going to say, “No, whether or not you have kids you cannot
have an exemption, you cannot get married.” Are you going to
say, “If you have a child and the child is defective you cannot
get married, but if the child is normal and you want it to be
legitimate, you can get married”?

We are beginning to get into distinctions that ought not play
a role in formulating what is the general law of the land. In
fact, my information is—and you may want to check it with
persons who have the background—that, statistically, the
chances of defective children being born from the union of an
uncle and niece or an aunt and nephew are not all that great.
Some may be born of such unions, but there will be defective
children born in any event in our society from all sorts of
unions and some of those unions might be unions outside the
bonds of matrimony between uncles and nieces and aunts and
nephews. In many of these instances, such as Jewish people,
Catholics who have a dispensation, other persons whose reli-
gion permits it, and people who do not have a religion, all they
are saying is that they want to be married. And we are saying
that they cannot have that blessing of society.

It seems to me that these are not the kinds of differences
that we should be looking to when we are trying to determine
what the general law should be. I do not see why Parliament
should be passing private acts of exemption for cases which
they would not countenance if they were looking at the general
law. If you are going to pass these private bills relating to con-
sanguinity, it seems to me that you ought to have reached
some position in your own consciences that the general law
ought to be amended, even though you may not have come to
any conclusions as to exactly how that law should be amended.

Le sénateur Asselin: Si nous suivons votre conseil et que
nous adoptons ces lois d’exception devant nous, I'on nous dit
que nous en aurons huit autres, n’est-ce pas, M. du Plessis?

M. R. L. du Plessis, légiste et conseiller parlementaire:
Environ six autres demandes.

[Traduction)

mariage, qui, en fait, risquent de produire des enfants défi-
cients ou d’autres exemples ou de tels risques sont virtuelle-
ment nuls. Yous pourriez alors dire: «Nous allons accorder la
permission de se marier aux couples qui ne présentent aucun
risque de produire des enfants déficients», comme c’est le cas
du couple qui demande la permission de se marier aux termes
du projet de loi S-3, en I'occurrence, deux octogénaires; il y a
aussi un autre projet de loi qui porte sur un couple dont la
femme a subi une hystérectomie, ou quelque opération du
genre. Je le répéte, vous pourriez dire: «Nous allons donner la
permission de se marier d tel couple, mais pas a tel autre».
Qu’en résultera-t-il? En fait, vous refusez 4 ces couples la per-
mission de se marier mais non pas de procréer des enfants défi-
cients. Le couple visé par le projet de S-3, a déja un enfant de
neuf ans. Allez-vous dire a ces personnes que vous leur donnez
la permission de se marier, que vous faites exception dans leur
cas parce qu’elles ont déja un enfant? N’est-ce pas alors inviter
les autres a4 avoir des enfants avant de déposer un projet de loi
d’intérét privé au Parlement? Est-ce que vous voulez dire ici
que la grossesse devrait étre une condition préalable avant de
présenter une telle mesure législative? Ou encore, leur direz-
vous: «Non, que vous ayez des enfants ou pas, vous ne pouvez
faire I’objet d’'une exemption, vous n’avez pas le droit de vous
marier.» Encore, direz-vous a ces gens que s’ils ont un enfant
qui est déficient, ils ne peuvent se marier et que si ’enfant est
normal, ils peuvent le légitimer et se marier?

Il s’agit ici de distinctions qui n’ont aucune importance
quant a la formulation des régles générales de droit. En fait,
d’aprés ce que je sais—vous pourrez vérifier auprés des spécia-
listes—les statistiques montrent que les risques de précrier des
enfants déficients résultant de 'union d’un oncle et d’une niéce
ou d’une tante et d’'un neveu ne sont pas trés grands. Bien sir,
il se peut que de tels enfants naissent de ces unions, mais dans
notre société, il est tout aussi possible que des enfants défi-
cients proviennent d’unions de toute sorte dont les couples
n’ont absolument aucun lien de consanguinité. Tout ce que ces
gens veulent, c’est de se marier. Dans nombre de ces cas,
comme les Juifs, les Catholiques qui ont une dispense, d’autres
qui obéissent 4 leur religion ou encore qui n’en ont aucune, les
gens veulent se marier. Et nous leur disons ici que la société
refuse de leur donner le feu vert.

Il me semble que ce ne sont pas 1a les différences que nous
devrions étudier si nous voulons formuler les régles générales
de droit en matiére de mariage. Je ne vois pas pourquoi le Par-
lement devrait adopter des lois d’intérét privé accordant une
exemption pour des cas particuliers qu’il n’approuverait pas s’il
devait s’en remettre aux régles générales de droit. Si vous
adoptez ces projets de loi d’intérét privé concernant les liens
consanguins, il me semble qu’en toute conscience, vous devez
croire que les régles générales de droit doivent étre modifiées
méme si vous ne savez pas exactement quelles modifications
doivent y étre apportées.

Senator Asselin: If we take your advice and pass the bills of
exception that are before us, we're apparently going to have
eight more, is that right, Mr. du Plessis?

Mr. R. L. du Plessis, Law clerk and Parliamentary Coun-
sel: There are around six more.
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Le sénateur Asselin: Vous constatez 'accumulation: d’ici
quelque temps nous aurons adopté 12 lois d’exception. Nous
les aurons adoptées sans obtenir de garantie que nous recom-
mandations puissent étre acceptées par le ministére de la Jus-
tice pour étude afin d’amender la loi rapidement. Aprés 24 ans
au Parlement, je connais la lenteur de la législation, comme
vous aussi devez le soupgonner. Méme si nous proposons des
recommandations pour modifier la loi cette année, je ne crois
pas que le ministre aurait le temps, d’ici la fin de la session, de
présenter une loi amendée qui rencontrerait les objections sou-
levées devant ce comité.

Nous sommes vis-d-vis la situation suivante: Nous devons
continuer a créer des précédents. Nous devons continuer a
accepter cela. Je suis d’ailleurs de votre avis qu'il serait com-
pliqué pour nous d’entrer dans la vie privée de ces gens et
d’exiger des expertises en ce qui concerne les relations de con-
sanguinité; je suis complétement de votre avis a ce sujet, je n’ai
pas 'intention de me mettre le nez la-dedans. L’idée que nous
ne voulons pas supporter, c’est que d’autres personnes s’adres-
sent 4 nous peut-étre en plus grand nombre, pour nous
demander d’accepter ces lois d’exception. Je crois que vous étes
de mon avis, lorsqu’il y a tellement d’exceptions 4 une loi géné-
rale, que la meilleure fagon pour un législateur de corriger
cette anomalie, c’est par la voie des amendements 4 la loi géné-
rale afin que ces nombreuses exceptions puissent faire partie
de la loi générale. La loi générale est faite pour I'ensemble de
la population, elle n’est pas créée pour sanctionner des excep-
tions.

Jaimerais savoir si vous nous conseillez d’accepter, comme
méthode de travail, d’adopter ces projets de loi privés. Par la
suite, est-ce votre avis que notre comité, aprés une étude
approfondie, fasse une recommandation au ministére de la Jus-
tice pour amender la loi. Evidemment, tout ceci ne pourrait se
faire avant deux ou trois ans. D’ici deux & trois ans, nous ser-
ons en face de nombreux autres requérants qui nous deman-
deront d’adopter des lois d’exception a la loi du mariage. Vous
voyez notre position: Ou que nous refusions immédiatement
d’adopter ces bills privés, ou que nous en fassions I’étude et
recommandions au ministre de prendre une décision, car il y a
une question d’urgence. On ne peut pendant des ois et des lois
pénaliser ces gens qui veulent refaire leur vie. Je me sentirais
mal 4 l'aise. Je crois que je ne pourrais pas vivre face 4 cette
situation. Dans un cas d’urgence, il faudrait demander au
ministre qu’il se penche le plus tot possible sur ce probléme et
qu'il fasse rapport au comité. Nous pourrions lui donner un
délai de deux ou trois mois. Par contre, je n’ai pas I'impression
que ces gens vont attendre deux ou trois mois avant que leur
cas ne soit réglé. Vous comprenez notre situation?

Professor Hubbard: I believe I see your dilemma. It is not
for me to find the solution.

Senator Asselin: But you are here to help us find a solution.

Professor Hubbard: Part of the problem has to do with
timing of things and the length of time it will take for things to
be done. If it is the case that it would take perhaps three years
before the general law can be amended and that there is
absolutely no assurance that the general law will be amended

[Traduction]

Senator Asselin: You see how they pile up—in a short time
we will have passed 12 of these bills. We will have passed them
without obtaining a guarantee that our recommendations will
be accepted for consideration by the Department of Justice for
rapid amendment of the Act. After 24 years in Parliament, |
know how slow the legislative process can be, and you must
suspect that yourself. Even if we propose amendments to the
Act this year I don’t think the Minister would have time before
the end of the session to introduce an amended act that would
meet the objections raised before this Committee.

We are faced with the following situation: we have to go on
creating precedents. We have to go on accepting, and I agree
with you that it would be complicated for us to start poking
into the private lives of these people and demanding expert opi-
nions about consanguineous relationships, I agree with you
completely on that point, I have no intention of sticking my
nose into that. What we don’t want to see happening is more
people coming before us, perhaps in increasing numbers, and
asking us to make exceptions to the general law. Now, I think
you agree with me, when there are this many exceptions to a
general law, the best way for a legislator to correct the ano-
maly is by amending the general law so that all these excep-
tions are covered by the general law. The general law is made
for the population as a whole, it isn’t there to sanction excep-
tions.

I would like to know if you would advise us to take the
approach of passing these private bills, and if it is your view
that this Committee should then, after in-depth consideration,
recommend to the Department of Justice that the Act be
amended? Obviously the whole process would take two or
three years, and in those two or three years we’re going to be
faced with a great many other petitioners asking us to grant
exceptions to the Marriage Act. You see our position: either
we refuse immediately to pass these private bills or we consider
them and we recommend to the Minister to make a decision,
because time is pressing here. We can’t penalize these people
month after month when they want to get on with rebuilding
their lives. I would feel very badly about it. I don’t think I
could endure a situation like that. In a really urgent case we
would have to ask the Minister to consider the problem as soon
as possible and report to the Committee. We could give him a
deadline of two or three months. But then, I have the impres-
sion that these people aren’t going to wait two or three months
for their cases to be settled. You see the situation we’re in?

M. Hubbard: Je crois percevoir le dilemme dans lequel vous
étes enfermé. Ce n’est pas a moi d’en trouver l'issue.

Le sénateur Asselin: Mais vous étes ici pour nous aider a
trouver une solution.

M. Hubbard: En partie, le probléme est une question de
temps, c'est-a-dire quel délai il faudra compter pour amender
la loi. S’il est vrai qu'il faudra peut-étre mettre trois ans avant
de modifier les régles générales de droit et il n’est absolument
pas certain qu’elles soient modifiées, et s’il est vrai que le seul
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and if the only way of amending the law is to have the
government sponsor the bill, then my personal feeling is that it
will be a mistake to pass these private bills, for reasons that I
think I made clear in my article. I do not think that you can
find in any of these cases circumstances that make them
different from people in society generally who are so related
and ought to have the same rights. My view would be that if
there is no certainty that the general law will be changed or if
the matter will be put off for years, it would be very difficult
to decide that these private bills ought to be passed. What you
are doing is adding to the sum total of the number of prece-
dents which eventually would be called bad precedents.

Senator Asselin: That is what I said.

Professor Hubbard: On the other hand, if there is some feel-
ing of confidence on the part of this committee, which has
been charged with the specific task of reporting back and
invited by the Minister of Justice to make a recommendation
to him, that the recommendations are likely to carry, then I
think that you are in a different situation. I think in conscience
you can say, “This is the direction that we are heading in and
this is probably what we will recommend.” In that light, it is
not a bad way out of the dilemma to pass the bills on hand and
to say to persons who make inquiries in the future, “Hold on,
the matter is under consideration.” In light of the experience
in Australia and of the laws of some of the major religions of
the world, the amendments that would be consistent with these
particular private bills are not really startling or shocking and
I think society would be in favour of them. I think it is taking
far too pessimistic a view to think that it would take three
years to pass such legislation or to suppose that it will not be
passed. I would expect that in the not-too-distant future Par-
liament will amend the general law and it would be most
unfortunate if these couples who have presently applied and
have come this far were denied the passage of their private
bills.

I want to draw a distinction here that it may be of some
importance and that is that in any event the bills dealing with
affinity should not be put on the back burner. I think they
should be given such passage in order to clarify the situation;
however, be given such passage in order to clarify the situa-
tion; however, in point of facts they may not even require an
exemption. These four couples from Quebec could come and
stay at the Westin Hotel or the Chateau Laurier and three
days later they could get married in Ontario with a licence
obtained here in Ontario. Because of Ontario jurisprudence, a
licence would not be denied them here. If they preferred
Vancouver because it has a nicer climate they could go there
and get a licence. The law ought to be the same throughout
Canada. There should be no hesitation reporting back to the
Senate that these four bills ought to be passed. Personally, I
feel that bills dealing with the consanguinity issue should be
passed as well, if the committee were of the mind that the
general law ought to be amended. I hope that that would be
the view that the committee would have. As I have said—and I
do not want to flog this issue to death—this would be in

[Traduction)

moyen d’y arriver est de faire parrainer le projet de loi par le
gouvernement, eh bien, je crois personnellement que ce serait
une erreur d’adopter ces projets d’intérét privé pour les raisons
que j’ai énoncées clairement dans mon article. Je ne crois pas
que vous puissiez trouver dans aucun de ces cas de circons-
tances qui rendent ces personnes différentes des autres mem-
bres de la société en général qui ont des liens de parenté et qui
doivent jouir des mémes droits. Je pense que s’il est absolu-
ment sir que les régles générales de droits ne seront pas
modifiées ou que la question sera remise aux calendes grec-
ques, il serait trés difficile de décider que ces projets de loi
d’intérét privé ne seront jamais adoptés. Ce que vous faites,
c’est d’ajouter d’autres cas aux précédents qui un jour seront
considérés comme des précédents de mauvais aloi.

Le sénateur Asselin: C’est ce que j’ai dit.

M. Hubbard: Par contre, s’il régne une certaine confiance
parmi les membres du Comité qui ont été chargés précisément
de faire rapport au ministre de la Justice et de lui présenter
une recommandation susceptible d’étre adoptée, je crois alors
que la situation est différente. A mon avis, je crois qu’en toute
conscience, vous pouvez dire: «Voild la direction dans laquelle
nous nous engageons et c’est probablement ce que nous recom-
manderons.» Cela dit, ce n’est pas une mauvaise facon de se
sortir du dilemme et d’adopter les projets de loi sur-le-champ
pour pouvoir ensuite dire aux personnes qui présenteront de
tels projets de loi 4 'avenir:«Soyez patients, la question est 4
I’étude». Compte tenu de I’expérience de I’Australie et des lois
de certaines grandes religions du monde, les amendements qui
seraient conformes 4 ces projets de loi d’intérét privé ne sont
pas réellement étonnants et je crois que la société les accepte-
rait. Je crois que c’est étre beaucoup trop pessimiste que de
penser qu’il faudrait mettre trois ans avant d’adopter une telle
loi ou de supposer qu’elle ne serait pas adoptée. Je suis porté a
croire que dans un avenir assez rapproché, le Parlement modi-
fiera les régles générales de droit et il serait trés malheureux
que ces couples qui ont présenté leurs demandes et se sont ren-
dus jusque-1a se voient refuser I’adoption de ces projets de loi
d’intérét privé.

Jaimerais établir toutefois une distinction ici parce qu’elle
me semble importante. De toute fagon, il ne fait aucun doute
que cette question d’affinité ne doit pas étre reléguée aux
oubliettes puisqu’il ne sera peut-étre méme pas nécessaire
d’adopter des amendements. Mais je crois que l'on devrait
quand méme les adopter afin de clarifier la situation; en fait,
ils ne seront peut-étre méme pas nécessaires. Ces quatre cou-
ples du Québec pourraient trés bien louer une chambre a
I’hétel Westin ou au Chateau Laurier et trois jours plus tard,
se marier en Ontario aprés avoir obtenu un permis de cette
province. Ici, en Ontario, on ne leur refuserait pas ce permis a
cause de la jurisprudence. Si ces couples préféraient Vancou-
ver parce que le climat y est plus agréable, ils pourraient s’y
rendre et obtenir un permis. La loi doit étre la méme partout
au Canada. Vous ne devez pas hésiter a faire rapport au Sénat
et 4 proposer que ces quatre projets de loi soient adoptés. Per-
sonnellement, j’estime que les projets de loi concernant les
liens de consanguinité devraient étre adoptés si le Comité
estime que les régles générales de droit doivent étre modifiées.
Jespére que votre recommandation ira dans ce sens. Comme je
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keeping with the laws of major religions and with the general
trend of law throughout the world today.

Senator Flynn: Would the Australian law solve the problems
with respect to the private bills we have before us?

Professor Hubbard: Yes, it would. However, I would want
to be careful in my answer to you in this respect: the Australi-
an legislation does make a prohibition where persons are
related through adoption. That prohibition does not exist at
common law. It is my opinion that we ought not to prohibit
persons related through adoption any more than others. I
would be pleased to appear before you at a later date in order
to go into this matter in far more detail. The present law of
Canada as it has been interpreted by the Court of Appeal of
Alberta in the Re Broddy case is that there is no prohibition in
Canada between persons who are related by adoption. In fact,
that was the conclusion this committee came to several years
ago in refusing to pass a bill from Quebec.

Senator Flynn: I remember that.

Professor Hubbard: So if the law were amended and if the
Australian law were adopted, minus the insertion into the law
of a prohibition against the marriage of people related by
adoption, 1 feel that would be the perfect solution. There are
many ways of wording such a law, but that would be the solu-
tion. To answer your specific question, yes, indeed, the Aus-
tralian law would get rid of all of the private bills which have
come before the Senate.

Senator Flynn: If you were in our place, do you think it
would be more difficult to adopt a general bill than to
individually adopt these private bills?

Professor Hubbard: If I could control the situation, and I
believe this committee cannot, I would prefer to pass a general
bill immediately and give the people back their money and say,
“Look, we are not going to deal with your private bills; we do
not need them.”

Senator Flynn: But I can do that.

Professor Hubbard: However, I can see a delay in getting a
general bill passed during which delay, for example, the couple
in Bill S-3 might die and other things might happen to other
couples. This is why I am suggesting that if the committee
were leaning towards recommending a change in the general
law, then go ahead and pass these private bills.

Senator Flynn: That is what we would do in passing these
bills since we cannot differentiate one from the other.

Professor Hubbard: I do not think you can. Of course, the
great difference between the two approaches is that if you pass
a general bill then you will no longer be troubled by other pri-
vate bills in the future. On the other hand, if you pass only the
private bills then other private bills will come forward.

[Traduction)

I’ai dit, je ne veux pas rabacher cette idée, mais cette loi serait
conforme aux préceptes des grandes religions et 4 la tendance
juridique générale dans le monde entier aujourd’hui.

Le sénateur Flynn: La loi australienne réglerait-elle nos pro-
blémes en égard aux projets de loi d’intérét privé que nous étu-
dions maintenant?

M. Hubbard: Oui. Toutefois, j’aimerais ici faire une mise en
garde: la loi australienne interdit le mariage entre personnes
qui ont un lien de parenté par voie d’adoption. Cette interdic-
tion n’existe pas en droit commun. A mon avis, nous ne devons
pas interdire aux personnes liées par adoption de se marier pas
plus qu'aux autres. Je serai heureux de comparaitre devant
votre Comité a une date ultérieure afin de vous donner beau-
coup plus de précisions sur cette question. La loi actuelle du
Canada, comme l'interpréte la Cour d’appel de I’Alberta dans
I’affaire Broddy, n’impose aucune interdiction de mariage au
Canada 4 des personnes qui sont liées par voie d’adoption. En
fait, c’est la conclusion a laquelle votre Comité en est venu il y
a plusieurs années lorsqu’il a refusé d’adopter un projet de loi
du Québec.

Le sénateur Flynn: Je m’en souviens.

M. Hubbard: Donc, si la loi était modifiée et si la loi austra-
lienne était adoptée, en excluant toutefois I'interdiction de
mariage entre des personnes liées par voie d’adoption, je crois
que ce serait la solution parfaite. Il y a plusieurs libellés possi-
bles, mais ce serait la solution. Pour répondre précisément a
votre question, je dirais, qu'en effet, la loi australienne nous
permettrait de nous débarrasser de tous les projets de loi
d’intérét privé qui sont présentés au Sénat.

Le sénateur Flynn: Si vous étiez a notre place, croyez-vous
qu’il serait plus difficile d’adopter un projet de loi général que
d’adopter individuellement des projets de loi d’intérét privé?

M. Hubbard: Si je pouvais étre maitre de la situation, et je
crois que cela n’est pas le cas du Comité, je préférerais adopter
immédiatement des régles générales de droit et rendre I’argent
a ces personnes en leur disant: «Voild, nous n’allons pas étudier
vos projets de loi d’intérét privé, nous n’en avons pas besoin.»

Le sénateur Flynn: Mais je peux faire cela.

M. Hubbard: Toutefois, je crois qu’on mettra un certain
temps 4 adopter une loi générale et pendant ce temps, par
exemple, le couple dont il est question au projet de loi S-3
pourrait décéder ou d’autres choses pourraient arriver aux
autres couples. C’est la raison pour laquelle je crois que si le
Comité est plutot porté & recommander de modifier les régles
générales, de droit eh bien alors, je crois qu’il devrait aller de
’avant et adopter ces projets de loi d’intérét privé.

Le sénateur Flynn: C’est ce que nous devrions faire puisque
nous ne pouvons pas établir de distinction entre les divers pro-
jets de loi qui nous sont présentés.

M. Hubbard: Non, je ne crois pas. Bien sir, I’énorme diffé-
rence entre ces deux fagons de voir les choses, c’est que si vous
adoptez des régles générales, de droit, alors, 4 partir de ce
moment-1a vous ne serez plus aux prises avec d’autres projets
de loi d’intérét privé a I'avenir. Par contre, si vous n’adoptez
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Senator Flynn: If I table a bill in the Senate tomorrow it can
be passed just as quickly as these private bills and the problem
in the House of Commons would be exactly the same as with
respect to the private bills. I am just giving you my reaction to
your suggestion. I do not see that it is more difficult, nor does
it take more time to adopt general legislation with respect to
this matter.

Professor Hubbard: In one sense it does and in another
sense it does not. For instance, you could take the view that
you would want to provide an opportunity to far more interest
groups to come forward and be heard if you were to amend the
general law. However, you would not be going out to these
interest groups to ask them to come in to speak to you with
respect to these private bills.

Senator Flynn: All those who would have benefited from the
private bills would probably be in exceptional circumstances
whereas those coming later on would not receive the same
treatment.

Professor Hubbard: That is correct; if the general bill did
not pass then that would be perfectly true. However, the Par-
. liament of Canada is not bound by private acts. They are
precedents in the sense that they are forerunners; they are not
precedents in the sense that they are binding. I know it
becomes unpalatable to live with these precedents which were
not all that good to begin with. My point is that you act in
good conscience to the best of your ability with all of the infor-
mation you have at hand and if there are some mistakes then
there are some mistakes. For instance, if you were to take the
view that you would do nothing for these four couples in the
area of consanguinity because you wished to see if a general
amendment is made and if that were turned down, then what
about the ones passed in 1975 and 19787 You must live with
those. All I am saying is that you can live with four more pro-
vided you feel that in dealing with them you are doing so in a
manner consistent with the general attitude which you have.

Senator Asselin: We have a commitment from the Minister
of Justice that he will do something with respect to this situa-
tion, which is why in looking at the bills we have placed a
caveat on them that we will not adopt all the bills if the gen-
eral law is not to be amended.

Professor Hubbard: I recall reading Hansard with respect to
that point.

Senator Asselin: And you have quoted Senators Flynn, Nei-
man and myself in your argument.

Professor Hubbard: Yes, I have.

Senator Flynn: What would the principle be in these private
bills if there were a general law? We are not dealing with a
particular case here; in fact, we cannot differentiate one from
the other.

Professor Hubbard: | must say I agree with that.

Senator Flynn: We will not say that we will pass the bill
because one couple has been living together for such a long

[Traduction)

que les projets de loi d’intérét privé, alors vous aurez encore
d’autres projets de loi du méme genre.

Le sénateur Flynn: Si je dépose, demain, un projet de loi au
Sénat il pourra étre adopté tout aussi rapidement que ces pro-
jets de loi privés et le probléme qui se poserait a la Chambre
des communes serait exactement le méme que s'il s’agissait de
projets de loi privés. Je vous dis simplement ce que je pense de
votre proposition. Je ne congois pas qu'il soit plus difficile ou
plus long d’adopter une loi générale a ce sujet.

M. Hubbard: Dans un certain sens, oui et dans un autre,
non. Par exemple, vous pourriez penser que -I’occasion serait
ainsi fournie aux groupes les plus intéressés de se manifester
advenant que vous de décidiez de modifier les régles générales
de droit. Toutefois, vous n’iriez pas convoquer ces groupes-la
pour leur demander de témoigner sur ces projets de loi privés.

Le sénateur Flynn: Tous ceux qui auraient bénéficié des pro-
jets de loi privés se trouveraient dans des circonstances excep-
tionnelles, tandis que ceux qui viendraient plus tard ne rece-
vraient pas le méme traitement.

M. Hubbard: C’est exact; si les régles générales n’étaient pas
adoptées, ce serait parfaitement vrai. Toutefois, le Parlement
du Canada n’est pas lié par des lois privées. Il s’agit de précé-
dents en ce sens que ce sont des avant-coureurs, mais qui n’ont
pas force de loi. Je sais qu’il est désagréable de devoir accepter
ces précédents qui n'étaient pas tous bons au départ. Je veux
dire que vous agissez en toute bonne foi au meilleur de vos
capacités et de vos connaissances et s’il se produit quelque
erreur vous n’y pouvez rien. Par exemple, si vous décidiez de
ne rien faire pour ces quatre couples consanguins en attendant
de voir si une modification aux régles générales sera adoptée
au non, qu’un sera-t-il des lois qui ont été adoptées en 1975 et
1978? Vous devez en tenir compte. Je veux simplement dire
que vous pouvez en accepter quatre de plus pourvu que vous
ayez I'impression, lorsque vous en traitez, qu’elles correspon-
dent 4 votre attitude générale.

Le sénateur Asselin: Le ministre de la Justice nous a promis
d’intervenir dans cette affaire; c’est pourquoi, en examinant les
projets de loi, nous avons posé comme condition que nous
n’adopterons pas tous les projets de loi si les régles générales de
droit n’étaient pas modifiées.

M. Hubbard: Je me rappelle avoir lu quelque chose dans le
Hansard a ce sujet.

Le sénateur Asselin: Et pour appuyer vos dires, vous avez
cité les sénateur Flynn, Neiman et moi-méme.

M. Hubbard: Oui.

Le sénateur Flynn: Quel principe régirait ces projets de loi
privés s’ils étaient des lois générales? Nous ne parlons pas d’un
cas particulier; en fait, nous ne pouvons les distingner I'un de
’autre.

M. Hubbard: Je dois dire que je suis d’accord.

Le sénateur Flynn: Nous n’adopterons pas le projet de loi du

seul fait qu’un couple cohabites depuis si longtemps. Et nous
ne refuserons pas d’en adopter un autre non plus, a cause de



20-3-1984

Affaires juridiques et constitutionnelles 3:19

[Text]

time. Nor will we refuse to pass another because there are cer-
tain special factors such as we dealt with in regard to the cou-
ple living in the small village. To negotiate in this way would
be nonsensical.

Professor Hubbard: I completely agree with what you have
just expressed, senator. It seems to me that unless you can find
a meaningful distinction between the cases which come before
you and the generality of persons, then you have no basis of
making any exceptions. I would suggest that it is not a mean-
ingful distinction to say that one couple is older than another
or that with respect to one couple the woman has had a hys-
terectomy or the man a vasectomy while that is not so in the
other case; nor to say that in one case there has been a child
but not in the other case; nor to say that a minister is ready to
marry one couple but another couple does not happen to
belong to a church and there is not a minister who will marry
them. These distinctions are meaningless, in my view, and I
think that you cannot decide to make exceptions based on such
distinctions. However, I would say, once again, that because of
the precedents that exist from 1975 and 1978, if it were the
trend of thought of the committee that the general law ought
to be amended and that the committee intended to recommend
that it be amended, then it would not be inconsistent with that
trend to go ahead with these private bills because Parliament
has the authority to do what it chooses, and to make exceptions
for people for whatever reasons it sees fit.

Senator Flynn: If, after we have made a recommendation to
the Senate, the chairman decides to introduce a bill of that
kind, I could tell her right now that I would support it.

The Chairman: I am very glad to hear that.

I would like to say that I think Professor Hubbard has given
this committee some excellent background material and
advice, and we are very grateful to you, Professor Hubbard,
for coming here today. I hope that we can proceed with an
examination in consideration of these bills and, perhaps at an
early date, we would ask you to come back and advise us, par-
ticularly on the one cloudy area that you mentioned with
respect to adoption. There are problems involving adoption,
and I think when it comes to formulating an actual bill, we
would benefit very much from your advice. I thank you very
much for being here today and we hope to see you again
shortly.

Professor Hubbard: Thank you very much, Madam Chair-
man.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, it is now six o’clock.
Are you prepared to continue to sit on for half an hour and
consider these bills?

Senator Asselin: No, I would like to reflect on what has
been said by Professor Hubbard. Perhaps we could be in touch
with you, Madam Chairman, after you steering committee has
considered the issue.

The Chairman: The steering committee will meet tomorrow
afternoon. Perhaps by that time you will have had an opportu-
nity to discuss your views and ideas with Senator Nurgitz and,

[Traduction)

certains facteurs spéciaux comme ceux dont nous avons tenu
compte dans le cas du couple qui vit dans le petit village. Tran-
siger de cette facon serait absurde.

M. Hubbard: Je suis entiérement de cet avis. Il me semble
qu’d moins que vous puissiez faire une distinction sensée entre
les cas qui vous sont présentés et le public en général, vous ne
pouvez absolument pas faire d’exceptions. J’estime que ce n’est
pas faire une distinction sensée que de dire qu’un couple est
plus 4gé qu’un autre, ou que dans un cas la femme a subi une
hystérotomie et I’homme, une vasectomie, et non pas dans
I'autre cas. Vous ne pourriez alléguer non plus que dans un
cas, un enfant était en cause et qu’il n’y en avait pas dans
'autre; ou qu’un prétre est prét 4 marier un couple, mais qu’un
autre couple n’appartient a aucune église et qu'aucun ministre
du culte ne célébrera son mariage. Ces distinctions sont
dénuées de sens, & mon avis, et je pense que vous ne pouvez
décider de faire des exceptions en vous fondant li-dessus. Tou-
tefois, j’aimerais répéter qu’en raison des précédents qui exis-
tent depuis 1975 et 1978, si le Comité est d’avis que les régles
générales de droit doivent étre modifiées et qu’il a Iintention
de recommander qu’elles le soient, il serait alors illogique
d’adopter ces projets de loi privés parce que le Parlement a le
pouvoir d’agir a son gré et de faire des exceptions a I'égard de
certaines personnes pour quelque raison qu’il juge appropriée.

Le sénateur Flynn: Si aprés que nous ayons fait une recom-
mandation au Sénat, le président décide de déposer un projet
de loi de cette sorte, je peux lui dire dés maintenant que je
I"appuierais.

Le président: Je suis trés contente d’entendre cela.

Je pense que le professeur Hubbard a fourni au Comité une
excellente documentation et de précieux conseils. Nous vous
sommes trés reconnaissants, monsieur Hubbard, d’étre venu ici
aujourd’hui. J’espére que nous pouvons procéder 4 I’examen de
ces projets de loi, et peut-tre que dans peu de temps, nous
vous demanderons de revenir nous conseiller, plus particuliére-
ment au sujet des points obscurs relativement & I’adoption. Il y
a des probléemes qui entourent I’adoption et j’estime que lors-
que nous en viendrons & formuler le projet de loi lui-méme,
nous bénéficierions énormément de vos conseils. Je vous remer-
cie beaucoup d’étre venu nous recontrer aujourd’hui et nous
espérons vous revoir bient6t.

M. Hubbard: Merci beaucoup, madame le président.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, il est maintenant 18
heures. Etes-vous disposés a continuer de siéger encore une
demi heure pour examiner ces projets de loi, ou . . . ?

Le sénateur Asselin: Non, j'aimerais réfléchir a ce qu’a dit
M. Hubbard. Peut-étre pourrions-nous vous contacter
madame le président, aprés que votre comité de direction aura:
examiné la question.

Le président: Le comité de direction se réunira demain
aprés-midi. Vous aurez peut-étre eu & ce moment 14 I'occasion
de discuter de vos points de vue et de vos idées avec le sénateur
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thereafter, we will be glad to have the benefit of your advice
before we make a decision.

Senator Asselin: | do not want to delay the adoption of the
private bills unduly. However, we would like to deal with the
promises given by the Minister of Justice to this committee.
But what is the intention of the committee? When do you
intend to study the substance of the matter and when shall we
make our recommendations to the Department of Justice? Is it
your intention to adopt the private bills before we make our
recommendations, and what promises have we received from
the Department of Justice that this general law is going to be
amended? If the general law is not going to amended, I myself
am not willing to adopt any more precedents.

The Chairman: Senator Asselin, all I can say to you at the
moment is that I feel fairly confident that if we were to exam-
ine this matter and prepare our recommendations in the form
of a bill, we should have the full co-operation of the Minister
of Justice. However, he cannot speak for the House of Com-
mons and how they will deal with it, but provided we have
done a thorough study and our recommendations are clear, 1
do not foresee a great deal of problems with the House of
Commons. If there is a possible delay, however, it will be in the
House of Commons and not in the Senate.

Senator Asselin: The members of the House of Commons
are not aware of the bills that are before the Senate. However,
once they are aware, perhaps you will see some progress.

The Chairman: Perhaps if the same information is put
before them, together with the same reasoning, there may not
be such a delay. Professor Hubbard’s testimony today was very
clear and persuasive that the changes should be made, and I
would hope that the members of the House of Commons would
consider it in the same light. I would be very happy to proceed
to deal with these bills immediately. I would like this commit-
tee to start on the matter immediately, and that is what we
shall be discussing at the meeting of the steering committee
tomorrow. We shall try to draw up an agenda for consider-
ation.

Senator Asselin: We, in turn, shall consult with our advisors
and let you know, Madame Chairman.

The Chairman: We have no other bills before this committee
and we could start on this matter next week. I think we should
proceed to formulate our own bill and press it from our side of
the house. I think that is the best way of handling this matter.

Senator Asselin: In the meantime, would you be kind
enough to send a copy of Professor Hubbard’s testimony today
to the Minister of Justice and ask him to read it over?

The Chairman: By all means. I think it would be helpful to
him and to this committee if the minister did study that tes-
timony before we go any further.

This meeting will then be adjourned and you will be advised
of the time of next week’s meeting.

The committee adjourned.

[Traduction)

Nurgitz et, aprés tout, nous serions heureux de pouvoir profiter
de vos conseils avant de prendre une décision.

Le sénateur Asselin: Je ne veux pas retarder I'adoption des
projets de loi privés indiment. Toutefois, nous aimerions trai-
ter des promesses que nous a faites le ministre de la Justice.
Mais qu’elle est I'intention du Comité? Quand avez-vous
I'intention d’étudier le fond de la question et quand devrons-
nous présenter nos recommandations au ministére de la Jus-
tice? Avez-vous l'intention d’adopter les projets de loi privés
avant que nous fassions nos recommandations, et le ministére
de la Justice nous a-t-il promis que ces régles générales de
droit seraient modifiées? Si les régles générales de droit ne
sont pas modifiées, je ne suis pas disposé personnellement &
adopter plus de précédents.

Le président: Sénateur Asselin, tout ce que je puis vous dire
pour le moment c’est que j'ai de bonnes raisons de croire, si
nous devions examiner cette question et préparer nos recom-
mandations sous la forme d’un projet de loi, que nous devrions
avoir 'entiére collaboration du ministre de la Justice. Toute-
fois, ce dernier ne peut parler au nom de la Chambre des com-
munes ni prédire ce qu’elle fera, mais si nous avons effectué
une étude approfondie et que nos recommandations sont clai-
res, je ne prévois pas qu’elle nous pose de grands problémes.
S’il y a un retard possible, toutefois, ce sera 4 la Chambre des
communes et non au Sénat.

Le sénateur Asselin: Les députés ne sont pas au courant des
projets de loi qu’étudie le Sénat. Toutefois, lorsqu’ils le sauront
vous noterez peut-étre certains progres.

Le président: Peut-étre que si la méme information leur
était présentée, ainsi que les mémes raisonnements, le retard
ne serait pas si considérable. Le témoignage de M. Hubbard
aujourd’hui a été trés clair; il nous a bien convaincus que des
changements devaient étre apportés, et j'aimerais que les dépu-
tés voient les choses sous le méme angle. Je serais trés heureuse
de commencer a traiter de ces projets de loi immédiatement.
Jaimerais que le Comité se mette a la tdche sans délai, et c’est
ce dont nous discuterons 4 la réunion du comité de direction
demain. Nous essaierons de tracer un programme d’étude.

Le sénateur Asselin: De ndtre coté, nous consulterons nos
conseillers et vous tiendrons au courant, madame le président.

Le président: Aucun autre projet de loi ne nous ayant été
présenté, nous pourrions nous mettre 4 la tiche la semaine pro-
chaine. Je crois que nous devrions commencer a formuler notre
propre projet de loi et essayer de le faire adopter au Sénat
d’abord. Je pense que c’est la meilleure fagon de procéder.

Le sénateur Asselin: Entre-temps, auriez-vous I’obligeance
d’envoyer un exemplaire du témoignage de M. Hubbard
aujourd’hui au ministre de la Justice et de lui demander de le
lire attentivement?

Le président: Certainement. Il serait utile pour lui et pour le
Comité que le ministre étudie ce témoignage avant que nous
allions plus loin.

La séance est donc levée et vous serez informés de I’heure de
la réunion de la semaine prochaine.

La séance est levée.
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE ORDRES DE RENVOI

Extracts from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate, Extraits des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 9 février
Thursday, February 9, 1984: 1984:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-2, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Gerald Harvey Fudge and
Audrey Marie Saunders”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-3, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Louis Philippe Nadeau and
Marie Thérése Rita Brulé”.

After debate, and— R
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Ppursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-4, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Ernest Hodel and Norma

Dora Laurie”.
After debate, and— - A
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant a la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-2, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Gerald Harvey Fudge et Audrey Marie Saun-
ders».

Aprés débat,

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu pour la deuxieme fois, a la
majorité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant 1'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant d la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-3, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Louis Philippe Nadeau et Marie Thérése Rita
Brulé».

Aprés débat,

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu pour la deuxiéme fois, 4 la
majorité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I'honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant a la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-4, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas d’Ernest Hodel et Norma Dora Laurie».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, 4 la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu pour la deuxiéme fois, a la
majorite.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles. 3
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The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-5, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Benjamin Josheph Andrade
and Heather Winnifred Andrade”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Extracts from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate,

Thursday, February 23, 1984:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Guay, P.C., that the Bill S-6, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Juan Andrade and Emilia
Rodriguez”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator van Roggen, that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator van Roggen, that the Bill S-7, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Henri Patry and Aldéa Béa
Pitt”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator van Roggen, that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I'honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant a la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-5, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Benjamin Josheph Andrade et Heather Winni-
fred Andrade».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu pour la deuxiéme fois, a la
majorité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Extraits des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 23 février

1984:

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, ’honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur Guay, C.P., que
le Projet de loi S-6, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le
cas de Juan Andrade et Emilia Rodriguez», soit lu pour la
deuxiéme fois.

Aprés débat,

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu pour la deuxieme fois, 4 la
majorité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur van Roggen, que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, I’honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur van Roggen, que
le Projet de loi S-7, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le
cas de Henri Patry et Aldéa Béa Pitt», soit lu pour la
deuxiéme fois.

Apres débat,

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu pour la deuxiéme fois, a la
majorité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur van Roggen, que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.
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The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Extracts from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate,
Thursday, March 8, 1984:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Buckwold, that the Bill S-8, intituled: “An Act to
provide an exception from the public general law relating
to marriage in the case of Joseph Roland Réjean Daoust
and Marie Lise Sylvie Girard”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Robichaud, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Robichaud, P.C., that the Bill S-9, intituled: “An
Act to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Pearl Kim Lee and
Thomas Siegfried Wieland”, be read the second time.

The question being put on the mo.ti.o.n, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Robichaud, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and

Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Extracts from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate,
Thursday, February 9th, 1984:

“With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C.:

That the subject-matter of the public general law
throughout Canada with respect to prohibitions against
marriage between related persons be referred to the
Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitutional
Affairs with instructions to the committee to report to this

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Extraits des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 8 mars 1984:

«Suivant I’Ordre du jour, ’honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur Buckwold, que
le Projet de loi S-8, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le
cas de Joseph Roland Réjean Daoust et Marie Lise Sylvie
Girard», soit lu pour la deuxieme fois.

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu pour la deuxiéme fois, a la
majorité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Robichaud, C.P., que le projet de loi
soit déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires
juridiques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, I’honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur Robichaud,
C.P., que le Projet de loi S-9, intitulé: «Loi faisant excep-
tion aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage
dans le cas de Pearl Kim Lee et Thomas Siegfried Wie-
land», soit lu pour la deuxiéme fois.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu pour la deuxiéme fois, a la
majorité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Robichaud, C.P., que le projet de loi
soit déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires
juridiques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Extraits des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 9 février

1984:

«Avec la permission du Sénat,
L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P.:

Que le sujet du droit général public au Canada qui
interdit le mariage entre parents soit déféré au Comité
sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et constitu-
tionnelles et que I'on ordonne au Comité de faire rapport
au Sénat de ses recommandations en vue de modifier le
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House its recommendations for amendment to the public droit public général pertinent si le Comité juge que c’est
~ general law in question if, in the opinion of the committee, nécessaire.
that law should be amended.

The question being put on the motion, it was— La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Le greffier du Sénat
Charles A. Lussier
Clerk of the Senate
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WEDNESDAY, MARCH 28, 1984 LE MERCREDI 28 MARS 1984

(5) (5)

[Text] [Traduction]

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs met this day at 15:01 p.m., the Chairman, Sena-
tor Neiman, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Asselin, Buckwold, Lewis, Neiman, Nurgitz, Robichaud,
Stanbury and Stollery. (8)

Other Senator present: The Honourable Senator Cools.

In attendance: Mr. R. L. du Plessis, Q.C., Law Clerk and
Parliamentary Counsel. Mr. Donald Macdonald, Research
Officer of the Library of Parliament.

The Committee considered Bills S-2 to S-9, “Acts to provide
exceptions from the public general law relating to marriage”
and the subject-matter of the public general law throughout
Canada with respect to prohibitions against marriage between
related persons.

It was agreed,—That Dr. Abby Lippman of McGill Univer-
sity be invited to appear before the Committee.

Ordered,—That a letter be sent immediately to all the major
religious denominations of Canada asking them to express
their views before April 30, 1984 on the matters now before
the Committee.

At 15:45 p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the
Chair.

THURSDAY, MARCH 29, 1984
(6)

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs met this day at 11:15 a.m., the Chairman, Sena-
tor Neiman, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Asselin, Buckwold, Flynn, Neiman, Rizzuto and Stan-
bury. (6)

In attendance: Mr. R. L. du Plessis, Q.C., Law Clerk and
Parliamentary Counsel. Mr. Donald Macdonald, Research
Officer of the Library of Parliament.

Witness:

Dr. Abby Lippman, Geneticist, McGill University.

The Committee considered Bills S-2 to S-9, “Acts to provide
exceptions from the public general law relating to marriage”
and the subject-matter of the public general law throughout
Canada with respect to prohibitions against marriage between
related persons.

The witness made a statement and answered questions.

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles se réunit aujourd’hui a 15 h 01 sous la prési-
dence de ’honorable sénateur Joan Neiman (présidente).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Asselin, Buckwold, Lewis, Neiman, Nurgitz, Robichaud, Stan-
bury et Stollery. (8)

Autre sénateur présent: L’honorable sénateur Cools.

Aussi présents: M. R. L. du Plessis, c.r., légiste et conseiller
parlementaire. M. Donald Macdonald, attaché de recherche de
la Bibliothéque du Parlement.

Le Comité étudie les projets de loi S-2 4 S-9, «Lois faisant
exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage»
et le sujet du droit général public au Canada qui interdit le
mariage entre parents.

Il est convenu,—Que M™ Abby Lippman, de I'université
McGill, soit invitée a témoigner devant le Comité.

Il est ordonné,—Qu’une lettre soit immédiatement envoyée
a toutes les grandes confessions religieuses du Canada pour les
prier d’exprimer leurs opinions avant le 30 avril 1984 sur les
questions dont le Comité est actuellement saisi.

A 15h 45, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation du président.

LE JEUDI 29 MARS 1984
(6)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles se réunit aujourd’hui a 11 h 15 sous la prési-
dence de ’honorable Joan Neiman, (présidente).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Asselin, Buckwold, Flynn, Neiman, Rizzuto et Stanbury. (6)

Aussi présents: M. R, L. du Plessis, c.r.. légiste ¢t conseil-
ler parlementaire. M. Donald Macdonald, attaché de recher-
che de la Bibliothéque du Parlement.

Témoin:

Mm Abby Lippman, généticienne, Université McGill.

Le Comité étudie les projets de lois S-2 4 S-9, «Lois faisant
exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage»
et le sujet du droit général public au Canada qui interdit le
mariage entre parents.

Le témoin fait une déclaration et répond ensuite aux ques-
tions.
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At 12:33 p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the A 12 h 33, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu'd nouvelle
Chair. convocation du président.
ATTEST: ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Paul Bélisle
Clerk of the Committee
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Wednesday, March 28, 1984

[Texte]

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs to which was referred Bill S-2, to provide an
exception from the public general law relating to marriage in
the case of Gerald Harvey Fudge and Audrey Marie Saunders,
Bill S-3, to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Louis Philippe Nadeau and
Marie Thérése Rita Brulé, Bill S-4, to provide an exception
from the public general law relating to marriage in the case of
Ernest Hodel and Norma Dora Laurie, Bill S-5, to provide an
exception from the public general law relating to marriage in
the case of Benjamin Josheph Andrade and Heather Winni-
fred Andrade, Bill S-6, to provide an exception from the public
general law relating to marriage in the case of Juan Andrade
and Emilia Rodriquez, Bill S-7, to provide an exception from
the public general law relating to marriage in the case of Henri
Patry and Aldéa Béa Pitt, Bill S-8, to provide an exception
from the public general law relating to marriage in the case of
Joseph Roland Réjean Daoust and Marie Lise Sylvie Girard,
and Bill S-9, to provide an exception from the public general
law relating to marriage in the case of Pearl Kim Lee and Tho-
mas Siegfried Wieland, met this day at 3 p.m. to give consider-
ation to the bills and to consider the subject matter of the pub-
lic general law throughout Canada with respect to prohibitions
against marriage between related persons.

Senator Joan Neiman (Chairman) in the Chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, as you know, the Sen-
ate is sitting at 4 o’clock so this will be a comparatively short
meeting. We will be dealing with the numerous bills which are
before the committee, as well as with the general reference
which was made to the committee with respect to prohibitions
against marriage between related persons. The main purpose
for this meeting is to deal with both these subjects together
and to decide how we will handle future meetings of this com-
mittee. F

It was decided the other day when Senator Flynn was
present that perhaps just to help us in getting these matters
before us and, in particular, being able to deal with the bills,
that we would handle them together so that any evidence we
take with respect to either the specific bills or, on the other
hand, with respect to the reference or the more general topic,
could be deemed to be evidence that would be heard and used
with respect to whatever the other item might be before us.

Before we get into these matters in particular, I want to give
you a bit of information and make some general announce-
ments. As you know, we are now back to our old time frame of
sitting on Tuesday nights and probably Wednesday afternoons
for short periods, but it will be permissible to have committee
meetings later in the afternoon, and then again on Thursday.
With that in mind, we had to rearrange our time slot again in
order that it did not conflict with other committees on which
members of this committee also sit. I have gone back to the
first time slot that we have had for a number of years which is

36731—2

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le mercredi 28 mars 1984
[Traduction]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles, auquel ont été renvoyés le projet de loi S-2,
Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére
de mariage dans le cas de Gerald Harvey Fudge et Audrey
Marie Saunders; le projet de loi S-3, Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de
Louis Philippe Nadeau et Marie Thérése Rita Brilé; le projet
de loi S-4, Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit
en matiére de mariage dans le cas d’Ernest Hodel et Norma
Dora Laurie; le projet de loi S-5, Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de
Benjamin Josheph Andrade et Heather Winnifred Andrade; le
projet de loi S-6, Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de
droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de Juan Andrade et
Emilia Rodriquez; le projet de loi S-7, Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas
de Henri Patry et Aldéa Béa Pitt; le projet de loi S-8, Loi fai-
sant exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére de
mariage dans le cas de Joseph Réjean Daoust et Marie Lise
Sylvie Girard; et le projet de loi S-9, Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de
Pearl Kim Lee et Thomas Siegfried Wieland, se réunit
aujourd’hui 4 15 heures, pour étudier lesdits projets de loi ainsi
que la question des régles générales de droit au Canada sur
I'interdiction de mariage entre des personnes ayant un lien de
parenté.

Le sénateur Joan Neiman (président) occupe le fauteuil.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, comme vous le savez, le
Sénat siege a 16 heures; cette séance sera donc relativement
courte. Nous étudierons les nombreux projets de loi dont le
comité est saisi, ainsi que la question générale qui lui a été ren-
voyée, soit les interdictions de mariage entre personnes ayant
un lien de parenté. La présente séance a pour principal but de
traiter de ces deux sujets ensemble ainsi que de décider de
quelle fagon nous procéderons au cours des prochaines séances.

Il a été décidé I'autre jour, lorsque le sénateur Flynn était
présent, qu’il serait peut-étre utile de procéder & un examen
global de ces questions de sorte que les témoignages que nous
entendrons concernant, d’une part, les projets de loi en particu-
lier, ou d’autre part, les régles générales de droit, puissent étre
recueillis et utilisés lors de notre étude de 'une ou ’autre de
ces questions.

Avant de débuter, jaimerais vous communiquer certains
renseignements et faire quelques annonces d’ordre général.
Comme vous le savez, nous sommes revenus a notre ancien
horaire, c’est-d-dire que nous siégerons le mardi soir et proba-
blement le mercredi aprés-midi pendant une courte période,
mais il sera possible de siéger plus tard I'aprés-midi et de nou-
veau le jeudi. Dans cette optique, nous avons réorganisé nos
horaires afin qu’il n’y ait pas de conflits avec ceux des autres
comités dont font aussi partie nos membres. Je suis revenu a
I’horaire que nous avons eu pendant un certain nombre
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4 o’clock on Tuesday afternoons. That will now be our perma-
nent time slot. This committee may have a tremendous amount
of legislation before the end of this session. Therefore, it will
be quite in order for us to try for other time slots as we need
them. Thursday mornings at 9 o’clock will be open for any
committees that have legislation before them. Therefore, it is
possible that if we have a great deal of business before the
committee that will be the time that we will schedule our
second meeting of the week.

I should like you to keep in mind that we have only three
more weeks before the Easter break. Our break is usually of
one week'’s duration. I will be in Europe for the next two weeks
attending an inter-parliamentary meeting. I am grateful that
Senator Nurgitz, our Deputy Chairman, will be available to
preside over this committee during my absence.

The legislation which is presently before the committee is
Bills S-2 to S-9. I understand that you have received a notice
of the meeting which we are holding—it is an exception to the
general rule which I just mentioned—tomorrow morning at 11
o’clock. At that time we will be hearing Dr. Abby Lippman,
who is a very distinguished and well-known geneticist from
McGill University. She had made plans to be in Ottawa
tomorrow morning so it was quite fortuitous that we were able
to have her appear before our committee at 11 o’clock. Also
appearing tomorrow morning will be counsel representing vari-
ous parties covered by the bills that we will be considering.

In thinking about future witnesses on these matters, you
may want to wait until you have heard from Dr. Lippman
tomorrow before you decided whether you want to proceed
with the consideration of the particular bills. However, on the
broader question that the reference presents to us, we have
already heard from Dean Hubbard. He has agreed to come
back to speak to us on one particular question that will be of
interest to us, namely, the law with respect to adoptions and its
impact upon any possible changes that we would want to
make.

I think it might be advisable to await the testimony of Dr.
Lippman before deciding whether we want to hear any further
medical evidence. Mr. Bélisle, the clerk of the committee, has
been assured that if you hear one expert in this field of genet-
ics you are hearing the views of all of them. A great deal of
their research and conclusions depends on statistics alone and
they are all in agreement in those areas, as I understand it, but
I am sure that Dr. Lippman will speak to that point herself. It
may not be necessary for us to have any further medical evi-
dence.

On the moral and religious aspects, we have canvassed a
number of possible witnesses. I am going to ask Mr. Belisle to
speak to that because he has spoken to many representatives of
religious faiths, and he can give you a brief summary of what
he has learned and what possible course of action seems best
for us.

Mr. Paul Bélisle, Clerk of the Committee: Honourable sena-
tors, what I attempted to do, on the advice of the chairman,
was to try to get an expert witness or an umbrella group, who
would represent all of the churches and all of the various views

[Traduction)

d’'années, c’est-a-dire le mardi aprés-midi a 16 heures. Cet
horaire sera désormais permanent. Notre comité aura proba-
blement a étudier un nombre considérable de projets de loi
avant la fin de la présente session. Par conséquent, il faudra
sans doute essayer d’organiser des séances a d’autres heures,
selon les besoins. Le jeudi matin 4 9 heures sera réservé a tout
comité saisi d’un projet de loi. Par conséquent, si nos travaux
sont trop considérables, il sera possible de prévoir a cette
heure-1a une deuxiéme séance au cours de la semaine.

J'aimerais vous rappeler qu’il ne reste que trois semaines
avant le congé de Piques, qui est habituellement d’une
semaine. Je serai en Europe pendant les deux prochaines
semaines pour participer 4 une réunion interparlementaire. Je
remercie le sénateur Nurgitz, notre vice-président, de bien vou-
loir aussumer la présidence du comité durant mon absence.

Les projets de loi actuellement confiés au comité sont les
projets de loi S-2 & S-9. Vous avez sans doute regu I’avis con-
cernant la séance qui aura lieu demain matin 4 11 heures, qui
fait exception 4 la régle générale que je viens de mentionner.
Nous entendrons au cours de cette séance le docteur Abby
Lippman, éminente généticienne réputée de [I'université
McGill. Elle avait projeteé¢ de venir & Ottawa demain matin,
c’est donc par un heureux hasard que nous pourrons entendre
son témoignage 4 11 heures. Un avocat représentant diverses
parties aux projets de loi a I'étude comparaitra aussi demain
matin.

En ce qui concerne les futurs témoins, vous jugerez peut-étre
bon d’attendre d’avoir entendu le docteur Lippman demain
avant de décider si vous voulez passer a I’étude des projets de
loi en particulier. Toutefois, quant 4 la question des régles
générales de droit qui nous a été renvoyée, nous avons déja
entendu le doyen Hubbard a ce sujet. Il a accepté de revenir
nous parler de la question qui nous intéresse particulierement,
notamment, la loi en ce qui concerne les personnes liées par
I'adoption et les répercussions qu’elle pourrait avoir sur toute
modification que nous voudrions apporter.

Je suis d’avis qu’il serait peut-étre souhaitable d’entendre le
témoignage du docteur Lippman avant de décider d’inviter
d’autres spécialistes a ce sujet. On a assuré M. Bélisle, le gref-
fier du Comité, que si I'on entend le témoignage d’un spécia-
liste dans le domaine de la génétique, on connait I'opinion de
tous les autres. Une grande partie de leurs recherches et de
leurs conclusions s’appuient uniquement sur les statistiques, et
ils sont tous d’accord dans ces domaines, si je comprends bien;
mais je suis sir que le docteur Lippman vous en parlera elle-
méme. Il ne sera peut-étre pas nécessaire d’entendre le témoi-
gnage d’autres spécialistes.

En ce qui concerne I'aspect moral et religieux, nous avons
communiqué avec un certains nombre de témoins possibles. Je
demanderais 2 M. Bélisle de nous en parler, étant donné qu'’il
s’est entretenu avec des représentants de diverses religions et il
peut vous donner un résumé de ce qu’il a appris et vous dire
quelle semble étre la meilleure fagon de procéder.

M. Paul Bélisle, greffier du Comité: Honorables sénateurs,
j’ai essayé, sur les conseils du Président, de contacter un
témoin expert ou un groupe qui représenterait toutes les églises
et les divers points de vue, sans avoir & demander a chacune
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without asking each individual denomination to come before
the committee. I proceeded to call the Canadian Council of
Christians and Jews whose president is Dr. Victor Goldbloom
and he cautioned me about individual experts speaking for
denominations. He also said that the Canadian Council of
Christians and Jews was probably not the best avenue to take.
He suggested that I call on the Canadian Jewish Congress, the
Canadian Congress of Catholic Bishops, and the Canadian
Council of Churches for the Protestants, which I did.

I spoke to Rabbi Sternberg, the Executive Director of the
National Religious Department of the Canadian Jewish Con-
gress. He was very co-operative and suggested that, in order to
have credible testimoney which would be representative of the
Jewish faith, I should call on the Jewish Congress itself, and
they would take it upon themselves to do the research by call-
ing on whoever they thought were the experts in the field.
Some names of rabbis had been given to me by some of the
research staff, but Rabbi Sternberg suggested that I be careful
because they may represent their own personal views. He
invited this committee to write to the Jewish Congress. He said
representatives would be willing to appear before this commit-
tees

I spoke to Monsignor Murphy, the General Secretary of the
Canadian Conference of Catholic Bishops, and he too was very
co-operative. Again, with the same logic as Rabbi Sternberg,
he cautioned me about hearing from individuals who were not
truly representative of the Church itself. He did mention that
there were some experts in Ottawa. Mr. du Plessis mentioned
Professor Morrisey who is the Dean of Canon Law at the Uni-
versity of Ottawa. Monsignor Murphy said that the chances
are the conference will be asking experts such as Professor
Morrisey for their views, and if the committee invites the con-
ference to appear to present the views of the Catholic Church,
Dr. Morrisey would probably be one of the witnesses.

At the Canadian Council of Churches, which represents 12
churches of the Protestant denomination, I spoke to the Gen-
eral Secretary, Dr. Donald Anderson. He told me that it was
very difficult for the Council to speak for these Churches and,
because of the nature of the issue, it might be a time-consum-
ing process. He told me that this is an item which would not fit
easily into an agenda because of the question of timing. He
suggested the proper way to proceed would be to write to each
individual church such as the Anglican, the United and the
Presbyterian, which are the three largest groups. However, I
think the committee will also have to consider the views of the
Hindus, the Buddists and the Muslims, but that is for the com-
mittee to decide.

Senator Asselin: Did you mention anyone from the Catholic
Church?

Mr. Bélisle: Yes, the Canadian Conference of Catholic
Bishops, but they did not mention who would be their repre-
sentative. Because of the impending visit of the Pope, their
timetable is very busy. They were co-operative and are ready
to do anything they can for the committee.

[Traduction]

d’elles de comparaitre devant le comité. J’ai communiqué avec
le Conseil canadien des chrétiens et des juifs, dont le président
est M. Victor Goldbloom, et il m’a mis en garde contre les
témoignages de spécialistes parlant au nom de diverses confes-
sions religieuses. Il a aussi mentionné que le Conseil canadien
des chrétiens et des juifs n’était peut-étre pas le meilleur
recours. Il m’a suggéré de me mettre en rapport avec le Con-
gres juif canadien, la Conférence des évéques catholiques du
Canada et le Conseil canadien des églises pour les protestants,
ce que j’ai fait.

Jai parlé au rabbin Sternberg, directeur administratif du
département national religieux du Congrés juif canadien. 1l a
été trés coopératif et m’a suggéré d’appeler le Congrés juif lui-
méme, afin d’obtenir un témoignage digne de foi qui serait
représentatif de la religion juive, ajoutant que le Conseil serait
prét a entreprendre lui-méme des recherches en communiquant
avec des personnes qui, 4 son avis, sont des spécialists en la
mantiére. Certains noms de rabbins m’ont été communiqués
par le personnel du service de recherches mais M. Sternberg
m’a dit d’étre prudent parce que ces personnes pourraient ne
représenter que leur point de vue personnel. Il a invité le
comité a écrire au Congrés juif et a ajouté que ses représen-
tants seraient préts a comparaitre devant le comité.

Jai parlé & Monseigneur Murphy, secrétaire général de la
Conférence des évéques catholiques du Canada, qui s’est aussi
montré trés coopératif. Ici encore, pour les mémes raisons que
M. Sternberg, il a enjoint 4 la prudence face aux témoignages
de personnes qui ne sont pas de véritables représentants de
I’Eglise méme. Il m’a signalé qu’il y a certains spécialistes dans
ce domaine a Ottawa. Monsieur du Plessis a mentionné le pro-
fesseur Morrisey, doyen du droit canon a 'université d’Ottawa.
Monseigneur Murphy a dit que la Conférence demanderait
probablement I'opinion de spécialistes comme le professeur
Morrisey, et que si le comité invitait la Conférence & compa-
raitre pour obtenir le point de vue de I'Eglise catholique, M.
Morrisey serait probablement un des témoins.

Lorsque j’ai communiqué avec le Conseil canadien des Egli-
ses, qui représente douze Eglises de confession protestante, j’ai
parlé au secrétaire général, M. Donald Anderson. Il m’a dit
qu’il était tres difficile pour le Conseil de parler au nom de ces
églises et qu’en raison de la nature du probléme, ce pourrait
étre un processus trés long. Il m’a dit que c’est une question
qui se préte mal & une étude globale faute de temps. Selon lui,
le meilleur moyen de procéder serait d’écrire & chaque Eglise
en particulier, comme I’Eglise anglicane, I’Eglise unie et
I'Eglise presbytérienne, qui constituent les trois groupes les
plus importants. Toutefois, je suis d’avis que le comité devra
aussi tenir compte du point de vue des hindouistes, des boud-
histes et des musulmans, mais il revient au comité d’en décider.

Le sénateur Asselin: Avez-vous mentionné quelqu’un de
I’Eglise catholique?

M. Bélisle: Oui, la Conférence des évéques catholiques du
Canada, mais elle n’a pas dit qui serait son représentant. Leur
horaire est trés chargé en raison de la prochaine visite du Pape.
Les autorités compétentes se sont montrées trés coopératives et
sont prétes 4 faire tout leur possible pour le comité.
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The Chairman: Paul has advised that both the Jewish and
Catholic groups would be willing to send people here, but they
cannot do it next week or the week after.

They have also indicated that, if we prepare a list of ques-
tions, they would be willing to reply to us in the form answer-
ing those questions. If we feel we want to take that route, it
would obviate the necessity of their having to appear before us
within the next while.

We have to consider whether we wish to hear viva voce evi-
dence from these various groups. I think it would be almost
impossible to determine at this moment just how many people
we should hear from the Protestant grouping. I am sure there
are some statistics, but I would think that the Anglican, the
United and perhaps the Presbyterian churches—and perhaps
the Methodist church—represent 90 per cent of the Protestant
groups in Canada.

The difficulty we then have to deal with is having individu-
als speak for these particular religions. Certain priests or rab-
bis have their own very strict beliefs, and they may refuse mar-
riages between people of different denominations, whereas
others in the same religious group may feel quite differently.
Therefore, we cannot really depend on the individual point of
view. This is why I believe it is important to have a witness
who can speak in a general way.

I would ask your advice as to whether you want to set up
meetings where these people can appear, which, I suggest, may
take a matter of weeks; or whether we should prepare a ques-
tionnaire. Perhaps some members would volunteer their ser-
vices in order to draft a questionnaire which could be sent out
to these various denominations asking them to return it to us
within a particular time frame. We would probably have to
give them a couple of weeks. Perhaps we could suggest that
they try to have the responses to the questionnaire back to us
before the Easter weekend. We would them be in a position to
consider these briefs or submissions when we return.

I should like to get the views of the committee in this regard.

Senator Buckwold: I think you are on the right track, but I
caution you that you should not leave out any group which has
any kind of reasonable religious representation in this country.
It is just as important to hear from the Hindus and the Mus-
lims as it is to hear from the major denominations. I would
also suggest that certain fundamentalist Churches take this
issue even more seriously than anyone else and that these kinds
of people should also be approached.

If we prepare a questionnaire in which we outline the
present situation with a series of questions as to how it might
be changed and asking for comments, and send it to repre-
sentatives of as many groups as we can find, they would then
have the.opportunity to respond. In that instance, they would
not have to appear unless we asked them to do so.

However, this is not something that is going to happen in a
week or two. It is a very complicated, difficult and sensitive
area. You want to make sure that as many as possible would
have an opportunity to respond.

[Traduction]

Le président: Paul nous a dit que les groupes juif et catholi-
que étaient préts a nous envoyer des témoins, mais pas aussi tot
que la semaine prochaine ou la semaine suivante.

Ils ont aussi laissé entendre que si nous préparions une liste
de questions, ils seraient préts 4 y répondre. Si nous croyons
que c’est un bon moyen, cela éviterait la nécessité de les inviter
a comparaitre devant nous, du moins pour un certain temps.

Nous devons donc décider si nous voulons entendre de vive
voix les témoignages de ces divers groupes. J'estime qu’il est
presque impossible a ce stade-ci, de déterminer exactement
combien de personnes du groupe protestant devraient étre
entendues. Je suis sir qu'’il existe certaines statistiques, mais je
crois que les Eglises anglicane, unie et peut-étre presbyté-
rienne—ainsi que probablement I'Eglise méthodisre—repré-
sentent 90 p. 100 des fideles de confession protestante au
Canada.

La difficulté consiste donc a entendre des personnes qui
s’expriment au nom de ces religions particuliéres. Certains pré-
tres ou rabbins ont des idées trés strictes, et ils peuvent refuser
le mariage entre des personnes de différentes confession, tandis
que d’autres, tout en faisant partie du méme groupe religieux
peuvent avoir un point de vue diamétralement opposé. Par con-
séquent, nous ne pouvons en réalité nous fier 4 des opinions
individuelles. C’est pourquoi je suis d’avis qu’il est important
d’entendre un témoin qui peut parler d’une fagon générale.

J’aimerais savoir si vous voulez inviter ces personnes a com-
paraitre et prévoir des séances en conséquence, ce qui peut
prendre plusieurs semaines ou si vous voulez préparer un ques-
tionnaire. Certains membres du Comité voudront peut-étre
offrir leurs services afin de préparer un projet de questionnaire
qui pourra étre envoyé 4 ces divers groupes, leur demandant de
nous le retourner dans un certain délai. Nous devrons proba-
blement leur accorder environ deux semaines. Nous pourrions
peut-étre aussi suggérer qu'ils essaient de nous retourner le
questionnaire avant Piques. Nous serions alors en mesure
d’étudier ces mémoires ou soumissions a notre retour.

J’aimerais obtenir le point de vue du comité a ce sujet.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Je crois que vous étes sur la bonne
voie, mais il faudra faire attention de n’oublier aucun groupe
religieux ayant un nombre raisonnable d’adeptes dans notre
pays. Il est tout aussi important des représentants des hin-
douistes et des musulmans que les porte-parole des principaux
groupes religieux. J’aimerais aussi signaler que certaines sectes
fondamentalistes accordent plus d’importance a cette question
que toutes les autres, et qu’elles devraient aussi étre contactées.

Si nous préparions un questionnaire exposant la situation
actuelle, avec une série de questions sur la fagon de I'améliorer
et que nous le faisions parvenir aux représentants du plus
grand nombre possible de groupes en leur demandant de nous
faire part de leurs commentaires, ceux-ci auraient alors I'occa-
sion d’y répondre. Dans ce cas, ils n’auraient pas a comparai-
tre, & moins que nous ne leur demandions.

Toutefois, cela ne peut se faire dans une semaine ou deux. Il
s’agit d’une question a la fois compliquée, difficile et délicate.
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Senator Robichaud: Madam Chairman, I think the com-
ments of Senator Buckwold are well taken. It is a religious
issue. We find more and more that religion does not mean as
much as it did before. Please do not misinterpret my comment.
If the whole issue were based on medical reasons, and if it
could be proven to the various religious groups that, from a
purely medical point of view, there is absolutely nothing wrong
with approving of what we may or may not do, I do not know
what the outcome might be. Perhaps the religious groups
would hesitate to come before the committee because it would
be their view that there is medical evidence to the effect that
nothing would happen that would run counter to their own
particular faith. This is what I am asking the members of the
committee to consider. It is not a question of religion. It is a
medical question. We can invite representatives of all the reli-
gions that exist in Canada, but will they or will they not help
our committee?

In conclusion, it seems to me that we need medical expertise
on this matter. After we have had that, then we would be bet-
ter able to make a decision.

Senator Nurgitzz Madam Chairman, I assume that the evi-
dence we will hear tomorrow morning at 11 o’clock will put
that matter to rest.

My view is simply this: the Catholic Council of Bishops and
the Canadian Jewish Congress appear to be willing to send
representatives before this committee. Other religious denomi-
nations seem to be somewhat fragmented on the issue. I do not
want to sound as though I am against the 12 Protestant faiths,
but I do not think it would be difficult to prepare a question-
naire for them and for the Muslims, Hindus, Buddhists and
anyone else. That questionnaire could, first, recite the general
law as it is now; secondly, state that this committee is consider-
ing recommending a change to the law, and thirdly, make a
request that they express to us their views, whether they be
moral or religious, on these proposed changes. In that way, we
would have heard from everybody.

[ think we should hear some viva voce evidence. To that end,
two groups want to appear before the committee. If, later on,
the Protestants decide that they can get their act together and
make a presentation in some form before this committee, we
could hear from them as well.

The Chairman: Are you suggesting, Senator Nurgitz, that
you would like such a questionnaire to go out to everyone but
that you still want to hear viva voce evidence from the repre-
sentatives of those two groups?

Senator Nurgitz: Yes, Madam Chairman. As to the two who
have indicated that they are willing to send someone to testify
before this committee, frankly, it is not that important that
they receive the questionnaire. I suggested the questionnaire as
a means by which we could hear from the other faiths. Just
because they may be smaller in number does not mean that

[Traduction]

Il faudra s’assurer que le plus grand nombre possible de grou-
pes ou de personnes aient I’occasion de faire connaitre leur opi-
nion.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Madame le président, les observa-
tions du sénateur Buckwold sont trés pertinentes. Il s’agit
d’une question religieuse. Nous constatons de plus en plus que
la religion n’a pas la place qu’elle occupait auparavant. Je vous
en prie, n'interprétez pas mal mes propos. Si toute la question
donc reposait sur des raisons médicales, et si on pouvait prou-
ver aux divers groupes religieux que, d’'un point de vue pure-
ment médical, il n’y a absolument rien de mal & approuver ou a
désapprouver certains agissements, j’ignore ce qui se passerait.
Peut-étre que les groupes religieux hésiteraient 4 comparaitre
devant le comité parce que, a leur avis, il est prouvé médicale-
ment que rien ne pourrait s’opposer a leurs croyances particu-
litres. Je demande aux membres du comité d’examiner cet
aspect du probléme. Ce n’est pas une question de religion mais
une question médicale. Nous pouvons inviter des représentants
de toutes les religions du Canada, mais aideront-ils ou non
notre comité?

En conclusion, il me semble que nous avons besoin de con-
naissances médicales sur cette question; nous serons ensuite
mieux placés pour prendre une décision.

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Madame le président, je suppose que le
témoignage que nous entendrons demain matin a 11 heures
réglera la question.

Mon point de vue est le suivant: Le Conseil catholique des
évéques et le Congrés juif canadien semblent consentir a
envoyer des représentants devant notre comité. Les autres con-
fessions religieuses semblent étre quelque peu divisées sur la
question. Je ne veux pas avoir I'air d’étre contre les 12 Eglises
protestantes, mais je ne crois pas qu’il serait difficile de prépa-
rer un questionnaire a leur intention ainsi que pour les musul-
mans, les Hindous, les boudhistes et qui que ce soit d’autre. Ce
questionnaire pourrait en premier lieu, citer le droit en général,
tel qu'il existe actuellement; il pourrait préciser ensuite que le
comité envisage de recommander une modification 4 la loi, et
demander enfin a ces diverses confessions de nous faire connai-
tre leurs opinions, morales ou religieuses, a I'égard de ces
modifications projetées. De cette fagon, nous aurions entendu
tout le monde.

Je pense que nous devons entendre quelques témoignages
oraux et, a cette fin, deux groupes désirent comparaitre devant
le comité. Ultérieurement, si les protestants décident de
s’entendre pour rédiger un seul mémoire et le présenter devant
notre comité, nous pourrions également les entendre.

Le président: Voulez-vous dire, sénateur Nurgitz, que vous
aimeriez que ce questionnaire soit adressé a tout le monde,
tout en désirant cependant entendre le témoignage oral des
représentants de ces deux groupes?

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Oui, madame le président. Quant aux
deux groupes qui ont déclaré consentir a envoyer quelqu’un
pour témoigner devant le comité, franchement, il n’est pas tel-
lement important qu’ils regoivent le questionnaire. Ce dernier
nous permettrait d’avoir I'avis des autres confessions. Ce n’est
pas par ce qu'elle comptent un plus petit nombre d’adeptes
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they do not have as much concern over this matter, and they
should be heard from.

I have outlined what I think the questionnaire ought to con-
tain and I think we should put a time limit on the recepit of
any responses to it. | would suggest the Easter break.

The Chairman: The Catholic group and the Jewish group
have both volunteered to send people in, but I think it would be
helpful to them, in preparing their presentations, if they were
also sent a questionnaire. I could have Mr. Macdonald prepare
a draft letter by tomorrow morning so that the committee
members can examine it and amend it, if they so wish.

Senator Nurgitz: | will just conclude by emphasizing,
Madam Chairman, that I think we ought to make it clear in
the questionnaire that we are looking at a change in the
present law.

The Chairman: Yes, [ agree that that should go into the let-
ter by way of explanation. I think we should then list a few
questions that we would like them to answer.

Senator Lewis: Perhaps it would be feasible to send along
with that questionnaire a copy of the evidence that Professor
Hubbard has given, and perhaps the evidence which will be
given tomorrow, to aid them in their approach.

The Chairman: That is an excellent idea, senator. The Han-
sard report of Professors Hubbard’s testimony has already
been prepared and we can send that along with the letter,
while the other testimony could be sent to them as soon as w
receive it. '

Do honourable senators think that it would be reasonable to
set a time limit of, say, the Easter weekend, by which time we
would appreciate hearing from them?

Senator Nurgitz: Sure.

Senator Stanbury: Madam Chairman, in trying to find some
way of “getting the Protestant act together,” as Senator Nur-
gitz has said, I will say that I can understand the reluctance on
the part of the Canadian Council of Churches to take the
initiative on this, because that is quite a loose federation. How-
ever, the Protestant Churches, or many of them, co-operate in
the School of Religious Studies at the University of Toronto,
for instance. My suspicion is that it would be quite possible
and, I think, reasonably authentic, to have appear before us a
professor of comparative religion, or some such designation,
from the School of Religious Studies at the University of
Toronto or one of the other universities. I am simply trying to
find some way of bringing the thing together.

The Chairman: We will explore that matter, yes. I believe
that was the point that Mr. Bélisle spoke to. He felt that he
simply could not speak for the individual denominations and
that he would have to get in touch with each one of them sepa-
rately. He will supply us with an entire list of them.

Senator Stanbury: All I am suggesting is that most of the
Protestant groups do accept the teaching of that body of
professors, so that it does have a certain authoritative position.

[Traduction)

qu’elles ne se préoccupent pas tout autant de la question, et il
faut les entendre.

J'ai établi les grandes lignes du questionnaire et je pense que
nous devrions fixer un délai pour la réception des réponses. Je
propose les vacances de Paques.

Le président: Le groupe catholique et le groupe juif ont pro-
posé d’envoyer des représentants, mais je crois qu'il serait utile
de leur faire parvenir également un questionnaire pour les
aider a préparer leur exposé. Je demanderais & M. Macdonald
de rédiger un projet de lettre pour demain matin de sorte que
les membres du comité pourraient ’examiner et le modifier
s’ils le désirent.

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Madame le président, je terminerai en
insistant sur le nécessité, selon moi, d’indiquer clairement dans
le questionnaire que nous voulons modifier la loi actuelle.

Le président: Oui, il faudrait le mentionner dans la lettre a
titre d’explication. Nous devrions ensuite énumérer quelques
questions auxquelles nous aimerions qu’on réponde.

Le sénateur Lewis: Pour les aider, peut-étre serait-il possible
d’envoyer avec ce questionnaire un exemplaire du témoignage
du professeur Hubbard et, éventuellement, une copie du témoi-
gnage que nous entendrons demain.

Le président: C’est une excellente idée, sénateur. Le rapport
paru au hansard du témoignage du professeur Hubbard a déja
été rédigé et nous pouvons I’envoyer avec la lettre. En ce qui
concerne l'autre témoignage, nous pourrions le leur adresser
dés que nous le recevrons.

Les honorables sénateurs sont-ils d’avis qu’il serait raisonna-
ble de fixer un délai de reprise, disons la fin de semaine de
Paques?

Le sénateur Nurgitz: Certainement.

Le sénateur Stanbury: Madame le président, en essayant de
trouver un moyen 4 amener les protestants a s’entendre pour
rédiger un seul mémoire, comme I'a dit le sénateur Nurgitz, je
dirai que je comprends la répugnance du Conseil canadien des
églises a prendre cette initiative car il s’agit d’une fédération
trés lache. Cependant, les églises protestantes, ou un grand
nombre d’entres elles, collaborent au sein de I'Ecole des études
religieuses 4 I'université de Toronto, par exemple. Je pense
qu’il serait trés possible de faire comparaitre un professeur de
cette Ecole, ou d’une autre université, dont le témoignage
serait raisonnablement authentique en matieére de religion
comparée ou autre désignation de ce genre. Je suis simplement
en train d’essayer de trouver une fagon d’opérer.

Le président: Oui, nous étudierons la question. Je pense que
M. Bélisle I'avait déja abordée. Il était d’avis qu’il lui était
impossible de parler au nom de confessions particuliéres et
qu’il devrait se mettre en rapport avec chacune d’elles séparé-
ment. Il nous en fournira une liste compléte.

Le sénateur Stanbury: Tout ce que je crois pouvoir dire,
c’est que la plupart des groupes protestants acceptant I’ensei-
gnement de ce corps de professeurs, de sorte qu’il est investi
d’une certain autorité.
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The Chairman: We will follow up on that point because that
would really help us with respect to the different Protestant
groups.

Are there any other aspects to this problem that honourable
senators wish to raise?

Senator Buckwold: Do we have any information as to how
this matter is handled by statute in the United Kingdom, Aus-
tralia, or the United States?

The Chairman: Professor Hubbard spoke about that, but I
believe that you were not here, senator.

Senator Buckwold: I was away that day.

The Chairman: Yes, and we have copies of the Australian
amendment of the law, which would be of some use to us.

Senator Buckwold: Can we learn anything from what has
been done in those countries?

The Chairman: Yes, I believe so, and it is on record. As
Senator Nurgitz has indicated, Professor Hubbard would like
to return before this committee towards the end of these hear-
ings, in case we should have other legal questions to put to him
at that time.

Senator Buckwold: Madam Chairman, I have just one other
comment to make. Though it is desirable to receive the
responses from the questionnaire as soon as possible, 1 think
that the deadline of the Easter weekend—which is only three
weeks away—is unreasonable. We have to consider that it will
take some time before the questionnaire is sent out. I presume
that, in order to answer the questionnaire, somebody in the
hierarchy will have to get together with others in setting down
their position. I do not think that any one person would take it
upon himself to respond. I suggest that we might need, per-
haps, an extra month’s time or people might feel that they are
being rushed.

The Chairman: 1 would like to suggest that deadline to the
recipients of the questionnaire. We cannot demand it, of
course. I would merely like to suggest that deadline to them,
because it is not only a question or our dealing with the matter
and preparing the necessary legislation, but it is also a question
of finding the time to get it through the other place.”I would
hope that we could accomplish that before the end of this ses-
sion. We simply cannot have it too long and still hope to get it
through the House of Commons. [ know that Mr. Bélisle will
keep in touch with those who receive the questionnaire and, if
they can get their replies in, we will then table them as they
arrive.

Senator Buckwold: I would hate to put people off, however,
because of a deadline which is too stringent.

The Chairman: I have no doubt that we will concurrently be
dealing with other matters while we are waiting for replies.

Senator Stollery: Madame Chairman, with Easter only
three weeks away, it would appear to be somewhat unrealistic
to expect anyone to respond by then.

The Chairman: Hopefully we can have the letter out either
tomorrow or by March 30. The Monday after we return from
the Eastern recess is April 30. That gives us one full month.

[Traduction)

.Le président: Nous étudierons cette question car cela nous
aiderait grandement en ce qui concerne les différents groupes
protestants,

Il a-t-il d’autres aspects de ce probléme que les honorables
sénateurs désirent aborder?

Le sénateur Buckwold: Possédons-nous des renseignements
sur l_es lois du Royaume-Uni, de I’Australie ou des Etats-Unis
relativement a cette question?

Le président: Le professeur Hubbard en a parlé, mais je
crois que vous n’étiez pas ici, sénateur.

Le sénateur Buckwold: J’étais absent ce jour la.

Le président: Oui, et nous avons des copies de la modifica-
tiion australienne de la loi qui pourrait nous étre utile.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Pouvons-nous tirer quelque chose de
ce qui a été fait dans ces pays?

Le président: Oui, je le crois, et c’est au proces-verbal.
Comme le sénateur Nurgitz I’a indiqué, le professeur Hubbard
désirerait revenir devant notre comité vers la fin des audiences,
au cas ou nous aurions alors d’autres questions juridiques a lui
poser.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Madame le président, je voudrais
simplement formuler une autre remarque. Bien qu’il soit sou-
haitable de recevoir dés que possible les réponses au question-
naire, je pense que le délai fixé 4 la fin de semaine de Paques—
C’est-a-dire dans trois semaines seulement—est déraisonnable.
N’oublions pas qu’il faudra un certain temps avant que le
questionnaire soit expédié. Pour y répondre, je pense que cer-
tains membres de la hiérarchie devant se rencontrer pour éta-
blir leur position. Je ne crois pas que quelqu’un prendrait la
responsabilité de répondre isolément. A mon avis, nous pour-
rions peut-étre avoir besoin d’un mois supplémentaire, sinon les
intéressés pourraient avoir I'impression qu’on les presse.

Le président: Je voudrais proposer ce délai aux destinataires
du questionnaire. Bien entendu, nous ne pouvons pas I'exiger.
Je ne ferais que le leur proposer parce qu’il ne s’agit pas sim-
plement de traiter la question et de préparer le projet de loi
nécessaire, mais nous devons également trouver le temps de le
transmettre a4 l'autre endroit. J'espére que nous pourrons
accomplir tout cela avant la fin de la présente session. Il ne
nous est pas possible d’attendre trop longtemps et d’espérer
faire passer le projet de loi @ la Chambre des communes. Je
sais que M. Bélisle demeurera en contact avec les destinataires
du questionnaire et, s'il nous est possible d’obtenir les réponses,
nous les déposerons au fur et 4 mesure qu’elles arriveront.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Je ne voudrais toutefois pas empé-
cher qu’on réponde & cause d’un délai trop strict.

Le président: Je suis certain que nous nous occuperons
d’autres affaires tout en attendant les réponses.

Le sénateur Stollery: Madame le président, il est quelque
peu irréaliste d’espérer avoir une réponse avant Paques qui
tombe dans trois semaines.

Le président: Nous pourrons sans doute expédier la lettre
demain ou d’ici le 30 mars. Le premier lundi aprés notre retour
des vacances de Paques sera le 30 avril. Cela nous donne donc
un mois plein.
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Senator Asselin: On the last occasion that we met, it was
mentioned that we would be introducing a private bill on this
very question. It might be useful if, in addition to the question-
naire, the witnesses could have an idea of the sort of amend-
ment we are proposing. I understand that Mr. du Plessis
already has a draft of a proposed bill. Would it be possible to
send a copy of that draft with the questionnaire and to ask the
witnesses to make their comments?

The Chairman: My hesitation arises from the fact that Dean
Hubbard has recommended that we do not follow precisely the
Australian model, for reasons that he has indicated to us and
on which he wishes to elaborate. It is possible that before we
actually prepare our proposed bill, we will want to give con-
sideration to the differences. One of the differences may deal
with the question of adoption.

Senator Asselin: We could decide to table a draft of the
legislation after we receive replies from the various Churches.
We shall have to have those replies before we deal with any
decision we might have in mind.

The Chairman: We could ask Mr. du Plessis to circulate
copies of the draft bill that he has.

Senator Asselin: But not to do it officially.

The Chairman: That’s right. But if we were to prepare a bill,
we could drop the reference as such, and deal with the pro-
posed bill itself. We can amend our own bill as we go along, if
we discover that the wording is not to our liking. Once we have
heard all of the evidence, we could go back to the Senate and
recommend changes to the bill that we introduce. That is a
possible method. In terms of dealing with the matter in an
expeditious manner, I agree with the comments that have been
made. We do not want to have to repeat a number of steps.

Senator Lewis: | agree with what Senator Asselin has said,
but if people receive what looks like a proposed bill, they might
think it is the actual bill.

The Chairman: No; it would clearly be a draft.

Senator Lewis: I would prefer that we indicate to them how
we feel the amendment should be.

The Chairman: We could simply say in our letter that we
are contemplating changing this particular provision. We can
then deal with the bill itself in the next week or two. Tomorrow
we should have a draft letter and questionnaire to present to
the members of the committee, and we can then decide
whether it is in order to be sent out. We shall have a list of the
different religious denominations to which we shall address it,
and we can add to the list if necessary.

On another point, there was a motion in the Senate referring
to this committee a document entitled “Proposals to correct
certain anomalies, inconsistencies, archaisms and errors and to
deal with other matters of a non-controversial and uncom-
plicated nature in the Statutes of Canada”. Members will
recall that when we have had similar documents in the past we
have sometimes received them at the very last moment and we
have had little opportunity to deal with them. I would like to

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Asselin: Lors de notre derniére séance, il avait
été précisé que nous présenterions un projet de loi privé sur
cette question. En plus du questionnaire, il pourrait étre utile
que les témoins aient une idée du genre de modification que
nous envisageons. Je crois savoir que M. du Plessis possede
déja un brouillon du projet de loi. Serait-il possible d’en
envoyer une copie avec le questionnaire et de demander aux
témoins de formuler des observations 4 son sujet?

Le président: Mon hésitation tient au fait que M. Dean
Hubbard a recommandé que nous ne suivions pas exactement
le modele australien pour les raisons qu'il nous a indiquées et
sur lesquelles il désire donner des précisions. Il est possible
qu’avant de rédiger notre projet de loi, nous voulions examiner
les différences. L’une d’entre elles peut avoir trait 4 la question
de I’adoption.

Le sénateur Asselin: Nous pourrions décider de déposer un
projet de loi aprés réception des réponses des diverses églises. 11
nous les faudra avant de prendre des décisions.

Le président: Nous pouvons demander a M. du Plessis de
distribuer des copies de son projet de loi.

Le sénateur Asselin: Mais pas officiellement.

Le président: C’est exact. Toutefois, si nous devons rédiger
un projet de loi, nous pourrions ne pas y faire référence, mais
nous en occuper comme tel. Au fur et & mesure que nous pro-
gresserons, nous pourrons amender notre propre projet de loi si
nous découvrons que le libellé ne nous plait pas. Lorsque nous
aurons entendu tous les témoignages, nous pourrions revenir
devant le Sénat et proposer des amendements au projet de loi
que nous présentons. C’est une méthode possible. Pour ce qui
est de procéder de fagon expéditive, je suis d’accord avec les
remarques qui ont été formulées. Nous ne voulons pas répéter
un certain nombre de démarches.

Le sénateur Lewis: Je suis d’accord avec la déclaration du
sénateur Asselin, mais si les gens recoivent un document qui
ressemble 4 un projet de loi, ils peuvent croire qu’il s’agit du
projet de loi lui-méme.

Le président: Non, ce serait manifestement un brouillon.

Le sénateur Lewis: Je préférerais que nous leur indiquions
ce que nous voulons comme amendement.

Le président: Nous pourrions simplement indiquer dans
notre lettre que nous entendons modifier cette disposition par-
ticuliére. Nous pourrions ensuite passer au projet de loi dans
une semaine ou deux. Demain, nous devrions avoir un projet de
lettre et de questionnaire 4 soumettre aux membres du Comité
et nous pourrons alors décider s’il y a lieu de '’expédier. Nous
aurons une liste des différentes confessionnalités auxquelles ce
projet sera envoyé et, au besoin, nous augmenterons la liste.

Sur un autre plan, on a proposé au Sénat une motion qui
renvoyait 4 ce comité un document intitulé «Propositions visant
a corriger des anomalies, incompatibilités, archaismes et
erreurs dans les statuts du Canada ainsi qu’a y effectuer
d’autres modifications mineures et non controversables». Les
membres se rappelleront que lorsque nous avons regu des docu-
ments semblables dans le passé, ils nous parvenaient souvent a
la derniére minute et que nous avions peu de temps pour les
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suggest that we follow the procedure that was followed suc-
cessfully on the last occasion, when the late Senator G. I.
Smith took the responsibility of going through the bill with the
assistance of our legal council and a representative of the
research branch of the Parliamentary library. An effective and
careful presentation was made to this committee and areas
that needed correction were brought to our attention. A valu-
able service was performed and I would suggest that we follow
that procedure.

Senator Asselin: This committee could do it quite easily.

The Chairman: Senator, we believe in being democratic and
allowing someone else the glory and responsibility of par-
ticipating. Can I have a volunteer who will work with our legal
counsel on this matter?

Senator Asselin: I propose Senator Lewis.

The Chairman: We should also have a senator from the
opposition party. I believe that Senator Tremblay would be an
excellent representative, if he would agree. Would you be pre-
pared to work with him, Senator Lewis? Would you volunteer?

Senator Lewis: I believe that Senator Tremblay would be
the better person. I believe this is something that only one per-
son can do.

The Chairman: I would like to include a distinguished law-
yer. We will take a vote, if necessary. I would like to recom-
mend Senator Lewis and Senator Tremblay. You will receive
great support from our legal counsel. We will have them look
at it and we can deal with the matter in due course.

Senator Lewis: When will that happen?

The Chairman: We will have a better idea tomorrow but I
think you need three weeks, so perhaps it will be after Easter. I
see no point in rushing it through before then. Most of the cor-
rections are self-evident but, if experience holds true, there will
be several rather more important amendments to suggest. I
think you should be allowed several weeks to look at it and to
report back to the committee.

If there is no further business, I will see you tomorrow
morning at 11 o’clock.

The committee adjourned.

Ottawa, Thursday, March 29, 1984

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs to which was referred Bill S-2, to provide an
exception from the public general law relating to marriage in
the case of Gerald Harvey Fudge and Audrey Marie Saunders,
Bill S-3, to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Louis Phillipe Nadeau and
Marie Thérese Rita Brulé, Bill S-4, to provide an exception
from the public general law relating to marriage in the case of
Ernest Hodel and Norma Dora Laurie, Bill S-5, to provide an

[Traduction]

étudier. J'aimerais proposer que nous suivions la méme ligne
de conduite que celle qui a été appliquée avec succés la der-
niére fois, alors que le regretté sénateur G. I. Smith s’est
chargé d’étudier le projet de loi d’un bout a I'autre, avec I'aide
de notre conseiller juridique et d’un représentant du service de
recherches de la Bibliothéque du Parlement. Ils ont ensuite
présenté un document bien étoffé au Comité et les points
nécessitant des modifications furent soumis 4 notre attention.
Cela nous a été trés utile et je propose que nous adoptions la
méme démarche.

Le sénateur Asselin: Le Comité pourrait facilement s’en
occuper.

Le président: Sénateur, nous voulons procéder de fagon
démocratique et laisser & d’autres la gloire et la responsabilité
de participer. Y a-t-il un volontaire disposé a travailler avec
notre conseiller juridique?

Le sénateur Asselin: Je propose le sénateur Lewis.

Le président: 1l faudrait aussi un représentant de I'opposi-
tion. A mon avis, le sénateur Tremblay serait un excellent
choix, s’il accepte. Etes-vous disposé a travailler avec lui, séna-
teur Lewis? Etes-vous volontaire?

Le sénateur Lewis: Je crois que le sénateur Tremblay ferait
mieux l’affaire. A mon avis, ce travail doit étre confié a une
seule personne.

Le président: J’aimerais avoir la participation d’un éminent
juriste. Au besoin, nous voterons. J’aimerais recommander le
sénateur Lewis et le sénateur Tremblay. Vous aurez tout le
soutien nécessaire de notre conseiller juridique. Nous vous con-
fierons le travail et nous reverrons la question au moment
voulu.

Le sénateur Lewis: Ce sera quand?

Le président: Nous en aurons une meilleure idée demain,
mais j’estime qu’il vous faudra trois semaines; donc ce sera
peut-étre aprés Pdques. Je ne vois pas de raison de se presser
avant cette date. La plupart des corrections 4 apporter sont
évidentes mais, si I'expérience se confirme, il y aura aussi plu-
sieurs amendements plus importants 4 proposer. A mon avis, il
vous faudra plusieurs semaines pour procéder a I’étude et faire
rapport au Comité.

S’il n’y a rien d’autre, je vous reverrai demain matin a 11
heures.
Le Comité suspend ses travaux.

Ottawa, le jeudi 29 mars 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles auquel ont été renvoyés le projet de loi S-2,
Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére
de mariage dans le cas de Gerald Harvey Fudge et Audrey
Marie Saunders; le projet de loi S-3, Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de
Louis Philippe Nadeau et Marie Thérése Rita Brulé; le projet
de loi S-4, Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit
en matiére de mariage dans le cas d’Ernest Hodel et Norma
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exception from the public general law relating to marriage in
the case of Benjamin Josheph Andrade and Heather Winni-
fred Andrade, Bill S-6, to provide an exception from the public
genral law relating to marriage in the case of Juan Andrade
and Emilia Rodriquez, Bill S-7, to provide an exception from
the public general law relating to marriage in the case of Henri
Party and Aldéa Béa Pitt, Bill S-8, to provide an exception
from the public general law relating in marriage in the case of
Joseph Roland Réjean Daoust and Marie Lise Sylvie Girard,
and Bill S-9, to provide an exception from the public general
law relating in marriage in the case of Pearl Kim Lee and Tho-
mas Siegfried Wieland, met this day at 11.10 a.m. to give con-
sideration to the bills and to consider the subject matter of the
public general law throughout Canada with respect to prohibi-
tions against marriage between related persons.

Senator Joan Neiman (Chairman) in the chair.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, we are very fortunate
to have appearing before our committee on such short notice
Dr. Abby Lippman who received her baccalaureate at Cornell
University and then a PhD at McGill University. She is a fel-
low of the Canadian College of Medical Geneticists. She is
currently an associate professor at McGill University in the
Department of Epidemiology and Health and the Centre for
Human Genetics. She is a national health research scholar
with the Department of National Health and Welfare, and a
gentic counsellor at the Montreal Children’s Hospital. Dr.
Lippman has been recommended to us by other eminent
geneticists as well. I believe she is well qualified to speak to the
question that we are now considering. Dr. Lippman has been
provided with the background materiala that we have, such’ as
copies of the bills, copies of the research and Professor Hub-
bard’s testimony. Therefore, she is cognizant of what we are
considering at the moment and will be in a position to help us
in our consideration of these marriage bills and the general ref-
erence that has been made to us.

Dr. Abby Lippman, Geneticist, McGill University: Thank
you, Madam Chairman. It is a great honour for me to appear
before this committee and I thank you for inviting me. I would
like to take advantage of the opportunity to make a brief intro-
ductory statement and to make a few general remarks on some
selected issues that seem to me pertinent to consanguineous
marriages. I will restrict my comments to medical genetic
issues even though these are not always easily separable from
the social, psychological, moral and legal questions that these
marriages pose. Furthermore, while the bills before you per-
tain also to marriages prohibited by affinity relationships, I
will not comment on them because they do not raise any gen-
etic issues. If you have any questions in that regard, I will be
happy to answer them.

At a previous meeting of this committee,.one of the senators
asked if there was any basis for the fact that the currently pro-
hibited consanguineous marriages have ‘“‘eugenic problems”
attached to them. I would like to try to answer this question
and to explain why responding precisely to it is difficult. In so
doing, let me emphasize that I am going to make a distinction
between a marriage and what geneticists, perhaps somewhat
infelicitously, refer to as a mating. 1 will focus on the issue of

[Traduction)

Dora Laurie; le projet de loi S-5, Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de
Benjamin Josheph Andrade et Heather Winnifred Andrade; le
project de loi S-6, Loi faisant exception au régles générales de
droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de Juan Andrade et
Emilia Rodriguez; le projet de loi S-7, Loi faisant exception
aux régles de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de Henri
Patry et Aldéa Béa Pitt; le projet de loi S-8, Loi faisant excep-
tion aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Joseph Réjean Daoust et Marie Lise Sylvie Girard, et
le projet de loi S-9, Loi faisant exception aux régles générales
de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de Pearl Kim Lee et
Thomas Siegfried Wieland se réunit aujourd’hui a 11 h pour
étudier lesdits projets de loi et les régles générales de droit du
Canada concernant I'interdiction de mariage entre parents.

Le sénateur Joan Neiman (président) occupe le fauteil.

Le président: Honorables sénateurs, nous sommes honorés
d’avoir avec nous aujourd’hui une invitée de derniére minute,
M™ Abby Lippman, titulaire d'un baccalauréat de I'université
Cornell et d’un doctorat de 'université McGill. Elle est mem-
bre du Collége canadien des généticiens-médicaux, professeur
agréé a 'université McGill, au département d’épidémiologie et
de santé ainsi qu’au centre de génétique humaine. Elle pourr-
suit également des travaux de recherche pour le ministére de la
Santé nationale et du Bien-étre social et est conseiller en géné-
tique au Children’s Hospital de Montréal. M™ Lippman nous
a été recommandée par d’autres éminents géniticiens. Je crois
qu'elle est hautement qualifiée pour traiter des questions a
I’étude. Comme on a fourni la documentation que nous avons
en main, notamment les exemplaires des projets de loi 4 I'étude
ainsi que I'article et le témoignage du professeur Hubbard, elle
est au courrant de 'objet de notre étude et sera bien placée
pour nous aider 4 examiner 4 la fois ces projets de loi particu-
liers et le sujet général de notre ordre de renvoi.

Mme Abby Lippman, généticienne, Université McGill:
Merci, madame le président. C’est un grand honneur pour moi
de témoigner devant votre comité et je vous remercie de
m’avoir invitée. J’aimerais profiter de I'occasion pour faire une
bréve déclaration préliminaire et formuler quelques observa-
tions générales sur des questions qui, & mon avis, ont un rap-
port avec les mariages consanguins. Je me bornerai aux ques-
tions de génétique médicale méme si elles se dissocient pas
toujours facilement des questions sociales, psychologiques,
morales et juridiques posées par ces mariages. Je ne parlerai
pas non plus des raisons d’affinité s’opposant aux mariages
dont il est question dans les projets de loi parce-qu’elles ne
posent pas de probléme génétique. Si vous avez des questions a
poser a ce sujet, je serai quand méme heureuse d’y répondre.

A la derniére séance de votre comité, un des sénateurs a
demandé s’il y avait lieu de craindre que ces mariages consan-
guins entrainent des «complications eugéniques». J’aimerais
tenter de répondre 4 cette question et d’expliquer pourquoi il
est difficile de fournir une réponse précise. Permettez-moi
d’ajouter que je ferai une distinction entre le mariage et ce que
les généticiens appellent sans grande poésie, I'appariement.
Jinsisterai sur la question de I'appariement, parce que c’est
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mating because it is the mating that produces the children. If
there are going to be any genetic risks related to consan-
guinity, it is the children of such a mating to whom they apply.
I am also going to interpret the phrase “‘eugenic problems”
somewhat broadly to refer to the possibility that children born
to consanguineous parents may be at higher risk for a broad
group of genetic diseases, birth defects or other adverse out-
comes of reproduction than children born to non-consanguine-
ous parents, and examine this possibility with you.

First, I should like to remind you of some basic genetics
which set the stage for some of the comments that I am going
to make which will help to answer the questions that you may
have. Some of this material was covered in Professor
Hubbard’s law journal article but I think it is worth repeating
because it does provide the base line of the data that you will
need.

Each cell in the human body usually contains 46 chromo-
somes—the hereditary structures that carry the genes. These
46 chromosomes can be arranged in 23 pairs. When cells
divide to create the egg or sperm cells, the members of these
chromosome pairs separate. As a result, the egg and the sperm
usually contain 23 chromosomes each, one from each pair.
When the egg and the sperm join at fertilization, to create the
new child, the regular complement of 46 chromosomes is res-
tored in the new conception, half coming from the mother and
half from the father.

The genes that determine our physical and biochemical
characteristics—what we look like and how we function—are
carried on the chromosomes. As the chromosomes are sepa-
rated and divided at the time that the egg and sperm are
formed, so too the genes are separated and every child gets one
gene of a pair from its mother and one from its father.

Most of the time, the genes in a pair do the same thing, that
is, they direct the production of the same chemical. However,
sometimes one of the genes in a pair is changed so that it either
produces a different chemical that may not do the job as well,
or else it produces none of the chemical at all. If the regular
gene in a pair can make enough of the chemical, the body will
function normally and no health problem will result. In this
way, a person may carry a changed gene without even knowing
it because the other gene in the pair has done the job suf-
ficiently.

These changed genes whose presence may be hidden by the
other gene of a pair are called recessive genes and the person
who has such a gene is called a heterozygote, which is a gen-
etic term, or a carrier, which is the term frequently used by
laymen as well as geneticists. These recessive genes may be
carried and passed on unnoticed for many generations in the
family without ever causing a problem to those who have a sin-
gle dose, a single gene in the pair changed.

For these recessive genes to cause health problems, a child
must get one recessive gene from each parent. In such situa-
tions, the child will have a double dose of a changed gene and
the child will be homozygous for the changed gene, and,
because neither member of the pair is functioning properly,

[Traduction)

I’appariement qui produit les enfants. Si la consanguinité pose
le moindre risque génétique ce sont les enfants congus par cette
union qui en souffriront. Mon interprétation des «complica-
tions eugéniques» sera assez large pour entendre que les risques
de souffrir d’un bon nombre de maladies héréditaires, de mal-
formations congénitales ou d’autres anomalies génétiques sont
plus élevés chez les enfants nés de parents consanguins que non
consanguins et j’examinerai ces risques avec vous.

Jaimerais d’abord vous rappeler certains rudiments de géné-
tique qui vont introduire les remarques que je vais faire et
aideront 4 répondre aux questions que vous pouvez vous poser.
Une partie de la maticre a été traitée dans I’article du profes-
seur Hubbard paru dans une revue de droit, mais je pense qu'il
est utile de la reprendre parce qu’elle est fondamentale. C’est
la base des données dont vous aurez besoin.

Chaque cellule du corps humain renferme habituellement 46
chromosomes—Ile patrimoine héréditaire—porteurs de génes.
Ces 46 chromosomes peuvent se regrouper en 23 paires. Quand
les cellules se divisent pour former I'ovule ou les spermatozoi-
des, les ¢léments de ces paires chromosomiques se dissocient.
Cest ainsi que I'ovule et le spermatozoide comptent habituelle-
ment 23 chromosomes chacun, un de chaque paire. Quand
I'ceuf et le spermatozoide s’unissent pour la fécondation de
I’embryon, le nombre constant de 46 chromosomes est rétabli
la moitié provenant de la mére et I'autre moitié du pére.

Les génes qui déterminent nos caractéres physiques et bio-
chimiques, c’est-a-dire notre apparence et notre fonctionne-
ment, se trouvent sur les chromosomes. Tout comme les chro-
mosomes, les génes se dissocient au moment de la formation de
’ovule et du spermatozoide et chaque embryon est constitué
d’un géne d’une paire de génes de la mére et d’'un géne d’une
paire de génes du pére.

La plupart du temps, les génes d’'une méme paire sont iden-
tiques, c’est-a-dire qu’ils commandent la méme opération bio-
chimique. Toutefois, il arrive qu’un des deux génes soit diffé-
rent de l'autre et qu’il conduise 4 la synthése d’un élément
chimique modifié, peu ou pas actif. Si le géne normal d’une
paire peut produire I'élément chimique nécessaire en quantité
suffisante, 'organisme fonctionnera normalement sans pro-
bléme de santé. Ainsi, une personne peut étre porteuse d’un
géne modifié sans méme le savoir parce que I’autre geéne a pu
compenser.

Les génes modifiés dont la présence peut étre cachée par le
deuxiéme gene sont appelés génes récessifs et celui qui en est
porteur est appelé hétérozygote, terme de génétique, ou por-
teur, terme couramment utilisé autant par les profanes que par
les généticiens. Ces geénes récessifs peuvent étre portés et trans-
mis de fagon inapergue pendant des générations sans causer de
probléme, s’il n’y a qu’un seul des deux génes de la paire qui
est modifié.

Pour que les geénes récessifs nuisent a la santé, ’embryon
doit recevoir un gene récessif de chacun de ses parents. Dans
ce cas, il aura recu deux caractéres récessifs d’un géne modifié
et sera homozygote de ce géne; comme aucun des deux génes
ne fonctionne normalement, des opérations biochimiques
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some job necessary for normal health cannot be accomplished.
A medical problem may be the result.

What does all this have to do with consanguinity? Individu-
als who are consanguineous—who are relatives—are, by defi-
nition, individuals who have a certain portion of their genes in
common, having inherited them from at least one not-too-dis-
tant ancestor. If this common ancestor had and passed on a
single dose of a deleterious gene, his or her descendants would
have a higher chance of carrying this same gene than would be
the case with unrelated individuals. Should these consanguine-
ous individuals have children together, their children could
inherit a copy of the deleterious gene from each parent and
become homozygous for it. This would then become evident
when a medical problem, associated with lack of function of
the normal gene pair, developed. Clearly, only the children of
two carriers are at risk for a recessive disease. To have the
recessive disease, they must get one gene from each parent.

Interestingly, each of us is probably a carrier of several
changed recessive genes, any one of which on its own is not
harmful in single dose. Most of these deleterious genes are
rather rare so that an unrelated member of the population with
whom we may have children is very unlikely to be carrying the
same recessive gene. Thus, while homozygosity for recessive
genes can occur in the offspring of any mating, the possibility
of this will be greater in the offspring of related than of
unrelated individuals: related parents have a higher chance of
carrying the same recessive gene than unrelated individuals.

In assessing the effects of consanguinity, we are most inter-
ested in recessive genes because they usually remain hidden
until a consanguineous mating occurs, and, by chance, a child
inherits a double dose of the gene, and the health problem
caused by this changed gene pair comes to notice. There is
usually no. family history or other indication of risk until an
affected child is actually born. This distinguishes recessive
conditions from the other class of major gene disorders known
as dominant or x-linked disorders because, in those situations,
the person who has a single dose of the gene usually shows
some effect, and one can recognize the presence of the gene.
Therefore, one would recognize that an ancestor in his family
has this changed gene and one can determine the chance that
it will be passed on to a child. With recessive genes, which
remain hidden in single dose, we do not have the opportunity,
usually, to identify couples of matings who are at risk.

What. then is the chance that a child whose parents are
related to each other as uncle-niece or aunt-nephew will have a
recessive disorder? As Professor Hubbard pointed out in his
law journal article, the occurrence of a genetic disorder in the
offspring from any given mating is a “matter of statistical
probability.” In neither consanguineous nor non-sanguineous
matings is the appearance of a genetic disorder ever either a

[Traduction)

nécessaires a la santé ne s’accompliront pas et pourront causer
des complications médicales.

Quel est le rapport de tout ceci avec la consanguinité? Les
consanguins, ceux qui ont un lien de parenté, sont, par défini-
tion, des personnes dont une certaine partie des génes sont les
mémes parce qu’ils les ont regus d’au moins un ascendant peu
¢éloigné. Si cet ascendant commun avait transmis méme un seul
carcatére d'un géne nuisible, ses descendants courraient plus
de risques d’en étre porteur que ceux de personnes n’ayant pas
de lien de parenté. S’ils avaient des enfants, leurs enfants pour-
raient hériter d’un géne nuisible de chacun des parents et étre
homozygote de ce géne. Il est évident qu'un probléme médical,
associé au mauvais fonctionnement de la paire de génes, se
développerait. Manifestement, seuls les enfants de deux por-
teurs se trouvent exposés a un risque de maladie récessive. Ce
genre de maladie ne se produit que lorsque 'enfant regoit un
géne récessif de chaque parent.

11 est intéressant de noter que chacun d’entre nous est proba-
blement porteur de plusieurs geénes récessifs modifiés, qui,
dépareillés, ne sont pas nuisibles. La plupart des génes déléte-
res sont plutdt rares, de sorte qu’il serait trés exceptionnel que
deux personnes n’ayant pas d’antécédents familiaux communs
soient porteuses du méme géne récessif. Par conséquent, bien
qu’il soit possible de trouver un homozygote de génes récessifs
dans la progéniture issue de toute union, ’éventualité d’un tel
phénoméne se trouve accrue lorsqu’il s’agit de I’appariement
de personnes de méme famille. Les parents qui proviennent
d’une méme famille risquent davantage d’étre porteurs du
méme geéne récessif que les personnes qui n’ont aucun lien de
parenté.

Dans I’étude des effets de la consanguinité, cette question de
génes récessifs revét la plus haute importance, puisque ces
génes demeurent généralement cachés, jusqu’a I'avénement
d’un appariement consanguin donnant naissance a un enfant
héritier du méme géne récessif de chacun de ses parents; le
probléme médical occasionné par cet appariement de génes
modifiés devient alors apparent. En général, aucun antécédent
ni aucune autre indication du probléme ne se sera manifersté
dans la généalogie, jusqu’a la naissance de I’enfant atteint. Il
est ainsi possible de distinguer les caractéres récessifs d’autres
catégories d’anomalies génétiques graves, comme les désordres
génétiques liés au chromosome x, puisqu’avec ce genre de phé-
noménes, la présence du géne anormal peut étre dépistée méme
si la personne ne posséde qu’un seul chromosone atteint. Dans
un tel cas, I'anomalie aurait antérieurement été remarquée
chez un ancétre de la famille, et il devient possible d’estimer le
risque de transmission 4 un descendant. Dans le cas des génes
récessifs, qui demeurent cachés tant et aussi longtemps qu’ils
n’affectent qu’un seul chromosone, il est généralement impossi-
ble de déceler les couples qui peuvent présenter un risque.

Quel est donc I'importance du risque d’anomalie récessive
chez un enfant issu d’une union de type oncle-niéce ou tante-
neveu? Comme le faisait remarquer M. Hubbard dans un arti-
cle, éventualité d’'un anomalie génétique chez les descendants
de toute union est une «question de probabilité statistique».
Qu’il s’agisse d’unions consanguines ou non, le risque d’une. .
anomalie génétique ne peut jamais étre tenu pour certain ni
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certainty or an impossibility, except in extraordinarily rare sit-
uations. In fact, the risk that parents may carry the same
harmful gene is being called one of the “inescapable hazards of
any mating.”

Senator Buckwold: There are some other hazards too.

Dr. Lippman: Yes. For relatives mating, this particular haz-
ard is increased over that faced by non-related mates, but the
precise location of this risk between the extremes of zero and
100 per cent depends on what one knows about the couple. In
this regard, one msut separate considerations of the risks that
arise solely because of the degree of relationship between the
couple—and, thus, are the same risks for all members of this
class of matings—from those that arise because of some par-
ticular medical-genetic attribute of an individual in the couple.
I will comment on the former, those risks that pertain to all
members of this class of matings. For the latter, where there is
an affected person in the family history, one can calculate the
risks for offspring directly and, in the same way, whether the
couple is related or not. This is the usual job of the family
physician in consulation, as needed, with a medical geneticist.

From genetic theory, one can estimate the theoritical possi-
bility that an individual will be homozygous for two genes
inherited from a common ancestor. Moreover, if we also know
the frequency of a gene in the population, we can calculate
that theoretical risk for a specific disorder in the offspring of
these related parents. For example, it appears that, if there is a
recessive disorder that occurs to that one-in -10,000 unselected
newborn—I am thinking of any newborn born in hospital—one
in 10,000 will have a recessive disorder. An offspring of an
uncle-niece or aunt-nephew mating might have a risk of per-
haps one in 1,000 for the disorder. It is still unlikely to occur at
the rate of one in 1,000, but it is increased tenfold over the risk
for the child whose parents are not related as uncle-niece or
aunt-nephew. Recall, however, that this is for one specific dis-
ease, and there are hundreds of recessive disorders, each with a
different frequency in the population, and therefore estimates
of the overall risk for an offspring of these relatives must take
all of these into account.

Unfortunately, the actual risk for any class of consangui-
nous mates is not precisely known, although a theoretical
increase in the frequency of recessive disease in their offspring
is expected on genetic grounds as the degree of relatedness of a
couple increases. Currently, we have the best data for first
cousins, and we work from that data to project what we expect
would happen with an aunt-nephew and uncle-niece mating.
Our best estimate for the offspring of first-cousin matings
comes from studies of such families, one of which was done by
Dr. Fraser who used to be head of genetics of the Montreal
Children Hospital and is now in St. John’s, Newfoundland.

[Traduction]

considéré comme impossible, sauf dans des cas extraordinaire-
ment rares. En fait, le risque que les parents soient porteurs du
méme géne nuisible est considéré comme I'un «des dangers
inhérents a toute union».

Le sénateur Buckwold: Mais il existe également d’autres
dangers.

Mme Lippman: Oui. Dans les cas d’unions consanguines, le
degré d’occurence de ce phénoméne particulier se trouve accru
par rapport a l'union de personnes n’ayant aucun lien de
parenté; toutefois, il est difficile de situer ce risque en pourcen-
tage sans connaitre un maximum de données relatives au cou-
ple question. A cet égard, il y a lieu de distinguer entre les ris-
ques qui sont essentiellement attribuables au degré de parenté
entre les membres d’un couple (qui par conséquent, sont les
mémes pour tous les membres de cette méme catégorie
d’union), des dangers imputables 4 un caractére médico-géné-
tique propre a I'un des partenaires. Je m’intéresserai donc a la
premiére éventualité, c’est-a-dire les risques communs 2 tous
les membres d’une méme catégorie d’union. Quand i la
seconde, qui concerne les anomalies héréditaires, il est possible
de calculer, de la méme fagon, les risques pour I’enfant qu’il
s’agisse ou non de parents issus de méme famille. Ce travail
incombe généralement au médecin de famille, en consulation,
le cas échéant, avec un généticien.

La théoric de la génétique permet d’évaluer le risque
d’occurrence d’un individu homozygote lorsqu’il s’agit de deux
génes provenant d’'un commun ancétre. Si, en outre, nous con-
naissons le degré d’occurrence d’un tel géne dans la population
en général, il est alors possible de calculer la fréquence théori-
que d’une anomalie précise en ce qui concerne la progéniture
des parents issus de méme famille. Par exemple, si une anoma-
lie récessive se manifeste chez un nouveau-né sur 10,000, choi-
sis au hasard, c’est-a-dire n’importe quel nouveau-né dans un
hopital, la probabilité d’occurrence de cette anomalie sera
donc de 1 sur 10,000. Toutefois, les descendants d’une union
de type oncle-niéce ou tante-neveu peuvent étre exposés a un
risque d’anomalie d’environ 1 sur 1,000. Je doute que, dans la
pratique, ce rapport de 1 sur 1,000 se concrétise, mais il reste
que le risque est de dix fois supérieur par rapport au reste de la
population. Il ne faut cependant pas oublier que nous parlons
ici d’une maladie précise, et qu’il existe des centaines d’anoma-
lies récessives, la fréquence de chacune variant au sein de la
population en général; par conséquent, tous ces facteurs doi-
vent entrer en considération au moment d’évaluer les risques
globaux auxquels se trouve exposés les enfants de parents issus
de méme famille.

Malheureusement, le risque réel en ce qui concerne une
catégorie donnée d’unions consanguines n’a pu étre précisé-
ment déterminé, encore qu’une augmentation théorique de la
fréquence d’'une maladie récessive en fonction du degré de
parenté d’un couple soit probable. Actuellement, les meilleures
données que nous possédons concernent les cousins germains,
et nous entendons utiliser ces renseignements pour établir des
projections en ce qui concerne les unions tante-neveu et oncle-
niéce. Ces estimations ont pu étre formulées 4 partir d’études
sur ce genre de familles, notamment celle entreprise par le Dr.
Fraser, anciennement chef du Département de génétique au
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From his studies they found the risk for recessive disease in
children born to first cousins is less that 1 per cent. This is
accumulating all the recessive diseases they were able to iden-
tify. We lack good empiric data from which this risk can be
accurately quantified for closer relatives, and a best guess of
the maximum risk for recessive disease in the offspring of
uncle-niece or aunt-nephew matings would be slightly higher
than this, perhaps 1 per cent to 2 per cent. There are, to my
knowledge, no good data available on which to base a more
precise estimate, and I think most geneticists would concure
with this risk figure.

I should say that, before coming here, I did consult with Dr.
Fraser since he was my supervisor when I was a graduate stu-
dent, and whenever I have to make statements, I always touch
base with him to make sure I am not going too far afield. We
agreed, having looked at the literature, that 1 per cent to 2 per
cent was likely to be the best estimate we can give you right
now.

With regard to their risks for health problems, other than
those inherited as recessive conditions, we are in the somewhat
paradoxical situation of having more empiric data, especially
for offspring of first-cousin matings, but less certainty of its
interpretation. I will explain this as I go along.

For example, there have been studies of birth weight, con-
genital malformations or birth defects, birth lengths and
deaths in infancy or childhood in offspring of uncle-niece and
aunt-nephew matings. In one of these, conducted in India, over
2,000 informative pregnancies were investigated. The authors
found that there was no difference in the frequency of congeni-
tal malformations, birth weight, birth length or death after 28
weeks of gestation in offspring of uncle-niece matings and in
offspring of non-consanguineous individuals. The frequency of
problems was identical, whether they were parents who were
related or parents who were unrelated.

However, while this seems to be a nice, clear cut finding, one
must put it into the perspective of the population that was
studied. In the population in India that was studied, there is a
long history of consanguinity. It is part of the social system. As
a result, it may be that, over the generations in which consan-
guineous marriages and matings have occurred, those children
who were at risk for having inherited harmful genes have, in
fact, inherited them; have died because of this inheritance and,
therefore, these genes are no longer available in the population
to be passed on. Therefore in situations where there is frequent
consanguineous matings, such populations may have better
health than populations where consanguineous matings occur
less frequently. We do not know if this is the case, but it is one
consideration that must be kept in mind in saying: “Look,
there is absolutely no difference.”

[Traduction)

Montreal Children’s Hospital et désormais établi & Saint-Jean,
Terre-Neuve. Ces études ont révélé que le risque de maladies
récessives chez les enfants de cousins germains était inférieur &
1 p. 100. Ce pourcentage concerne toutes les maladies récessi-
ves que nous avons pu déceler. Malheureusement, nous ne pos-
sédons pas les données empiriques nécessaires pour dresser une
évaluation quantitative précise en ce qui concerne les liens de
parenté plus rapprochés, et nous devons nous contenter de pré-
sumer que le risque maximal de maladies récessives chez les
enfants issus d’unions oncle-niéce ou tante-neveu serait légére-
ment plus élevé, soit entre 1 et 2 p. 100. Nous ne possédons
pas, 4 ma connaissance, les données suffisantes pour nous per-
mettre d’établir une estimation plus précise, mais je crois que
la plupart des généticiens confirmeraient ce pourcentage de
risque.

Je vais vous confier qu'avant de comparaitre devant vous, je
suis allée consulter le Dr. Fraser, qui était mon directeur de
thése, et que je prends soin de consulter avant de faire toute
déclaration, pour éviter de transmettre de faux renseigne-
ments. Ayant consulté la documentation sur le sujet, nous
avons donc convenu que, pour linstant, I’estimation la plus
siire se situerait entre 1 et 2 p. 100.

En ce qui concerne les risques de problémes de santé autres
que ceux transmis comme caractéres récessifs, nous nous trou-
vons dans la situation quelque peu paradoxale ou nous avons
pu recueillir un volume considérable de données empiriques,
particuliérement en ce qui concerne les enfants de cousins ger-
mains, mais nous hésitons toujours quant a l'interprétation a
adopter. J’entends donc expliquer ce phénomeéne.

Par exemple, des études ont été entreprises sur le poids et la
taille des bébés 4 la naissance, les malformations congénitales
et le décés des bébés ou des enfants issus d’unions oncle-niéce
et tante-neveu. L’une de ces études, entreprise en Inde, portait
sur plus de 2000 grossesses. Les auteurs n’ont découvert
aucune différence dans la fréquence des malformations congé-
nitales, le poids et la taille a la naissance, ni le décés aprés 28
semaines de gestation chez les enfants de couples oncle-niéce,
pas plus que dans les unions non consanguines. La fréquence
des problémes était identique, que les parents aient ou non été
issus d’'une méme famille.

Cependant, bien que ce résultat semble net et précis, il ne
faut pas perdre de vue le contexte dans lequel I’étude s’est
déroulée. En effet, en ce qui concerne la population indienne
étudiée, le phénoméne de la consanguinité n’est pas un fait
nouveau; il fait partie d’un systéme social trés ancien. Or, il se
peut que, parmi les générations ou I’on note un certain pour-
centage d’unions et de mariages consanguins, certains enfants
exposés a des risques d’anomalies génétiques aient, en fait, été
touchés, mais qu’avec leur décés, ces génes anormaux aient
disparu de la population. Par conséquent, dans des sociétés ou
les unions consanguines sont fréquentes, les gens se trouvent
peut-étre moins exposés aux problémes de santé que dans les
populations oi ce genre d’unions est exceptionnel. Evidem-
ment, cette assertion n’a pas été prouvée, mais il ne faudrait
pas pour autant la perdre de vue au moment d’interpréter des
résultats de ce genre.
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There is another study that has been done fairly recently in
which Moroccan Jews who immigrated to Israel were studied.
This was a much smaller population that was studied. There
were only 27 uncle-niece matings that were available to be
analysed and they were compared with a matched series of
matings between non-relatives. They chose to match them with
people of the same age who had immigrated to Israel at the
same time and had lived in the country for an equivalent num-
ber of years. Here, they did find differences in the outcomes of
previous pregnancies to these women. The children who were
born to uncle-niece matings had somewhat more malformation
and a statistically significant increase in childhood death com-
pared to the non-inbred groups. In general, the frequency of
adverse outcome was increased two- to threefold in the chil-
dren of the uncle-niece matings. In other words, they found
malformations in these children at the rate of about 7.6 per
cent, whereas the control rate was 2.2 per cent. That is about a
three-fold increase, but we are still talking about absolute risks
that are below ten per cent. Again, for their frequency of
childhood death, it was approximately seven per cent in the
controlled children from non-related parents and about 17 per
cent in the children who were born to relatives.

These latter findings are in accord with what one might
expect, given our knowledge of the outcome in offspring of
first-cousin matings. Children of first cousins show at most a
two-fold increase in morbidity and malformation compared to
controls. If, as has been suggested, the frequency of these
adverse outcomes increases linearly with the degree of inbreed-
ing, one would expect a two-to-three-fold increase in offspring
of matings between the more closely related uncle-niece or
aunt-nephew pairs as was found in the Israeli study.

I would like to emphasize, however, that while the risks for
the children of uncle-niece or aunt-nephew matings thus may
be increased as much as threefold over the base line, the abso-
lute level of these risks probably does not exceed ten per cent
for either childhood mortality or malformation because, in the
control populations studied, the observed risks were about
three per cent for each outcome. One should also remember
that for any child being born today in Canada, if one sees a
pregnant couple and they want to know what is the chance
that they will have a child with some serious birth defect or
malformation, the risk to this couple, knowing nothing else
about them, begins at about two to four per cent.

Morcover, it is important to realize in looking at this
increase that mav be associated with aunt-nephew, uncle-
niece matings that we still do not know if this increase over
control values is a biological or a social phenomenon. By that I
mean that it has been noted in the studies done in North
America of cousin matings that consanguineous couples differ
from control couples in non-genetic ways that may increase the
potential risks for the offspring. In particular, it has been
observed that consanguineous couples frequently come from
socio-economic classes that may have more risks to pregnancy
than non-related couples; that they are sometimes poorer and
that they are sometimes less well educated. So when we are

[Traduction]

Une autre étude a assez récemment été entreprise auprés des
Juifs marocains qui ont émigré vers Israél. Cette étude portait
toutefois sur une population beaucoup plus restreinte. Seules
27 unions oncle-niéce ont pu étre analysées et comparées 4 une
série correspondante d’unions sans aucun degré de parenté. La
population-témoin était donc un groupe de personnes du méme
age, qui étaient arrivées en Israél au méme moment et y
avaient vécu pendant le méme nombre d’années. Or, certaines
différences ont ici été notées en ce qui concerne le déroulement
de grossesses antérieures chez ces femmes. Les enfants nés
d’une union oncle-niéce avaient davantage de malformations,
et on notait une augmentation statistique importante dans le
taux de mortalité infantile, comparativement au groupe non
consanguin. En général, la fréquence des problémes était de 2
a 3 fois supérieure chez les enfants issus d’unions oncle-niéce.
Plus précisément, le taux de malformations chez ces derniers
était d’environ 7,6 p. 100, par rapport a 2,2 p. 100 pour le
groupe-témoin. Il s’agit donc d’un nombre trois fois plus élevé,
encore que nous soyons toujours en présence d’un taux de ris-
que absolu de moins de 10 p. 100. Quant au taux de mortalité
infantile, il se situait aux environs de 7 p. 100 chez les enfants
du groupe-témoin et d’environ 17 p. 100 chez les enfants nés
de parents issus de méme famille.

Evidemment, ces résultats étaient prévisibles 4 la lumiére
des données recueillies sur 'union de cousins germains. En
effet, les enfants issus de ce genre d’unions accusent un taux de
mortalité et de malformation de deux fois supérieur a celui du
groupe-témoin. Si, comme on I’a laissé entendre, la fréquence
de ces accidents s’accroit linéairement avec le nombre de
mariages consanguins, on devrait s’attendre que la possibilité
de résultats semblables soit deux ou trois fois plus élevée chez
les enfants issus d’unions oncle-niéce ou tante-neveu, comme
I’a révélé I’étude effectuée en Israél.

Jaimerais faire remarquer cependant que si les risques pour
les enfants issus de couples de type oncle-niéce ou tante-neveu
peuvent étre trois fois plus élevés que chez la population de
base, le niveau absolu de ces risques n’excéde probablement
pas 10 p. 100, qu’il s’agisse de mortalité ou de malformation
infantile car dans les groupes témoin qui ont fait ’objet d’étu-
des, les résultats indiquaient une probabilité d’environ 3 p. 100
dans chaque cas. En outre, en ce qui concerne la situation au
Canada, dans le cas ou un couple qui attend un enfant aime-
rait savoir quels sont les risques qu’il ait un enfant atteint
d’une malformation congénitale grave, on évalue ces risques,
sans en savoir davantage & prime abord sur ce couple, 4 envi-
ron 2 ou 3 p. 100.

De plus, il faut savoir, en ce qui concerne I’accroissement
des risques associés a la naissance d’enfants issus de couples
consanguins de type tante-neveu ou oncle-niéce, que ['on
ignore encore si I'accroissement des risques par rapport 4 la
norme correspond 4 un phénoméne biologique ou social. Ce
que je veux dire, c’est qu’on a noté dans des études effectuées
en Amérique du Nord que les couples consanguins composés
de cousins c’omportent, par rapport aux couples témoin, des ris-
ques non génétiques qui peuvent accroitre les risques pour la
progéniture. En particulier, on a observé que les couples con-
sanguins sont souvent issus de classes socio-économiques ou le
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seeing an increase in the risks, we cannot distinguish right now
whether it is because of some genetic relationship within a cou-
ple or whether it is because the children are being born in a
more deprived economic and social environment.

While these overall risks for this class of relatives are higher
than those for the general child-bearing population, it should
be made clear as well that these risks are frequently exceeded
in specific non-related matings where children are at risk for
one or another specific condition. In other words, there are
risks associated with all kinds of matings, and not just these.

In closing these general remarks, let me emphasize that
these are general comments related to offspring from a par-
ticular class of consanguineous matings. Finer tuning of these
risk estimates is possible if one has specific family history
information. Moreover, if the couple are members of an ethnic
group that has a high frequency of a small recessive gene, one
may be able to screen them for heterozygosity to determine if
they are carriers and assess the risks to offspring for this par-
ticular condition, based on the parents’ carrier status.

The medical geneticist, in counselling a couple about con-
sanguinity, will limit his or her role to calculating the risks for
their offspring, communicating these to the couple, helping
them understand the meaning of these risks in terms of their
family planning intentions and assisting them to carry out
whatever reproductive decisions they wish to make. The actual
decision to have or not to have children is the couple’s, and will
probably be based on their interpretation of the risk figures
presented to them and their perception of the specific out-
comes for which they are at risk.

In this sense, consanguineous couples are no different from
other couples, all of whom face risks when they reproduce and
who evaluate these risks according to their own values and
needs in their reproductive decision-making. Certainly, there is
no qualitative difference between the risks taken or not taken
by consanguineous couples and non-consanguineous couples.
Only the probabilities of adverse outcome may, on occasion,
differ between them for the reasons I have tried to explain.

I will stop here, although before I do so, let me just say
something briefly about the four consanguinity cases which are
before you, two of which—Bill S-2 and S-5—refer to couples
who are in their child-bearing years. In the absence of any par-
ticular information about them, it would appear that the gen-
eral risks I have described apply to these two couples. In addi-
tion, should the couple referred to in Bill S-2 have another
pregnancy, Miss Mullins would be eligible, because of her age,
for pre-natal diagnosis—and I would hope that her physician
would inform her of this, as well as review the family history,
to identify any health problems that would alter the couple’s
risk from that faced by any uncle-niece or aunt-nephew pair.

[Traduction)

taux de grossesses est plus élevé que chez les couples non con-
sanguins; que ces couples sont parfois moins riches et aussi
moins instruits. C’est pourquoi, lorsqu’on constate un accrois-
sement des risques, il est impossible de dire, dans I’état actuel
des connaissances, s'ils sont liés 4 une proximité génétique au
sein d’un couple ou si cela dépend plutdt du fait que les enfants
sont issus d’un milieu économiquement et socialement défavo-
risé.

Bien que I'’ensemble des risques pour cette catégorie de cou-
ples soient plus élevés que pour I’ensemble des couples en
attente d’un enfant, il faut savoir que ces risques sont souvent
supérieurs chez certains couples non consanguins dont les
enfants sont exposés & des dangers précis. En d’autres mots,
tous les types d’appariements, et non pas seulement les accou-
plements entre consanguins, comportent leurs risques.

En terminant, j’aimerais rappeler que j’ai formulé des obser-
vations générales sur la progéniture d’une catégorie particu-
liére d’unions consanguines. On peut avoir une idée plus juste
des risques si on posséde des données précises sur les antécé-
dents familiaux. En outre, dans le cas d’un couple qui ferait
partie d’un groupe ethnique a fréquence élevée d’un petit géne
récessif, on pourrait tenter d’établir si ce couple est porteur du
géne hétérozygote et évaluer les risques que cela représenterait
pour sa progéniture.

Le généticien appelé a conseiller un couple de consanguins
se limitera a évaluer les risques pour leur progéniture; il leur
communiquera les résultats de son évaluation, les aidera a
comprendre la portée de ces risques en termes de planification
familiale et 4 prendre une décision en matiére de procréation.
La décision d’avoir ou de ne pas avoir d’enfants revient au cou-
ple et dépendra probablement de I'interprétation qu’il fera des
données concernant les risques qu’on lui aura communiquées et
de son évaluation des résultats possibles.

En ce sens, les couples consanguins ne différent pas des
autres couples qui tous font face & des risques lorsqu’ils déci-
dent de procréer et qui tous évaluent ces risques en fonction de
leurs propres valeurs et besoins en matiére de procréation. Il
n'y a certainement pas de différence qualitative entre les ris-
ques que prennent ou ne prennent pas les couples, consanguins
et non-consanguins. Seul les probabilités d’accidents peuvent a
’occasion changer d’un couple a I'autre, pour les raisons que
j’ai tenté d’expliquer.

Je m’arréte ici, mais j'aimerais auparavant dire quelques
mots au sujet des quatre cas de consanguinité que vous étudiez
présentement et dont deux (les projets de loi S-2 et S-5) con-
cernant les couples en état de procréer. Indépendamment de
toute information particuliére a leur sujet, il semble que les ris-
ques généraux que j’ai décrits sont valables dans leur cas. En
outre, si le couple visé par le projet de loi S-2 a une autre gros-
sesse, Mlle Mullins serait admissible, en raison de son age, a
un diagnostique prénatal—et j'espére que son médecin I'en
informera et qu’il examinera ses antécédents familiaux afin de
dépister tout probléme de santé qui modifierait les risques aux-
quels ce couple est exposé comparativement & un autre couple .
de type oncle-niéce ou tante-neveu.
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Obviously, the same kind of family history should be taken
in review for the couple referred to in Bill S-5. As I said, the
only reason I pointed out the couple referred to in Bill S-2 is
because, in Canada right now, geneticists make available to
any woman who is 35 years and over, information about pre-
natal diagnosis. It has nothing to do with her having been mar-
ried to her relative or not. It is merely a function of her age
and I guess as a geneticist, I feel duty-bound to make a com-
ment about that.

I will stop now and hope that I have not confused you too
much and if T have, I would be delighted to answer your ques-
tions. Also, I will try to speak more slowly.

The Chairman: Thank you, Dr. Lippman. 1 think we have
some questions. Senator Asselin?

Senator Asselin: 1 will attempt to start, but it is not easy.
You will pardon me if I ask my questions in French, and not in
English.

Dr. Lippman: Thank you, senator.

Le sénateur Asselin: J'ai de la difficulté, possiblement
comme la plupart de mes confréres, 4 suivre, je dirais, ce cours
médical qui m’a intéresse au plus haut point. J'avais déja eu
I'occasion de prendre quelques notes sur les recherches que
j'avais faites concernant les sortes de génes qui peuvnet pro-
duire des enfants infirmes; j'avais lu un peu dans ce sens-la.

Docteur, lorsque vous. prétendez que, concernant I’état de
consaguinité, il y a différents risques dépendamment si ce sont
des cousins germains ou si c’est 'oncle ou la tante, méme si ces
risques sont faibles, concernant la progéniture de ces couples;
est-ce qu'il peut arriver, méme s’ils ont des enfants qui sont
normaux, que ces mémes enfants-la peuvent engendrer des
enfants anormaux.

Dr. Lippman: All children inherit genes from their parents
in a consanguineous Or non-consanguienous mating, so when
one sees a child who is normal born to the uncle-niece,
nephew-aunt marriage, those children may, in fact, have inher-
ited these recessive, these changed genes, from their parents. If
the child is normal, the child will be like the parent who passed
on the genes in carrying them.

As I hope to emphasize, we are all carrying some gene that,
if we are unfortunate to have children with someone who has
the same changed gene, all our children are at risk.

So, yes, all consanguineous matings can produce children
with changed genes, but with no greater or lesser risk than
anybody else. That child’s children, again, will be at risk only
if that child subsequently marries a relative.

The reason I mentioned ethnic groups earlier was that there
are certain recessive genes that have higher frequencies in cer-
tain populations. You have all heard of sickle cell anemia.
That is caused by a recessive gene that, for reasons we do not
need to go into here, unless you want to know about them, has

a higher frequency of occurrence in black populations.

[Traduction]

Il faudrait également procéder a une étude semblable des
antécédents familiaux du couple visé par le projet de loi S-5.
Comme je Iai dit, la seule raison pour laquelle j'ai parlé du
couple visé par le projet de loi S-2 c’est qu'au Canada, a
’heure actuelle, les généticiens offrent 4 toute femme de 35
ans et plus la possibilité d’'un diagnostique prénatal, indépen-
damment du fait que cette femme soit mariée a un parent ou
non. Cela dépend uniquement de son dge et, en ma qualité de
généticienne, je me sentais obligée d’en parler.

Voila, c’est tout; j'espére que je ne vous ai pas trop compli-
qué les choses et si je I'ai fait, je serai heureuse de répondre a
vos questions. Je vais également tenter de parler plus lente-
ment.

Le président: Je vous remercie, docteur Lippman. Je pense
qu’il y a des questions. Sénateur Asselin?

Le sénateur Asselin: Je vais essayer de commencer, mais ce
ne sera pas facile. Vous m’excuserez si je pose mes questions
en francais et non en anglais.

Mme Lippman: Merci, sénateur.

Senator Asselin: Possibly like most of my colleagues, I had
some difficulty following this so-called medical lecture which I
found extremely informative. I had already taken down some
notes as a result of my own research into the types of genes
that can produce children with birth defects. I have read a lit-
tle about this problem.

Doctor, when you say that in cases of consanguinity, there
are different risks present, depending on whether the people in
guestion are first cousins or in an uncle-niece or aunt-nephew
relationship. is it possible that even if they were to have normal
children, the offspring of these matings might be malformed?

Mme Lippman: Tous les enfants, qu’ils soient issus de
mariages consanguins ou non consanguis, sont porteurs des
génes de leurs parents. Aussi, lorsqu’un couple de type oncle-
niéce ou neveu-tante donne naissance a un enfant normal, cet
enfant peut tout de méme étre porteur de geénes récessifs, c’est-
i-dire modifiés. Si I'enfant est normal, il sera comme le parent
qui lui a transmis les genes.

Ce que je veux faire valoir, c’est que chaque individu est
porteur de génes, qui, s’ils se retrouvent chez le conjoint avec
qui il a des enfants, peuvent représenter un risque pour ces
enfants.

Ainsi, toutes les unions de consanguins peuvent donner nais-
sance a des enfants porteurs de génes modifiés, mais sans plus
ni moins de risques que les autres couples. Les enfants des reje-
tons de ce couple seront a leur tour exposés seulement s'ils pro-
créent avec un parent.

Jai parlé tout 4 I’heure de groupes ethniques parce que cer-
tains génes récessifs sont plus répandus chez certain groupes.
Vous avez probablement tous entendu parler de I'anémie a
Lématies falciformes. Cette maladie est causée par le géne
récessif qui, pour des raisons qu’il n’est pas utile d’examiner
ici, 4 moins que vous ne le vouliez, est plus répandu chez les
populations noires.
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There is another disorder called thalassemia, which has a
higher frequency of occurrence in people of Greek and Italian
origin. There are a few genes that have been identified as being
concentrated in certain groups. One would want to screen
members of those groups because, even if they are not cousins,
uncles or aunts, they may have been related generations back
and have the same genes.

To answer your question, children are not at particular risk
other than for passing on a single copy, if they have inherited
it, of the changed gene. They would only be at risk to their
children should they marry another relative, if that was the
sense of your question.

Le sénateur Asselin: Vous avez également dit qu’il était
impossible de déceler un géne défectueux et que c’était seule-
ment a la naissance de I’enfant que vous pouviez faire cette
détection. Cela me surprend un peu parce que, actuellement,
on peut rendre une femme stérile, ensuite on lui injecte des
chromosomes et elle peut enfanter. Jai I'impression que
lorsqu’on fait cette injection-14, I’on est au courant de la sorte
de geénes que la personne donnante donne a celle qui regoit.
Comment se fait-il que I'on ne pourrait pas déceler cette défec-
tuosité dans les génes avant la conception?

Dr. Lippman: The genes are only visible by their actions.
Because there are so many thousands of genes, unless we know
what action to look for, we do not know how to do the screen-
ing of an individual to find out whether that person is carrying
a changed gene or not.

For instance, if a couple were of Greek or Italian origin and
were planning to get married and came to me for genetic coun-
selling, knowing that they came from a group at risk for carry-
ing a changed gene that causes thalassemia, I would suggest
that they be screened for thalassemia. I could not screen them
for anything else because we do not know what tests to do and
the tests are so numerous. So, one cannot do genetic screening
at the level of the genes before a child is born with a recessive
condition other than we know what to look for. For most cou-
ples who have a child born with a recessive disorder, they first
learn about that when the baby is born or sometime soon
thereafter.

Unfortunately, science now is not advanced sufficiently to be
able to run through a check list, as it were, and say, “We will
look for this condition, this condition, or this condition.” We
can only make educated guesses based on the group someone
comes from. Because we cannot see anything, we just cannot
do a screening beforehand.

Le sénateur Asselin: Nous avons devant nous des projets de
loi des pétitionnaires et ce sont des cas de consanguinité. Ces
gens-1a nous demandent de faire exception a la loi générale du
mariage; ils ne nous demandent pas de nous prononcer sur la
validité.de leur mariage. Ils peuvent toujours se marier, mais
ils font exception a la loi générale parce qu’elle le défend.

Est-ce qu’il serait plus sécure pour le législateur d’accorder
la permission a cette exception a la loi générale si on exigeait
de chaque couple qu’un médecin spécialiste en généalogie
comme vous, ou un autre spécialiste, examine les couples en

[Traduction)

Il existe aussi un autre désordre appelé thalassémie, qui est
également répandu chez les gens d’origine grecque et italienne.
On a constaté que certains génes sont plus concentrés chez cer-
tains groupes. Il y a donc lieu de procéder a un dépistage chez
les membres de ces groupes parce que méme si des conjoints ne
sont ni cousin ni oncle ni tante, leurs ancétres peuvent avoir été
parents et ils peuvent donc étre porteurs des mémes geénes.

Pour répondre a votre question, les enfants ne risquent guére
plus que de transmettre un seul exemplaire, s'ils en ont hérité,
du geéne modifié. Ces couples ne représenteraient risque que
pour leurs enfants, qu’a condition qu’ils procréent avec un
parent, si tel était le sens de votre question.

Senator Asselin: You also stated that defective genes are
only visible at the time of the child’s birth. I find that rather
surprising because we now have the technology to inject a ster-
ile woman with chromosomes so that she can bear children. I
was under the impression that the recipient was aware of the
type of genes the doner was giving. How is it then that we can-
not spot the defective genes prior to conception?

Mme Lippman: Les génes ne sont visibles que par leur
action. Etant donné qu’ils se comptent par milliers, & moins
que nous ne soyions 4 la recherche d’un symptome particulier
il nous est impossible de procéder a un dépistage chez un indi-
vidu pour savoir s’il est porteur d’un géne modifié.

Par exemple, si un couple d’origine grecque ou italienne pré-
voyant se marier venait me demander des conseils d’ordre
génétique, je leur proposerais, sachant qu’ils sont d’un groupe
porteur du géne qui cause la thalassémie, de subir un test de
dépistage. Je ne serais en mesure de leur faire subir aucun
autre type de test parce que dans I’état actuel des connaissan-
ces nous ne saurions pas quel test précis effectuer, et le nombre
de tests possibles est fort élevé. Aussi, est-il impossible d’effec-
tuer un dépistage avant pré-natal autre que celui concernant le
géne particulier recherché. La plupart des couples dont
I’enfant nait avec un désordre récessif ne I'apprennent qu’au
moment de la naissance ou peu de temps aprés.

Malheureusement, la science n’est pas suffisamment avan-
cée pour qu’on puisse utiliser une liste de vérifications qui nous
permettrait d’identifier tel ou tel géne. Nous devons nous limi-
ter a des évaluations sur I'expérience acquise relativement au
groupe dont un individu est issu. Etant donné qu'il nous est
impossible de voir quoi que ce soit, nous ne pouvons procéder a
un dépistage préalable.

Senator Asselin: We have here before us bills outlining the
case of petitioners with consanguineous ties. These petitioners
are asking us to provide for an exception from the public gen-
eral law relating to marriage. They are not asking us to rule on
the validity of their marriage. They can always marry, but in
so doing they would be contravening the general law which
prohibits them from marrying.

Would it be safer for the legislator to grant these people an
exception from the public law and allow them to marry provi-
ding each couple is examined by a ‘medical doctor such as
yourself who specializes in genetics, who would then present
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question et comparaisse ensuite devant le comité? Comme vous
'avez dit, nous devons tenir compte également des problémes
socio-économiques que peut engendrer I’accouplement de ces
personnes qui sont des cas de consanguinité.

Est-ce qu'il serait prudent pour nous d’exiger cela des cou-
ples?

Dr. Lippman: That is a loaded question, so I will answer it
very slowly. I will try to answer it without giving my own
biases first. I will give them afterwards.

I think I can understand the reason for the question. The
question raises the problem, however, that we are all at similar
kinds of risk for having children with problems. It is not clear
to me that one should be isolating these couples because they
are consanguineous from other couples who face perhaps even
higher risks for having children who are affected.

When I closed my opening remarks I made the statement
that the geneticist—and I think this is fairly well agreed upon
in this country and, indeed, throughout North America—sees
his or her role as providing information, and it is up to the cou-
ple to decide what to do. There are no rules now that say that
risk at a certain level is too high for having children, and risk
at a different level is acceptable. I personally would not like to
see the situation arise where there was some sort of level that
was fixed at a level acceptable for having children and fixed at
another level where it is unacceptable.

From my own experience, when I do genetic counselling, I
see that first cousins are very concerned. I have honestly never
had an uncle or niece come to me for genetic counselling, so I
cannot speak about that personally. When first cousins come,
they come filled with tremendous fears and concerns as to
what could happen to their children. In fact, they are quite
relieved when they hear what the risks actually are. We are
talking about a relative increase of two to threefold in some
conditions, many of which can be corrected medically and sur-
gically, and a risk of probably under 2 per cent for recessive
disease. I would encourage all couples who are concerned
about the health of their potential children to seek counselling
from family physicians or geneticists, as the case may be. I
would be very reluctant to legislate the need for negetic coun-
selling for any particular class of people because one can say
then that all Greeks should seek genetic counselling because
the frequency with which they carry the gene thalassemia is
sufficiently high that if two carriers are mating their risk for
having a child with thalassemia would be 25 per cent. You
would be in the position of saying to all Jews of Eastern Euro-
pean origin that they should get counselling because they are a
risk for something known as Tay-Sachs disease and approxi-
mately 3 per cent of all Eastern European Jews are carrying
the changed gene for Tay-Sachs disease, so one is opening a
whole level of mandatory medical care which is fraught with
problems.

I should like there to be a general awareness in the entire
population that there are people who are at risk and there are
people who can tell you what your risks are and ways to avoid

[Traduction)

his findings to the committee? As you said, we must also take
into consideration the socio-economic problems that could
result from the union of two people with consanguinous ties.

Would it be prudent of us to require these couples to
undergo such an examination?

Mme Lippman: Voila une question complexe, 4 laquelle je
répondrai trés lentement. Je vais essayer de taire mes préjugés
d’abord, puis apres je serai plus subjective.

Je crois comprendre le pourquoi de cette question. Elle sou-
leve toutefois un autre probléme; en effet nous présentons tous
certains risques d’avoir des enfants avec des problémes. Il n’est
pas évident pour moi qu’il faille isoler ces couples tout simple-
ment parce qu’ils sont consanguins alors que d’autres couples
présentent des risques encore plus élevés d’avoir des enfants
difformes.

En terminant mes remarques préliminaires, j’ai déclaré que
le généticien considére que son rdle est de fournir de I'informa-
tion et que c’est au couple de décider ce qu'il veut faire et je
crois que c’est I'opinion généralement admise dans notre pays
et méme dans toute ’Amérique du Nord. Il n’y a aucune régle
selon laquelle un certain niveau de risque est trop élevé pour
avoir des enfants et que le risque est acceptable 4 un autre
niveau. Personnellement, je n’aimerais pas voir se développer
une société dans laquelle une autorité quelconque fixerait un
niveau de risque acceptable pour avoir des enfnts et un autre
niveau qui serait inacceptable.

De par ma propre expérience de spécialiste en génétique, je
constate que les cousins germains sont trés touchés par cette
question. Comme je n’ai jamais regu d’oncle ou de niéce pour
une consultation en matiére de génétique, je ne peux honnéte-
ment pas me prononcer sur cette question. Mais ce que je peux
dire, c’est que les cousins germains qui viennent me voir sont
trés inquiets de ce qui pourrait arriver a leurs enfants. En fait,
ils sont plutdt soulagés lorsqu’ils connaissent les risques réels.
Nous parlons ici d’un facteur d’augmentation relative de deux
a trois dans certaines conditions, alors que de nombreux cas
peuvent étre corrigés médicalement et chirurgicalement et que
le risque d’'une maladie récessive est probablement inférieur a
2 p. 100. J’encourage tous les couples qui se préoccupent de la
santé de leurs futurs enfants a consulter leur médecin de
famille ou leur généticien selon le cas. J’hésiterais beaucoup a
légiférer sur la nécessité d’une consultation génétique pour un
groupe particulier d’individus parce qu’on pourrait ensuite dire
que tous les Grecs doivent aller en consultation génétique en
raison du haut pourcentage de porteurs de géne de la thalassé-
mie, qui est tel que si deux porteurs s’accouplent, leur risque
d’avoir un enfant atteint de thalassémie serait de 25 p. 100.
Vous pourriez ensuite dire a tous les Juifs originaires de
I’Europe de I'Est d’aller en consultation génétique parce qu’ils
présentent un risque €élevé d’étre atteint d’un désordre connu
sous le nom de maladie de Tay-Sachs, environ 3 p. 100 de tous
les Juifs de I’'Europe de I'Est sont porteurs du géne de cette
maladie ce qui ouvrirait la porte 4 bien des abus.

J'aimerais qu’il y ait une prise de conscience générale au
sein de toute la population du fait que certaines personnes pré-
sentent, des risques et que d’autres peuvent leur dire quels sont



4:28

Legal and Constitutional Affairs

29-3-1984

[Text]

some of them. I would be very reluctant to see any kind of
legislative mandate that says that you must have a medical
okay before you can marry or mate.

Senator Flynn: Can you identify the risk when there is no
consanguinity?

Dr. Lippman: The risks for any recessive disorder vary
depending on the disease itself. There are some recessive disor-
ders that are very common. They occur in perhaps one in every
3000 babies. There are some that are very rare and may occur
in one in every 100,000 babies. For general problems having to
do with birth defects or malformations, any couple has a 2 per
cent to 4 per cent chance that their baby will be born with a
malformation or defect that requires medical or surgical care.

The Chairman: You are referring to people of genetic ori-
gin?

Dr. Lippman: This is a combination of many things. Some of
them will have a genetic origin and some of these malforma-
tions have an environmental origin. In other cases, some are a
combination of the two. We are not always able to identify the
cause for these, as to whether it is genetic or environmental, or
something else.

Senator Flynn: When couples consult you and there is no
consanguinity, can you tell them if they are in the range of a
definite risk?

Dr. Lippman: What I and other geneticists do would be to
take a family history from them to determine whether there is
anything in their family history which identifies that there
may be a problem. If there is nothing in the family history, one
would then do what is called an exposure history, for instance,
does the woman have any illnesses or does she have to take any
medications that might be a risk for her child if she were to
become pregnant. If all of those things are negative and the
couple does not belong to a high-risk population group, and the
mother is under 35 years of age, I would then say, “You stand
the same risk as any healthy, normal couple, which means that
your baby has a 2 to 4 per cent chance of being born with some
problem”.

Senator Flynn: If there is no consanguinity the risk would be
increased to what percentage?

Dr. Lippman: If they were first cousins, I would double that
and make it within the 4 to 6 per cent range. If they were
uncles, nieces, aunts and nephews, I would triple it and say
that it was in the range of 6 to 9 or 10 per cent.

Senator Flynn: | may be asking a question outside your exp-
ertise, but do you know if the prohibitions that we find in reli-
gion are based upon anything else but the physical risk that
you have described?

Dr. Lippman: It is outside of my area of expertise, and my
answer to that would be based on what I have learned from
Professor Hubbard’s article, and it seems to me that there are
a number of social reasons for some of these restrictions, as
well as potential medical reasons. The Bible was very clever in
identifying some genetic disorders, but I do not think that the

[Traduction)]

ces risques et les fagons de les éviter dans la mesure du possi-
ble. Mais je verrais d’un trés mauvais ceil une loi qui vous obli-
gerait 4 obtenir I'accord d’'un médecin avant de vous marier ou
de vous accoupler.

Le sénateur Flynn: Pouvez-vous déterminer le niveau de ris-
que lorsqu’il n’y a pas de consanguinité?

Mme Lippman: Les risques d’une maladie récessive varie
selon la nature de la maladie. Il y a des maladies récessives tres
communes, qui peuvent frapper un bébé sur 3 000. Il y en a
aussi de trés rares qui ne peuvent toucher qu’un bébé sur 100
000. En ce qui concerne de fagon générale les défauts ou mal-
formations de naissance, n’importe quel couple a 2 4 4 p. 100
de probabilités que son bébé naisse avec une malformation ou
un défaut qui exige des soins médicaux ou une opération chi-
rurgicale.

Le président: Parlez-vous de groupes ethniques particuliers
ou de 'ensemble de la population?

Mme Lippman: Un peu de tout. Certaines malformations
sont d’origine génétique et certaines autres sont dues au
milieu. Dans d’autres cas, c’est une combinaison des deux.
Nous ne sommes pas toujours capables de déterminer la cause
de ces maladies, qu’elles soient d’ordre génétique, environne-
mental ou autre.

Le sénateur Flynn: Lorsque des couples non consanguins
vous consultent, pouvez-vous leur dire s’ils présentent un risque
précis?

Mme Lippman: Ce que je fais et que les autres généticiens
font aussi est d’examiner leur histoire familiale pour détermi-
ner s’il y a déja eu un probléme a ce niveau. S’il n’y a rien dans
I’histoire familiale, j'établirais ce que nous appelons une his-
toire de I’exposition, c'est-a-dire que je déterminerais si la
femme a une maladie quelconque ou prend des médicaments
susceptibles de présenter un risque pour son enfant si elle deve-
nait enceinte. Si tous ces tests sont négatifs, que le couple
n’appartient pas 4 un groupe démographique a risque élevé et
que la mére a moins de 35 ans, je dirais que le degré de risque
est celui d’'un couple normal et en santé, c’est-a-dire que le
bébé aurait de 2 4 4 p. 100 de probabilités de naitre avec un
probléme quelconque.

Le sénateur Flynn: S’il y avait consanguinité, le risque serait
augmenté jusqu’a quel pourcentage?

Mme Lippman: s’ils étaient cousins germains, je doublerais
ce chiffre et dirais de 4 4 6 p. 100. S’ils étaient oncle et ni¢ce,
ou tante et neveu, je triplerais et dirais de 6 a 9 ou 10 p. 100.

Le sénateur Flynn: Peut-étre ma question n’est-elle pas de
votre ressort, mais savez-vous si les interdictions d’ordre reli-
gieux se fondent sur autre chose que le risque physique que
vous avez décrit?

Mme Lippman: C’est en effet en dehors de ma compétence,
mais je répondrais a cela ce que j’ai appris en lisant I’article du
professeur Hubbard, qu’il semble y avoir un certain nombre de
raisons sociales, autant que médicales, pour une partie de ces
restrictions. La Bible signale trés habilement des anomalies -
génétiques, mais je ne crois pas que les restrictions relatives a
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consanguinity restrictions that have come down through his-
tory are based strictly on medical reasons. I think there is a
great deal of social considerations behind them.

Senator Flynn: You are referring to social reasons at that
time. I do not know if the same conditions exist today.

Senator Buckwold: My first question follows on from Sena-
tor Flynn’s. Being of the Jewish faith, I have often wondered
why Leviticus allows an uncle to marry his niece but a nephew
cannot marry his aunt. Do you have any explanation for this?
Historically, has it had any effect that you know of? I am sure
that it is a question that is asked very often.

Dr. Lippman: Fortunately, I have not been asked that ques-
tion that often because I do not have an educated answer other
than what I learned from my reading here. Again, it seems
there is a social implication to the patterns of relationships as
to who was supposed to be the more important member of the
relationship, male versus female, and I can only refer you to
the Law Journal article which is where I have obtained my
knowledge about that. I would not want to be on or off the
record as answering that question.

Senator Buckwold: Would you say then that that is incon-
sistent?

Dr. Lippman: Genetically, it is very inconsistent because
they are identically related.

Senator Buckwold: There are a lot of genetical problems
passed on which come from a variety of people who are not
related by blood. For example, if people with malformations
marry, are they much more likely to have a malformed child
than a blood related couple, or if a mentally retarded couple
produce children are they more likely to have a problem than
blood related individuals?

Dr. Lippman: In certain situations, definitely so. The risks to
the offspring depend upon the specific problem that the par-
ents have. For example, if a parent has had a cleft lip that was
repaired during his or her childhood, that common malforma-
tion is thought to arise from a combination of genetic and envi-
ronmental factors that we cannot identify in most cases. The
children of that couple have about a 3 or 4 per cent chance of
having a cleft lip themselves. That is in addition to the general
risk of any malformation. I would not think the child of an
uncle-niece or aunt-nephew has a 3 per cent chance of a cleft
lip. That child may have a 3 per cent to 9 per cent chance of
some malformation, cleft lip being one of the many that would
contribute. In this case, certainly, the child to someone who is
affected is going to have a higher risk for that specific problem
than the child of blood relatives.

Senator Buckwold: If we were consistent in the legislation,
we would have some regulations that would deal with problems
like that, which would be more effective in controlling the
problems than restrictions based only on consanguinity.

Dr. Lippman: That is another loaded question.

[Traduction]

la consanguinité qui ont traversé I’histoire soient basées stricte-
ment sur des raisons médicales. Je crois qu’il y a un bon nom-
bre de considérations sociales derriére cela.

Le sénateur Flynn: Vous parlez de raisons sociales 4 cette
époque. Je me demande si les mémes conditions existent
aujourd’hui.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Ma premiére question découle de
celle du sénateur Flynn: étant juif, je me suis souvent demandé
pourquoi le Lévitique permet 4 un oncle de se marier avec sa
niéce, mais refuse a un neveu le droit de se marier avec sa
tante. Avez-vous une explication 4 cela? Historiquement, cela
a-t-il eu les effets que vous connaissez? Je suis certain que
cette question est posée trés souvent.

Mme Lippman: Heureusement que je ne me suis pas fait
poser cette c!uestion trop souvent, parce que je ne peux y
apporter de réponse scientifique autre que celle que j’ai apprise
a la lecture de cet article. Encore une fois, il semble que ce soit
a cause du modele social des relations entre les hommes et les
femmes, a savoir qui était censé étre le membre le plus impor-
tant de la relation, mais a ce sujet, je ne peux que vous ren-
voyer 4 l'article du Law Journal ol j’ai obtenu cette informa-
tion. je ne tiens pas tellement a répondre a cette question.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Diriez-vous alors que cette loj reli-
gieuse est illogique?

Mme Lippman: Du point de vue de la génétique, elle est tres
illogique parce que le rapport entre un oncle et sa nisce et
entre un neveu et sa tante est exactement le méme.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Il existe un grand nombre de proble-
mes génétiques qui se transmettent d’une génération A I'autre
et qui viennent de diverses pesonnes non liées par le sang. Par
exemple, si deux personnes atteintes de malformations se
marient, ont-elles plus de probabilités d’avoir un enfant dif-
forme par rapport & un couple consanguin? Méme chose pour
un couple mentalement retardé qui a des enfants.

Mme Lippman: Dans certaines situations, absolument. Les
risques pour les bébés dépendent du probléeme particulier
qu’ont les parents. Par exemple, si I'un des parents a eu un bec-
de-liévre qui a été corrigé durant son enfance, cette malforma-
tion commune est susceptible de réapparaitre a partir d’une
combinaison de facteurs génétiques et environnementaux que
nous ne pouvons déceler dans la plupart des cas. Les enfants de
ce couple ont de 3 4 4 p. 100 probabilités d’étre atteints de
cette malformation. Cela s’ajoute au risque général d’avoir une
quelconque malformation. Je ne crois pas que I’enfant d’un
couple oncle-niéce ou tante-neveu ait 3 p. 100 de probabilités
d’avoir un bec-de-lievre. Cet enfant aura de 3 4 9 p. 100 de
probabilités d’avoir une quelconques malformation, 'une
d’entre elles étant le bec-de-lievre. Dans ce cas, il est certain
que le bébé touché par cette malformation présentera un ris.
que plus élevé de reproduire ce probléme particulier par rap-
port au bébé de parents consanguins.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Pour que la loi soit logique, il fau-
drait que nous établissions des réglements qui permettraient de
mieux contrdler ce genre de probléme plutdt que d’imposer des
restrictions aux relations consanguines.

Mme Lippman: Voild une autre question trés délicate.
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Senator Buckwold: By the way, | am not suggesting we do
that, but if we are going to be consistent and if we are worried
about the next generation, we have to consider this.

Dr. Lippman: Yes, if one wants to avoid problems being
passed on, one might consider legislating in these areas. Par-
ents make their own decisions quite carefully in these areas
themselves. Most of the risks are low.

You asked about mental retardation. There are couples who
are at risk for recessive disorders. That risk is about 25 per
cent, which means that one child in four has a chance of hav-
ing some difficult disabling disorder. The risks do mount up
for non-relatives as quickly as and, in some cases, more quickly
than they do for relatives.

Senator Buckwold: You are saying society is not very con-
sistent in its legislative rules.

Dr. Lippman: The question is: Are the rules that exist now
based strictly on risks to the offspring? I do not believe those
risks were known other than anecdotally at the time these rules
became ingrained in society. In a sense, they are not based on
the kinds of facts we have now, so it is hard to know if they are
or are not consistent in many ways.

Senator Buckwold: Would you personally support some
change in the restrictive legislation that we have now, and how
far would you go?

Dr. Lippman: I think that I would support change insofar as
I do not personally believe that there is a need for prohibition
on the aunt-nephew and uncle-niece matings. I feel the risks
associated with closer degrees of mating are substantially
higher.

The Australian legislation drops all prohibitions on mating
other than brother-sister, parent-child and grandparent-grand-
child. Personally, it seems to me that is an acceptable level of
prohibition if there is to be legislated prohibition.

Senator Stanbury: You have been very kind to give us a lot
of very helpful evidence. What concerned me was the fact that
you mentioned the number of types of disorders that might
result and also the possibility of their being treated medically
or surgically. I wonder if you might expand a little on the
nature of the disorders and on the percentage of those disor-
ders, assuming that any disorder might be in the range of 4 per
cent, 6 per cent or 9 per cent. [ am talking of the percentage of
those disorders which you would consider serious, in other
words, which would seriously affect the existence of the child.

Dr. Lippman: In terms of the types of disorders, in genetics
there are those that are known to be caused by what are called
major genes. These are the recessive conditions or dominant
disroders where a person is affected and has a single copy of
the gene.

An example of that is when people have what is known,
medically, as achondroplasia. These are dwarfed people who
tend to have normal body size, but their arms and legs are

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Buckwold: Soit dit en passant, je ne propose pas
de faire cela, mais si nous voulons étre logiques et que nous
nous préoccupons de la prochaine génération, nous devons
envisager cette éventualité.

Mme Lippman: Oui, si on veut éviter de passer le problémes
d’une génération a I'autre, il faut envisager de légiférer dans ce
domaine. Mais les parents sont en mesure de prendre eux-
mémes trés consciencieusement leur décision a cet égard. La
plupart des risques sont faibles.

Vous avez parlé des retardés mentaux. Il y.a des couples qui
présentent un risque de maladies récessives. H est d’environ 25
p. 100, ce qui veut dire qu’un enfant sur quatre peut étre
atteint d’une incapacité quelconque. Les risques se multiplient
pour les non-parents et, dans certaines cas, plus que pour les
couples consanguins.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Vous dites que la société n’est pas
trés logique dans ses lois.

Mme Lippman: La question est de savoir si les régles actuel-
les se fondent strictement sur les risques pour les bébés. Je ne
crois pas que les risques étaient plus importants a I’époque ou
ces régles ont été établies. Dans un certain sens, elles ne sont
pas fondées sur les faits que nous connaissons maintenant, et il
est donc difficile de savoir si elles sont logiques.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Appuieriez-vous personnellement
une modification 4 la législation restrictive que nous avons
maintenant et jusqu’ou iriez-vous?

Mme Lippman: Je crois que jappuierais un changemnet
dans la mesure ou je ne crois pas personnellement qu’il soit
nécessaire d’interdire les mariages entre une tante et un
nevenu et entre un oncle et une niéce. J'estime toutefois que les
risques liés 4 des mariages de parents plus proches sont subs-
tantiellement plus élevés.

La loi australienne n’interdit plus désormais que les maria-
ges entre frére et sceur, entre pére ou mere et fils ou fille, et
entre grands-parents et petits-enfants. Personnellement, je suis
d’avis que pareille interdiction est acceptable, dans le cadre
d’une loi restrictive. i

Le sénateur Stanbury: Les informations que vous nous don-
nez nous seront trés utiles. Mais ce qui me préoccupe, c’est que
vous avez mentionné un certain nombre d’anomalies qui peu-
vent se produire ainsi que la possibilité d’un traitement médi-
cal ou chirurgical. Je me demande si l'on pourrait préciser
davantage la nature de ces anomalies et le pourcentage qu’elles
représentent, en supposant que toute anomalie peut se produire
dans 4, 6 ou 9 p. 100 des cas. Je parle ici du pourcentage
d’anomalies que vous considérez sérieuses, en d’autres termes,
des anomalies qui perturbent gravement la vie de ’enfant.

Mme Lippman: En génétique, on sait qu’il y a des anomalies
qui sont causées par ce qu’on appelle des génes dominants. I
s’agit de génes récessifs ou d’anomalies dominantes dans le cas
d’une personne qui n’a qu’un seul géne récessif.

Un exemple de cette anomalie est ce qu’on appelle en méde-
cine 'achondroplasie. Les personnes atteintes de cette anoma-
lie semblent avoir un corps de taille normale, mais leurs bras et -
leurs jambes sont trés courts et leur téte semble plus grosse que
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abbreviated and they have what appear to be larger than nor-
mal heads. Most of you must have seen people like that. That
is a dominant disorder, and you just need one copy of the gene
for that.

There are a number of disorders which result from an inter-
action between environment and genes, and these are the com-
mon malformations of childhood.

The base-line level that I spoke of, the 2 per cent, 3 per cent
or 4 per cent that all of us are at risk for in our children, refers
to what one would generally call “serious” insofar as they do
require medical or surgical intervention. Granted, there is a
difference between having a cleft lip and having what is known
as a neuro-tube defect where there is an opening on the back,
the nervous tissue is exposed to the surface and the child may
become paralysed, incontinent, retarded, and suffer other ail-
ments.

However, the level of severity is up to the families to decide.
For some families a cleft lip is devastating and they cannot
deal with it, whereas, for some, open spina bifida is tolerable.
The 2 per cent to 3 per cent relates to the serious cases which
require surgical or medical intervention. I hope that answers
your question.

Le sénateur Rizzuto: Madame, dans les réponses aux ques-
tions que I'on vous a posées, un des points que vous avez soule-
vés concerne la parenté. Vous avez parlé des groupes ethni-
ques: les noirs, les Italiens et les Grecs. Est-ce que vous
pourriez approfondir davantage vos prétentions a 'effet que les
gens devraient consulter les médecins ou des spécialistes avant
de contracter un mariage avec des personnes de ces groupes?

Dr. Lippman: Thank you for asking that question because it
allows me to advertise. This is something that we have been
trying very hard to do. It is only recently that people have
become aware of the fact that certain population groups, who
are perfectly healthy, are, in a sense, fortunate that we can
identify some of the changed genes that they carry. We cannot
identify most changed genes before something happens, but, in
certain populations, we know from history that they are at risk
for carrying these changed genes. The person with the gene is
fine, but if they marry another carrier and have children, the
children are at risk.

There are screening programs in many of the major cities in
Canada such as Montreal, which is the one I know best. Active
screening is being done among blacks, Greeks, Italians and
Jews for the genes that they are at risk for having. One hopes
that members of these groups will be screened to find if they

carry them.

There is difficulty in doing the screening because there still
remains some stigma attached to being identified as a carrier.
As geneticists, we are doing our best to make it clear to every-
one that all of us carry these changed genes so that there is no
stigma attached to having the gene you carry identified. In a
sense, it puts you ahead because you can make educated deci-
sions rather than taking the luck of the gamble and having

children.

[Traduction]

la normale. Vous avez sans doute déja vu des nains. Il s’agit
d’une anomalie dominante, qui est due 4 un seul géne.

Il y a un certain nombre d’autres anomalies qui résultent de
Iinteraction entre le milieu et les génes, et il s’agit ici des mal-
formations ordinaires que I’on trouve chez les enfants.

Le niveau de base dont jai parlé, soit 2, 3 ou 4 p. 100 de ris-
ques pour nos enfants, se rapportait 4 ce que I’on appellerait
généralement des anomalies «sérieuses» qui nécessitent une
intervention médicale ou chirurgicale. Je conviens qu’il y a une
différence entre un bec-de liévre et une anomalie du canal
médullaire qui se trouve ouvert vers I’arriére, révélant ainsi en
surface le tissu nerveux qui peut entrainer chez I’enfant de la
paralysie, de I'incontinence, de I’arriération mentale, et toutes
sortes d’affections.

Toutefois, le niveau de gravité dépend des familles. Pour
certaines, un bec-de-liévre est catastrophique et elles ne peu-
vent pas l'accepter, tandis que pour d’autres, le spina bifida
ouvert est tolérable. Quand je parle de 2 4 3 p. 100, il s’agit des
cas sérieux qui nécessitent une intervention chirurgicale ou
médicale. J'espére que cela répond 4 votre question.

Senator Rizzuto: Madam, in the course of answering our
questions, you referred to certain ethnic groups such as blacks,
Italians and Greeks which face certain genetic risks. Could you
elaborate further on your statement that people in these risk
groups would be well advised to seek counselling from a doctor
or geneticist before marrying.

Mme Lippman: Je vous remercie d’avoir posé cette question
parce qu’elle me permet de vous faire part de certaines infor-
mations. Nous avons fait beaucoup d’efforts en ce sens. Ce
n'est que récemment que la population a pris conscience du
fait que certains groupes, qui sont en parfaite santé, ont, dans
un certain sens, la chance que I’on puisse identifier certains des
génes modifiés dont ils sont porteurs. Il n’est pas possible
d’identifier la plupart des génes avant qu’il ne se produise une
anomalie, mais, dans certaines populations, nous savons
d’apres leur histoire qu’il y a un risque qu’elles soient porteurs
de ces génes modifiés. La personne qui est porteur du géne est
normale, mais si elle marie un autre porteur du méme géne et
qu’ils ont des enfants, il y a un risque pour ces derniers.

Il existe des programmes de dépistage dans bon nombre des
principales villes au Canada, comme Montréal, qui est celle
que je connais le mieux. Un dépistage considérable se fait chez
les Noirs, les Grecs, les Italiens et les Juifs, pour découvrir les
génes dont ils risquent d’étre porteurs. On espére que les mem-
bres de ces groupes se préteront au dépistage pour savoir s’ils
sont porteurs de ces genes.

Il est difficile de procéder au dépistage parce qu'il existe
encore certains stigmates rattachés au fait d’étre identifié
comme porteur d’un géne. En temps que géniticiens, nous fai-
sons notre possible pour faire prendre conscience & chacun que
nous sommes tous porteurs de ces génes modifiés, et qu’il n’y a
aucun stigmate rattaché au fait que le géne dont on est porteur
soit identifié. Dans un certain sens, c’est un avantage, parce
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I would support doing as much as one can do to encourage
people from these communities to be screened and to learn
what screening is all about. However, it is not always avail-
able, and people do not always take advantage of the screening
programs when they are in place.

Le sénateur Rizzuto: Si je comprends bien madame, corri-
gez-moi si je me trompe, vous croyez qu’il pourrait y avoir plus
de possibilités de danger avec ces groupes plutdt qu’avec
d’autres concernant les génes. Il ne s’agit pas de donner un pri-
vilége a un groupe, je pense qu’il pourrait étre donné a tout le
monde. Je ne voudrais pas qu’en raison de son origine italienne
ou grecque une personne soit obligée de consulter un médecin.
Est-ce que je comprends biens?

Dr. Lippman: Let me deal with your question in terms of the
screening in the Jewish population for what is known as Tay-
Sachs disease. If you screen in a population of Jews who are of
eastern European origin, you will find that one in thirty of
these people is a carrier. It also turns out, for reasons that no
one quite understands yet, the carrier frequency is the same in
some French-Canadian areas in the Province of Quebec. It is
the same disorder and no one knows quite why it happens to
occur in these two very different groups.

The reason for not extending what you have described as the
privilege to others is because if one were to screen the rest of
the population, one would expect to find carriers in a fre-
quency of one in five or six hundred. It becomes expensive to
do these tests and, for better or worse, one tends to do cost-
benefit analyses before one embarks on these programs. There-
fore, one screens in those populations where one is likely to
find something.

Perhaps to remove it from an ethnic point of view, in the
same way, one screens women over 35 with pre-natal diagno-
sis, if they wish it, because they are at risk of having children
with a disorber known as Down’s Syndrome—mongolism in
the old days. One does not do this in women under 35 because
in the yield, you will find not as many cases. Therefore if one
knows the genes that other populations are at risk for carrying,
yes, one would certainly want to screen, but the question is:
Does one want to screen 500 people to find one carrier, or do
you want to screen 30 people to find one carrier? Therefore, it
is a matter of where the money is best spent, rather than
restricting the privilege.

I think perhaps the best example which will come to light
within the next several years is a disorder that is most common
in white populations, which is cystic fibrosis. One will eventu-
ally start-screening non-ethnic populations for this gene. How-
ever, right now we do not know how to find it; we do not know
how to do this screening for this disease, so the privilege is
restricted because of the numbers and because of the limits of
our scientific knowledge. We do not know who to screen for
what else.

[Traduction)

que cela permet de prendre une décision éclairée plutdt que de
courir des risques et d’avoir des enfants.

Je suis préte & appuyer tous les efforts en vue de convaincre
la population de ces collectivités de la nécessité du dépistage et
a leur en montrer les avantages. Toutefois, ce n’est pas tou-
jours possible, et les gens ne profitent pas toujours des pro-
grammes de dépistage en place.

Senator Rizzuto: Please correct me if I'm wrong, but as I
understand it, Madam, you stated that the risk of producing
offspring with genetic defects is higher for these particular eth-
nic groups. It is not a question of extending a privilege to one
group in particular. This privilege should, I feel, be extended to
everyone. I would not want it to become a requirement for a
person of Italian or Greek origin to seek genetic counselling.
Did I understand you correctly?

Mme Lippman: Permettez-moi de répondre a votre question
en vous parlant du dépistage chez la population juive pour
découvrir ce que 1'on appelle la maladie de Tay-Sachs. Si 'on
procéde au dépistage dans une population de juifs originaires
de I’Europe de I’est, on découvre qu’un sur 30 en est porteur.
Aussi, pour des raisons que personne ne comprend pas encore
trés bien, la fréquence est la méme chez les Canadiens frangais
de certaines régions de la province du Québec. Il s’agit de la
méme anomalie, et personne ne sait pourquoi elle se produit
chez ces deux groupes trés différents.

La raison pour laquelle on ne peut pas faire profiter les
autres de ce que vous décrivez comme un privilége est que si
'on procédait au dépistage dans le reste de la population, la
fréquence serait probablement de un sur cinqg ou six cents. Ces
tests sont assez dispendieux et, on a tendance 4 procéder a des
analyses de coiits-avantages avant de se lancer dans ces pro-
grammes. Par conséquent, on procéde au dépistage des groupes
qui sont susceptibles d’en étre porteurs.

Mis 4 part le point de vue ethnique, on proceéde, de la méme
facon, au dépistage prénatal chez les femmes dgées de plus de
35 ans, parce qu’elles courent le risque d’avoir un enfant
atteint d’une anomalie connue sous le nom de syndrome de
Down, ce qu’on appelait autrefois mongolisme. On ne fait pas
ce test chez les femmes dgées de moins de 35 ans, parce que les
cas sont beaucoup moins nombreux. Dong, si I'on sait que cer-
tains groupes présentent le risque d’étre porteurs d’un tel géne,
on voudra certes procéder au dépistage, mais il s’agit de savoir
si on procédera au dépistage chez 500 individus pour trouver
un seul porteur, ou au dépistage chez 30 pour en trouver un? Il
s’agit donc d’une question de rentabilité plutét que d’une res-
triction d’un certain privilége.

Je crois que peut-étre le meilleur exemple qui se manifestera
au cours des prochaines années est I'anomalie qui est assez
répandue chez les populations blanches, soit la fibrose kysti-
que. On procédera éventuellement au dépistage chez les popu-
lations non ethniques pour ce géne. Toutefois, actuellement,
nous ne savons pas comment le découvrir; nous ne savons pas
comment procéder au dépistage de cette maladie, donc le privi-
lége est restreint en raison du grand nombre de personnes et de
nos connaissances scientifiques limitées. Nous ne connaissons
pas de groupes cibles ni de méthodes de dépistage.
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Le sénateur Rizzuto: Merci, madame, je pense que je ferais
mieux de ne plus poser de questions, car autrement tout le
monde sera impliqué tout a I’heure.

Senator Flynn: There is no question of trying to legislate for
specialty cases now, I suppose. If we did that, we would be
involved in a controversy over the Charter of Rights. Thank
you very much, Dr. Lippman.

The Chairman: Thank you very much, Dr. Lippman. I know
that your evidence will be very helpful to us in our consider-
ation of these cases and also in consideration of the bill we
hope to put before the Senate very shortly.

Dr. Lippman: Thank you, Madame Chairman.

The Chairman: Honourable senators, as you are aware, we
have been considering, in very general terms really, eight so-
called marriage bills as well as a reference which was made to
this committee to study the subject-matter of the public gen-
eral law throughout Canada with respect to prohibitions
against marriage between related persons. In that connection,
we will hear a number of other witnesses. However, Senator
Asselin, for one, has put the argument quite strongly that,
instead, we should be considering a bill which we can introduce
in the Senate as a private member’s public bill. Our legal
counsel, Mr. du Plessis, has prepared a draft bill which I have
circulated to the members of the committee and I think some
of the members have already had an opportunity to see it.

I know that the Department of Justice itself is aware of this
draft legislation. I have told Senator Flynn, who is a member
of this committee, and also the Deputy Leader of the Opposi-
tion in the Senate, that we intend to introduce this bill. I,
myself, will not be present for the next couple of weeks but I
am hoping that one of our members will introduce it on Tues-
day next. For that and other reasons, I am suggesting that the
bill be tabled probably on Tuesday of next week and I do so on
the understanding of us all that we will then probably report
on the reference that we are now seized with. It may be to the
effect that since there will be a bill the reference could be ter-
minated.

We can then proceed with the consideration of the marriage
bills that are before us. There are some that are of some
urgency, certainly, because they have been before the Senate
for some time. The urgency arises, I feel, by reason of the age
of certain of the applicants. I would therefore like to suggest,
with the knowledge that we will have a bill before us within the
next week, that we do not need to make any decision at this
time. Should we decide that this bill is not perfect in its present
form, any one of us is free to propose amendments to that bill
before it is returned to the Senate for third reading. I therefore
propose that we proceed today at least with the affinity cases if
we can. We have with us people who are representing certain
of the applicants on the bills. Mr. Holmes is here with respect
to Bill S-9. Mr. Le Frangois is here from Montreal with
respect to Bill S-6; Miss Christian has been here faithfully and
conscientiously, and she is representing the parties in Bills S-2,
S-3, S-5, S-7 and S-8. I know also that Mr. Brown is here with

respect to Bill S-4.

[Traduction]

sepator Rizzut.o: Thank you, Madam. I think that I should
refrain from asking any more questions, otherwise everyone
will wind up getting involved.

Le sénateur Flynn: Il n’est pas question d’adopter une loi
pour les cas spéciaux maintenant, je suppose. Si nous procé-
dions ainsi, cela pourrait entrainer une controverse concernant
la Charte des droits. Je vous remercie, Docteur Lippman.

Le président: Merci beaucoup, Docteur Lippman. Votre
témoignage nous sera trés utile lors de notre étude de ces cas
ainsi que du projet de loi que nous espérons déposer devant le
Sénat sous peu.

Mme Lippman: Merci, madame la présidente.

Le président: Sénateurs, comme vous le savez, nous avons
étudié, en termes généraux, huit projets de loi ainsi que la
question des régles générales de droit dans tout le Canada con-
cernant les interdictions de mariage entre personnes ayant un
lien de parenté. Nous entendrons d’autres témoins 4 ce sujet.
Toutefois, le sénateur Asselin a fortement recommandé qu’au
lieu de procéder ainsi, nous devrions considérer la possibilité de
déposer un projet de loi devant le Sénat 4 titre de projet de loi
d’initiative parlementaire d’intérét public. Notre légiste et con-
seiller parlementaire, M. du Plessis, a rédigé un avant-projet
de loi que j'ai distribué aux membres du comité, et je crois que
certains d’entre vous ont déja eu I’occasion d’en prendre con-
naissance.

Je sais que le ministére de la Justice est au courant de cet
avant-projet de loi. J'ai dit au sénateur Flynn, qui est membre
du présent comité, ainsi qu’au leader suppléant de I'Opposition
au Sénat, que nous avions I'intention de déposer ce projet de
loi. Je ne serai pas ici au cours des deux prochaines semaines,
mais j'espere que I'un des membres de notre comité le déposera
mardi prochain. Je propose donc que le projet de loi soit déposé
mardi de la semaine prochaine, a la condition que nous soyons
tous d’accord de présenter un rapport sur l'ordre de renvoi
dont nous sommes actuellement saisis ainsi si nous déposons un
projet de loi, I'ordre de renvoi pourrait prendre fin.

Nous pourrons alors procéder & I'étude des projets de loi qui
sont devant nous. Il y en a slirement certains qui sont assez
urgents, parce qu’ils sont devant le Sénat depuis assez long-
temps. Je dis qu’ils sont peut-&tre urgents, en raison de I'dge de
certains des requérants. J'aimerais donc dire, avec I’assurance
que nous aurons un projet de loi devant nous d’ici la semaine
prochaine, qu'il n’est pas nécessaire de prendre une décision a
ce moment-ci. Si nous décidions que le projet de loi n’est pas
satisfaisant dans sa forme actuelle, nous sommes tous libres de
proposer des amendements au projet de loi avant qu’il ne soit
renvoyé au Sénat pour la troisiéme lecture. Je propose donc
que nous procédions aujourd’hui A Iétude des cas d’affinité, si
nous le pouvons. Nous avons parmi nous des représentants de
certains requérants. M. Holmes est ici en ce qui concerne le
projet de loi S-9. M. Le Frangois est venu de Montréal au sujet
du projet de loi S-6; M" Christian est ici fidélement et cons-
ciencieusement, et elle représente les parties mentionnées dans
les projets de loi S-2, S-3, S-5, S-7 et S-8. Je sais aussi que M.
Brown est ici au sujet du projet de loi S-4.
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Senator Asselin: That is from Saskatchewan. Is that before
the Senate?

The Chairman: Yes, they are all tabled, Senator Asselin.

Senator Asselin: How many bills will be tabled in the near
future? Can you give us an answer to that?

The Chairman: We do not necessarily have to table any
more if we do not want to. That is our choice.

Senator Asselin: But if you want to pass one bill, you must
pass all of the bills, and I understand there are more petitions
waiting to be tabled. We should not give any privilege to a par-
ticular bill, if there are 12 or 15 more petitions waiting. We do
not know how many there are waiting.

The Chairman: Perhaps we should hear from Mr. du Plessis
on that.

Mr. Raymond L. du Plessis, Q.C., Law Clerk and Parlia-
mentary Counsel of the Senate: There are approximately six
applications that have been made over the past few months. In
each case they have to go through the preliminary procedure of
putting a notice in the Canada Gazette and in the Provincial
Gazette and in local newspapers. Some have started that
procedure and others are waiting to see what will happen.

I received a letter just two days ago from a couple who
reside in B.C. They are making inquiries into this matter and
another senator has informed me that a member of the House
of Commons has a couple who are inquiring.

All of the applications are at different stages at the moment.
In one of the cases the couple is quite prepared to wait to see
what happens, because if the law were to be amended, of
course, they would not be incurring any expenses, and in many
of these cases the expenses are considerable for the people, in
view of their resources.

So, offhand, I would say that there are possibly eight peti-
tions awaiting tabling at the present time.

The Chairman: I think it is perfectly open to us to ask Mr.
du Plessis to advise these people that we will deal, in the very
near future, with a change to the law. He could advise them
not to proceed with their applications because of the expenses
incurred in making public advertisements, and so forth. We
are quite free to instruct Mr. du Plessis to tell those people to
wait until they see what happens. We do not have to deal with
any more. We can decide that these are the ones we will deal
with because they have been in the works for a number of
years. I think it would be quite unjust to hold these up thinking
we may have more. I think the members of the committee
would prefer to deal with these and then deal with a bill that
handles the entire question and not have any more individual
petitions. Am I correct in that thinking?

Senator Flynn: | disagree with that, with all due respect. If
the adoption of these bills by committee and by the Senate
were the last thing required, I could understand your position,
but they have to be referred to the House of Commons on top
of that. My suggestion would be to tell those involved that we
are going to introduce general legislation in the Senate, and if

[Traduction)

Le sénateur Asselin: Ce dernier concerne un requérant de la
Saskatchewan. Est-il devant le Sénat?

Le président: Oui, ils ont tous été déposés, sénateur Asselin.

Le sénateur Asselin: Combien de projets de loi seront pro-
chainement déposés? Pouvez-vous nous fournir une réponse a
ce sujet?

Le président: Nous n’avons pas nécessairement a en déposer
d’autres si nous ne voulons pas. Le choix nous appartient.

Le sénateur Asselin: Mais, si nous voulens en adopter un,
vous devez tous les adopter, et je crois savoir que d’autres
requétes doivent étre déposées. On ne doit pas accorder favori-
ser un requérant s’il y a 12 ou 15 requétes de plus, je ne sais
pas combien sont en attente.

Le président: M. du Plessis pourrait peut-étre vous éclairer a
ce sujet.

M. Raymond L. du Plessis, c.r., Légiste et Conseiller parle-
mentaire du Sénat: Ces derniers mois, environ six requétes ont
été présentées. Dans chaque cas, il est nécessaire de suivre la
procédure préliminaire qui consiste 4 publier un avis dans la
Gazette du Canada, dans la Gazette de la province et dans les
journaux locaux. Certains requérants ont entrepris cette procé-
dure et d’autres attendent de voir ce qui se produira.

Il y a deux jours, j’ai re¢u une lettre d’un couple résidant en
Colombie-Britannique. Il demande des renseignements sur la
question et un sénateur m’a informé qu’un député avait regu
une demande de renseignements d’un autre couple.

Toutes les requétes se trouvent pour l'instants a différentes
étapes de la procédure. L’un des couples est disposé a attendre
de voir ce qui se produira parce que si la loi est modifiée, il
n’aura 4 assumer aucun frais. Dans un grand nombre de ces
affaires, les dépenses sont considérables, compte tenu des res-
sources des requérants.

A premiére vue, je dirais donc qu’d I’heure actuelle il y a
peut-étre huit requétes qui attendent d’étre déposées.

Le président: Je pense que nous sommes parfaitement libres
de demander & M. du Plessis d’informer ces personnes que
nous nous occuperons trés prochainement de modifier la loi. Il
pourrait les aviser de ne pas aller de ’avant avec leur requéte
en raison des frais entrainés par les annonces, etc. Nous pou-
vons trés bien demander 2 M. du Plessis de leur dire d’attendre
pour voir ce qui se produira. Nous ne sommes pas obligés de
nous occuper d’autres affaires. Nous pouvons décider que nous
allons nous occuper de celles dont nous avons été saisies ces
derniéres années. Je pense qu’il serait extrémement injuste de
les retarder en pensant que nous pourrions en recevoir d’autres.
Je présume que les membres du comité préféreraient les liqui-
der, puis examiner un projet de loi qui traiterait de toute la
question, sans avoir 4 examiner d’autres requétes individuelles.
Ai-je raison?

Le sénateur Flynn: Sauf votre respect, je ne suis pas
d’accord. Si I'’adoption de ces projets de loi par le comité et par
le Sénat constituait la derniére étape, je pourrais comprendre
votre position, mais ils doivent étre renvoyés a la Chambre. Je
proposerais de dire aux intéressés que nous allons présenter un
projet de loi général au Sénat et que si ce dernier I’adopte sans
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passed by the Senate without any difficulty, it will be referred
to the House of Commons for its concurrence.

If the Senate does not want to pass the general legislation
bill, then perhaps the Senate will be prepared to pass these
bills one by one. Although I think that that would be illogical,
I would not object to that. I do not think we need to have the
applicants come back before the committee. We can tell them
that, in principle, we are in agreement. I think we should
determine whether we can have this general legislation passed,
and, if so, their problems will be solved at the same time. That
is my view. I am not trying to impose that on the committee,
but I think it is the logical thing to do.

I do not think it takes more time to pass general legislation
than it does to pass private bills when the principles are exactly
the same.

Senator Buckwold: Madame Chairman, I do not want to
disagree with my colleagues, but I think that these cases are
ready to go ahead and should go ahead. We really do not
know, if we put in a new bill, how long it will take. I agree with
Senator Flynn that if the House of Commons were not in the
state of flux that it is in right now, that that would be a solu-
tion. By the way, we agreed at the last meeting of the commit-
tee to send out questionnaires to a variety of church groups,
and so forth. That will delay things by another month or so.
The bill then has to go to the House of Commons, and I am
not sure whether it will be a government bill or a private mem-
ber’s bill.

Senator Asselin: It could be a government bill.

Senator Buckwold: It could be, but I think in fairness to
these people and out of compassion that we should go ahead
now. These people have gone through the system and obtained
legal advice. It seems to me that the sooner we deal with them
the better. I do not think that we should take on any more,
though. I say that because I do not know how long it will take
to get these bills through the House of Commons.

Senator Stanbury: Madame Chairman, I agree with Senator
Buckwold. I think it is most unfair to hold these up. These peo-
ple have gone through the whole procedure as they understand
it and have spent a great deal of money. As Mr. du Plessis has
stated, there are other petitions and they are in various states
of preparation. There is a great deal of uncertainty as to the
timing in which we can deal with those other petitions, so I

think it is quite unfair to hold these up.

Le sénateur Rizzuto: Madame le président, je pense que si
vraiment I’on pourrait obtenir le projet de loi d’ici un mois, un
mois et demi, peut-étre que I'on pourrait attendre. Ma preéoc-
cupation est pour ces gens-la. Je pense que tout a été dit la-
dessus, mais si jamais ce projet n’est pas adopté d’ici 4 deux ou
trois mois, on risquerait peut—~étre de ne pas 'avoir en 1984.
Tout peut arriver en 1984.

[Traduction]

difficulté, il sera déféré 4 la Chambre des communes pour
approbation.

Si le Sénat ne veut pas adopter le projet de loi général, il
serait peut-étre disposé & adopter successivement les projets de
loi privés. Bien que je ne pense pas que ce soit logique, je ne
souléverai pas d’objection en ce qui concerne cette fagon de
procéder. Je ne crois pas qu'il soit nécessaire que les requérants
comparaissent de nouveau devant le comité. Nous pouvons leur
dire qu’en principe nous sommes d’accord. Je suis d’avis que
nous devons déterminer si nous pouvons adopter cette loi géné-
rale et, dans I'affirmative, leurs affaires seront réglées du
méme coup. C’est 1a mon opinion et je n’essaie pas de I'imposer
au comité, mais il me semble que C’est la seule fagon logique
de procéder.

Je ne pense pas qu'’il faille davantage de temps pour adopter
une loi générale que des projets de loi privés lorsque les princi-
pes sont exactement les mémes.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Madame la présidente, je ne veux
étre en désaccord avec mes collégues, mais je pense que ces
affaires sont prétes a étre réglées et doivent 1’étre. Si nous pré-
sentons un nouveau projet de loi, nous ne savons pas combien
de temps il faudra pour I’adopter. Je suis d’accord avec le séna-
teur Flynn sur le fait que ce serait une solution si la Chambre
des communes n’était pas en ce moment en pleine efferves-
cence. Soit dit en passant, au cours de la derniére séance du
comité, nous avons convenu d’envoyer des questionnaires a
divers groupes d’églises, etc, ce qui entrainerait un retard
d’environ un mois. Le projet de loi devra étre ensuite déféré a
la Chambre des communes et j’ignore s’il s’agira d’un projet de
loi d’initiative ministérielle ou d’intérét privé.

Le sénateur Asselin: Ce pourrait étre un projet de loi d’ini-
tiative ministérielle.

Le sénateur Buckwold: C’est possible, mais je pense qu’en
toute justice, et sans vouloir faire preuve de compassion, nous
devons aller immédiatement de 1’avant. Ces affaires ont suivi
la procédure établie, et les requérants ont obtenu I'avis d’avo-
cats. Le plus tot on s’en occupera, le mieux ce sera. Je ne pense
pas que nous devrions y réfléchir davantage. Je dis cela parce
que j’ignore le temps qu’il faudra pour que ces projets de loi
soient adoptés 4 la Chambre des communes.

Le sénateur Stanbury: Madame la présidente, je suis
d’accord avec le sénateur Buckwold. Je pense qu’il est extréme-
ment injuste de retarder ces affaires. Les requérants ont suivi
toute la procédure et ont dépensé beaucoup d’argent. Comme
M. du Plessis I'a indiqué, il y a d’autres requétes qui se trou-
vent a diverses étapes de la procédure. Nous ne savons pas
quand nous pourrons nous en occuper, de sorte qu’il serait
injuste de retarder celles-ci.

Senator Rizzuto: Madam Chairman, I think that if we could
get a bill within a month or a month and a half, then perhaps
we could wait. My main concern is for these people. 1 think
that we have discussed all the aspects of this issue. However, if
this bill is not adopted within the next two or three months
there is a danger that it won’t be adopted at all in 1984, Any:
thing can happen in 1984.
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Il faudrait prendre cela en considération, 4 savoir si vrai-
ment le projet de loi peut étre adopté d’ici un mois. A ce
moment-la il faudrait aussi s’occuper de ces projets de loi.

Senator Asselin: Before making any final decision on the
subject, I think we should try to discuss this matter in camera
and try to determine a way out of this.

If my party does not agree with the decision made by the
committee, it might hold up the passage of the bills by the
Senate for a long time. It might hold them up until legislation
is brought forward.

The Chairman: | recognize that that is the privilege of your
party and that is a judgment you will have to make. I think
there appears to be a consensus in the committee this morning
that we proceed with the consideration of these bills. Given
that consensus, I think we should do so. I wonder, because
there seems to be absolutely no objection to Bills S-6 to S-9
whether we should not proceed with them now.

As I said, 1 have shown you copies of the draft bill that I
have said will be introduced. If that bill becomes the law, none
of these particular bills, Bills S-2 to S-9, will be illegal or ojec-
tionable, as far as I can see.

My clear understanding from the comments that have been
made this morning is that the members of the committee are
prepared and willing to support the introduction of this bill
and, therefore, I am prepared to entertain a motion that we
report one or more of these bills before us without amendment.

Senator Asselin: And not study them? You cannot do that,
Madame Chairman. We did not study them case by case. Are
you asking us to agree to a motion that we recommend the
adoption by the Senate of these few bills when they were not
studied by the committee? We started with only one bill.

Senator Buckwold: We have to recognize that Senator Asse-
lin has an important point. I would certainly support him on
that.

The Chairman: Senator Asselin, are you prepared to return
today to study these bills? We can study them in numerical
order. Unfortunately we must adjourn in a matter of moments.
Perhaps we can return to this committee. However we shall not
know that until we hear from the Senate. Are you prepared,
Senator, to study these bills today?

Senator Asselin: Madam Chairman; when are you leaving?
You will be absent for two weeks.

The Chairman: I am leaving tonight; but Senator Nurgitz
will preside next week. Therefore, these bills can be dealt with.
Do I understand that you feel that it not necessary to recall
any of counsel for the applicants here.

Senator Asselin: No, because I do not know the details of
each bill.

The Chairman: They have been before us for some time.

[Traduction)

We should consider whether it is realistic to expect a bill to
be adopted within the next month and perhaps then we should
immediately consider these other bills.

Le sénateur Asselin: Avant de prendre une décision défini-
tive 4 ce sujet, je pense que nous devrions discuter de cette
affaire 4 huis clos et essayer de trouver une solution.

Si mon parti n’est pas d’accord avec la décision prise par le
comité, il peut retarder I'adoption du projet de loi par le Sénat
pendant longtemps, en fait jusqu’a ce que la loi soit présentée.

Le président: Je reconnais que c'est le privilege de votre
parti et qu’il vous appartiendra de juger. Il semble qu’il y ait ce
matin un consensus pour que nous procédions a I’étude de ces
projets de loi. Etant donné ce consensus, je pense que nous
devons le faire. Etant donné qu’il ne semble y avoir aucune
objection en ce qui concerne les projets de loi S-6 a4 S-9, je me
demande si nous ne devrions pas nous en occuper immédiate-
ment.

Comme je I'ai dit, je vous ai montré des copies de ’avant-
projet de la loi qui sera présentée. Si elle est adoptée, il semble
qu’aucun des projets de loi S-2 & S-9 ne sera illégal ou contes-
table.

D’aprés les remarques qui ont été formulées ce matin, il y a
tout lieu de croire que les membres du comité sont disposés a
appuyer la présentation de cette loi. En conséquence, je suis
préte 4 présenter une motion pour que nous fassions rapport
sans amendement d’un ou plusieurs des projets de loi dont nous
sommes saisis.

Le sénateur Asselin: Sans les étudier? Vous ne pouvez pas
procéder ainsi, Madame la Présidente. Nous ne les avons pas
examiné individuellement. Vous nous demandez d’approuver
une motion qui recommande I’adoption par le Sénat de quel-
ques projets de loi qui n’ont pas été étudiés par le comité?
Nous n’avons commencé a en examiner qu’un seul.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Le sénateur Asselin souléve un point
important et je I'appuie.

Le président: Sénateur Asselin, étes-vous disposé a revenir
aujourd’hui pour étudier ces projets de loi? Nous pouvons les
étudier dans I'ordre numérique. Nous devons malheureuse-
ment ajourner dans un instant. Nous pourrions peut-étre
reprendre nos travaux aujourd’hui. Mais nous ne le saurons
pas avant que le Sénat nous en avise. Etes-vous prét, sénateur,
a étudier ces projets de loi aujourd’hui?

Le sénateur Asselin: Madame la présidente, quand devez-
vous partir? Vous serez absente pendant deux semaine.

Le président: Je pars ce soir, mais le sénateur Nurgitz assu-
rera la présidence la semaine prochaine. Il est donc possible
d’examiner ces projets de loi. Dois-je comprendre que vous ne
jugez pas nécessaire de reconvoquer les conseillers des requé-
rants que nous avons ici.

Le sénateur Asselin: Non, parce que je ne connais pas les
détails de chaque projet de loi.

Le président: Nous en sommes saisis depuis un certain
temps.
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Senator Asselin: But we started to study one bill. We did not
touch the other bills.

The Chairman: But I understood you to say that it would
not be necessary to ask counsel to return. That is my question.
Are you still of that opinion.

Senator Asselin: After they have explained the case for
which they are appearing, we may have questions. As a com-
mittee of the Senate, we cannot be asked to accept the bills in
toto.

Senator Buckwold: I think we are agreed on that.

The Chairman: Senator Asselin, I am still not clear what
you are saying. I agree that we will study each bill separately.
Are you satisfied that counsel need to return, that we accept
the facts that have been presented? Mr. Brown has answered
questions. Are you satisfied with the evidence he has given?

Senator Asselin: [ am satisfied with the evidence given by
Mr. Brown. Is he in charge of the other bills?

The Chairman: No; only of one.

Senator Asselin: Where are the counsel for the parties
named in other bills?

The Chairman: They are here waiting. Mr. Lafr.anc;ois is
here from Montreal. He is representing the partigs in one of
these cases. I believe it is an affinity case. I believe it is incum-
bent on us to hear them and to start now.

Senator Buckwold: Madam Chairman, I must apologize, but
I have a guest waiting for me at 12:30 I agree that we should
go on and hear from counsel, but I must leave immediately.

The Chairman: The bell has now gone and therefore we
must adjourn. I will check the situation with thc? members of
the committee and then we will call another meeting as soon as
possible. Is it my understanding that you are prepared to deal
with the bills on an individual basis?

Senator Asselin: Yes. ‘

The Chairman: [ am now able to tell you that the committee
will meet again next Tuesday, at 4 p.m.

The Committee adjourned.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Asselin: Mais nous n’avons commencé 1’étude
que d’un seul, nous n’avons pas examiné les autres.

Le président: Je crois comprendre que vous avez déclaré
qu’il ne serait pas nécessaire de demander au conseiller de
revenir. C'est 1d ma question; &tes-vous toujours de cet avis?

Le sénateur Asselin: Aprés que les requérants auront expli-
qué l'affaire pour laquelle ils comparaissent, peut-étre que
nous aurons des questions. En tant que comité du Sénat, on ne
peut pas nous demander d’accepter les projets de loi sans en
faire une étude détaillée.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Je pense que nous sommes d’accord
sur ce point.

Le président: Sénateur Asselin, je ne comprends pas trés
bien. Je suis d’accord pour que nous étudions chaque projet de
loi séparément. Estimez-vous qu’il n’est pas nécessaire que les
conseiller reviennent et que nous pouvons accepter les faits qui
ont été présentés? M. Brown a répondu aux questions. Etes-
vous satisfait de son témoignage?

Le sénateur Asselin: Je suis satisfait du témoignage fourni
par M. Brown. Est-il chargé des autres projets?

Le président: Non, seulement d’un.

Le sénateur Asselin: Ou sont les conseillers pour les autres
projets de loi?

Le président: Ils attendent ici. M. Lafrangois est venu de
Montréal. Il représente les parties dans une de ces affaires. Je
crois qu’il s’agit d’un cas d’affinité. Je pense que nous devons
les entendre et commencer immédiatement.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Madame la présidente, je m’excuse,
mais j’ai un invité qui m’attend a 12 h 30. Je suis d’accord que
nous devons aller de 'avant et entendre le conseiller, mais je
dois partir immédiatement.

Le président: La sonnerie a déja retenti; nous devons donc
lever la séance. J'étudierai la situation avec les membres du
comité et nous organiserons une autre réunion dés que possi-
ble. Si j’ai bien compris, vous étes préts a étudier individuelle-
ment les projets de loi?

Le sénateur Asselin: Oui.

Le président: Je peux maintenant vous dire que le comité se
réunira de nouveau mardi prochain a 16 h 00.

La séance est levée.
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ORDERS OF REFERENCE

Extracts from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate,

Thursday, February 9, 1984:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-2, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Gerald Harvey Fudge and
Audrey Marie Saunders”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-3, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Louis Philippe Nadeau and
Marie Thérése Rita Brulé”.

After debate, and— LR ]
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-4, intitutled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Ernest Hodel and Norma
Dora Laurie”.

After debate, and— sl
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

ORDRES DE RENVOI

Extraits des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 9 février

1984:

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant a la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-2, intitulé «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
lde cas de Gerald Harvey Fudge et Audrey Marie Saun-

€rs».

Apres débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, a la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I’Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant 4 la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-3, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux regles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Louis Philippe Nadeau et Marie Thérése Rita
Brulé».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, 4 la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, a la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I'honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
I'honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant 4 la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-4, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux regles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas d’Ernest Hodel et Norma Dora Laurie».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, 4 la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles.
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The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Senate resumed
the debate on the motion of the Honourable Senator
Leblanc, seconded by the Honourable Senator Sinclair,
for the second reading of the Bill S-5, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Benjamin Josheph Andrade
and Heather Winnifred Andrade”.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Extracts from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate,

Thursday, February 23, 1984:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Guay, P.C., that the Bill S-6, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Juan Andrade and Emilia
Rodriguez”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator van Roggen, that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator van Roggen, that the Bill S-7, intituled: “An Act
to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Henri Patry and Aldéa Béa
Pitt”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
‘The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator van Roggen, that the Bill be

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, le Sénat reprend le débat sur
la motion de I’honorable sénateur Leblanc, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Sinclair, tendant 4 la deuxiéme lec-
ture du Projet de loi S-5, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception
aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans
le cas de Benjamin Josheph Andrade et Heather Winni-
fred Andrade».

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, 4 la majorité.»

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P., que le projet de loi soit
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Extraits des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 23 février
1984:

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, ’honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur Guay, C.P., que
le Projet de loi S-6, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le
cas de Juan Andrade et Emilia Rodriguez», soit lu la
deuxiéme fois.

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée, 4 la majorité.»

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, a la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur van Roggen, que le projet de loi
déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant I'Ordre du jour, I’honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur van Roggen, que
le Projet de loi S-7, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le
cas de Henri Patry et Aldéa Béa Pitt», soit lu la deuxieme
fois.

Aprés débat,
La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée a la majorité.»

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur van Roggen, que le projet de loi soit
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referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Extracts from the Minutes of Proceedings of the Senate,

Thursday, March 8, 1984:

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Buckwold, that the Bill S-8, intituled: “An Act to
provide an exception from the public general law relating
to marriage in the case of Joseph Roland Réjean Daoust
and Marie Lise Sylvie Girard”, be read the second time.

After debate, and—
The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.

The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Robichaud, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Legal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—

Resolved in the affirmative.”

“Pursuant to the Order of the Day, the Honourable
Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by the Honourable
Senator Robichaud, P.C., that the Bill S-9, intituled: “An
Act to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Pearl Kim Lee and
Thomas Siegfried Wieland”, be read the second time.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative, on division.
The Bill was then read the second time, on division.

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Robichaud, P.C., that the Bill be
referred to the Standing Senate Committee on Leégal and
Constitutional Affairs.

The question being put on the motion, it was—
Resolved in the affirmative.”

Extracts from the Minutes of the Proceedings of the Senate,
Thursday, February 9th, 1984:

With leave of the Senate,

The Honourable Senator Leblanc moved, seconded by
the Honourable Senator Denis, P.C.:

That the subject-matter of the public general law
throughout Canada with respect to prohibitions against
marriage between related persons be referred to the
Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitutional
Affairs with instructions to the committee to report to this

déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridi-
ques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Extraits des Procés-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 8 mars 1984:

«Suivant I’Ordre du jour, I’honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par I’honorable sénateur Buckwold, que
le Projet de loi S-8, intitulé: «Loi faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le
cas de Joseph Roland Réjean Daoust et Marie Lise Sylvie
Girardy, soit lu la deuxiéme fois.

Aprées débat,
La motion, mise aux voix est adoptée, 4 la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxieéme fois, 4 la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I'honorable sénateur Robichaud, C.P., que le projet de loi
soit déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires
juridiques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

«Suivant 1’Ordre du jour, I’honorable sénateur Leblanc
propose, appuyé par I’honorable, sénateur Robichaud,
C.P., que le Projet de loi S-9, intitulé: «Loi faisant excep-
tion aux régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage
dans le cas de Pearl Kim Lee et Thomas Siegfried Wie-
land», soit lu la deuxiéme fois.

La motion, mise aux voix est adoptée, 4 la majorité.

Le projet de loi est alors lu la deuxiéme fois, a la majo-
rité.

L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Robichaud, C.P., que le projet de loi
soit déféré au Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires
juridiques et constitutionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.»

Extraits des Proces-verbaux du Sénat du jeudi 9 février

1984:

Avec la permission du Sénat,
L’honorable sénateur Leblanc propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Denis, C.P.,

Que le sujet du droit général public au Canada qui
interdit le mariage entre parents soit déféré au Comité
sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et constitu-
tionnelles et que I'on ordonne au Comité de faire rapport
au Sénat de ses recommandations en vue de modifier le
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House its recommendations for amendment to the public droit public général pertinent si le Comité juge que c’est
general law in question if, in the opinion of the committee, nécessaire.
that law should be amended.

The question being put on the motion, it was— La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Resolved in the affirmative.
Le greffier du Sénat

Charles A. Lussier

Clerk of the Senate
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MINUTE OF PROCEEDINGS
TUESDAY, APRIL 3, 1984

[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs met this day at 4:10 p.m., the Vice-Chairman,
Senator Nurgitz, presiding.

Members of the Committee present: The Honourable Sena-
tors Asselin, Buckwold, Donahoe, Nurgitz, Rizzuto, Robi-
chaud, and Stanbury, (7).

Other Senator present: The Honourable Senator Cools.

In attendance: Mr. R. L. du Plessis, Q.C., Law Clerk and
Parliamentary Counsel; Mr. Donald Macdonald, Research
Officer of the Library of Parliament.

Witnesses:
Ms. Lisa Christian, Parliamentary agent for petitioners of
Bills S-2, S-3, S-5, S-7 and S-8;
Mr. Henry S. Brown, Legal Counsel for petitioner of Bill
S-4;
Mr. F. James Holmes, Legal Counsel for petitioner of Bill
S-9.

The Committee considered Bills S-2 to S-9, “Acts to provide
exceptions from the public general law relating to marriage”
and the subject-matter of the public general law throughout
Canada with respect to prohibitions against marriage between
related persons.

Ms. Christian made statements and answered questions.

Ordered,—The Vice-Chairman report Bill S-2, without
amendment, to the Senate.

Ms. Christian made statements and answered questions.

Ordered,—That the Vice-Chairman report Bill S-3, without
amendment, to the Senate.

Mr. Brown made statements and answered questions.

Ordered—That the Vice-Chairman report Bill S-4, without
amendment to the Senate.

Ms. Christian made statements and answered questions.

Ordered,—That the Vice-Chairman report Bill S-5, without
amendment, to the Senate.

Ordered,—That the Vice-Chairman report Bills S-6 to S-9,
without amendment, to the Senate.

At 4:53 p.m., the Committee adjourned to the call of the
Chair.

ATTEST:

PROCES-VERBAL
LE MARDI 3 AVRIL 1984

[Traduction]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles se réunit aujourd’hui a 16 h 10, sous la prési-
dence du sénateur Nurgitz (vice-président).

Membres du Comité présents: Les honorables sénateurs
Asselin, Buckwold, Donahoe, Nurgitz, Rizzuto, Robichaud, et
Stanbury (7).

Autre sénateur présent: L’honorable sénateur Cools.

Aussi présents: M. R. L. du Plessis, c.r., légiste et conseiller
parlementaire; M. Donald Macdonald, attaché de recherche de
la Bibliothéque du Parlement.

Témoins:
Mme Lisa Christian, agent parlenentaire pour les requérants
des projets de loi S-2, S-3, S-5, S-7 et S-8;
M. Henry S. Brown, conseiller juridique pour le requérant
du projet de loi S-4;
M. F. James Holmes, conseiller juridique pour le requérant
du projet de loi S-9.

Le Comité étudie les projets de loi S-2 4 S-9 «Loi faisant
exception aux régles de droit en matiére de mariage» et le sujet
du droit général public au Canada qui interdit le mariage entre
parents.

Mme Christian fait des déclarations et répond aux questions.

Il est ordonné,—Que le vice-président fasse rapport sans
amendement du projet de loi S-2 au Sénat.

M= Christian fait des déclarations et répond aux questions.

Il est ordonné—Que le vice-président fasse rapport sans
amendement du projet de loi S-3 au Sénat.

M. Brown fait des déclarations et répond aux questions.

Il est ordonné,—Que le vice-président fasse rapport sans
amendement du projet de loi S-4 au Sénat.

Mm™ Christian fait des déclarations et répond aux questions.

Il est ordonné,—Que le vice-président fasse rapport sans
amendement du projet de loi S-5 au Sénat.

Il est ordonné—Que le vice-président fasse rapport sans
amendement des projets de loi S-6 a4 S-9 au Sénat.

A 16 h 53, le Comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’d nouvelle
convocation du Président.

ATTESTE:

Le greffier du Comité
Paul Bélisle

Clerk of the Committee
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REPORTS OF THE COMMITTEE

Tuesday, April 3, 1984

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs presents its

SECOND REPORT

Your Committee, to which was referred Bill S-2, intituled:
“An Act to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Gerald Harvey Fudge and
Audrey Saunders”, has, in obedience to the order of reference
of Thursday, February 9, 1984, examined the said Bill and
now reports the same without amendment.

Respectfully submitted,

Tuesday, April 3, 1984

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs presents its

THIRD REPORT

Your Committee, to which was referred Bill S-3, intituled:
“An Act to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Louis Philippe Nadeau and
Marie Thérése Rita Brulé”, has, in obedience to the order of
reference of Thursday, February 9, 1984, examined the said
Bill and now reports the same without amendment.

Respectfully submitted,

Tuesday, April 3, 1984

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs presents its

FOURTH REPORT

Your Committee, to which was referred Bill S-4, intituled:
“An Act to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Ernest Hodel and Norma
Dora Laurie”, has, in obedience to the order of reference of
Thursday, February 9, 1984, examined the said Bill and now
reports the same without amendment.

Respectfully submitted,

Tuesday, April 3, 1984

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs presents its

FIFTH REPORT

Your Committee, to which was referred Bill S-5, intituled:
“An Act to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Benjamin Josheph Andrade
and Heather Winnifred Andrade”, has, in obedience to the

RAPPORTS DU COMITE

Le mardi 3 avril 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles présente son

DEUXIEME RAPPORT
Votre Comité auquel on a déféré le projet de loi S-2, inti-
tulé: «Loi faisant exception aux regles générales de droit en
matiére de mariage dans le cas de Gerald Harvey Fudge et
Audrey Marie Saunders», a, conformément'a I'ordre de renvoi
du jeudi 9 février 1984, examiné ledit projet de loi et en fait
maintenant rapport sans amendement.

Respectueusement soumis,

Le mardi 3 avril 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles présente son

TROISIEME RAPPORT

Votre Comité auquel on a déféré le projet de loi S-3, inti-
tulé: «Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en
matiére de mariage dans le cas de Louis Philippe Nadeau et
Marie Thérése Rita Brulé», a, conformément 4 'ordre de ren-
voi du jeudi 9 février 1984, examiné ledit projet de loi et en fait
maintenant rapport sans amendement.

Respectueusement soumis,

Le mardi 3 avril 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles présente son

QUATRIEME RAPPORT

Votre Comité auquel on a déféré le projet de loi S-4, inti-
tulé: «Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en
matiére de mariage dans le cas d’Ernest Hodel et Norma Dora
Laurie», a, conformément a ’ordre de renvoi du jeudi 9 février
1984, examiné ledit projet de loi et en fait maintenant rapport
sans amendement.

Respectueusement soumis,

Le mardi 3 avril 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles présente son

CINQUIEME RAPPORT

Votre Comité auquel on a déféré le projet de loi S-5, inti-
tulé: «Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en
matiére de mariage dans le cas de Benjamin Josheph Andrade
et Heather Winnifred Andrade», a, conformément a 'ordre de
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order of reference of Thursday, February 9, 1984, examined
the said Bill and now reports the same without amendment.

Respectfully submitted,

Tuesday, April 3, 1984
The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs presents its

SIXTH REPORT

Your Committee, to which was referred Bill S-6, intituled:
“An Act to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Juan Andrade and Emilia
Rodriguez”, has, in obedience to the order of reference of
Thursday, February 23, 1984, examined the said Bill and now
reports the same without amendment.

Respectfully submitted,

Tuesday, April 3, 1984
The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs presents its

SEVENTH REPORT

Your Committee, to which was referred Bill S-7, intituled:
“An Act to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Henri Patry and Aldéa Béa
Pitt”, has, in obedience to the order of reference of Thursday,
February 23, 1984, examined the said Bill and now reports the
same without amendment.

Respectfully submitted,

Tuesday, April 3, 1984 .
The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs presents its

EIGHTH REPORT

Your Committee, to which was referred Bill S-8, intituled:
“An Act to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Joseph Roland Réjean
Daoust and Marie Lise Sylvie Girard”, has, in obedience to the
order of reference of Thursday, March 8, 1984, examined the
said Bill and now reports the same without amendment.

Respectfully submitted,

Tuesday, April 3, 1984
The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs presents its

renvoi du jeudi 9 février 1984, examiné ledit projet de loi et en
fait maintenant rapport sans amendement.

Respectueusement soumis,

Le mardi 3 avril 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles présente son

SIXIEME RAPPORT

Votre Comité auquel on a déféré le projet de loi S-6, inti-
tulé: «Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en
matiére de mariage dans le cas de Juan Andrade et Emilia
Rodriguez», a, conformément a I'ordre de renvoi du jeudi 23
février 1984, examiné ledit projet de loi et en fait maintenant
rapport sans amendement.

Respectueusement soumis,

Le mardi 3 avril 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles présente son

SEPTIEME RAPPORT

Votre Comité auquel on a déféré le projet de loi S-7, inti-
tulé: «Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en
matiére de mariage dans le cas de Henri Patry et Aldéa Béa
Pitt», a, conformément a I'ordre de renvoi du jeudi 23 février
1984, examiné ledit projet de loi et en fait maintenant rapport
sans amendement.

Respectueusement soumis,

Le mardi 3 avril 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles présente son

HUITIEME RAPPORT

Votre Comité auquel on a déféré le projet de loi S-8, inti-
tulé: «Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en
matiére de mariage dans le cas de Joseph Roland Réjean
Daoust et Marie Lise Sylvie Girard», a, conformément 3
I’ordre de renvoi du jeudi 9 mars 1984, examiné ledit projet de
loi et en fait maintenant rapport sans amendement.

Respectueusement soumis,

Le mardi 3 avril 1984

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires Juridiques et
constitutionnelles présente son
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NINTH REPORT

Your Committee, to which was referred Bill S-9, intituled:
“An Act to provide an exception from the public general law
relating to marriage in the case of Pearl Kim Lee and Thomas
Siegfried Wieland”, has, in obedience to the order of reference
of Thursday, March 8, 1984, examined the said Bill and now
reports the same without amendment.

Respectfully submitted,

NEUVIEME RAPPORT

Votre Comité auquel on a déféré le projet de loi S-9, inti-
tulé: «Loi faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en
matiére de mariage dans le cas de Pearl Kim Lee et Thomas
Siegfried Wieland», a, conformément a I'ordre de renvoi du
jeudi 9 mars 1984, examiné ledit projet de loi et en fait main-
tenant rapport sans amendement.

Respectueusement soumis,

Le vice-président
NATHAN NURGITZ
Deputy Chairman
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EVIDENCE

Ottawa, Tuesday, April 3, 1984

[Text]

The Standing Senate Committee on Legal and Constitu-
tional Affairs to which was referred Bill S-2, to provide an
exception from the public general law relating to marriage in
the case of Gerald Harvey Fudge Audrey Marie Saunders, Bill
S-3, to provide an exception from the public general law relat-
ing to marriage in the case of Louis Philippe Nadeau and
Marie Thérése Rita Brulé, Bill S-4, to provide an exception
from the public general law relating to marriage in the case of
Ernerst Hodel and Norma Dora Laurie, Bill S-5, to provide an
exception from the public general law relating to marriage in
the case of Benjamin Joseph Andrade and Heather Winnifred
Andrade, Bill S-6, to provide an exception from the public gen-
eral law relating to marriage in the case of Juan Andrade and
Emilia Rodriquez, Bill S-7, to provide an exception from the
public general law relating to marriage in the case of Henri
Patry and Aldéa Béa Pitt, Bill S-8, to provide an exception
from the public general law relating to marriage in the case of
Joseph Roland Réjean Daoust and Marie Lise Sylvie Girard,
and Bill S-9, to provide an exception from the public general
law relating to marriage in the case of Pearl Kim Lee and Tho-
mas Siefried Wieland, met this day at 4 p.m. to give consider-
ation to the bills and to consider the subject matter of the pub-
lic general law throughout Canada with respect to prohibitions
against marriage between related persons.

Senator Nathan Nurgitz (Deputy Chairman) in the Chair.

The Deputy Chairman: Honourable senators, today we will
be out to make mention of the general reference that the com-
mittee has been considering. On that point, I understand that
tonight Senator Stanbury will be introducing a bill which may
affect our disposition of the general reference. Rather than
elucidate further, perhaps Senator Stanbury could tell us
where we are with respect to the proposed bill.

Senator Asselin: Mr. Chairman, I would like. to know
whether we are going to study the bills which are before the
committee today before the introduction of any other legisla-
tion? I am ready to study the bills at any time.

The Deputy Chairman: I think that Senator Stanbury has a
response to that very point, Senator Asselin.

Senator Stanbury: Mr. Chairman, I have just been handed
the draft copy of a bill which is intended to cover this problem
in general. It would be entitled: “An Act to consolidate and
amend the laws prohibiting marriage between related
persons.”

Without reading it, it deals generally with the problems that
we have been discussing.

Senator Asselin: Is this the same proposal that the chairman
spoke to last week?

Senator Stanbury: I believe so.

The Deputy Chairman: In response to that, Senator Asselin,
I believe that, because you asked specifically, the chairman of

TEMOIGNAGES

Ottawa, le mardi 3 avril 1984
[Translation)

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des affaires juridiques et
constitutionnelles, auquel ont été renvoyés les projets de Loi S-
2, faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére de
mariage dans le cas de Gerald Harvey Fudge et Audrey Marie
Saunders; S-3, faisant exception aux régles générales de droit
en matiére de mariage dans le cas de Louis Philippe Nadeau et
Marie Thérése Rita Brulé; S-4, faisant exception aux régles
générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas d’Ernest
Hodel et Norma Dora Laurie; S-5, faisant exception aux
régles générales de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de
Benjamin Joseph Andrade et Heather Winnifred Andrade: S-
6, faisant exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére de
mariage dans le cas de Juan Andrade et Emilia Rodriquez; S-
7, faisant exception aux regles générales de droit en matiére de
mariage dans le cas de Henri Patry et Aléa Béa Pitt; S-8, fai-
sant exception aux régles générales de droit en matiére de
mariage dans le cas de Joseph Roland Réjean Daoust et Marie
Lise Sylvie Girard; et S-9, faisant exception aux régles généra-
les de droit en matiére de mariage dans le cas de Pearl Kim
Lee et Thomas Siegfried Wieland, se réunit aujourd’hui 4 seize
heures pour étudier lesdits projets de Loi et la question des
régles générales de droit au Canada qui interdisent le mariage
entre parents.

Le sénateur Nathan Nurgitz (vice-président) occupe le fau-
teuil.

Le vice-président: Honorables sénateurs, nous allons étudier
aujourd’hui les projets de Loi S-2 a S-9. Je voudrais parler de
I'ordre général de renvoi du Comité. A cet égard, j’ai appris
que le sénateur Stanbury allait nous présenter ce soir un projet
de loi qui pourrait étre déterminant pour la solution a4 donner a
notre ordre de renvoi. Plutét que de vous donner plus de
détails, je voudrais demander au sénateur Stanbury de nous
dire ol nous en sommes en ce qui concerne ce projet de loi.

Le sénateur Asselin: Monsieur le président, j’aimerais savoir
si nous allons étudier les projets de loi dont le Comité est saisi
avant que ce nouveau projet de loi soit présenté. Je suis prét a
les étudier n'importe quand.

Le vice-président: Je pense que le sénateur Stanbury peut
répondre précisément a votre question, sénateur Asselin.

Le sénateur Stanbury: Monsieur le président, on vient de me
communiquer la premiére version d’un projet de loi qui con-
cerne I’ensemble du probléme. Il serait intitulé «Loi unifiant et
modifiant le droit interdisant le mariage entre personnes appa-
rentées».

Je n’en donnerai pas lecture; disons simplement qu’il traite
globalement des problémes dont nous avons débattu.

Le sénateur Asselin: S’agit-il de la proposition dont le prési-
dent nous a parlé la semaine derniére?

Le sénateur Stanbury: Oui, je crois.

Le vice-président: Pour répondre 4 votre question, sénateur
Asselin, je crois que comme vous en aviez fait la demande. le
-
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the committee sent to you a copy of the draft. Perhaps Mr. du
Plessis could enlighten all members of the committee on this
point.

Mr. R. L. du Plessis, Law Clerk and Parliamentary Coun-
sel, the Senate: Mr. Chairman, there have been very few
changes made to the draft that was circulated to honourable
senators informally. The bill that Senator Stanbury has is a
printed version of what was circulated. There are just a few
minor changes in the wording, but nothing has changed in sub-
stance.

Senator Asselin: Do you have a copy of the draft?
Mr. du Plessis: Yes, I could hand it to you, senator.

The Deputy Chairman: Senator Asselin, do you want a
moment?

Senator Asselin: Please, yes.

Senator Buckwold: While Senator Asselin is reading the
draft, might I ask how this affects the hearings today? I gather
that this draft bill, when it is passed, will make the other bills
unnecessary in due course?

The Deputy Chairman: Yes.

Senator Buckwold: It is the opinion of some of us, however,
that we should deal with the bills presently before us and then
proceed to consider the draft legislation. In that way, we will
not hold up Bills S-2 to S-9.

Senator Asselin: | am in agreement with you, Senator Buck-
wold, but I want to have a look at the draft bill.

Senator Buckwold: I just hope that we are not starting on
that argument again.

The Deputy Chairman: That is precisely the point. Although
I am in the hands of the committee, it was the intention to con-
sider Bills S-2 to S-9 today. We have heard Senator Stanbury
state that tonight we will have first reading of a bill that will
deal with these problems generally.

Senator Stanbury: Yes, Mr. Chairman, and if there is the
desire to get it to committee quickly, we could probably take it
to the second reading stage by agreement.

The Deputy Chairman: That could be considered by the
opposition, I take it, and that may just be the process to follow.

Senator Robichaud: Mr. Chairman, does that mean that the
new bill which Senator Stanbury is about to introduce could
affect the status of the eight bills that are before us?

The Deputy Chairman: No, senator, it is my understand-
ing—subject to correction—that, if it is the wish of the com-
mitee to report these eight bills tonight, we could proceed to do
so. I suppose that we could, by agreement, reach second read-
ing of Senator Stanbury’s bill tonight. I assume that that bill
would then come to commitee.

Senator Robichaud: Senator Stanbury started to explain his
bill and he was interrupted. I would like to know—and I am

[Traduction)

président du Comité vous a adressé un exemplaire de ce projet.
M. du Plessis pourrait peut étre apporter des précisions a cet
égard pour tous les membres du Comité.

M. R. L. du Plessis, légiste et conseiller parlementaire du
Sénat: Monsieur le président, quelques changements ont été
apportés au projet qui a été communiqué officieusement aux
honorables sénateurs. Le projet de loi du sénateur Stanbury est
la version imprimée de cette version officieuse. Les change-
ments dont il s’agit sont des modifications mineures de formu-
lation, qui ne partent pas sur le fond du projet de loi.

Le sénateur Asselin: En avez-vous un exermplaire?
M. du Plessis: Oui, je peux vous le communiquer, sénateur.

Le vice-président: Sénateur Asselin, voulez-vous en prendre
connaissance pendant un moment?

Le sénateur Asselin: Oui, s’il vous plait.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Pendant que le sénateur Asselin lit le
projet de loi, je voudrais demander en quoi ce projet de loi va
modifier nos travaux. Je suppose que s’il est adopté, il va ren-
dre inutiles tous les projets de loi concernant ce domaine.

Le vice-président: Oui.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Certains membres du Comité esti-
ment cependant que nous devrions traiter les projets de loi dont
nous sommes saisis, puis passer a ce nouveau projet de loi. De

cette facon, nous ne retarderions pas les projets de loi S-2 a S-
9.

Le sénateur Asselin: Je suis d’accord avec vous, sénateur
Buckwold, mais je voudrais prendre connaissance du projet de
loi.

Le sénateur Buckwold: J'espére simplement que nous
n’allons pas repartir dans une méme discussions.

Le vice-président: C’est bien ce que I'on veut éviter. Je m’en
remettrai 4 I'avis du Comité, mais il était prévu que la séance
d’aujourd’hui soit consacrée a I’étude des projets de Loi S-2 a
S-9. Le sénateur Stanbury a déclaré qu’on procéderait ce soir a
la premiére lecture d’un projet de loi qui traite globalement
tous ces problémes.

Le sénateur Stanbury: Oui, monsieur le président, et si I'on
veut que le projet de loi soit renvoyé sans délai en comité, nous

pourrions convenir de passer directement a I'étape de la
deuxiéme lecture.

Le vice-président: L’opposition pourrait envisager cette pos-
sibilité, qui serait une excellente solution.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Monsieur le président, faut-il en
déduire que le nouveau projet de loi que va nous présenter le
sénateur Stanbury pourrait étre déterminant pour l'issue des
huit projets de loi dont nous sommes saisis?

Le vice-président: Non, sénateur, si je ne me trompe pas,
nous pouvons, si tel est le souhait du Comité, faire rapport ce
soir méme de ces huit projets de loi. Je suppose également que
nous pourrions, si le Comité y consent, passer a I’étape de la
deuxiéme lecture du projet de loi du sénateur Stanbury. Ce
projet de loi serait ensuite renvoyé en comité.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Le sénateur Stanbury avait com-
mencé 4 présenter son projet de loi, pui il a été interrompu.
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sure that other committee members would like to know—the
gist of that bill.

The Deputy Chairman: I would ask Mr. du Plessis, our
counsel, to briefly explain the gist of the bill.

Mr. du Plessis: I do not want to pre-empt any discussion
that would take place on second reading, but I have here a
brief summary of what the bill would do.

The proposed bill would deal in three different ways, with
the public general law in Canada prohibiting marriage
between related persons who could otherwise marry. In the
case of persons related by blood, it reaffirms the law that per-
sons may not marry if they are related lineally or if hey are
brothers and sisters, but it otherwise relaxes the law to allow
marriage between persons who are related as aunt and nephew
or as uncle and niece.

In the case of persons related by marriage, the bill relaxes
the law by allowing a person who has lost a spouse by divorce
to marry the same relatives of the former spouse as the law
already allows when the spouse has been lost by death. This
would be the uncle or aunt, the brother or sister, or the nephew
or niece of the divorced spouse.

Finally, in the case of persons related by adoption, the bill
would confirm by statute what the courts have already
decided: that is, that a relationship by adoption is no prohibi-
tion to marriage. That would also be consistent with the posi-
tion that was taken by the Senate in 1978, when it decided that
it did not have to pass the bill that would have allowed a
brother and a sister by adoption to marry.

That, basically, is the gist of the bill.

Senator Robichaud: Mr. Chairman, may I ask a pertinent
question? How is this legislation inconsistent with the legisla-
tion that is contemplated in Bills S-2 to S-9?

The Deputy Chairman: If the bill as proposed by Senator
Stanbury were the law of the land, we would not be sitting
here today considering Bills S-2 to S-9. All of those people
could get married without the necessity of coming before Par-
liament.

Senator Robichaud: That answers my question.

The Deputy Chairman: Without pre-empting Senator Stan-
bury’s proposed bill, the committee still has before it the gen-
eral reference. Honourable senators will recall that two meet-
ings ago we had a discussion during which a decision was made
to write to all of the various religious groups that we were able
to identify within the country. We have now written to 12 such
groups, and will be writing to one more, sending to them an
extensive questionnaire.

First we have told them the general thrust of the reference
and have indicated where we are heading. We have then asked
them to respond, if they could, by April 30, but have stated
that that is not a mandatory date. We have given them a gen-
eral overview of about five pages in length which describes
generally what the law is, what the problem is and what the
proposed legislation will do. We then asked them to answer
seven questions which cover the moral, religious and ethical
points involved in agreeing or disagreeing with the proposed

legislation.

[Traduction]

Jaimerais, comme les autres membres du Comité, connaitre
’essence de ce projet de loi.

Le vice-président: Je voudrais demander a notre conseiller,
M. du Plessis, de nous présenter 1’essence du projet de loi.

M. du Plessis: Sans vouloir présumer de I’éventuel débat de
la deuxiéme lecture, je voudrais présenter ici un résumé des
effets du projet de loi.

Ce projet de loi apporte trois éléments nouveaux aux regles
générales de droit applicables au Canada qui interdisent le
mariage entre parents. Dans le cas de personnes unies par un
lien de consanguinité, le projet de loi réaffirme la régle qui
interdit 4 deux personnes de se marier si elles ont un lien de
parenté directe ou si il s’agit du frére et de la sceur, mais par
ailleurs, il atténue la regle pour permettre le mariage entre
tante et neveu ou entre oncle et niece.

Dans le cas des parents par alliance, le projet de loi atténue
les régles pour permettre & une personne divorcée d’épouser un
parent de son ancien conjoint dans les conditions autorisées
actuellement pour un veuf ou une veuve. Cette personne pour-
rait donc épouser 'oncle ou la tante, le frére ou la sceur, ou le
neveu ou la niéce de son ex-conjoint.

Enfin, dans le cas du lien de parenté par adoption, ce projet
de loi confirme au plan légal les solutions affirmées par les tri-
bunaux; a savoir qu’un lien de parenté par adoption ne fait pas
obstacle au mariage. Cette solution est également conforme a
la formule adoptée par le Sénat en 1978, lorsqu’il a décidé
qu’il n’avait pas 4 adopter un projet de loi qui aurait permis le
mariage entre un frére et une sceur par adoption.

Voila 4 peu prés 'essence de ce projet de loi.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Monsieur le président, je voudrais
poser une question. En quoi ce projet de loi différe-t-il des dis-
positions envisagées dans les projets de Loi S-2 & S-9?

Le vice-président: Si le projet de loi proposé par le sénateur
Stanbury était en vigueur, nous ne nous consacrerions pas
aujourd’hui & I'étude des projets de Loi S-2 4 S-9. Toutes ces
personnes pourraient se marier sans &tre obligées de faire appel
au Parlement.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Voild qui répond & ma question.

Le vice-président: Quel que soit le projet de loi du sénateur
Stanbury, le Comité a toujours son ordre de renvoi général.
Les honorables sénateurs se souviennent qu’au cours de notre
avant-derniére séance, nous avons décidé d’écrire a tous les
groupements religieux dont nous avions connaissance au
Canada. Nous avons écrit 4 douze de ces groupes pour leur
soumettre un questionnaire complet; il nous reste un autre
groupe a contacter.

Tout d’abord, nous leur avons fait part de la portée générale
de notre ordre de renvoi en leur présentant le programme de
nos travaux. Nous leur avons également demandé de nous
répondre si possible avant le 30 avril, en signalant que ce délai
n’était pas obligatoire. Nous leur avons soumis un exposé
d’environ cing pages pour présenter le droit actuel, pour cir-
conscrire le probléme et pour expliquer les effets de la 1égisla-
tion envisagée. Enfin, nous leur avons demandé de répondre a
sept questions couvrant les aspects moraux, religieux et éthi-
ques que comporte I'adoption de cette législation.
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The information we receive in response to that questionnaire
could apply either to our general reference or to Senator Stan-
bury’s bill. I assume that at some point, when Senator Stan-
bury’s bill is referred to committee, this committee will want to
report the general reference so that it does not have the two
matters lying before it.

Senator Stanbury: The general reference is answered by the
bill.

The Deputy Chairman: Yes.

Senator Buckwold: So that we do not confuse ourselves,
shall we drop the discussion on Senator Stanbury’s bill and
proceed with the bills before us so that we can report them
today, if it is the wish of the committee? I gather that that is
the procedure. The general bill is fine; we all support it in prin-
ciple and are delighted with it. But I do not think that we
should mix the two matters at this point.

The Deputy Chairman: We must remember that members of
this committee were not keen to proceed with the private bills
unless we were going to receive a general bill. If I can speak
for the committee, the consensus was, by a majority, I believe,
that the private bills could be used as pressure to bring in a
general bill.

Senator Buckwold: 1 believe that at the last meeting we
agreed that it would be better, because of the uncertainty of
how long it would take to get a general bill through, not to
hold up these bills. :

Senator Robichaud: That we support the general principle of
Senator Stanbury’s bill?

Senator Buckwold: When it comes in, yes.

Senator Asselin: The general bill will be introduced tonight
and given first and second reading and then the private bills
will be reported.

The Deputy Chairman: If we are ready to report them.

Senator Asselin: Yes, and I think we will be ready to report
them. We might not adopt the five or six private bills before us
at third reading in the Senate but we will see. We will discuss
the matter with our caucuses.

The Deputy Chairman: Agreed. When these bills first
appeared some concern was expressed that the petitioners in
the bills would not have anyone present to represent them. It
was considered unsuitable to have Mr. du Plessis represent our
interests as well as the petitioners’ interests. We have been for-
tunate enough to obtain the services of Ms. Lisa Christian,
who is a graduate of Carleton University in Political Science
and is now a second year law student at the University of
Ottawa. In addition to her studies, she has been quite active as
a paid legal researcher and as a member of student legal aid.
She advises me that since being retained she has been briefed
over the telephone by either the petitioners or their lawyers or
both with respect to bills S-2, S-3, S-5, S-7 and S-8. She

[Traduction)

L’information que nous avons regue en réponse a ce ques-
tionnaire pourrait s’appliquer aussi bien a notre ordre de ren-
voi général qu’au projet de loi du sénateur Stanbury. Je pré-
sume qu'da un moment donné, lorsque le projet de loi du
sénateur Stanbury sera renvoyé au comité, ce dernier voudra
faire rapport sur I'ordre de renvoi général, afin que les deux
questions ne soient pas étudiées en méme temps par le comité.

Le sénateur Stanbury: Le projet de loi constitue une réponse
a 'ordre de renvoi général.

Le vice-président: C’est exact.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Donc, afin d’éviter la confusion,
devons-nous interrompre la discussion sur le projet de loi du
sénateur Stanbury pour passer a I'étude des projets de loi
devant le comité, afin d’en faire rapport aujourd’hui, si tel est
le désir du comité. Je suppose que c’est la fagon de procéder.
Le projet de loi général est convenable; nous I'appuyons tous
en principe et nous en sommes enchantés. Mais je ne crois pas
que nous devrions méler les deux questions 4 ce moment-ci.

Le vice-président: Il ne faut pas oublier que les membres du
comité n’étaient pas trés enthousiastes a I'idée de procéder a
I’examen des projets de loi d’intérét privé a moins d’avoir un
projet de loi général. Si je puis m’exprimer au nom du comité,
je crois que selon I'opinion générale, du moins de la majorité,
les projets de loi d’intérét privé pourraient servir de moyen de
pression pour obtenir un projet de loi général.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Je crois que nous avons convenu au
cours de la derniére séance, qu’il était préférable de ne pas
retenir plus longtemps ces projets de loi, étant donné que nous
ne savions pas combien de temps pourrait prendre ’adoption
d’un projet de loi général.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Et le fait que nous appuyons le prin-
cipe général du projet de loi du sénateur Stanbury?

Le sénateur Buckwold: Lorsqu’il nous sera renvoyé.

Le sénateur Asselin: Le projet de loi général sera déposé ce
soir et franchir I'étape des deux premiéres lectures, ensuite
rapport sera fait des projets de loi d’intérét privé.

Le vice-président: Et si nous ne sommes pas préts a le faire.

Le sénateur Asselin: Je suis d’avis que nous serons préts.
Nous n’adopterons peut-étre pas les cinq ou six projets de loi
d’intérét privé qui sont devant le comité au cours de la troi-
siéme lecture au Sénat, mais nous verrons bien. Nous discute-
rons de cette question 4 notre caucus.

Le vice-président: D’accord. Lorsque ces projets de loi ont
été déposés, on a exprimé certaines inquiétudes sur le fait que
les requérants n’auraient personne pour les représenter. On a
jugé qu’il n’était pas convenable que M. du Plessis représente a
la fois nos intéréts et ceux des requérants. Nous avons eu la
chance d’obtenir les services de M™ Lisa Christian, qui est
diplomée de 'université Carleton, en sciences politiques, et qui
est maintenant en deuxiéme année de droit a I’université
d’Ottawa. Outre ses études, elle a €té trés active en tant que
recherchiste judiciaire et membre de Iaide juridique aux étu-
diants. Elle m’a informé que depuis que 'on a retenu ses servi-
ces, les requérants ou leurs avocats, ou méme les deux, ont
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reminds me, and I remind members of the committee, that she
appears in the capacity of an agent, not counsel. She is not a
member of the Law Society of Upper Canada. Next is Mr.
Henry S. Brown, Barrister and Solicitor with Gowling and
Henderson here in Ottawa. Next is Mr. F. James Holmes,
Barrister and Solicitor with Soloway, Wright also of Ottawa.

I would like to start with Bill S-2, the petitioner being
Gerald Harvey Fudge and Audrey Marie Saunders. This is a
marriage involving uncle and niece by consanguinity. Ms.
Christian has a statement to make.

Ms. Lisa Christian, second-year law student at the Univer-
sity of Ottawa: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. It is an honour for
me to be here today. I wish also to thank Mr. du Plessis for his
administrative assistance. I know that the petitioners are
grateful that they could have an agent here because it saves
them expense and inconvenience and they thank you for that.
What I propose to do at this point is read into the record a let-
ter I received from the counsel for these petitioners in Bill S-2,
after which I will take any questions that the committee may
have. The letter reads:

As you are aware, [ am the solicitor representing Gerald
Harvey Fudge and Audrey Marie Saunders with respect
to Bill S-2. Gerald Fudge and Audrey Sauders are uncle
and niece. The Marriage Act (also known as Lord Lynd-
hurst’s Act) 1835... makes an uncle-niece marriage
absolutely void. Prior to the enactment of this legislation,
such a marriage was voidable only, as opposed to being
void from the outset. The legislative situation in Ontario,
in my opinion, is such that Lord Lyndhurst’s Act has been
incorporated as the law in Ontario, and hence an uncle-
niece marriage is also void from the outset here.

Gerald Fudge and Audrey Saunders have been residing
together for several years now, and there is a child of their
relation. This daughter was born December 28th, 1974,
and is doing acceptable work in school. A medical report
was submitted to the Law Clerk of the Senate, confirming
that there were no medical problems with this child. I
have met the child on various occasions myself, and can
say that she appears to be a happy and content child. As
far as she is concerned, she and her parents form a family
unit.

My clients are yet physically able to have children, as
far as they are aware, although they do not intend to have
any further children. During the past nine years they have
not had any children, although they have been living
together. It thus seems that they are able to exercise
family planning effectively.

My clients wish to regularize their relationship by mar-
riage, both for the sake of the child and for the sake of
their status in the community. They both appear to
believe in the stability of the family unit, and in marriage
as the outward evidence and commitment to this unit.
They are not comfortable representing to their neighbours
that they are married when they are not, yet they are not

[Traduction]

co.mmuniqué avec elle par téléphone pour lui donner des ren-
seignements sur les projets de loi S-2, S-3, S-5, S-7 et S-8. Elle
m’a rappelé, et je tiens a le souligner aux membres du comité,
qu’elle comparait 4 titre d’agent, et non de conseiller. Elle n’est
pas membre de la Law Society of Upper Canada. Le témoin
suivant est M. Henry S. Brown, avocat de Gowling and Hen-
derson ici 4 Ottawa. Puis, M. F. James Holmes, avocat de
Soloway Wright, aussi d’Ottawa.

v J’aimerais commencer par le projet de loi s-2, les requérants
étant Gerald Harvey Fudge et Audrey Marie Saunders. Il
s’agit du mariage d’un couple entre un oncle et une ni¢ce par
consanguinité. M™ Christian a une déclaration a faire.

Mme Lisa Christian, étudiante en deuxiéme année de droit
a Puniversité d’Ottawa: Merci, monsieur le président. C’est un
honneur pour moi de comparaitre ici aujourd’hui. J'aimerais
aussi remercier M. du Plessis de son aide sur le plan adminis-
tratif. Je sais que les requérants sont reconnaissants d’avoir un
agent ici pour les représenter, parce que cela leur épargne ainsi
des frais et des inconvénients, et ils vous en remercient. Je vais
maintenant lire une lettre que j’ai regue de I’avocat des requé-
rants du projet de loi S-2, aprés quoi je répondrai a toutes les
questions que les membres du comité aimeraient poser. Voici le
contenu de la lettre.

Comme vous le savez, je représente, a titre d’avocat
Gerald Harvey Fudge et Audrey Marie Saunders, en cé
qui concerne le projet de loi S-2. Gerald Fudge et Audrey
Saunders sont oncle et niéce. La loi sur le mariage (aussi
connue sous le nom de Loi de Lord Lyndhurst) 1835. ..
rend un mariage entre oncle et niéce radicalement nul.
Avant I’adoption de cette loi, un tel mariage était annula-
ble seulement, par opposition a étre nul dés le début. En
Ontario, je crois que la Loi de Lord Lyndhurst a été
incorporée au droit de cette province et par conséquent un
mariage entre oncle et ni¢ce est aussi nul dés le début.

Gerald Fudge et Audrey Saunders habitent ensemble
depuis plusieurs années maintenant, et ils ont eu un
enfant. Leur fille est née le 28 décembre 1974 et elle réus-
sit bien a I’école. Un rapport médical a été soumis au
légiste du Sénat, confirmant qu’il n’y a aucun probléme
d’ordre médical chez cet enfant. J’ai vu ’enfant en diver-
ses occasions moi-méme, et je puis affirmer qu’elle semble
heureuse et satisfaite. Selon elle, ils forment vraiment une
famille.

Mes clients pourraient physiquement avoir d’autres
enfants, autant qu'ils sachent, méme s’ils n’ont pas I'inten-
tion d’en avoir d’autres. Au cours des neuf derniéres
années, ils n'ont pas eu d’enfant méme s’ils vivaient
ensemble. Il semble donc qu’ils soient capables d’exercer
une planification familiale de fagon efficace.

Mes clients désirent régulariser leur relation par le
mariage, 4 la fois pour le bien de I’enfant et pour leur sta-
tut dans la collectivité. Ils semblent tous deux croire en la
stabilité de la famille et au mariage comme engagement
IIs ne sont pas a l'aise d’avoir a prétendre d’étre mariés.
vis-a-vis de leurs voisins et ils ne le sont pas non plus
d’avouer qu’ils ne sont pas mariés. La séparation semble
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comfortable representing that they are not married. Sepa-
ration appears to be out of the question, as they are com-
mitted to each other, and to the child.

My clients both are members of the Seventh-day
Adventist Church, which apparently does not have an
official stated position concerning their proposed mar-
riage. Since their application for exemption has been com-
menced, they have obtained the consent of two different
Ministers to perform a marriage ceremony for them.
However, both of these Ministers have been transferred to
other parts of the country, and my clients have decided
not to engage other local Ministers until they can confirm
that the Bill has been passed.

That, then, Mr. Chairman, was the information sent to this
committee by counsel for Bill S-2.

Senator Buckwold: May we have the name of the lawyer
and the firm he represents, and the location?

Ms. Christian: Yes, the name of the lawyer is David B. Tho-
mas of Jewell, Angus & Michael and they are located in
Oshawa, Ontario.

The Chairman: Are there any further questions of Ms.
Christian with respect to Bill S-2?

Senator Asselin: I am sorry, I was busy at the phone. Did
you tell us the age of the people involved in this petition?

Ms. Christian: Mr. Fudge is aged 50 and Miss Saunders is
aged 33.

Senator Asselin: They have lived together for nine years?

Ms. Christian: Yes, for nine years.

Senator Asselin: Where is the community in which they now
live?

Ms. Christian: Oshawa, Ontario is a fair size.

Senator Asselin: About 50,0007 They are residing in the
town of Oshawa?

Ms. Christian: Yes, in the city of Oshawa.

Senator Asselin: And you say that, in the nine years since
they have been involved in family planning in order to avoid
having any more children?

Ms. Christian: That is right. Their last child was born in
1974 and, since then, they have been participating in birth con-
trol that has been effective.

Senator Asselin: Thank you.

Senator Robichaud: That last argument does not impress me
very much, that they have been participating in a birth control
system. Are they at an age where they are still capable of pro-
ducing children? -

Ms. Christian: The man is 50 and the woman is 33.
Senator Asselin: Draw your own conclusions.

Ms. Christian: So 1 would say that they are still of an age
where they are capable of bearing children.

Senator Robichaud: This is an uncle-niece relationship and
they have a ten year old?

[Traduction)

étre hors de question, étant donné qu'ils se considérent
engagés 'un envers I'autre et 4 I'égard de I’enfant.

Mes clients sont tous deux membres de la Seventh-day
Adventish Church qui ne semble pas avoir pris de position
officielle concernant leur mariage. Depuis qu’'ils ont pré-
senté leur requéte, ils ont obtenu le consentement de deux
différents ministres pour célébrer la cérémonie du
mariage. Toutefois, ces deux ministres ont été mutés dans
d’autres parties du pays, et mes clients ont décidé de ne
pas faire appel 4 un autre ministre tant qu'ils n’auront pas
regu la confirmation que le projet de loi a été adopté.

Voila donc, monsieur le président, les renseignements qui ont
été transmis au Comité par le conseiller pour le projet de Loi
S-2.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Pouvons-nous avoir le nom de I'avo-
cat et du cabinet qu’il représente ainsi que la localité?

Mme Christian: Ouli, il s’agit de David B. Thomas de Jewell,
Angus & Michael, d’Oshawa, Ontario.

Le président: Aimeriez-vous poser d’autres questions a M™
Christian en ce qui concerne le projet de Loi S-2?

Le sénateur Asselin: Je m’excuse, j’étais occupé au télé-
phone. Nous avez-vous donné I’dge des requérants?

Mme Christian: Fudge est 4gé de 50 ans et M™ Saunders,
de 33 ans.

Le sénateur Asselin: [Is vivent ensemble depuis neuf ans?
Mme Christian: Oui.

Le sénateur Asselin: Dans quelle municipalité habitent-ils
maintenant?

Mme Christian: Oshawa Ontario, ville assez grande.

Le sénateur Asselin: Environ 50 000 habitants? Ils demeu-
rent dans la ville d’Oshawa?

Mme Christian: Oui.

Le sénateur Asselin: Et vous dites que, depuis neuf ans qu'ils
vivent ensemble, ils ont recours a des moyens contraceptifs
pour ne pas avoir d’autres enfants?

Mme Christian: C’est exact. Leur enfant est né en 1974 et
depuis, ils n’en ont pas eu d’autres grice aux méthodes contra-
ceptives.

Le sénateur Asselin: Je vous remercie.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Le fait qu’ils ont recours a des
moyens contraceptifs ne m’impressionne pas beaucoup. A leur
age, sont-ils encore capables d’avoir des enfants?

Mme Christian: L’homme a 50 ans et la femme, 33.
Le sénateur Asselin: Tirez vos propres conclusions.

Mme Christian: Je dirais qu’ils sont encore a 1'dge d’avoir
des enfants.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Il s’agit d’un oncle et d’une niéce, et
ils ont un enfant de dix ans?
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Mr. Christian: A ten year old daughter, and they do not
plan on having any more children.

Senator Robichaud: The child, from medical evidence, is
normal?

Ms. Christian: She is a normal child.

Senator Robichaud: Is she healthy?

Ms. Christian: Yes, healthy and normal in all respects, [ am
given to believe.

Senator Robichaud: Perhaps I could ask my next question of
Senator Stanbury. Senator Stanbury, does your bill cover a sit-
uation such as this one?

Senator Stanbury: Yes.

Senator Buckwold: I would like to ask, Mr. Chairman, what
your procedure is now? If we are in agreement on Bill S-2, do
you want to deal with it now? If so, I would like to move the
approval of Bill S-2, without amendment.

The Chairman: Then, honourable senators, shall I report Bill
S-2 to the Senate without amendment?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Dealing now with Bill S-3. The pet.itioners in
this matter are Louis-Philippe Nadeau and Marie-Thérese
Brilé. Their relationship is exactly the same as that of the
petitioners in Bill S-2. That is, it is an uncle-niece relationship,

which is prohibited by consanguinity.

Ms. Christian is similarly acting as an agent in this matter.
Do you have anything to add to the material that we have
already received?

Senator Asselin: What is their age?

Ms. Christian: 1 do have something to add, Mr. Chairman. I
have another letter that I would like to re'a_d into the repord
from counsel for these petitioners. Louis-Philippe Nadeau is 85
years old and Marie-Thérése Brillé is 63 years old.

The Chairman: He will not be 86 until August.

Senator Robichaud: Mr. Chairman, we should not laugh at
that, because we will all be 86 some day.

The Chairman: I hope so.

Ms. Christian: Counsel for these petitioners is Mr. Bousquet
from Bousquet and Bousquet of St-Hyacinthe, Quebec. This
letter was written on behalf of the petitioners themselves and it
says:

.. we would hereby like to inform you that we are not
aware of any opposition to our petition.

We submitted this petition for the following reasons:

1. We love each other, have lived together for several
years and wish to be married.

2. Marie-Thérése Rita Brilé gave birth to a daughter
on June 15, 1958. The child was fathered by Louis-Phi-
lippe Nadeau and was baptised by the name of Marie-

[Traduction]

Mme Christian: Une fille de dix ans, et ils ne prévoient pas
avoir d’autres enfants.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Du point de vue médical, I’enfant
est-elle normale?

Mme Christian: Oui.
Le sénateur Robichaud: Est-elle en bonne santé?

Mme Christian: Oui, j’ai toutes les raisons de croire qu’elle
est en bonne santé et normale sur tous les plans.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Peut-étre que je pourrais poser ma
prochaine question au sénateur Stanbury. Sénateur, votre pro-
jet de loi prévoit-il pareille situation?

Le sénateur Stanbury: Oui.

Le sénateur Buckwold: J’aimerais vous demander, monsieur
le président, ce qu'il faut faire maintenant? Si nous acceptons
le projet de Loi S-2, I'adoptons-nous dés maintenant? Dans
I’affirmative, j’aimerais proposer I’adoption du projet de Loi S-
2, sans amendement.

Le président: Alors, sénateurs, est-ce que je fait rapport du
projet de Loi S-2 au Sénat sans amendement?

Des voix: Adopté.

Le président: Passons maintenant au projet de Loi S-3. Les
requérants sont M. Louis-Philippe Nadeau et M™ Marie-Thé-
rése Brilé. Leur relation est exactement la méme que celle des
requérants du projet de Loi S-2, il s’agit en effet d’un oncle et
une niéce, ce qui est interdit pour des raisons de consanguinité.

Mme Chritian agit également a titre d’agent dans cette
affaire. Avez-vous quelque chose d ajouter a ce qui a déja été
dit?

Le sénateur Asselin: Quel est leur dge?

Mme Christian: J'ai quelque chose a ajouter, monsieur le
président. J’ai ici une autre lettre qui vient du dossier de I'avo-
cat des requérants et que j'aimerais lire. M. Louis-Philippe
Nadeau a 85 ans et M™ Marie-Thérése Brilé, 63 ans.

Le président: Il n’aura 86 qu’au mois d’aout.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Monsieur le président, nous ne
devrions pas rire de leur dge, parce que nous aurons tous 86
ans un jour.

Le président: Je I'espere!

Mme Chritian: L’avocat des requérants est M. Bousquet de
Bousquet et Bousquet de St-Hyacinthe (Québec). Cettte lettre
a été écrite au nom des requérants eux-mémes et on peut y lire
ce qui suit:

... nous aimerions par la présente vous informer que nous
ne sommes au courant d’aucune opposition 4 notre
requéte.
Nous avons présenté cette derniére pour les raisons sui-
vantes:
1. Nous nous aimons, nous vivons ensemble depuis
plusieurs années et nous désirons nous marier.
2. Marie-Thérése Rita Briilé a donné naissance a une
fille le 15 juin 1958. Son pére était Louis-Philippe
Nadeau et elle fut baptisée au nom de Marie-Martine-
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Martine-Sylvie Nadeau, daughter of Thérése Brilé.
Around the age of 5, the child was adopted by the sister
of Marie Thérése Briilé, Mrs. Jeanne-D’Arc Nelson,
the reason being at the time to facilitate the child’s
enrollment in school. When the child reached the age of
16, she was once again adopted by Mr. Louis-Philippe
Nadeau. Mrs. Briilé and Mr. Nadeau want to marry so
that their daughter can legally become the daughter of
Mrs. Brillé.

3. Finally, we have submitted this petition for reasons
pertaining to the existing inheritance laws in the Prov-
ince of Quebec. If Mr. Nadeau dies and leaves all of his
worldly possessions to Mrs. Briilé and if they are not
married, she will have to pay tax on the inheritance to
the Quebec Department of Revenue.

Senator Asselin: For that reason alone, I am prepared to
move that we adopt the bill.

Senator Stanbury: That is a good, practical reason.

Ms. Christian: Mr. Chairman, that is the information that |
have on this couple.

The Deputy Chairman: I trust that there are no questions.

Senator Asselin: The reason that Ms. Christian gave at the
end of her presentation is a very sound one.

The Deputy Chairman: Shall I report Bill S-3 without
amendment?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Deputy Chairman: Bill S-4 deals with the case of Ernest
Hodel and Norma Dora Laurie. This one involves an aunt and
nephew by consanguinity. Other than reversing the sexes, I
believe it is the same relationship. I am going to call upon Mr.
Henry Brown. Do you have a statement to make?

Mr. Henry S. Brown, Barrister and Solicitor, Gowling and
Henderson: Mr. Chairman, 1 had the privilege of attending
before this committee in the month of February of this year at
which time I gave a statement and answered questions for
almost an hour on this bill. I believe I responded to all the
questions that were put. Mrs. Laurie is 48 years old and Mr.
Hodel is 46 years old. She cannot conceive. The Lutheran
Church will marry them. They come from the town of Southey
which is approximately 50 miles north of Regina. They are
very much in love and wish Parliament to regularize and legal-
ize that relationship.

Senator Asselin: How do you know that they are very much
in love?

The Deputy Chairman: I assume they told Mr. Brown that.

Mr. Brown: They told me that and they are anxious to
embark on something that one would not embark on unless one
were truly in love.

The Deputy Chairman: Are there any questions?

Senator Robichaud: Perhaps my question is just as naive as
the one asked by Senator Asselin. How do you know that Mrs.
Laurie cannot conceive?

[Traduction)

Sylvie Nadeau, fille de Thérése Brilé. Vers I'dge de S
ans, elle fut adoptée par la sceur de Marie-Thérése
Brilé, M™ Jeanne-D’Arc Nelson, en vue de faciliter
son inscription & I’école. A 16 ans, elle fut adoptée de
nouveau par M. Louis-Philippe Nadeau. M™ Briilé et
M. Nadeau veulent se marier pour que leur fille puisse
devenir légalement la fille de M™ Briilé.

3. Enfin, nous avons présenté la présente requéte
pour des raisons ayant trait aux lois existantes sur la
succession dans la province de Québec. En effet, si M.
Nadeau meurt et laisse toutes ses possessions & M™
Briilé sans étre marié avec elle, celle-ci devrait payer
I'impdt du Québec sur les successions.

Le sénateur Asselin: Pour cette seule raison, je suis disposé a
proposer I’adoption du projet de loi.

Le sénateur Stanbury: Voild une bonne raison, et pratique
en plus.

Mme Christian: Monsieur le président, c’est 1a I'information
dont je dispose sur ce couple.

Le vice-président: Je crois qu’il n’y a pas d’autres questions.

Le sénateur Asselin: La derniére raison donnée par M™
Christian est trés bonne.

Le vice-présdient: Est-ce que je fais rapport du bill S-3 sans
amendement?

Des voix: Adopté.

Le vice-président: Le bill S-4, concerne le cas de M. Ernest
Hodel et de M™ Norma Dora Laurie. Il s’agit d’une relation
consanguine entre une tante et son neveu, donc d’une relation
de méme nature. J'invite M. Henry Brown a prendre la parole.

M. Henry S. Brown, avocat, Gowling and Henderson: Mon-
sieur le président, en février dernier, j’ai eu le privilege de com-
paraitre devant votre comité; a4 cette occasion, j'ai fait une
déclaration et répondu a des questions pendant presque une
heure relativement a ce projet de loi. Je pense que j'ai répondu
a toutes les questions qui m’ont été posées. M™ Laurie est dgée
de 48 ans et M. Hodel, de 46 ans. M™ Laurie est stérile. IlIs se
marieront a I'église lurthérienne. Ils viennent de Southey, loca-
lité située approximativement 4 50 milles au nord de Regina.
Ils s’aiment beaucoup et veulent que le Parlement régularise et
légalise leur relation.

Le sénateur Asselin: Comment savez-vous qu’ils s’aiment
beaucoup?

Le vice-président: Je présume que c’est ce qu’ils ont dit a M.
Brown.

M. Brown: Ils m’ont dit qu’ils étaient désireux de s’unir car
ils s’aiment vraiment.

Le vice-président: Y a-t-il des questions?

Le sénateur Robichaud: Ma question est sans doute aussi
naive que celle du sénateur Asselin. Comment savez-vous que
Mm™ Laurie est stérile?
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Mr. Brown: A report from a medical doctor was filed with
the committee at the earlier hearings. It is his opinion that she
cannot conceive as a result of an operation.

.The Deputy Chairman: Honourable senators, shall I report
Bill S-4 to the Senate without amendment?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Deputy Chairman: Bill S-5 deals with the case of Ben-
jamin Josheph Andrade and Heather Winnifred Andrade. Not
unlike Bills S-2 and S-3, the relationship is one of uncle and
niece. Ms. Christian, do you have anything to add?

Ms. Christian: Mr. Chairman, I do. Benjamin Josheph
Andrade is 25 years of age. Heather Winnifred Andrade is 21
years of age. Counsel for this couple is Ysanne Wilkinson of
the firm of Sanderson & Wilkinson in Prince Albert, Sas-
katchewan. Ms. Wilkinson writes:

Please be advised that I am the solicitor acting on
behalf of the Petitioners ... and have been acquainted
with this young couple since in or about December of
1982. These Petitioners were first introduced to each
other in 1976 and two years later began seeing each other
on a serious basis. They have been residing together from
1980 onwards and moved to the Province of Saskatche-
wan in 1981. Shortly before they moved, Benjamin, who
was a helicopter pilot, had been involved in a near fatal
flying accident from which he fortunately escaped without
critical injury and thereafter he began to reconsider his
objectives in life and decided that he wanted to formally
commit himself to his relationship to Heather notwith-
standing the impediments to their marriage. In May of
1982 Benjamin who had not previously followed any
organized religion converted to Christianity and became
involved in a non-denominational church called Outreach.
The Minister, Roger Armbruster, was at all times willing
to marry the Petitioners and actively assisted them in
obtaining information as to how this could be achieved. If
they are permitted to marry it is their intention to do so at
the earliest possible date and to be married either by
Roger Armbruster or any other Minister agreeable to per-
forming the service.

At the present time Heather is enrolled in a nursing
course and Benjamin is employed with a Transport Com-
pany involved in the business of trucking and excavation.
The Petitioners are presently maintaining separate resi-
dences while Heather pursues her studies . . .

Upon Heather completing her training in the spring of
1986 they wish to become involved in missionary work for
their church and will be seeking employment in Northern
Saskatchewan where Heather intends to practise nursing
and Benjamin will return to flying. This is one reason,
apart from the respect they have for each other, that they
wish to formalize and stabilize their relationship through
marriage and be accepted in their work and in the com-
munity as a married couple. The Petitioners feel that in
their respective careers and in pursuit of their missionary
work the community in general will be more receptive to

[Traduction]

M. Brown: Le.comité a regu un rapport médical 4 ce sujet
au cours des audiences antérieures. Le médecin estime qu’elle
est stérile par suite d’'une opération qu’elle a subie.

Le vice-président: Sénateurs, dois-je faire rapport du projet
de loi S-4 au Sénat sans amendement?

Des voix: Adopté.

Lg vi.ce-président: Le projet de loi S-5 concerne le cas de
Benjamin Josheph Andrade et Heather Winnifred Andrade.
Comme pour les projets de loi S-2 et S-3, il s’agit d’un oncle et
d’une ni¢ce. M™ Christian, avez-vous quelque chose 4 ajouter?

Mme Christian: Oui, monsieur le président. Benjamin Jos-
heph Andrade est dgé de 25 ans, et Heather Winnifred
Andrade, de 21 ans. Le conseiller de ce couple est M™ Ysanne
Wilkinson, de Sanderson & Wilkinson de Prince Albert (Sas-
katchewan). M™ Wilkinson écrit:

Je désire vous informer par les présentes que j'agis a
titre d’avocat des requérants... que j’ai connus vers
décembre 1982. Ils se sont rencontrés pour la premiére
fois en 1976 et ont commencé a se fréquenter réguliére-
ment deux ans plus tard. Ils ont commencé a vivre ensem-
ble en 1980 et résident dans la province de Saskatchewan
depuis 1981. Peu avant leur déménagement, Benjamin
qui était pilote d’hélicoptere, a failli périr dans un acci:
dent dont il s’est heureusement tiré sans blessure grave.
C’est 4 la suite de cet accident qu’il s’est remis en question
et a décidé de s’engager envers Heather malgré les empé-
chements 4 leur mariage. En mai 1982, Benjamin, qui jus-
que-la ne pratiquait aucune religion, s’est converti au
christianisme et est devenu membre d’une église non con-
fessionnelle appelée Outreach. Le ministre, M. Roger
Armbruster, a toujours été disposé a marier les requérants
et les a conseillé sur la fagcon d’obtenir les informations
nécessaires pour pouvoir se marier. S’ils y sont autorisés,
ils entendent s’unir le plus tdt possible devant M. Roger
Armbruster ou tout autre ministre disposé a les marier.

A I'heure actuelle, Heather suit un cours de technique
infirmiére et Benjamin travaille pour une entreprise de
transports qui effectue des travaux de camionnage et
d’excavation. Les requérants vivent actuellement en rési-
dence séparée pendant que Heather poursuit ses
études . . .

Dés que Heather aura terminé sa formation au prin-
temps de 1986, le couple entend travailler comme mission-
naires pour son église, plus particuliérement dans le nord
de la Saskatchewan ol Heather désire pratiquer son
métier et Benjamin redevenir pilote. C’est I'une des rai-
sons, outre le respect qu’ils se portent mutuellement, pour
lesquelles ces deux personnes désirent sanctionner et sta-
biliser leur union par le mariage et étre considérées dans
leur milieu de travail et au sein de la collectivité comme
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them and the Petitioners will be more readily accepted if
they are permitted to enjoy the status of marriage.

Both Petitioners are in excellent physical health and
know of no inherent genetic defects in their family history
which would make child bearing inadvisable. However
they do intend to obtain the best available medical advice
in the nature of genetic counselling and should there
appear to be any risk whatsoever involved in having chil-
dren they would be quite content to adopt a child as an
alternative.

Ms. Wilkinson then outlines the law in Saskatchewan.

Senator Asselin: Do you have any medical expertise to pro-
duce?

Ms. Christian: There is no medical evidence on file.

Ms. Wilkinson goes on to say:

By way of personal comment I wish only to add that I
have been well acquainted with this young couple over the
last year and have found them to be sincere and honest
and of high moral standard. I feel no hesitation in endors-
ing their objectives and sincerely hope that this informa-
tion will be of assistance to you.

There was an addendum to that letter concerning any opposi-
tion which is a specific question that I had put to Ms. Wilkin-
son.

Senator Asselin: Who wrote that letter?

Ms. Christian: Ysanne Wilkinson, counsel for the petition-
ers.

Senator Asselin: You cannot give evidence for somebody
else.

Senator Buckwold: She is reading a letter.

Senator Asselin: But it is not evidence. I understand that
counsellors have no objection that their claim could get this
exception.

The Deputy Chairman: They are not aware of any objection
within the community.

Senator Asselin: I would have preferred a letter from the
Mayor or a member of the clergy.

Ms. Christian: Ms. Wilkinson states:

I am advised while Heather’s parents would not consider
giving a positive blessing to the union of the parties, on
the other hand, they would not make any formal opposi-
tion to the present proceedings.
She also states in her letter that other friends and acquaint-
ances are fully supportive.

The Deputy Chairman: Are there any questions of Ms.
Christian?

Senator Asselin: Mr. Chairman, I would have preferred to
have medical expertise or a medical certificate because of the
ages of the couple.

[Traduction]
un couple marié. Les requérants estiment que leur car-
riére et leur travail de missionnaires s’en trouveront facili-
tés au sein de la collectivité et qu'ils seront eux-mémes
mieux acceptés si on leur permet de se marier.

Les requérants jouissent d’une excellente santé physi-
que et n'ont connaissance d’aucun antécédent d’anomalie
génétique dans leur famille qui constituerait un risque
pour leur progéniture. Ils entendent néanmoins obtenir les
meilleurs conseils médicaux possibles dans le domaine de
la génétique et s’il se révélait risqué pour eux d’avoir des
enfants, ils sont disposés a en adopter..

M Wilkinson expose ensuite les grandes lignes du droit en
Saskatchewan.

Le sénateur Asselin: Avez-vous une expertise médicale a
produire?

Mme Christian: Il n’y a aucune information médicale au
dossier.

Mm™ Wilkinson poursuit:

A titre personnel, j’aimerais ajouter que je fréquente le
jeune couple depuis une année et que je considére les deux
parties sincéres, honnétes et irréprochables au plan moral.
Je n’hésite aucunement a endosser leurs objectifs et
Jespére sincérement que les informations qui précédent
vous seront utiles.

La lettre comporte un addenda concernant un empéchement
éventuel, en réponse 4 une question précise que j’avais posée a
Mm™ Wilkinson.

Le sénateur Asselin: Qui a écrit la lettre?

Mme Christian: C’est M™ Ysanne Wilkinson, conseiller des
requérants.

Le sénateur Asselin: Vous ne pouvez témoigner pour
quelqu’un d’autre.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Elle lit une lettre.

Le sénateur Asselin: Mais ce n’est pas un témoignage. Je
crois savoir que les conseillers ne s’opposent pas a ce que leur
requéte fasse 'objet de cette exception.

Le vice-président: Vous n’avez connaissance d’aucun empé-
chement formulé au sein de la collectivité.

Le sénateur Asselin: J'aurais préféré une lettre du maire ou
d’un membre du clergé.

Mme Christian: M™ Wilkinson précise:

Je suis informé que bien que les parents d’Heather ne
soient pas disposés 4 donner leur bénédiction a I'union des
parties, d’autre part ils ne manifestent aucune opposition
formelle aux procédures actuelles.
Elle précise également dans sa lettre que des amis et connais-
sances des parties les appuient entiérement.

Le vice-président: M™ Christian a-t-elle des questions?

Le sénateur Asselin: Monsieur le président, j'aurais préféré
une expertise médicale ou un certificat médical compte tenu de
'dge des requérants.
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Senator Buckwold: I personally do not feel that that is
necessary in view of the evidence that we have received at our
last meeting from the geneticist and also from the fact that
this would be covered automatically under the bill which is
being proposed. Therefore, I really do not see any serious
health problem, with all due respect to my colleague.

The Deputy Chairman: Senator Asselin, Senator Buckwold
is just making the point that our proceedings today, based
upon our proceedings on the general law, would allow these to
pass in any event.

Senator Asselin: We would be able, in the Senate, to con-
sider the cases further if we want to, until that law is adopted.

The Deputy Chairman: Yes. Honourable senators, shall T
report Bill S-5 to the Senate without amendment?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Deputy Chairman: With the indulgence of honourable
senators, I would like to consider Bills S-6, S-7, S-8 and S-9 at
the same time, since the relationship in each bill is one based
on affinity.

Senator Asselin: There is no blood relationship in any of
those bills?

The Deputy Chairman: No.

Senator Buckwold: Mr. Chairman, | wou]d be happy to ask
you to report Bills S-6, S-7, S-8 and S-9 without arpepdmem,
in light of the fact that there is no blood relatlonshlp involved
in the case of the petitioners named in any of those bills.

The Deputy Chairman: Honourable senators, should I report
without amendment Bills S-7, S-7, S-8 and S-9?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

Senator Buckwold: Unless the legal counsel want to talk
themselves out of it.

Mr. F. James Holmes, Barrister and Solicitor: I am happy
to see that my advocacy has been so effective.

The Deputy Chairman: I believe I have reported to honour-
able senators on the submission of our questionnaire to the
various religious faiths. We await the responses to that ques-
tionnaire and, as they are received, we will no doubt circulate
them.

Senator Robichaud: Mr. Chairman, are we expecting to
hear from each of the various religious groups?

The Deputy Chairman: The idea behind sending out the
questionnaires, Senator Robichaud, is to avoid having another
13 meetings to hear from the 13 different groups. In asking for
a written submission from them, we will have on the record
their views and we can consider them.

The last item on our agenda involves the next meeting of the

committee, but until the steering committee meets, I have no
information to give honourable senators.

The committee adjourned.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Buckwold: Personnellement, je ne crois pas que
ce soit nécessaire compte tenu des informations que nous avons
recueillies lors du témoignage du géniticien lors de notre der-
niére séance et étant donné que cette exigence sera automati-
quement prévue par le projet de loi 4 I’étude. Aussi, je ne vois
aucun probléme médical, malgré tout le respect que je dois a
mon collégue.

Le vice-président: Sénateur Asselin, le sénateur Buckwold
fait simplement valoir que nos délibérations actuelles, fondées
sur celles au sujet d’une loi générale, permettraient ’adoption
des projets de loi de toute fagon.

Le sénateur Asselin: Au Sénat, nous serions en mesure
d’étudier les cas plus en profondeur si nous le voulions, jusqu’a
ce que la loi générale soit adoptée.

Le vice-président: Oui. Sénateurs, dois-je faire rapport du
projet de loi S-5 au Sénat sans amendement?

Des voix: Adopté.

Le vice-président: Sénateurs, j’aimerais passer a I’étude des
projets de loi S-6, S-7, S-8 et S-9 en méme temps, étant donné
qu’il s’agit dans chaque cas de liens d’affinité.

Le sénateur Asselin: Il n’y a pas de liens consanguins dans
'un ou 'autre cas?

Le vice-président: Non.

Le sénateur Buckwold: Monsieur le Président, je serais heu-
reux de vous demander de faire rapport des projets de loi S-6
S-7, S-8 et S-9 sans amendement, compte tenu qu’aucun nt;
concerne un cas de consanguinité.

Le vice-président: Sénateurs, dois-je faire rapport des pro-
jets de loi S-6, S-7, S-8 et S-9 sans amendement?

Des voix: Adopté.

Le sénateur Buckwold: A moins que le conseiller juridique
n’ait quelque chose a dire.

M. F. James Holmes, avocat: Je me réjouis de I'efficacité de
mon plaidoyer.

Le vice-président: Je crois vous avoir fait part de I’envoi de
notre questionnaire aux diverses églises et confessions. Nous
attendons les réponses et & mesure que nous les TeCevrons, nous
vous les communiquerons.

Le sénateur Robichaud: Monsieur le président, attendons-
nous une réponse de chaque groupe religieux?

Le vice-président: La raison pour laquelle nous avong
envoyé des questionnaires, sénateur Robichaud, était d’éviter
d’avoir a tenir 13 séances pour 13 groupes différents. Ep
demandant aux groupes de nous envoyer une réponse écrite
nous connaitrons déja leurs points de vue et pourront les étu:
dier.

Le dernier article 4 I'ordre du jour concerne la prochaine
séance du Comité, mais d’ici & ce que le Comité de direction se
réunisse, je n’ai aucune précision a vous communiquer 3 ce
sujet.

La séance est levée.
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